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Dear Fellow Stockhoider, .

Vector Group s 2012 results reﬂected increased operating profits as we enhanced margms made strategic
1nvestments and put m place a caprtal structure that will strengthen our Company

Our Liggett tobacco business ended 2012 with a market share in excess of 3.6% and with one of the
leading brands in the United States, Pyramid. Our strategic price increases for Pyramid were effective and
enabled us to capture margin, while continuing to generate retail growth for the brand despite an expected
lower retail shipment rate. Additionally, our 50%-owned Douglas Elliman real estate brokerage business
posted strong results and our New Valley segment made several pronnsmg new real estate investments.
Overall ‘we believe we are posmoned for 2013 ‘

Overall Fmanctal Results

Vector Group s 2012 Tevenues were $1 .09 brlhon a modest declme from $1.13 bllllon in 2011, pnmanly
due to decreased unit sales of. approxrmately 8.1% in 2012, which was partially offset by higher pricing. We
recorded operatmg income of $154.9 mllhon in 2012, compared to $143.3 million in 2011, an increase of
8.1% largely as a result of 1mproved margins. We are pleased to have achieved. thls 1ncrease amidst
challenging mdustry and macro-economic conditions.

Vector Group has paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.40 per share, or $1.60 per year, for the past 13
years. Further, Vector Group has paid an annual 5% stock dividend for the past 14 consecutive years.
Importantly, our liquidity remains strong with cash and cash equivalents of approximately $406 million and
investment ‘securities and partnershlp interests “with a fair market value of $94.8 million at 2012 year end.
Additionally, we recently ‘completed a series of debt financings which have put in place a capltal structure for
the Company with significantly extended matuntles and the ﬂex1b111ty to- permlt us to continue to grow our
'busmesses over the long term. :

Cigarette Business

Our cigarette business had 2012 revenues of $1.09 billion compared to $1.13 billion in the prior year,
primarily due to anticipated volume declines in our non-Pyramid brands. However, operating income at our
cigarette business grew approximately 7% for the year to $176 million as a result of our strategic pricing
actions in 2012. We were satisfied to achieve this meaningful profit growth amidst a challenging cigarette
environment.

We continue to balance our pursuit of volume growth and margin opportunities. Put simply, we endeavor
to maximize short-term opportunities while remaining focused on brand strength and long-term profit growth.
Accordingly, in 2012, we implemented price increases on our branded portfolio, while continuing to build our
Pyramid brand nationally. Pyramid is the 3™ largest discount brand in the U.S, and 7® largest overall, with a
significant opportunity to further expand its national distribution footprint. The brand is now sold in over
100,000 stores, with a distribution base that grew by almost 5,000 stores in the fourth quarter of 2012 alone.
Pyramid’s retail market share as of year-end was approximately 2.4%, demonstrating the brand’s continued
strength following these pricing actions.



To further leverage our position in the deep -dis¢ount segment of the market, in January 2013 we
introduced a new national, deep discount brand, Eagle 20’s. We expect Eagle 205 to benefit from
complementary positioning and the robust dlstnbutlo;p network we already have in place with Pyramid. We
are excited about this new brand initiative and beheve itF w111 help stabilize our overall volume trends. We
look forward to sharing additional details about Eagle 20’s as the year progresses.

With respect to the ongoing challenge of companies evading féderal excise taxes by any number of
means, we are pleased to report that some progress has been made. Federal legislation was enacted in 2012 to
address one aspect of the issue, the mislabeling “Roll Your Own” (RYO) tobacco as “Pipe Tobacco,” by
classifying retailers making cigarettes in their stores as manufacturers. We are hopeful that additional
discussions in Washington, D.C. will lead to closing existing tobacco tax loopholes, including equalizing tax
rates on all tobacco products and addressing an exploited tax differential between small and large cigars.
Remedying these issues remains a priority, as they continue to adversely impact the entire legitimate cigarette
marketplace, with the most direct impact on the discount segment, Separately, w1th respect. to tobacco
litigation, the Engle progeny cases in Florida remain our primary focus. Along w1th other - industry defendants
we continue to believe that the Engle process is matenally flawed and unconstitutional; however, appellate
efforts to overturn the Engle findings have not been successful Going forward, -we remain’ prepared to meet
these and other challenges we may face. : : :

Real Estate Businesses

Our New Valley real estate subsidiary had an active year in 2012 and is working on a number of exciting'
new projects. In August 2012, we announced that New Valley would move ahead with partners to develop and
convert into luxury residential condominiums a recently acquired 10-story, approximately.122,000 square foot
office building at 11 Beach Street in Tribeca in lower Manhattan. In October 2012, New Valley, along with the
Witkoff Group and Winthrop Realty Trust, acquired a pnme Times Square-area site to be redeveloped for
retail; restaurant and’ entertainment businesses, and 450-room hotel. Beneﬁtmg from its leadershlp posmon in
the lucrative New York market, our 50%-owned Douglas Elliman Realty LLC reported closed sales in 2012 of
approximately $12.4 billion of residential real estate and has oﬁices in Manhattan Westchester County, Long
Island and South Florida.

Outlook

This past October, Vector Group celebrated its 25™ ‘anniversary of listing on, the New York Stock
Exchange. We are particularly proud of the significant, annualized returns we have- generated and remam
committed to contmumg to create value for our stockholders In addition, in March 2013, Forbes reported we
were named as one of “America’s 100 Most Trustworthy Companies” as ranked by GMI Ratings, .an _
independent firm that is a pioneer in the application of non-traditional risk metrics to investment analysis and
risk modeling.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and management team at Vector Group, we would like to thank our
stockholders, employees .and customers for their contmued support and dedication.

Smcerely, '

Howard M Loxber | .
President and C‘hlef Executlve Ofﬁcer ‘
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PART I
ITii‘,ll/lll. BUSINESS

Overview } e e
- Vector Group Ltd.; a Delaware corporation, is a holdmg company. and is pnncrpally engaged in:

* the manufacture and sale of cigarettes in the United States through our Lrggett Group LLC
(:‘Liggett”) and Vector Tobacco Inc. (*Vector Tobacco’”) subsidiaries, and .

. ‘the real estate busmess through our New Valley LLC subs1d1ary, whlch is seeking to acquire

'~ additional operating corpanies and real estate propertles New Valley owns 50% of Douglas Elliman

Realty, LLC, which operates the largest residential ° brokerage company in the New York
metropolitan area. - . - o

St

Financial mformatlon Telating to our businéss segments can be found in Note 17 to our consolidated
financial statements. Our srgmﬁcant business segments for the year ‘ended December 31, 2012 were Tobacco
and Real Estate. The Tobacco segment consists of the manufactiire and sale’ of mgarettes The Real Estate
segment mcludes fhe Company s 1nvestments in consolldated and non-consohdated real estate busmesses '

TN R 2
PRI

Strategy

“ Our strategy is-to maximize stockholder value by mcreasmg the proﬁtablhty of our subsndranes in the
followmg ways: : i . R PR
nggett and Vector Tobacco

. Capltahze upon our tobacco subsidiaries’ cost advantage in the UsS. crgarette market due to the
.- .favorable treatment that they_recelve under the Master Settlement Agreement,

*  Focus marketing and selling efforts on the discount segment, continue to build volume and‘ margin in
core discount brands (PYRAMID, GRAND PRIX, LIGGETT SELECT and EVE) and utilize core
brand equity to selectively build distribution,

*  Continue product development to. provide -the best quality products..relative to* other - discount
products in the marketplace,

*  Increase efficiency by developmg and adoptmg an orgamzatlonal structure to maximize
profit potential,

»  Selectively expand the portfolio of pnvate and control label partner brands utrhzmg a pricing
strategy that offers long-term list price stability for customers,. - - ;

Identify,"develop and launch relevant new: drgarette brands and other tobacco products to the market
in the future, and ' :

. Pursue slrategrc acqursmons of smaller tobacco manufacturers

New- Valley

¢  Continue to grow Douglas Elliman Realty operations by uuhzmg its strong brand name recogmtron
and pursuing strategic and financial opportunities, -

-+ Continue to leverage our expertise ‘as direct investors by actively pursuing real estate investments in
the Umted States and abroad which we believe will generate- above-market retums,

.- Acquu'e operatmg compames through mcrgers, asset purchases, stock acqulsmons or .other .
- means, and

e - Invest our excess funds opportumst1cally in s1tuatrons that we beheve can maximize
stockholder value. \ :



Tobacco Operations

General. Liggett is the operating successor to Liggeit & Myers Tobacco Company, which was founded
in 1873. In April 2002, we acquired The Medallion Company, Inc. (“Medallion™), a discount cigarette
manufacturer selling product in the deep discount category, primarily under the USA brand name. Vector
Tobacco merged into Medallion which then changed its name to “Vector Tobacco Inc.” In this report, certain
references to “Liggett” refer to our tobacco operations, including the business of Liggett and Vector Tobacco,
unless otherwise spec1ﬁed

For the year ended December 31, 2012, Liggett was the fourth- largest manufacturer of: c1garettes in the
United States in terms of unit sales Liggett’s manufacturing facilities are located in Mebane, North Carolina
where it manufactures most of Vector Tobacco’s cigarettes pursuant to a contract manufactunng agreement. At
the present time, nggett and Vector Tobacco have no forelgn operations.

Liggett and Vector Tobacco manufacture and sell cigarettes in the United States. Accordmg to data from
Management Science Associates, Inc., Liggett’s domestic shipments of approximately 10.1 billion cigarettes
during 2012 accounted for 3. 5% of the:total mgarettes shlpped in the United States during such year. Liggett’s
market share decreased 0.3% in 2012 from 3.8% in 2011. Market share in 2010 was 3.5%. Historically,
Liggett produced premium cigarettes as well as discount cigarettes (whlch include among others, control label,
private label, branded discount and generic c1garettes) Premium cigarettes are generally marketed under
well-recognized brand names at higher retail prices to adult smokers with a strong preference for branded
products, whereas discount cigarettes are marketed at lower retail prices to adult smokers who are more cost
conscious. In recent years, the discounting of premium cigarettes has -become far more significant in the
marketplace. This has led to some brands that were traditionally considered premium brands becoming: more
appropriately categorized as branded discount, following list price reductions. Liggett’s EVE brand falls into
that category. All of Liggett’s unit sales volume in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was in the discount segment, which
Liggett’s management beheves has been the pnmary growth segment in the mdustry for more than a decade.

Liggett produces cigaretteés in”approximately 117 combinations of length, style and packaging. Liggett’s
current brand portfolio includes:

~ «  PYRAMID — the: 1ndustry s first deep d1scount product w1th a brand 1dent1ty relaunched in the
second quarter of 2009,

*  GRAND PRIX — re-launched as a‘national brand in 2005,

* LIGGETT SELECT —a leadmg brand in the deep discount category,

* EVE — a leading brand of 120 mllhmeter c1garettes in the branded discount category, and
e  USA and various Partner Brands and private label ‘_brands..

In 1999, Liggett introduced LIGGETT SELECT, one of the leading brands in the deep discount category.
LIGGETT SELECT represented 7.0% in 2012, 8.7% in 2011 and 13.0% in 2010 of Liggett’s unit volume. In
September 2005, Liggett repositioned GRAND PRIX to distributors and retailers nationwide. GRAND PRIX
represented 9.6% in 2012, 12.7% in 2011 and 18.5% in 2010 of Liggett’s unit volume. In April 2009, Liggett
repositioned PYRAMID as a box-only brand with a'new low price to specifically compete with brands which
are priced at the lowest level of the deep discount segment. PYRAMID is now the largest seller in Liggett’s
family of brands with 62.7% of Liggett’s unit volume in 2012, 56.4% in 2011 and 42.6% in 2010. According
to Management Science Associates, Liggett held a share of approximately 12.1% of the overall discount
market segment for 2012 compared to 12.8% for 2011 and 11.9% for 2010.

Liggett Vector Brands LIL.C (“LVB”), which coordinates our tobacco subsidiaries’ sales and marketing
efforts, along with certain. support - functions, has an agreement with Sunoco :Inc., which operates
approximately 400 Sunoco. APlus branded convenience stores in the United States, to manufacture SILVER
EAGLE. SILVER EAGLE, a deep discount brand, is exclusive to Sunoco and is offered under LVB’s “Partner
Brands” program which offers customers quality product with long-term price stability. LVB also supplies
BRONSON cigarettes as part of a multi-year “Partner Brands™ agreement with QuikTrip, a convenience store
chain with more than 640 stores headquartered in Tulsa, Oklahoma.



:Under. the Master Settlement Agreement (“MSA”™) reached in' November 1998 with 46 states and various
territories, the three largest cigarette manufacturers must make settlement payments to the states and territories
based ‘on how many cigarettes they sell annually. Liggett, however, is not-required to make any payments
unless its market share exceeds approximately 1.65% of the U.S. cigarette market: Additionally, Vector
Tobacco has rio payment obligation unless its market share exceeds approximately 0.28% of the U.S. cigarette
market. We believe our tobacco’ subs1dlar1es have a sustainable cost advantage over their competitors-as a
result of the settlement. : ‘i S

Liggett’s and Vector. Tobacco’s payments under the MSA are based on each respective company’s
incremental market. share above the minimum threshold. applicable: to each -réspective company. Thus, if
Liggett’s total market share is 3%, its MSA -payment is based on 1.35%,. which is the difference between
Liggett’s total -market share of 3% and its approximate applicable grandfathered share of 1.65%. We anticipate
that both Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s payment exemptions will be fully utilized in the foreseeable future.

The source of industry data in this report is Management Science Associates, Inc., an mdependent
thlrd—party database management organization that collects wholesale shipment data from various c1garette
manufacturers and distributors and provides ' analysis of market share, unit sales volume and premium versus
discount mix for individual companies and the industry as a whole. Management Science Associates’
information relating to unit sales .volume and market share of certain. of the smaller, primarily deep discount,
cigarette manufacturers-is based on estimates developed by Management Science Associates.

Business Strategy. - Liggett’s business strategy is to capitalize upon its cost advantage in the United
States cigarette market resulting from the favorable treatment our tobacco subsidiaries teceive under settlement
agreements with the states and the MSA. Liggett’s long-term business strategy is‘ to -continue to focus ‘its
marketing and selling efforts on the discount segment of the market, to continue to build volume and margin
in its core discount brands (PYRAMID, GRAND PRIX, LIGGETT SELECT and EVE) and ‘to utilize its core
brand equity to selectively build distribution. Liggett intends to continue its product development to provide
the best quality products relative to. other discount products in the market place. Liggett will continue.to seek
increases in efficiency by developmg and adapting its orgamzatlonal structure to maximize profit potential. In
addition, Liggett may bring niche-driven brands to the market in the future

.Sales, Marketing and Distribution. Liggett’s products are distributed from a central distribution center in
Mebane, North Carolina to 17 public warehouses located throughout the ‘United States. These warehouses
serve as local distribution centers for Liggett’s customers. Liggett’s products are transported from the central
distribution center to the public warehouses by thlrd-party truckmg compaﬂ1es to meet: pre—ex1stmg contractual
obligations to its customers. - i ,

Liggett’s customers are primarily candy and tobacco distributors, the mlhtary and large grocery, drug and-
convenience store chains. One customer accounted for 17% of nggett s revenues in each of 2012, 2011 and
2010. Concentrations ' of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are ‘generally limited due to the large
number of customers, located primarily throughout the United States, comprising Liggett’s customer base.
Liggett’s largest single customer represented approxnnately 10% and 52% of net accounts receivable at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Ongoing credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition are
performed. and, generally, no security is required. Liggett maintains reserves for potential credit losses and
such losses in the agg—regate - have generally not exceeded management’s expectations.:

Trademarks All of the major trademarks used by nggett are federally registered. or are in the process
of bemg registered in the Umted States and other markets Trademark I'Cngtl‘atIOIlS typlcally have a duration
of ten years and can be renewed at nggett’s option prior to. their expiration date. :

- In view-of the significance of cigarette brand awareness among consumers, management believes that the
protection afforded. by these trademarks is material to the conduct. of -its .business.” Liggett owns all of “its -
domestic trademarks except for the:-JADE trademark, which is licensed on a long-term exclusive basis from a
-third-party:for-use in ¢onnection with c1garettes These trademarks are pledged as collateral for certain of our
senior secured debt. : :



Manufacturing. Liggett purchases and maintains. leaf tobacco inventory to support its cigarette
manufacturing requirements. Liggett believes- that there is a sufficient supply of tobacco within the worldwide
tobacco market to satisfy its current production requirements. Liggett stores its leaf tobacco inventory: in
warehouses. in North Carolina and Virginia. There are'several different types of tobacco, including flue-cured
leaf, burley leaf, Maryland leaf, oriental leaf,~cut stems -and reconstituted-sheet. Leaf components of
American-style cigarettes are generally the flue-cured and. burley tobaccos. While premium and discount
brands use many of the same tobacco products, input ratios of tobacco products may vary between premium
and discount products. Foreign flue-cured and burley tobaccos, some of which are used in the manufacture of
Liggett’s cigarettes, have historically been 30% to 35% less expensive than comparable domestic tobaccos.
However, in recent years, domestic ‘and foreign tobacco prices have begun to equalize. Liggett normally
purchases all of its tobacco requirements from domestic and foreign leaf tobacco dealers, much of it under
long-term purchase commitments. As of December 31, 2012, the majority of Liggett’s commitments were for
the purchase of foreign tobacco. - : .o

Liggett’s cigarette manufacturing facility was designed for. the execution of short production runs in a
cost-effective manner, which enables Liggett to manufacture and market a wide variety of cigarette brand
styles Liggett produces cigarettes in_approximately 117 different brand styles as, well as private labels for
other companies, typically retail or wholesale distributors who supply supermarkets and convenience. stores.

. Liggett’s facility produced approximately 10.1 billion cigarettes m=2012, but-maintains the Capacity to
produce approximately 18.3 billion cigarettes ‘per year. Vector Tobacco has contracted with Liggett to produce
most of its cigarettes at Liggett’ s manufacturmg facility in Mebane.

-Competition. Liggett’s competmon is. divided into two segments The first segment is made. up.of:the
three largest manufacturers of cigarettes in the United States: Philip Morris USA Ine., RJ Reynolds Tobacco
Company (which is now part of Reynolds American) (“RJ Reynolds™) and Lorillard Tobacco Company. These
three manufacturers, while primarily premium cigarette based companies, also produce and sell
discount cigarettes. - : : : '

The second segment of competition is comprised of a group of smaller manufacturers and 1mporters
most of which sell deep discount cigarettes. Our largest competitor in thxs segment is Commonwealth Brands,
Inc., which was acquired by Imperial Tobacco in 2007.

Historically, there have been substantial barriers to entry into the cigarette business, including extensive
distribution organizations, large capital outlays for sophisticated production equipment, substantial inventory
investment, costly promotional spending, regulated advertising and, for premium brands, strong brand loyalty:
However, in recent years, a number of smaller manufacturers have been able to overcome these competitive
barriers due to excess production capacity in the industry and the cost advantage for certain manufacturers. and
1mporters resulting from the MSA.

Many smaller manufacturers and 1mporters that are not parttes to the MSA have been nnpacted in recent
years by the state statutes enacted pursuant to the MSA and have begun to see a decrease in volume after
years of growth. Liggett’s management believes, while these companies still have s1gmﬁcant market share
through competitive discounting in this segment they are losing their cost advantage as_their. payment
obhgatlons under these statutes mcrease

In the cigarette business, Liggett competes on ‘a dual front. The three major manufacturers compete
among themselves for premium brand market share based on advertising and promotional activities and trade
rebates and incentives and compete with Liggett and others for discount market share, on the basis of brand
loyalty. These three competitors have substantlally greater financial resources than Liggett, and most of their
brands have gréater sales and consumer recogmtlon than Liggett’s products nggett s discount brands must
also compete in the marketplace with thé smaller manufacturers’ and importers” deep discount brands.

According to Management ‘Science Associates™ data, the unit sales-of Philip Morrls, RJ Reynolds, and
Lorillard accounted in the aggregate for approximately 84.9% . of the domestic cigarette market in 2012.
Liggett’s domestic shipments of approximately }0.1 billion cigarettes during 2012 accounted for 3.5% of: the
approximately 286 billion cigarettes shipped in the United States, compared to 11.0 billion cigarettes in 2011
(3.8%) and 10.7 billion cigarettes in 2010 (3.5%). s



. Industry-wide shipments of.cigarettes in the United States have been declining for a number of years,
with Management :Science Associates’ data-indicating ‘that :domestic -industry-wide -shipments decreased by
approximately 2:2% (approximately 6.5 - billion units) -in:.2012: _Liggett’s .management believes- that
industry-wide, sh1pments of cigarettes in. the -United States. will continue to decline as.a result of numerous
factors. These factors. includehealth considerations, diminishing social acceptance of: smoking, and.a wide
variety of federal, state and local laws limiting smoking in restaurants, bars and: ‘other public places, as well as
increases..in federal and state excise taxes and settlement-related expenses whrch have contributed to higher
cigarette prices in recent years.

... Historically, because of their dominant market share, Philip Morris and RJ Reynolds,. the two largest
cigarette manufacturers, have been able to determine mgarette prices for the various prlcmg tiers within the
industry. Market pressures have h1stonca11y caused the other cigarette manufacturers to bnng their prices in
line with the ‘levels -established by these’ two ‘major manufacturers.” OffJist- price drscountlng and similar
promotional activity by manufacturers, ‘however, has. substantially affected the average price differential at
retail, ‘which can ‘be significantly less ‘than the manufacturers’ list price* gap. Recent “discounting by
manufacturers has been far greater than historical levels, ‘and the actual price gap between premium and
deep-discount cigarettes has changed accordingly. This has led to sh1fts in pnce segment performance
depending upon the actual pnce gaps of products at retail.

[

Philip Morris and RJ Reynolds dominate the domestic cigarette market with a combined market share of
approximately 71.1% at December 31, 2012. Thls concentration of United States market share makes it more
difficult for Liggett to compete for shelf space in retail outlets and. could 1mpact price competition in the
market, ‘either of whrch could have a matenal adverse alfect on its sales ’volume operatmg mcome and
cash ﬂows

Leglslatlon, Regulatlon and Lrtlgatron

< Ini the Umted States, tobacco products are subJect to substantial and mcreasing legrslatron regulauon and
taxation; ;which have a negative effect on revenue and profitability. In- June 2009, legislation: was passed
providing for. regulation .of the  tobacco .industry . by the United - States: Food ‘and ‘Drug Administration.
See Item 7. - “Management :Discussion .. -and: Analysis- of Financial Condition and Restults “of
Operations — Legislation and Regulation.” EERSERR =

~ The cigarette industry -continues to be challenged on numerous fronts. The.industry-is facing increased
pressure from ‘anti-smoking .groups  and . continued . .smoking and health .litigation, - including class action
litigation and health care cost recovery actions brought by governmental.entities and other third parties, the
effects of which, at this time, we are unable to evaluate. As of December 31, 2012, there: were approximately
5,037 Engle progeny cases, 69 individual product liability lawsuits, four purported class actions or actions
where . class ‘certification has been sought, and one health care cost recovery :action pending in the.United
States in which: Liggett and/or Vector were named:defendants. See, Item 1A. “Risk Factors”, Item 3. “Legal
Proceedmgs” and Note 12.to our consolidated financial statements, which contain a descnpuon of litigation. .

It is poss1ble ‘that our consolidated” financial posmon results of operatlons or cash ﬂows could be
materially adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome in any tobacco-related litigation or as a result of
additional federal or state. regulation relating to the. manufacture, sale, distribution, adyertising or labelmg of
tobacco products L e R . G e e o .

Liggett’s management believes that it is 1n comphance in all matenal respects w1th the laws regulatmg
clgarette manufacturers -

The Master Settlement Agreement and Other State Settlement Agreements .,

In March 1996, March 1997, and March 1998, Liggett ‘entered into. settlements: of tobacco—relatedf
litigation with 46 states and territories. The settlements released Liggett from all tobacco-related claims within
thosé states and territories, mcludmg cldims for health care cost rermbursement and c1a1ms concermng sales of
cigarettes to minors. : ' :



In November 1998, Philip Morris, Brown & Williamson, RJ. Reynolds and Lorillard (the “Original
Participating Manufacturers” or “OPMs”) and: Liggett (together with-any other tobacco: product manufacturer
that becomes a signatory, the “Subsequent Participating: Manufacturers” or “SPMs”), (the OPMs and SPMs
are hereinafter referred to jointly as the “Participating Manufacturers”) entéred into the’ MSA with 46 states,
the District of Columbia, Puerto-Rico, Guam, the United ‘States Virgin ‘Islands, American Samoa and the
Northern Mariana Islands (collectively, the “Setiling States”) to- settle the asserted ‘dnd unasserted health care
cost recovery and certain other claims of those Settlmg States. The-MSA' recelved final 1ud1c1al approval m
each Settling State.

In the Settling ' States, ‘the MSA released ‘Liggett and other' participating tobacco product

manufacturers from: o ' R ’ o ‘

+ all claims of the Settling States and their respective political subdivisions-and .other recipients of
state health care funds, relating to: (i) past conduct arising out of the use, sale, distribution,
manufacture, development, advertising and marketing of tobacco. products; (ii) the health effects of,
the exposure to, or research, statements or warnings about, tobacco products; and

"« all monetary claims of the Settling States and their respective subdivisions and other _recipients of
state health care funds, relating to future conduct arising out of the use of or exposure to, tobacco
products that have been manufactured in the ordinary course of business.

The MSA restricts tobacco, product advertlsmg and marketmg within the Settling States and otherwise
restricts the activities of Part:wrpatmg ‘Manufacturers. Among other things, the MSA prohlblts the targeting of
youth in the advertlsmg, promotion or marketmg of tobacco products, bans the use of cartoon characters in all
tobacco advertising and promotion; limits each Participating Manufacturer to one tobacco brand name
sponsorship during any 12-month period; bans all outdoor advertising, with certain limited exceptions;
prohibits payments for tobacco product placement in various media; bans gift offers based on the purchase of
tobacco products without sufficient proof that the intended recipient is an adult; prohibits Participating
Manufacturers from licensing third parties to advertise tobacco brand names in any manner prohibited under
the MSA; and prohibits Participating Manufacturers from using as a:tobacco product brand name any
nationally recognized non-tobacco brand or trade name or the names of sports teams, eatertainment-groups. or
individual celebrities. - :

The MSA also requires Participating Manufacturers ‘to -affirm corporate principles to comply with the
MSA and to reduce underage usage of tobacco products and imposes restrictions on lobbying activities
conducted on behalf ‘of Participating Manufacturers. In addition, the MSA provides for the appointment of ‘an
independent auditor to calculate and determine the amounts of payments owed pursuant | to the MSA:

Under the payment provisions of the MSA; the: Participating Manufacturers are requrred to make annual
payments of $9.0 billion (subject to applicable adjustments, ‘offsets and reductions). These annual payments
are allocated based on unit volume of domestic cigarette shipments: The payment obligations under the-MSA
are the several, and not joint, obligation of each Participating Manufacturer and are not the  responsibility of
any parent or aﬂihate of a Participating Manufacturer

Liggett has no payment obligations under the MSA except to-'the extent its market share exceeds a
market share exemption of approximately 1.65% of total cigarettes sold in the United States. Vector Tobacco
has no payment obligations under the MSA except to the extent Jjts market share exceeds a market share
exemption of approximately O. 28% of total cigarettes sold in the United States. nggett and Vector Tobacco’s
domestic shipments accounted for 3.5% of the total cigarettes sold in the United States in 2012. If Liggett’s or
Vector Tobacco’s market share exceeds. their respectrve ‘market share exemptron in a glven year, then on
April 15 of the following year, Liggett and/or Vector Tobacco, as the case may be, must pay on each excess
unit an amount equal (on a per-unit basis) to that due from the OPM:s for that year.

Lrggett may have addmonal payment obhgatlons under the MSA and its’ other settlement agreements with
the states. See Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements.



New Valley LLC

“ New Valley LLC, a Delaware limited l1ab111ty company, is engaged in the real estate business and is
seeking to acquire additional real estate properties and operating companies. New Valley owns a 50% interest
in Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC, which operates the largest residential brokerage company in the New York
City metropolitan area. New Valley also holds investment interests in’ various real estate prOJects domestically
and internationally.

Business Strategy

The business strategy of New Valley is to ‘continue o operate’ its. real estate busmess to acquire
additional real estate properties and to acquire operating companies through merger, purchase of assets, stock
acquisition or other means, -or to acquire control of operating' companies through one of such means.
New Valley may also seek from time to time to dispose of such businesses and properties when: favorable
market conditions exist. New Valley’s cashand-investments are ava11ab1e for general ‘corporate purposes,
including for acqu1s1t10n purposes :

Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC

Dunng 2000 and 2001 New Valley acquired for approxunately $1.7 m11hon a 37.2% ownershlp interest
in B&H Assoc1ates of NY, LLC, which is now known s Douglas Elliman of LI, LLC, ‘a residential real estate
brokerage company on Long Island, and a minority interest in an affiliated mortgage company, Preferred
Empire Mortgage Company. In December 2002, New Valley and the other owners of Douglas Elliman of LI,
LLC contributed their interests in Douglas Elliman of LI, LLC to Montauk Battery Realty, LLC, a newly
formed entity, which is now known as Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC. New Valley acquired a 50% interest in
Douglas Elliman Realty as a result of an additional investment of approximately $1.4 million by New Valley
and the redemption by Douglas Elliman. of LI, LLC of various ownership interests. As part of the transaction,
Douglas Elliman of LI, LL.C renewed its franchise agreement with The Prudential Real Estate Affiliates, Inc.
for an additional ten-year term: In October 2004, upon. receipt of required regulatory approvals, the. former
owners of Douglas Elhman of LI, LLC contributed to Douglas Elhman Realty their interests in the related
mortgage company. - : :

In March 2003, Douglas Elliman Realty purchased the New York C1ty—based résidential brokerage firm,
known' as Douglas Elliman and an affiliated ‘property management ‘company, for $71.25 ‘million. With that
acquisition, the combination of Douglas Elliman of LI, LLC with Douglas Elliman created- the largest
residential brokerage company in the New York metropolitan area. Upon closing of the acquisition, Douglas -
Elliman entered into a ten-year franchise agreement with The Prudential Real Estate Affiliates, Inc.
New Valley invested an additional $9.5 million in subordinated debt and: -equity-of Douglas Elliman Realty to
help fund the acquisition. The ‘balance of the subordinated-debt was repaid in 2010. As part of the acquisition,
Douglas Elliman Realty acquired Douglas Elliman’s affiliate, Ins1ng Residential Group, LLC, which is now
known as Residential Management Group LLC, and ‘conducts business as Douglas Elliman -Property
Management - and: is- the New York metropohtan area’s ‘largést manager of rental co-op - and”
condominium housing. e

We account for our interest in Douglas Elliman Realty under the equity method. We recorded income of
$16.7 million' in 2012, $16.6 million in 2011, and $22.3 million 'in' 2010 associated with. Douglas Elliman
Realty. - Equity’ income from Douglas. Elliman Realty includes interest earned by New Valley ‘on the
subordinated debt, purchase accounting -adjustments'and management fees.

Real Estate Brokerage Business. Douglas Elhman Realty is engaged in the real estate brokerage
business through its ‘three subsidiaries whlch conduct business as Douglas Elliman Real Estate. The three
brokerage companies have 65 offices with approximately 4,100 real estate agents in the metropolitan New
York area as well as South Florida. The companies achieved combined sales of approximately $12.4 billion of
real estate in 2012, approximately $11.1 billion of real estate in 2011 and. approximately. $11.5 billion of real
estate in 2010. Douglas Elliman Realty was ranked as the fourth-largest residential brokerage company in the
United States in 2011 based on closed sales volume by the Real Trends broker survey. Douglas Elliman Realty
had revenues of $378.2 million in 2012, $346.3 million in.2011, and $348.1. million in 2010.



The New York City brokerage operation was founded in 1911 by Douglas Elliman and has grown to be
one of Manhattan’s leading residential brokers by specializing in the highest end of the sales-and rental
marketplaces. It has 18 New York City offices, w1th approximately 2,225 real estate. agents, and had sales
volume of approximately $8.4. billion of real estate in 2012, approxmately $7.7 billion of real estate in 2011,
and approximately $7.8 billion of real estate in 2010. ... e :

The Long Island brokerage operation now known as Douglas Elliman of LI, LLC which also does
business under the name Douglas Elliman Real Estate is headquartered in Huntington, New York and is the
Jargest residential brokerage company on Long Island with 43 offices and approximately 1,850 real estate
agents. During 2012, the Long Island brokerage operation closed approximately 6,350 transactions,
representing sales volume of approximately $3.6 billion of real estate. This compared to approximately 6,163
transactions, representing sales volume ‘of approximately $3.4 billion of real estate in 2011, and approximately
6,500 transactions closed in 2010, representing approximately $3.6 billion of real estate. Douglas Elliman of
LI LLC serves approximately 250 communities in Long Island and Queens, New York.

In December 2010, Douglas Elliman Realty acquired substantially all of the assets of Prudenual Holmes
& Kennedy, a small regional residential real estate brokerage company which operated for more than 40 years
in Northern Westchester County, a suburban area north of New York City. The acquisition included six offices
located in the towns of Chappaqua, Armonk, Bedford, Sommers, Pleasantville and Katonah. The offices had
approximately 160 real estate agents and closed approxxmately 400 transactions, representing salés volume of
$300 million of real estate in 2012. Douglas Elliman Realty’s franchise agreement with Prudentlal Real Estate
Affiliates was amended to include these offices as addltlonal locauons

Douglas Elliman Realty’s brokerage operates as a broker..in re51dent1a1 real estate’ transactions. In’
performing these services, the company has historically represented the seller, either as the listing broker, or as
a co-broker in the sale..In acting as a broker for the seller, their services include assisting the séller in pricing:
the property and preparing it for sale, advertising the property, showing the property to prospective buyers,
and assisting the seller in négotiating the terms of the sale and in closing the transaction. In exchange- for
these services, the seller pays to the company a commission, which is generally a fixed percentage of the sales
price. In a co-brokered arrangement, the listing broker typically splits its commission with the other co-broker
involved in the transaction. The company also offers. buyer brokerage services. When acting as a broker for
the buyer, its services include. assisting the buyer in locating properties that meet the buyer’s personal and
financial spec1ﬁcat10ns showing the buyer properties, and assisting the buyer in negotlatmg the. terms of the
purchase and closing the transaction. In exchange for these services a commission is paid to the company
which also is. generally a fixed percentage of the purchase price and is usually, based upon a co-brokerage
agreement with the listing broker, deducted from, and payable out of the commission payable to the listing
broker. With the..consent of a buycr and. seller, SlleCCt to certain conditions, the company may, in certain
circumstances, act as a selling broker and as a buying. broker in the same transaction. The company ’s sales
and marketing services are provided by licensed real estate sales persons or associate brokers who have
entered into independent contractor agreements with the company. The company recognizes revenue and
commission expenses upon the consummation of the real estate sale.

Douglas Elliman Realty brokerage ‘operations also offers relocation services:to employers, which: provide
a variety of specialized services primarily concerned with facilitating the resettlement of transferred
employees. These services include sales and marketing of transferees’. existing homes . for - their corporate
employer, assistance in finding new homes, moving services, educational and school placement counseling,
customized videos, property marketing assistance, rental assistance, area tours, international relocation, group
move  services, marketing and management of - foreclosed properues career counselmg, spouse/partner
employment assistance, and financial sérvices. Clients can select these programs and serv1ces on a fee basis
according to their needs

In 2009, Douglas Ellilan Realty, through a subs1d1ary, entered into a joint venture with Wells Fargo
Ventures, LLC to create DE Capital Mortgage LLC to catry on the business of residential ‘mortgage lending,
as a miortgage broker. Wells Fargo Ventures is the nation’s leading alliance lender, maintaining long-standing
relationships with top real estate companies, builders and- financial services institutions across the United



States. DE Capital Mortgage replaced the.business of Preferred Empire Mortgage Company, which was a
mortgage broker, wholly—owned by Douglas Elliman Realty.

-DE Capital primarily onglnates loans for purchases of properties located on Long Island, New York City
and. Westchester. Approximately one-half of these loans are for home sales transactions in which Douglas
Elliman Real Estate acts as a broker. The term “origination’’ refers .generally to the process of arranging
mortgage financing for the purchase of property directly to the purchaser or for refinancing an existing
mortgage. DE Capital’s revenues are generated from loan origination fees, which are generally a percentage of
the original principal amount of the loan and are commonly referred to as “points”, and application and other
fees paid by the borrowers. DE Capital recognizes mortgage origination revenues and costs when the
mortgage loan is consumrnated DE Capital funds and' sells’ mortgage loans through Wells Fargo, 1ts Jomt
venture partner.

Marketing. Douglas Elliman Realty’s brokerage operation oifers real estate “sales and marketing and
relocation - services, which are marketed by a multimedia program. This program includes direct mail,
newspaper, internet, catalog, radio and television advertising and is conducted throughout Manhattan and Long
Island. In addition, the integrated nature of the real estate brokerage companies services is designed to
produce a flow of" customers ‘ between thelr real estate sales ' and marketlng business and their
mortgage business.

Competition. The real estate brokerage business is h1ghly competltlve However Douglas Elhman Real
Estate believes that its ability to offer their customers a range ofinter-related services and ‘its level of
residential real estate sales and marketing help posmon them to meet the competition and unprove thelr
market share.

In the brokerage company’s traditional business of residential real estate sales and marketmg, it competes
with multi-office independent real estate organizations and, to some extent, with franchise real -estate
organizations, such as Century-21, ERA, RE/MAX International, Sotheby’s International Realty, Better Homes
and Gardens Real Estate, Berkshire Hathaway HomeServices, and Coldwell Banker Douglas Elliman Realty
believes that its major competitors in 2013 will also increasingly include multi-office real estate orgamzatlons
such as GMAC Home Services, NRT LLC (whose affiliates include the New York City-based Corcoran
Group) and other privately owned companies. Residential brokerage firms compete for sales and marketing
business primarily on the basis of services offered, reputation, personal contacts, and, recently to a-greater
degree, price. : :

In its mortgage loan origination ‘business, DE Capital 'competes_ with other mortgage originators. These
include mortgage brokers, mortgage bankers, state and national banks, and thrift institutions.

Government Regulation. Several facets of real estate brokerage busmesses are subject to government
regulatlon For example, their real estate sales and marketing divisions are licensed as real estate brokers in
the states in which they conduct their real estate brokerage businesses.. In addition, their real ‘estate sales
associates must be licensed as real estate brokers or salespersons in the states in which they do business.
Future expansion of the real estate brokerage operations of Douglas Elliman Realty s. brokerage operatlons
into new geographic markets may subject it to similar licensing requirements in other states. ;

A number of states and localities have adopted laws and regulations imposing envuonmental controls,
disclosure rules, zoning and other land use restrictions, which can materially impact the marketability of
certain real estate. However, Douglas Elliman Realty’s brokerage operations does not believe that compliance
with environmental, zoning and land use laws and regulatlons has had, or will have, a materially adverse
effect on its ﬁnanc1al condition or operatrons

In DE Capital’s mortgage business, mortgage loan origination and funding activities are subject to the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Federal Truth-in-Lending Act, the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act,
and the regulations promulgated thereunder which prohibit discrimination and require the disclosure of certain
information to borrowers concerning credit and settlement costs. DE Capital is subject to regulation by state
banking departments and by the Federal Office of Currency Control.



Franchises- and - Trade Names.” In December 2002, Douglas: Elliman.of LI LLC renewed for an
additional ten-year term its franchise agreement with Prudential which granted it an exclusive franchise,
subject to various exceptions and to meeting annual revenue thresholds, in New York for the counties of
Nassau and Suffolk on Long Island. In addition, in' June 2004, Douglas Elliman of LI, LLC was granted an
exclusive franchise, subject to various exceptions and to meeting annual revenue thresholds, with respect to’
the boroughs of Brooklyn and Queens. In March 2003, Douglas Elliman entered into a ten-year franchise
agreement with Prudential granting it an exclusive franchise, subject to various exceptions and to meeting
annual revenue thresholds, for Manhattan. In 2010, that agreemerit was amended to grant Douglas Elliman an
exclusive franchise for six northern Westchester offices. ' o ' e ‘

Douglas Elliman Realty is in discussipns,Wi_th Prudential related to certain mélt‘,ters‘zin connection with the
franchise agreements, and Douglas Elliman Realty has elected to cease operating as a Prudential franchisee.
Douglas Elliman Realty is seeking a resolution of these matters. The stated initial expiration date of the
franchise agreements is' March 13, 2013 unless Douglas Elliman Realty chooses to renew the franchise
agreements prior to March 13, 2013. As a result of the termination or expiration of the franchise  agreements,
in accordance with the terms of the Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement, Douglas Elliman Realty
is required to redeem the approximate 20% equity interest owned. by a former affiliate of Prudential. The
redemption price for such equity interest is.to be determined through an appraisal process in accordance with
the terms of Douglas Elliman Realty’s Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement. Douglas Elliman
Realty expects to resolve this matter in 2013.

..., The “Douglas Elliman” trade name is a registered trademark in the United States. The name has been
synonymous with the most exacting standards of excellence in the real estate industry since Douglas Elliman’s
formation in 1911. Other trademarks used extensively in Douglas Elliman’s business, which are owned by
Douglas Elliman Realty and registered in the United States, include “We are New York”, “Bringing People
and Places Together”,- “If You Clicked Here You’d Be Home - -Now” and ‘“Picture Yourself in the
Perfect Home”. . o : - :

The taglines “From Manhattan to Montauk” and’ “askelliman.com™ are ‘used e)itbhsively in the Douglas
Elliman Realty’s brokerage operations. In addition, Douglas Elliman Realty’s brokerage operation continues 'to
use the trade names of certain companies that it has acquired. - ‘

. Residential Property Management Business. Douglas Elliman Realty is also engaged in the management
of cooperatives, condominiums and apartments though its subsidiary, Residential Management Group, LLC,
which conducts business as Douglas Elliman Property Management and is the leading manager of .apartments,
cooperatives and condominiums in the New York metropolitan area according to a survey in the
September 2009 issue of The Real Deal. Residential Management Group: provides full service third-party fee
management for approximately 335 properties, representing’ approximately 46,000 units in New York City,
Nassau County, Northern New Jersey and Westchester County. In January 2010, Residential Management
Group acquired ‘the assets of Bellmarc' Property Management, a company which managed approximately
50 buildings in Manhattan ‘with approximately 5,000 uhits.” Residential Management Group is seeking to -
continue to expand its property management businéss in the greater metropolitan New York area in 2013.
Among the notable properties currently managed. are the Dakota, Museum Tower, Worldwide Plaza, London
Terrace, Olympic Tower Condominium, Manhattan House, CitySpire _Cflondbminiur‘n and The Sovereign
buildings in New York City. Residential Management Group employs approximately 255 people, of whom
approximately 180 work at Residential Management Group’s headquarters and the remainder at remote offices
in the New York metropolitan area. o ' : ‘

Real Esthfe Investménts

New Valley seeks to acquire investment interests in various real estate projects both domestically and
internationally through debt and equity investments. The real estate investments include the following projects:

«  Escena. Development of a 450-acre approved | ma's,tgrka plahned commun_ity in Palm
Springs, California. oL , " o ‘

» 701 Seventh Avenue.- Construct a 340,000 square foot rﬁulti—uée project located in Times Square
which will include retail space, hotel space and signage. = ’
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e--:J1 Beach. Street.” Convert an ex1st1ng office building located in -Manhattan into a luxury
residential condominium. .

¢ * East 68" Street. Convert a 12—story res1dent1al rental bulldmg located in Manhattan mto a luxury
residential condominium:’

* . Queens Plaza. Consttuct a 350,000 square foot luxury reS1dent1a1 rental bulldmg located in
- .Queens, New York . .

* - 1107 Broadway. - Convert a 26() 000 square foot office building located in Manhattan into a luxury
residential condominium.

* . Chrystie Street. - Develop. a 250,000 square foot mixed use project located in Manhattan to include
hotel space and a residential condominium: :

* Maryland Portfolio. - Operate and i 1mprove a port:foho of over 5,000 garden apanment rental units in
10 locations in Maryland.

*  Sesto Holdings. Develop a 322 acre site in Milan, Italy. to be developed mto multi-parcel,
multi-building mixed use urban regeneration project.

*  Hotel Taiwana. Redevelop a luxury hotel located on St. Barts, French West Indies.

For additional information concerning these investments, see Note 16 to our consolidated
financial statements. :

Ladenburg Thalmann

New Valley owned, as of December 31, 2012, 13,891,205 common shares of Ladenburg Thalmann
Financial Services Inc. (NYSE Amex: LTS), which represents approximately 8% of the LTS shares. LTS is the
parent of New Valley’s former subsidiary, Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc., which has been a member of the
New York Stock Exchange since 1879. LTS is registered under the Securities Act of 1934 and files periodic
reports and other information with the SEC.

Three of our directors, Howard M. Lorber, Henry C. Beinstein and J'effrey S. Podell, also serve as
directors of LTS. Mr. Lorber also serves as Vice Chairman of LTS. Richard J. Lampen, who along with
M. Lorber is an executive officer of ours, also serves as a director of LTS and has served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of LTS since September 2006. In September 2006, we entered into an agreement with
LTS where we agreed to make available the services of Mr. Lampen as well as other financial, accounting and
tax services. LTS paid us $750,000, $600,000, and $600,000 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to
the agreement and will pay us at a rate of $750,000 per year in 2013. These amounts are recorded as a
reduction to our operating, selling, administrative and general expenses. LTS paid compensation of $600,000,
$500,000 and $200,000 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to each of Mr. Lorber and Mr. Lampen in
connection with their services. See Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2011, we were part of a consortium, which included Dr. Phillip Frost, who is the beneficial
owner of approximately 18.5% of our common stock, and Mr. Lampen, that agreed to provide a loan to LTS.
The five-year note was approximately $160.7 million, bears an interest rate of 11% per annum, paid a 0.50%
funding fee and issued 10,713,333 warrants io purchase LTS shares at $1.68 per share to the consortium. LTS
has the ability to pay 4% of the 11% interest owed on the note by payment-in-kind for the first two years of
the note. LTS is required to repay 10% of the note by December 31, 2014, 10% by December 31, 2015 and
the remaining 80% by November 4, 2016. We lent LTS $15 million and received 1,000,000 warrants.

Other Investments

Castle Brands. In October 2008, we acquired for $4 million an approximate 11% interest in Castle
Brands Inc. (NYSE Amex: ROX), a publicly traded developer and importer of premium branded spirits.
Mr. Lampen is serving as the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Castle. In October 2008, we
entered into an agreement with Castle where we agreed to make available the services of Mr. Lampen as well
as other financial, accounting and tax services. We recognized management fees of $100,000 in each of 2012,
2011 and 2010, under the agreement and Castle has agreed to pay us $100,000 per year in 2013. In
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December 2009, we were part of a consortium, which included Dr. Frost and Mr. Lampen, that agreed to
provide a line of credit to Castle. The three-year line was for a maximum amount of $2.5 million, bore
interest at a rate of 11% per annum on amounts borrowed, paid a 1% annual commitment fee and was
collateralized by Castle’s receivables and inventory. Our commitment under the line was $900,000; all of
which was outstanding under the credit line as of December 31, 2010. The amount was repaid on October 14,
2011. In December 2010, we were part of a consortium, which included Dr. Frost and Mr. Lampen, that lent
$1.0 million to Castle. We lent $200,000 of this amount and received a note bearing interest at a rate of 11%
per annum. During-2011, $217,000 of principal and outstanding interest associated with this note was
exchanged for shares of Castle’s convertible preferred stock and warrants. :

Long-Term Investments. As of December 31, 2012, long-term investments consisted primarily of
investments in investment partnerships of approximately $22.8 million. In the future, we may invest in other
investments including limited partnerships, real estate investments, eqmty securities, debt securities and
certificates of deposit depending on risk factors and potential rates of return.

Employees

At December 31, 2012, we had 587 employees, of which approximately 297 were employed at Liggett’s
Mebane facility and approximately 271 were employed in sales and administrative functions at LVB.
Approximately 39% of our employees are hourly employees, who are represented by unions. We have not
experienced any significant work stoppages since 1977, and we believe that relations with our employees and
their unions are satisfactory.

Available Informatidn

Our website address is www.vectorgroupltd.com. We make available free of charge on the Investor
Relations section of our website (http://vectorgroupltd.com/invest.asp) our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon
as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. We also make available through our website other reports filed with the SEC under the
Exchange Act, including our proxy statements and reports filed by officers and directors under Section 16(a)
of that Act. Copies of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit
Committee charter, Compensation Committee charter and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
charter have been posted on the Investor Relations section of our website and are also available in print to any
shareholder who requests it. We do not intend for information contained in our website to be part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business faces many risks. We have described below the known material risks that we and out
subsidiaries face. There may be additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we do not currently
perceive to be significant that may also impact our business or the business of our subsidiaries. Each of the
risks and uncertainties described below could lead to events or circumstances that have . a material adverse
effect on the business, results of operations, cash flows, financial condition or equity of us or one or more of
our subsidiaries, which in turn could negatively affect the valué of our common stock. You should carefully
consider and evaluate all of the information included in this report and any subsequent teports that we may
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or make available to the public before investing in any
securities issued by us.

We have significant llqmdlty commitments.

During 2013, we have certain liquidity commitments that could require the use of our ex1stmg cash
resources. As of December 31, 2012, our corporate expenditures (exclusive of Liggett, Vector Tobacco and
New Valley) and other potential liquidity requuements over the next 12 months included the following:

* cash 1nterest expense of approximately $101.6 million,

* dividends on our outstanding common shares (currently at an annual rate of approx1mate1y
$143.9 million), and

»  other corporate expenses and taxes.

In order to meet the above liquidity requirements as well as other liquidity needs in the normal course of
business, we will be required to use cash flows from operations and existing cash and cash equivalents.
Should these resources be insufficient to meet the upcoming liquidity needs, we may also ‘be required to
liquidate investment securities available for sale ‘and other long-term investments, or, if available, draw on
Liggett’s credit facility. While there are actions we can take to reduce our liquidity needs, there can be no
assurance that such measures can be achieved.

We and our subsidiaries have a substantial amount of indebtedness.

We and our subs1d1anes have s1gmﬁcant indebtedness and debt service obligations. At December 31,
2012, we and our subsidiaries had total outstandmg mdebtedness of $897.5 million. Apprommately
$157.5 million of our 6.75% convertible notes mature in 2014. We are required to offer to repurchase on
June 15, 2016 the remaining $43.2 million of our convertible debentures due 2026. We incurred an additional
$230 million of indebtedness in connection with our November 2012 offering of 7.5% variable interest
convertible notes due 2019. The convertible notes due 2019 are our senior unsecured obligations and are
effectively. subordinated to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing such
indebtedness. - The convertible notes due 2019 are- also structurally subordinated to: all liabilities and
commitments of our subsidiaries.

We retired in February 2012 $336.3 million of the $415 million outstanding of our 11% senior secured
notes due 2015. The remaining $78.7 million of our 11% senior secured notes have been called and will be
retired on March 12, 2013. We incurred an additional $450 million of indebtedness in connection with the
February 2013 offering of our 7.75% senior secured notes due 2021. ’

In addition, subject to the terms of any future agreements, we and our subsidiaries will be able to incur
additional indebtedness in the future. There is a risk that we will not be able to generate sufficient funds to
repay our debt. If we cannot service our fixed charges, it would have a material adverse effect on our business
and results of operations.

Our high level of debt may adversely affect our ability to satisfy our obligations. .

There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet our debt service obligations. A default in our debt
obligations, including a breach of any restrictive covenant imposed by the terms of our indebtedness, could
result in the acceleration of the affected debt as well as other of our indebtedness. In such a situation, it is
unlikely that we would be able to fulfill our obligations under the debt or such other indebtedness or that we
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would otherwise be able to repay the accelerated indebtedness or make other required payments. Even in the
absence of an acceleration of our indebtedness, a default under the terms of our indebtedness could have an
adverse impact on our ability to satisfy our debt service obligations and on the trading price of our debt and
our common stock. - '

Our high level of indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it could:

»  make it more difficult for us to satisfy our other obligations with respect to our debt, including
repurchase obligations upon the occurrence of specified change of control events;

+  increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
e limit our ability to obtain additional financing;

e  require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our
indebtedness, reducing the amount of our cash flow available for dividends on our common stock
and other general corporate purposes;

»  require us to sell other securities or to sell some or all of our assets, possibly on unfavorable terms,
to meet payment obligations; '

restrict us from making strategic acquisitions, investing in new capital assets or taking advantage of
business opportunities;

«  limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry; and

«  place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to competitors that have less debt.

We are a holding company and depend on cash payments from our subsidiaries, which are subject to
contractual . and other restrictions, in order to service our debt and to pay dividends on our
common stock.

We are a holding company and have no operations of our own. We hold our interests in our various
businesses through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, VGR Holding LLC and New Valley. In addition to our own
cash resources, our ability to pay interest on our debt and to pay dividends on our common stock depends on the
ability of VGR Holding and New Valley to make cash available to us. VGR Holding’s ability to pay dividends to
us depends primarily on the ability of Liggett, its wholly-owned subsidiary, to generate cash and make it available
to VGR Holding. Liggett’s revolving credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. contains a restricted payments
test that limits the ability of Liggett to pay cash dividends to VGR Holding. The ability of Liggett to meet the
restricted payments test may be affected by factors beyond its control, including Wells Fargo’s unilateral
discretion, if acting in good faith, to modify elements of such test.

Our receipt of cash payments, as dividends or otherwise, from our subsidiaries is an important source of our
liquidity and capital resources. If we do not have sufficient cash resources of our own and do not receive
payments from our subsidiaries in an amount sufficient to repay our debts and to pay dividends on our common
stock, we must obtain additional funds from other sources. There is a risk that we will not be able to obtain
additional funds at all or on terms acceptable to us. Our inability to service these obligations and to continue to
pay dividends on our common stock would significantly harm us and the value of our common stock.

Our 7.75% senior secured notes contain restrictive covenants that limit our operating flexibility.

The indenture governing our 7.75% senior secured notes due 2021 contains covenants that, among ‘other
things, restrict our ability to take specific actions, even if we believe them to be in our best interest, including
restrictions on our ability to: '

 incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred stock; N
+  pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, capital stock;
. create liens with respect to our asséts; ‘ '

*  make investments, loans or advances; -
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*  prepay subordinated indebtedness;
‘e enter into transactions with affiliates; and
. merge, consolidate, reorganize or sell our assets.

In addition, Liggett’s revolving credit agreement requires us.to meet specified financial ratios. These
covenants may restrict our ability to expand or fully pursue our business strategies. Our ability to comply with
these and other provisions of the indenture governing the senior secured notes and the Liggett revolving credit
agreement may be affected by changes in our operating and financial performance, changes in general
business. and economic conditions, adverse regulatory developments or other events beyond our control. The
breach of any, of these covenants, including those contained in the indenture governing the senior secured
notes and the Liggett’s credit agreement, could result in a defaunlt under our indebtedness, which could cause
those and other obhgatlons to become due and payable. If any of our indebtedness is accelerated, we may not
be able to repay it.

The indenture governing the senior secured notes-contain restrictive covenants, which, among other
things, restrict our ability to pay certain dividends or make other restricted payments or enter into transactions
with affiliates if our Consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the indenture, is less than $75 million for the four
quarters prior to such transaction. Our Consolidated EBITDA for the four quarters ended December 31, 2012
exceeded $75 million.

Changes in respect of the debt ratings of our notes may materially and adversely affect the availability,
the cost and the terms and conditions of our debt.

Both we and several issues of our notes have been publicly rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or
Moody’s, and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, or S&P, independent rating agencies. In addition, future
debt instruments may be publicly rated. These debt ratings may affect our ability to raise debt. Any future
downgrading of the notes or our other debt by Moody’s or S&P may affect the cost and terms and condltlons '
of our financings and could adversely affect the value and trading of the notes.

Liggett faces intense competltlon in the domestlc tobacco .industry.

Liggett is considerably smaller and has fewer resources than its major competitors, and, as a result, has a
more limited ability to respond to market developments. Management Science Associates’ data indicate that
the three largest cigarette manufacturers controlled approximately 84.9% of the United States cigarette market
during 2012. Philip Morris is the largest manufacturer in the market, and its profits are derived principally
from its sale of premium cigarettes. Philip Morris had approximately 61.7% of the premium segment and
47.1% of the total domestic market during 2012. During 2012, all of Liggett’s sales were in the discount
segment, and its share of the total domestic cigarette market was 3.5%. Philip Morris and RJ Reynolds, the
two largest cigarette manufacturers, have historically, because of their dominant market share, been able to
determine cigarette prices for the various' pricing tiers within the industry.

Philip Morris and RJ Reynolds dominate the domestic cigarette market and had a combined market share
of approximately 71.1% at December 31, 2012. This concentration of United States market share could make
it more difficult for Liggett and Vector Tobacco to compete for shelf space in retail outlets and could impact
price-competition in the market, either of which could have a material adverse effect on their sales volume,
operating income and cash flows, which in turn could negatively affect the value of our common stock.

Liggett’s business is highly dependent on the discount c1garette segment

Liggett depends more on sales in the discount cigarette segment of the market relative to the full-price
premium segment, than its major competitors. Since 2004, all of Liggett’s unit volume was generated in the
discount segment. The discount segment is highly competitive, with consumers having less brand loyalty and
placing greater emphasis on price. While the three major manufacturers all compete with Liggett in the
discount segment of the market, the strongest competition for market share has come from a group of smaller
manufacturers and importers, most of ‘which sell low quality, deep discount cigarettes. While Liggett’s share of
the discount market was12.1% in 2012, 12.8% in 2011 and 11.9% in 2010, Management Science Associates’
data indicate that the discount market share of these other smaller manufacturers and importers was
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approximately 34.4% in 2012, 34.1% in 2011, and 38.5% in 2010. If pricing in the discount market continues
to be impacted by these smaller manufacturers and importers, margins in Liggett’s only current market
segment could be negatively affected, which in turn could negatively affect the value of our common stock.

Liggett’s market share is susceptible to decline.

For a number of years prior to 2000, Liggett suffered a substantial decline in market share. Liggett’s
market share declined in 2012, after having increased during each of the years between 2000 and 2011 (except
for 2008, which was unchanged). This earlier market share erosion resulted in part from Liggett’s highly
leveraged capital structure that existed until December 1998 and its limited ability to match other competitors’
wholesale and retail trade programs, obtain retail shelf space for its products and advertise its brands. These
declines also resulted from adverse developments in the tobacco industry, intense competition and changes in
consumer preferences which have continued up to the current time. According to Management Science
Associates’ data, Liggett’s overall domestic market share during 2012 was 3.5% compared to 3.8% during
2011, and 3.5% during 2010. Liggett’s share of the discount segment was 12.1% during 2012, 12.8% during
2011 and 11.9% during 2010. Liggett’s market share declined by 0.7% in 2012, and if it were to decline
substantially in the future, Liggett’s sales volume, operating income and cash flows. could be materially
adversely affected, which in turn could negatively affect the value of our common stock:

The domestic cigarette industry has experienced declining unit sales in recent periods. o '

Industry-wide shipments of cigarettes in the United States have been declining for a number of years,
with Management Science Associates’ data indicating that domestic industry-wide shipments decreased by
approximately 2.2% in 2012 as compared to 2011, and by approximately 3.5% in 2011 as compared to 2010.
We believe that industry-wide shipments of cigarettes in the United States will continue to decline as. a result
of numerous factors. These factors include health considerations, diminishing social acceptance of smoking,
and a wide variety of federal, state and local laws limiting smoking in restaurants, bars and other public
places, as well as increases in federal and state excise taxes and settlement-related expenses which have
contributed to high cigarette price levels in recent years. If this decline in industry-wide shipments continues
and Liggett is unable to capture market share from its competitors, or if the industry as a whole is unable to
offset the decline in unit sales with price increases, Liggett’s sales volume, operating income and cash flows
could be materially adversely affected, which in turn could negatively affect the value of our common stock.

Our tobacco operations are subject to substantial and increasing legislation, regulation and taxation,
which has a negative effect on revenue and profitability.

Tobacco products are subject to substantial federal and state excise taxes in the United States. These
taxes may continue to increase. On April 1, 2009, the federal excise tax increased from $0.39 to $1.01 per
pack of cigarettes, and significant tax increases on other tobacco. products, to fund expansion of the State
Children’s Health Insurance Program, referred to as SCHIP. The increases in federal .excise tax under SCHIP
are substantial, and, as a result, Liggett’s sales volume and profitability has been and may continue to be
adversely impacted. In addition, SCHIP created certain tax differentials between certain types of tobacco
products. This has caused a dramatic increase in the sale of pipe tobacco as a substitute for roll-your-own,
which has directly impacted sales of cigarettes.’ ' "

In addition to federal and state excise taxes, certain city and county governments also impose substantial
excise taxes on tobacco products sold. Increased excise taxes are likely to result in declines in overall sales
volume and shifts by consumers to less expensive brands.

A wide variety of federal, state and local laws limiting the advertising, sale and use of cigarettes have
proliferated in recent years. For example, many local laws prohibit smoking in restaurants and other public
places. Private businesses also have adopted regulations that prohibit or restrict, or are intended to discourage,
smoking. Such laws and regulations also are likely to result in a decline in the overall sales volume
of cigarettes. '

Over the years, various state and local governments have continued to regulate tobacco products. These
regulations relate to, among other things, disclosure of ingredient information, the imposition of significantly
higher taxes, increases in the minimum age to purchase tobacco products, sampling and advertising bans or
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restrictions, ingredient and constituent disclosure requiréments and significant tobacco . control media
campaigns. Additional state and local legislative and regulatory actions will likely be considered in the future,
including, among other things, restrictions on the use of flavorings.

In addition to the foregoing, there have been a number of other restrictive regulatory actions from various
federal administrative bodies, including the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Food and
Drug Administration (“FDA”). There have also been adverse legislative and pohtlcal decisions and other
unfavorable developments concerning cigarette smoking and the tobacco industry. Legislation was passed by
Congress providing for regulation ‘of cigarettes by FDA. These developments generally receive widespread
media attention. Additionally, a majority of states have passed legislation providing for reduced ignition
propensity standards for cigarettes. These developments may negatively affect the perception of potential triers
of fact with respect to the tobacco industry, possibly to the detriment of certain pending hugatron and may
prompt the commencement of additional similar litigation or legislation. We are not able to evaluate the effect
of these developing matters on pending litigation or the possible commencement of additional litigation, but
our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Additional federal or state regulation relating to the manufacture, sale, distribution, advertising, labeling,
or information disclosure of tobacco products could further reduce sales, increase costs and have a material
adverse effect on our business.

The Famlly Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act may adversely affect our sales and
operating profit. «

On June 22, 2009, the President signed into law the ‘“Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control
Act” (Public Law 111-31). The law grants FDA broad authority over the manufacture, sale, marketing and
packaging of tobacco products, although FDA is prohibited from issuing regulations banning all cigarettes or
all smokeless tobacco products; or requiring the reduction of nicotine yrelds of a tobacco product to zero.
Among other measures, the law (under various deadhnes) :

’-\ increases the number of. health warmngs requrred on mgarette and smokeless tobacco products
increases the size of warnings on packaging and in advertising, requires FDA to develop graphic
warnings for cigarette packages, and grants FDA authority to require new warnings;

*  requires practically all tobacco product advertising to eliminate color ‘and imagery and instead
consist solely of black text on white background;

. '-1mposes new restrictions on the sale and distribution of tobacco products, including significant new
restrictions on tobacco product advert1s1ng and promotion, as well as the use of brand and
trade names;

*  bans the use of “light,” “mild,” “low” or similar descriptors on tobacco products;
*  bans the use of “characterizing flavors” in cigarettes other than tobacco or menthol;

e gives FDA the authority to impose tobacco product standards that are appropriate for the protection
of the public health (by, for example requiting reduction or elimination: of the use of particular
constituents or components, requiring product testing, or addressing other aspects of tobacco product
construction, constituents, properties or labeling); .

*  requires manufacturers to obtain FDA review and authorlzauon for the marketmg of certaln new or
modrﬁed tobacco products;

*  requires pre—market approval by FDA for tobacco products represcnted (through labels, labeling,
advertising, or other means) as presenting a lower risk of harm or tobacco-related disease;

*  requires manufacturers to report ingredients and harmful constituents and requires FDA to disclose
certain constituent information to the public;

*  mandates that manufacturers test and report on ingredients and constituents identified by FDA as
requiring such testing to protect the pubhc health, and allows FDA to require the disclosure of
testing results to the public; :
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e requires manufacturers to submit to FDA certain -information regardmg the health, toxicological,
behavioral.or physiological effects of tobacco, products;

e prohibits use of tobacco contammg a pesticide chemical residue at a level greater than allowed under
federal law;

e requires FDA to estabhsh “good manufacturing practices” to be- followed at tobacco
manufactunng fac111hes -

*  requires tobacco product. manufacturers (and certain other entities) to register with FDA;

*  authorizes FDA to require the reduction of nicotine (although it may not require the reduction of
nicotine ylelds ‘of a tobacco product to zero) and the potential reductlon or elimination of other
constituents, including menthol;

» imposes (and allows FDA to impose) various recordkeeping and reporting reqmrements on tobacco
product manufacturers; :

grants FDA the regulatory authority to impose broad additional restrictions; and

e  imposes user fees on tobacco product manufacturers.

It is likely that the new tobacco law could result in a decrease in cigarette sales in the United States,
including sales of Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s brands. Total compliance and related costs are not possible
to predict and depend substantially on the future requirements imposed by FDA under the new tobacco law.
Costs, however, could be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on the companies’ financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows. In addition, FDA has a number of investigatory and
enforcement tools available to it. . We are aware, for example, that FDA has already requested
company-specific information from competitors. FDA has also initiated a program to award contracts to. states
to assist with compliance and enforcement activities. Failure to comply with the new tobacco law and with
FDA regulatory requirements could result in significant financial penalties and could have a material adverse
effect on the business, financial condition and results of operation of both Liggett and Vector Tobacco. At
present, we are not able to predict whether the new tobacco law will impact Liggett and Vector Tobacco to a
greater degree than other companies in the industry, thus affecting its competitive position.

Litigation will continue to harm the tobacco industry.

Liggett could be subjected to substantial liabilities and bonding requirements from. litigation relating to
cigarette products. Adverse litigation outcomes could have a negative impact on our ability to operate due to
their impact on cash flows. We and our Liggett subsidiary, as well as the entire cigarette industry, continue to
be challenged on numerous fronts, particularly with respect to the Engle progeny cases in Florida (described
below). New cases continue to be commenced against Liggett and other cigarette manufacturers. As of
December 31, 2012, there were approximately 5,037 Engle progeny cases, 69 individual product liability
lawsuits, four purported class actions and one health care cost recovery action pending in the United States in
which Liggett and/or us were named defendants. It is likely that similar legal actions, proceedings and claims
will continue to be filed against Liggett. Punitive damages, often in amounts ranging into the billions of
dollars, are specifically pled in certain cases, in addition to compensatory and other damages. It is possible
that there could be adverse developments in pending cases including the certification of additional class
actions. An unfavorable outcome or settlement of pending tobacco-related litigation could encourage the
commencement of additional litigation. In addition, an unfavorable outcome in any tobacco-related litigation
could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Liggett could face difficulties in obtaining a bond to stay execution of a judgment pending appeal.

In September 1999, a civil lawsuit was filed by the United States federal government seeking
disgorgement of approximately $289.0 billion from various cigarette manufacturers, including Liggett. In
August 2006, the trial court entered a Final Judgment dnd Remedial Order against each of the cigarette
manufacturing defendants, except Liggett. The Final Judgment, among other things, ordered the following
relief against the non-Liggett defendants: (i) defendants are enjoined from committing any act of racketeering
concerning the manufacturing, marketing, promotion, health consequences or sale of cigarettes in the United
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States; (i) defendants are enjoined from making any material false, misleading, or deceptive statement or
representation concerning cigarettes that persuades' people to- purchase cigarettes; and (iii) -defendants are
permanently enjoined from utilizing “lights”, “low tar”, “ultra lights”, “mild” or “natural” descriptors, or
conveying any other express or implied health messages in connection with the marketing or sale of cigarettes
as of January 1, 2007. No monetary damages were awarded other than the government’s costs. To the extent
that the Final Judgment leads to a decline in industry-wide shipments of cigarettes in the United States or
otherwise imposes regulations which adversely affect the industry, Liggett’s sales volume, operating income
and cash flows could be materially adversely aﬁected which in turn could negatively atfect the value of our
comron stock

Liggett Only Cases. There are currently -eight cases pending where Liggett is the only remaining
tobacco. company defendant. Cases where Liggett is the only defendant could increase substantxally as a result
of the Engle progeny cases. ‘ :

As new product 11ab111ty cases are commenced agamst Liggett, the costs as5001ated w1th defendmg these
cases and the risks relating to the inherent unpredlctablhty of litigation continue to increase.

Individual tobacco-related cases have increased as a result of the Florlda Supreme Court’s ruling
in Engle.

In May 2003, a Florida 1ntermed1ate appellate court overturned a $790.0 million punitive damages award
against Liggett and decertified the Engle v. R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. smoking and health class action. In
July 2006, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed in part and reversed in part the May 2003 intermediate
appe'llate‘ court decision. Among other things, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed the decision decertifying the
class on a prospective basis and the order vacating the punitive damages award, but preserved several of the
trial court’s Phase I findings (1nc1ud1ng that: (i) smoking  causes Tung cancer, among other diseases;
(ii) nicotine in cigarettes is addictive; (iii) defendants placed cigarettes on ‘the market that were defective and
unreasonably dangerous; (iv) the defendants concealed material information;’ (v) all defendants sold or
supplied cigarettes that were defective; and (vi) all defendants were negligent) ‘and allowed plaintiffs to
proceed to trial on individial liability issues (using the above findings) and compensatory and punitive
damage issues, provided they commence their individual ‘lawsuits within one year of the date the court’s
decision became final on January 11, 2007, the date of the court’s mandate. In December 2006, the Florida
Supreme Court added the finding that defendants sold or supplied cigarettes that, at the time of sale or supply,
d1d not conform to the representatlons made by defendants

In June 2002 the jury in a Florida: state court action entltled Lukacs V.. R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company,
awarded $37.5 million in compensatory damages, jointly and severally, in a case involving Liggett and two
other cigarette: manufacturers, which amount was subsequently reduced by the Court. The. jury found Liggett
50% responsible for the damages incurred, by the plaintiff. The Lukacs case was the first case to be tried as an
individual Engle class member suit following entry of final judgment by the Engle trial court. In
November 2008, the court entered final judgment in the amount of $24.835 million (for which Liggett was
50% responsible), plus interest from June 2002. After the appellate court affirmed the decision, Liggett paid its
share of the award including interest and attorney’s fees ($14.361 million). o

Pursuant to the Florida Supreme Court’s July 2006 ruling in Engle, former class members had one year
from January 11, 2007 to file individual lawsuits. In addition, some individuals who filed suit prior to
January 11, 2007, and who claim they meet the conditions in Engle, are attempting to avail themselves of the
Engle ruling. Lawsuits by individuals requesting the benefit of the Engle ruling, whether filed before or after
the January 11, 2007 mandate, are referred to. as the “Engle progeny cases”. As of December 31, 2012, there
were 5,037 Engle progeny cases pendlng where Vector, Liggett, and other cigarette manufacturers were named
as defendants. These cases include approximately 6,215 plaintiffs. As of December 31, 2012, there were
27 Engle progeny cases currently:scheduled for trial in 2013. Through January 31, 2013, eight adverse
verdicts have been entered against Liggett in Engle progeny cases. Two of these were affirmed on appeal and
were satisfied by Liggett. The remaining verdicts are at various stages of appeal although appellate efforts, to
date, have not been successful. The potential range of loss is between $0 and $16.2 million, plus interest and
attorney fees, for the six cases currently on appeal.
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It is possible that additional cases could be decided unfavorably and that there. could be further adverse
developments in the Engle case. Liggett may enter into discussions in an attempt to settle particular cases if it
believes it is appropriate to do so. We cannot predict the cash requirements related- to any future settlements
and judgments, including cash required to bond any appeals, and there is a risk that those requirements will
not be able to be met. : .

Excise tax increases adversely affect cigarette sales.

Cigarettes are subject to substantial and increasing federal, state and local excise taxes. In February 2009,
Federal legislation to reauthorize SCHIP, which includes funding provisions that increase the federal cigarette
excise tax from $0.39 to. $1.01 per pack, was enacted, effective April 1, 2009.- Additional increases in the
federal cigarette excise tax have been proposed by Congress. State excise taxes vary considerably and, when
combined with sales taxes, local taxes and the federal excise tax, may exceed $4.00 per pack. Various states
and other jurisdictions are considering, or have pending, legislation proposing further state excise tax
increases. Management believes increases in excise and smular taxes ‘have had, and will continue to have, an
adverse effect on sales of cigarettes.

Liggett may have additional payment obligations under the Master Settlement Agreement.

NPM Adjustment. In March 2006, an economic consulting firm selected pursuant to the MSA
determined that the MSA was a “significant factor contributing to” the loss of market share of Participating
Manufacturers for 2003. This is known as the “NPM Adjustment.” The economic consulting firm
subsequently rendered the same decision with respect to 2004 and 2005. In March 2009, a different economic
consulting firm made the same determination for 2006. As a result, the manufacturers are entitled to potential
NPM Adjustments to their 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 MSA payments. The Participating Manufacturers are
also entitled to potential NPM Adjustments to their 2007, 2008 and 2009 payments pursuant to an agreement
entered into in June 2009 between the OPMs and the settling states under which the OPMs agreed to make
certain payments for the benefit of the settling states, in exchange for which the settling states stipulated that
the MSA was a “significant factor contributing to” the loss of market share of Participating Manufacturers in
2007, 2008 and 2009. A settling state that has diligently enforced its qualifying escrow statute in the year in
question may be able to avoid application of the NPM Ad_]ustment to the payments made by the manufacturers.
for the benefit of that state or territory.

For 2003 — 2012 Liggett and Vector Tobacco, as applicable, disputed that they owe the Settling States the
NPM Adjustments as calculated by the Independent Auditor. As permitted by the MSA, Liggett and Vector
Tobacco withheld payment associated with these NPM Adjustment. amounts. For 2003, Liggett and Vector
Tobacco paid the NPM adjustment amount of $9.3 million to the Settling States ‘although both companies
continue to dispute this amount is owed. The total amount withheld (or paid into a disputed payment account)
by Liggett and Vector Tobacco for 2004 — 2012 was $62.0 million. At December 31, 2012 included in “Other
assets” on our consolidated balance sheet was a non-current receivable of $6.5 million relating to" the
$9.3 million payment. Arbitration of the 2003 NPM Adjustment is pending. nggett is currently engaged in an
arbitration with the states over the NPM Adjustment.

The following amounts have not been expensed by the Company as théy relate to Liggett and Vector
Tobacco’s NPM Adjustment claims for 2003 through 2009: $6.5 million for 2003, $3.8 million for 2004 and
$800,000 for 2005. V

“Gross” v. “Net” Calculations. In October 2004, the independent auditor notified Liggett and all other
Participating Manufacturers that their payment obligations under the MSA, dating from the agreement’s
execution in late 1998, had been recalculated using “net” units, rather than “gross” units (which had been
used since 1999).
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Liggett objected to this relroactive change and disputed the change in methodology. Liggett contends that
the retroactive change from ° gross 0 “‘net” units is impermissible for séve’ral reasons, including: -

«  use of “net” units is not required by the MSA (as reflected by, among other thmgs the use of
*““gross” units through 2005);

*  such a changg is not authorized without the consent of a'ﬁ‘ectedrpartvies to _vvthve MSA;

*» the MSA provides for four-year time limitation periods. for revisiting calculations and
determinations, which precludes recalculating Liggett’s 1997 Market Share (and thus, Liggett’s
market share exemption); and

*  Liggett and others have relied upon. the calculatlons based on gross * units since 1998.

The change in the method of calculation could have resulted in Liggett owing as much as $38,800 of
additional MSA payments for prior years, including interest, because the ‘proposed change from “gross” to
“net” units would have lowered Liggett’s grandfathered market share exemption under the MSA. We
estimated that Liggett’s future annual MSA payments would have been at least approximately $2,500 higher if
the method of calculation was changed. In August 2011, Liggett received notice from several states. seeking to
initiate arbitration as to this matter. In December 2012, the parties arbitrated the dispute before a panel of
three arbitrators. On February 14, 2013, the arbitrators issued a decision granting the relief sought by Liggett.
The arbitrators ruled that the limitations provisions of the MSA precluded the independent auditor from
recalculating Liggett’s grandfathered market share exemption or Liggett’s payment obligations beyond the Jast
four years. The arbitrators further ruled that, for purposes of calculating Liggett’s payment obligations for the
applicable years, Liggett’s market share should be calculated on a “net” basis, increased by a factor of 1.25%.
Liggett is in the process of seeking reconsideration of the part of the arbitrators’ decision that would require
the 1.25% increase in Liggett’s market share. If the arbitrator’s ruling is not modified, Liggett would be
required to pay approximately $11,300 for the last four years and approximately $2,000 for 2012. We cannot
quantify future annual obligations as a result of the ruling. Liggett accrued $5,000 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for any potential liability relating to the “gross” v.  “net” dispute. There can
be no assurance that Liggett will be successful in seeking modification of the award or that Liggett will not be
required to make additional payments, which could adversely aﬁect our consolidated financial position, results
of operations and cash flows.

Liggett may have additional payment obliga‘tions under its state settlements.

In 2004, the Attorneys General for each of Florida, Mississippi and Texas advised Liggett that they
believed that Liggett had failed to make all required payments under the respective settlement agreements with
these states for the period 1998 through 2003 and that additional payments may be due for 2004 and
subsequent years. Liggett believes these allegations are without merit, based, among other things, on the
language of the most favored nation provisions of the settlement agreements and no.amounts have been
accrued in our consolidated financial statements for any additional amounts that may be payable by Liggett
under the settlement agreements with Mississippi and Texas. Liggett settled the dispute with Florida in 2010
and agreed to, among other things, pay Florida $1.2 million plus $250,000 per year for the next 21 years. The
payment in years 12 — 21 will be subject to an inflation adjustment. In February 2012, Mississippi provided
Liggett with a 60-day notice that the state intended to pursue its remedies if Liggett did not cure its alleged
defaults. Liggett responded to Mississippi’s letter but has heard nothing further on the matter. There can be no
assurance that Liggett will prevail in the remaining matters and that Liggett will not be required to make
additional material payments, which payments could materially adversely affect our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows and the value of our common stock.

New Valléy is subject to risks relating to the industries in which‘it operates.

Risks of real estate ventures. New Valley has a number of real estate-related  investments in which other
partners hold significant interests. New: Valley must seek approval from these other parties for important
actions regarding these joint ventures. Since the other parties’ interests may differ from-those of New Valley, a
deadlock ¢ould arise that might impair the ability of the ventures to functlon Such a deadlock could
significantly harm the ventures.
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The volatility in the capital and credit markets has increased-in recent years.. Because the volatility in
capital and credit markets may create additional risks in the upcoming months and possibly years, we will
continue to perform additional assessments to determine the 1mpact if any, on our consolidated financial
statements. Thus, future impairment charges may occur.

New Valley may pursue a variety of real estate development pm]ects Development projects are subject
to special risks 1nc1ud1ng potential increase in costs, changes in market demand, inability to meet deadlines
which may delay the timely completion of projects, reliance on'contractors who may be unable to perform
and the need to obtain various. governmental and third party consents.: :

Risks relating to the residential brokerage business. Through New Valley’s investment in Douglas
Elliman Realty, we are subject to the risks and uncertainties endemic to the residential brokerage business.

Real estate ventures and mortgage receivables have been negatively impacted by the current downturn in
the residential real estate market. The U.S. residential real estate market, including the:New York metropolitan
area where Douglas Elliman Realty  operates, is cyclical and is affected by changes in the general economic
conditions that are beyond ‘the control of Douglas Elliman Realty. The U.S. residential real estate market is
currently in -a- significant downturn due to various factors including downward pressure on housing prices,
credit constraints inhibiting new buyers and ‘an ‘exceptionally large inventory of unsold homes at the same time
that sales volumes are decreasing. The depth and length of the current downturn in the real estate industry has
proved exceedingly difficult to predict. We cannot predict whether the downturn will worsen or when the'
market and related econormc forces will return the U.S. res1dent1al real estate mdustry to a growth penod

Any . of the following could. have a material adverse effect on our real estate ventures by causing a
general decline in the number of home sales and/or prices, which in turn, could adversely affect their revenues
and profitability:

¢ periods of eco_nomic slowdown or recession;
e  rising interest rates;
»  the general ailailability of ‘mongage financing, including:
+  the impact of the recent contracﬁon in the subprime and mortgage markets generally; and
o the effect of more stringent lending standards for home mortgages;v ‘
adverse changes in economic and general business conditions in the New York metropolitan area;
» a decrease in the affordability of homes;
¢ declining demand for real estate; _
e anegative perception of the market for res1dent1a1 real estate;
«  commission pressure from brokers who dlscount their commlss1oﬁs;

* acts of God, such as hurricanes, earthquakes and other natural disasters, or acts .or threats of war or
_ terrorism; and/or ' :

»  an increase in the cost of _homeoWners insurance.

Termination of franchise agreement. Douglas Elliman Realty is in discussions with Prudential related to
certain matters in connection with the franchis¢ agreements, and Douglas Elliman Realty has elected to-cease
operating as a Prudential franchisee. Douglas Elliman Realty is seeking a resolution of these matters. The
stated initial expiration date of the franchise agreements is March 13, 2013 unless Douglas Elliman Realty
chooses to renew the franchise agreements prior to March 13, 2013. As a result of the termination or
expiration of the franchise agreements, in accordance with the terms of the Limited Liability Company
Operating Agreement, Douglas Elliman Realty is required to redeem. the approximate 20%-equity interest
owned by a former affiliate of Prudential.. The redemption price for such.equity interest is to be determined
through an appraisal process in accordance with the terms of Douglas Elliman Realty’s Limited Liability
Company Operating Agreement. Douglas Elliman Realty expects to resolve this matter in 2013.
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The three major real estate ventures’ current operations- are-located in the New York ;netropolitan
area. Local and regional economic and general business conditions in this market.could differ materially
from prevailing conditions in other parts of the country. A downturn in the residential real estate market or
economic conditions in that reglon could have a material adverse effect bn these investments. -

Potential new mvestments we may make are umdentlﬁed and may not succeed

We currcntly hold a, s1gmﬁcant amount of marketable secuntles and cash not commltted to any spemﬁc
investments. This subjects -a security holder to increased risk and uncertainty because a security holder will
not be able to:evaluate how this cash will be invested and: the economic merits of- particular investments;
There may. be:substantial delay in-locating;: suitable investment opportunities. In addition, we may lack relevant
management experience in the areas in which we may invest. There isa risk that we will faﬂ in. targetlng,
consummating or effectively integrating or managing any of these investments. S Gt

We depend on our key personnel.

We depend on the efforts of our executive officers ‘and other key personnel. While we bélieve that we
could find replacements for these key personnel the loss of the1r serv1ces could have a 31gmﬁcant adverse
effect on our operations.

We are exposed to risks from leglslatlon reqmnng ‘companies to evaluate their mternal control over
financial reportmg . , ,

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires our management to assess, and our independent
registered certified public accounting firm to attest to, the effectiveness of our intérnal control structure and
procedures for financial reporting. We completed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, and we have an ongoing program to perform
the system and process evaluation and testing necessary to continue to comply with these requirements. We
expect to continue to incur expense and to devote management resources to Section 404 compliance. In the
event that our chief executive oﬂicer chief financial officer or independent registered. certified public
accounting firm determines that our 1ntema1 control over financial reporting is not effective as defined under
Section 404, investor perceptions and our reputatlon may be adversely affected and the market price of our
stock could decline.

The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly. -

The trading price of our common stock has ranged between $14.25 and $17.70 per share over the past
52 weeks. We expect that the market price of our common stock will continue to fluctuate.

The market price of our common stock may. fluctuate in Tesponse to numerous factors, many of which
are beyond our control. These factors include the following; -

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

»  -changes in expectations as to our future financial performance, including financial estimates by
securities analysts and investors; :

+ the operatmg and stock performance of our competltors

+  announcements by us or our competitors of new products or services or s1gmﬁcant contracts,
acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

«. the initiation or outcome of litigation;
»  changes in interest rates;

. general economic, market and political conditions;
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~«  additions or departures of key personnel; and

. future sales of our equlty or convertlble secuntles

We cannot-predict the extent, if any; to which future sales of shares of common stock or- the availability
of shares of common stock for future sale, may depress the tradmg price of our common stock ‘

In addition, the stock market in recent years has expenenced extreme price and trading volume
fluctuations that ‘often have been unrelated or disproportionate to -the opérating: performance: of individual
companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the' price of our common stock, regardless of
our operating performance. Furthermore, stockholders may: initiate securities elass action lawsuits. if the market
price of our stock drops significantly, which may cause us to incur substantial costs and could- divert the time
and attention of our management. These factors, among .others,.could s1gmﬁcant1y depress the price of our
common stock. .

We have many potentially dilutive securities outstanding.

At December 31, 2012, we had outstanding options granted to employees, including restricted shares, to
purchase approximately 2,304,576 shares of our, common. stock, with a weighted-average exercise price of
$13.01 per share, of which options for 398,437 shares were exercisable at December 31, 2012. We also have
outstanding convertible notes and debentures maturing in November 2014 and June 2026, which are currently
convertible into. 26,962,116 shares of our common stock. The. issuance of these shares will cause dilution
which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. The availability for sale of significant
quantities of our common stock could adversely affect the prevailing market price of the stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF C’OMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in Miami, Florida. We lease 13,849 square feet of office space
in an office building in Miami, which we share with various of our subsidiaries. The lease expires in
November 2014. In September 2012 we entered into an additional office lease with an affiliate of the ‘Company.
Payments under the lease commence in May 2013. The lease is for 12,390 square feet of space in an’ office
building in Miami, Florida. The lease expires in March 2018, subject to two five-year renewal options:

We lease approximately 18,000 square feet of office space in New York, New York under leases that
expire in 2013. Approximately 9,000 square feet of such space has been subleased to unaffiliated third parties
for the balance of the term of the lease. New Valley’s operating properties are discussed above under the
description of New Valley’s business and in Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements.

Liggett’s tobacco manufacturing facilities, and several of the distribution and storage facilities, are
currently located in or near Mebane, North Carolina. Various of such facilities are owned and others are
leased. As of December 31, 2012, the principal properties owned or leased by Liggett are as follows:

: C . Approximate Total
Type Location Owned or Leased .= Square Footage

Storage Facilities Danville, VA Owned _ 578,000
Office and Manufacturmg Complex Mebane, NC Owned 240,000
Warehouse - Mebane, NC - Owned 60,000
Warehouse Mebane, NC " Leased - 125,000
Warehouse Mebane, NC Leased 22,000

LVB leases approximately 20,000 square feet of office space in Morrisville, North Carolina. The lease
expires in January 2019.

Liggett’s management believes that its property, plant and equipment are well maintained and in good
condition and that its existing facilities are sufficient to accommodate a substantial increase in production.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Liggett and other United States cigarette manufacturers have been named as defendants in numerous,
direct, third-party and class actions predicated on the theory that they 'should be liable for damages from
adverse health effects alleged to have been caused by cigarette smoking or by exposure to secondary smoke
from cigarettes. ‘ ‘ '

Reference is made to Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements, which contains a general
description of certain legal proceedings to which the Company, Liggett or their subsidiaries are a party and
certain related matters. Reference is also made to Exhibit 99.1, Material Legal Proceedings, incorporated
herein, for additional information regarding the pending tobacco-related legal proceedings to which we or
Liggett are parties. A copy of Exhibit 99.1 will be furnished without charge upon written request to us at our
principal executive offices, 100 S.E. Second Street, Miami, Florida 33131, Attn: Investor Relations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbbl “VGR”. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, high and low sale prices for a share of our common stock
on the NYSE, as reported by the NYSE, and quarterly cash dividends declared on shares of common stock:

} Cash
Year . High Low Dividends
2012: ' :
Fourth QUarter. . . ... ..o vie e i $16.84 $14.25 $0.40
Third QUarter. . .. .........ovtniin 17.00 15.78 $0.38
Second QUANEr . . . . oottt .. 17.07 . 15.62 $0.38
First Quarter . . .. ..o vt n e it i 17.70 16.47 $0.38
2011:
Fourth QUarter. . . . v oo vttt et e e e $17.33 $15.74 $0.38
Third Quarter. . . . . ... o 17.49 14.74 0.36
Second Quarter . .. ... ... ... 17.47 15.68 0.36
First Quarter . . . . ..o v v v ittt it 16.11 13.94 0.36

At February 21, 2013, there were approximately 1,916 holders of record of our common stock.

The declaration of future cash dividends is within the discretion of our Board of Directors and is subject
to a variety of contingencies such as market conditions, earnings and our financial condition as well as the
-availability of cash.

Liggett’s revolving credit agreement currently permits Liggett to pay dividends to VGR Holding only if
Liggett’s borrowing availability exceeds $5 million for the 30 days prior to payment of the dividend, and so
long as no event of default has occurred under the agreement, including Liggett’s compliance with the
covenants in the credit facility, including maintaining minimum levels of EBITDA (as defined) if its
borrowing availability is less than $20 million and not exceeding maximum levels of capital expenditures
(as defined).

Our 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2021 prohibit our payment of cash dividends or distributions on
our common stock if at the time of such payment our Consolidated EBITDA (as defined) for the most recently
completed four full fiscal quarters is less than $75 million. Our Consolidated EBITDA for the four quarters
ended December 31, 2012 exceeded $75 million.

We paid 5% stock dividends on September 28, 2012, September 29, 2011, and September 29, 2010 to the
holders of our common stock. All information presented in this report is adjusted for the stock dividends.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the total annual return of our Common Stock, the S&P 500 Index, the
S&P MidCap 400 Index and the NYSE Arca Tobacco Index, formerly known as the AMEX Tobacco Index,
for the five years ended December 31, 2012. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31,
2007 in the Common Stock and each of the indices, and that all cash dividends and distributions
were reinvested.
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

No securities of ours which were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 were issued or sold by
us during the three months ended December 31, 2012 ' :

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our purchases of our common stock during the three months ended December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Total Maximum
~ Number of Shares Number of Shares
: ) Purchased as that May Yet
Total ... Part of Publicly .. Be Purchased
Number of Shares Average Price  Announced Plans or  Under the Plans
Period - ‘ Purchased - Paid per Share * Programs - or Programs -
October 1 to October 31, 2012. . ... — R ' _ —
November 1 to November 30, 2012. . — — — —
December 1 to December 31, 2012 . . 162,397 15.38® — —

Total. ......... ... ... L. 162,397 $15.38

(1) Delivery of shares to us in payment of tax wtihholding in connection with an employee’s veéting in
restricted stock. The shares were immediately canceled. .
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The table below, together with the accompanying text, presents certain information regarding all our
current executive officers as of February 28, 2013. Each of the executive officers serves until the election and
qualification of such individual’s successor or until such individual’s death, resignation- or removal by the
Board of Directors.

Year Individual
Became an

Name Age Position Executive Officer
Howard M. Lorber 64  President and Chief Executive Officer 2001
Richard J. Lampen 59  Executive Vice President 1996
J. Bryant Kirkland III 47 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 2006
Marc N. Bell 52  Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 1998
Ronald J. Bernstein 59  President and Chief Executive Officer of Liggett 2000

Howard M. Lorber has been our President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2006. He served
as our President and Chief Operating Officer from January 2001 to December 2005 and has served as a
director of ours since January 2001. From November 1994 to December 2005, Mr. Lorber served as President
and Chief Operating Officer of New Valley, where he also served as a director. Mr. Lorber was Chairman of
the Board of Hallman & Lorber Assoc., Inc., consultants and actuaries of qualified pension and profit sharing
plans, and various of its affiliates from 1975 to December 2004 and has been a consultant to these entities
since January 2005; Chairman of the Board of Directors since 1987 and Chief Executive Officer from
November 1993 to December 2006 of Nathan’s Famous, Inc., a chain of fast food restaurants; Chairman of
the Board of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services from May 2001 to July 2006 and Vice Chairman since
July 2006. Mr. Lorber was a Director of Borders Group Inc. from May 2010 until January 2012 and has been
a director since 1991 of United Capital Corp., a real estate investment and diversified manufacturing company,
which ceased to be a public reporting company in 2011. He is also a trustee of Long Island University.

Richard J. Lampen has served as our Executive Vice President since July 1996. From October 1995 to
December 2005, Mr. Lampen served as the Executive Vice President and General Counsel of New Valley,
where he also served as a director. Since September 2006, he has served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services. From November 1998 to November 2011, he served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of CDSI Holdings Inc., an affiliate of New Valley, which is now known
as SG Blocks Inc. Since October 2008, Mr. Lampen has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of
Castle Brands Inc., a publicly traded developer and importer of premium branded spirits in which we held an
approximate 11% equity interest at December 31, 2011. Mr. Lampen is a director of Castle, SG Blocks Inc.
and Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services.

J. Bryant Kirkland III has been our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since
April 2006. Mr. Kirkland has served as a Vice President of ours since January 2001 and served as
New Valley’s Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from January 1998 to December 2005. He has served
since July 1992 in vatrious financial capacities with us, Liggett and New Valley. Mr. Kirkland served as Vice
President, Treasurer and Chief ‘Financial Officer of SG Blocks Inc. from January 1998 to November 2011 and
as a director of SG Blocks Inc. since November 1998. Mr. Kirkland has served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer of Multi Soft II, Inc. and Multi Solutions II, Inc. since
July 2012.

Mare N. Bell has been our General Counsel and Secretary since May 1994 and our Vice President since
January 1998 and the Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Vector Tobacco since April 2002. From
November 1994 to December 2005, Mr. Bell served as Associate General Counsel and Secretary of
New Valley and from February 1998 to December 2005, as a Vice President of New Valley. Mr. Bell
previously served as Liggett’s General Counsel and currently serves as an officer; director or manager for
many of Vector’s or New Valley’s subsidiaries.
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¢ Ronald J.. Bernstein has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Liggett since September 1,
2000 and of Liggett Vector Brands since March 2002 and has been a director of ours since March 2004. From
July 1996 to December 1999, Mr. Bernstein served as General Director and, from December 1999 to
September 2000, as Chairman of Liggett-Ducat, our former: Russian.tobacco business sold in 2000. Prior to
that time, Mr. Bernstein served in various positions with Liggett commencing in 1991, including Executlve
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

ITEM 6. SELECTED}FI)NANCL@L DATA

" ‘Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 . 2010 . 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Statement of Opefations Data: o
Revenues™® ... ... ... ... ........ $1,084,546  $1,133,380  $1,063,289  $801,494  $565,186

Operating income . . . . .. ... .. cee.. 154933 143321 111,313 143,167 135,304
Net income .. ........ R 30,622 75,020 54084 24806 60,504

Per basic common share(z)

Net income applicable to-.common ‘ K ‘ s . -
shares. .................... $ 035 $ 089 §$ 065 $ 030 $ 074

Per diluted common share®:

Net income applicable to o ' : :
common shares . ... ... e i $ 035 $ . 08 $ 064 $ 030 $ 066

Cash distributions declared per common :

share®. ... ... L $ 154 $ 147 $ 140 $ 133 § 127
Balance Sheet Data: , , :
Current assets. . . ... ........... .. $ 639056 $ 509,741 $ 526,763  $389,208  $355,283
Total assets . ........... L. .. 1,086,731 . 927,768 949,595 735542 717,712
Current liabilities .. .............. 195,159 315,198 . 226,872 149,008 . 296,159

Notes payable, embedded derivatives,
long-term debt and other obhgatlons - SR o
Jess current portion. . ... ... ..... L 759,074 542,371 - 647,064 - - 487,936 287,546
Non-current employee benefits, deferred ' o R ' o
income taxes and other long -term o o o
liabilities ... .......... . ... .. © 211,750 159,229 121,893 103,280 100,402
Stockholders (deficiency) equity . . . . . . L (79252) (89,030)  (46,234)  (4,682) 33,605

(1) Revenues include federal excise taxeé of $508,027, $552,965, $538,328, $377,771, and $168, 170.:
respectively. Effective Apnl 1, 2009 federal excise taxes increased from $0 39 per pack of c1garettes to
- $1.01 per pack of cigarettes. .

(2) Per share computations include the impact of 5% stock d1v1dends on September 28, 2012 September 29,
2011, September 29 2010 September 29, 2009, and September 29 2008.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - - .

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts). -

Overview
We are a holding company and are engaged principally in:

o the manufacture and sale of cigarettes in the United States through' our Liggett Group LLC and
Vector Tobacco Inc. subs1d1anes, and

o the real estate business through our New Valley LLC subsidiary, which is seeking to acquire
additional operating companies and real estate properties. New Valley owns 50% of Douglas Elliman
Realty, LLC, which operates the largest res1dent1al brokerage ‘company “in the New York
metropolitan area.

All of our tobacco operations’ unit sales volume in 2012 2012 and 2010 was in the d1scount segment
which management believes has been the primary growth segment in the industry for over a decade. The
significant discounting of premium cigarettes in recent years has led to brands, such ‘as EVE, that.were
traditionally considered premium brands to become more appropnately categorized -as discount, following list
price reductions. v

Our tobacco subsidiaries’ cigarettes are produced in approximately 117 combinations of length, style and
packaging. Liggett’s current brand portfolio includes:

¢ PYRAMID — the industry’s first deep discount product with a brand 1dent1ty re-launched in the
second quarter of 2009, and ,

. GRAND PRIX — re-launched as a national brand in 2005,

* LIGGETT SELECT — a leading brand in the deep discount category,

¢ EVE — a leading brand of 120 millimeter cigarettes in the branded d1scount category, and
" USA and various Partner Brands and private label brands.

In 1999, Liggett introduced LIGGETT SELECT, one of the leading brands in the deep dlscount category
LIGGETT SELECT represented 7.0% in 2012, 8.7% in 2011 and 13.0% in 2010 of Liggett’s unit volume. In
September 2005, Liggett repositioned GRAND PRIX to distributors and retailers nationwide. GRAND PRIX
represented 9.6% in 2012, 12.7% in 2011 and 18.5% in 2010 of Liggett’s unit volume. In April 2009, Liggett
repositioned PYRAMID as a box-only brand with a new low price to spec1ﬁca11y compete with brands which
are priced at the lowest level of the deep discount segment. PYRAMID is now the largest seller in Liggett’s
family of brands with 62.7% of Liggett’s unit ‘volume in 2012, 56.4% in 2011 and 42.6% in 2010. According
to Management Science Associates, Liggett held a share of approximately 12.1%. of the overall discount
market segment for 2012 compared to 12. 8% for 2011 and 11.9% for 2010.

Under the Master Settlement Agreement (“MSA”) reached in November 1998 with 46 states and various
territories, the three largest cigarette manufacturers must make settlement payments to the states and territories
based on how many cigarettes they sell annually. Liggett, however, is not required to make any payments
unless its market share exceeds approximately 1.65% of the U.S. cigarette market. Additionally, Vector
Tobacco has no payment obligation unless its market share exceeds approximately 0.28% of the U.S. market.
Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s payments under the MSA are based on each company’s incremental market
share above the minimum threshold applicable to such company. We believe that our tobacco subsidiaries
have gained a sustainable cost advantage over their competitors as a result of the settlement. ’

The discount segment is a challenging marketplace, with consumers having less brand loyalty and placing
greater emphasis on price. Liggett’s competition is now divided into two segments. The first segment is made
up of the three largest manufacturers of cigarettes in the United States, Philip Morris USA Inc., R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company, and Lorillard Tobacco Company. The three largest manufacturers, while primarily premium
cigarette based companies, also produce and sell discount cigarettes. The second segment of competition is
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comprised of a group of smaller: manufacturers and importers, most of which sell deep discount cigarettes.
Our largest competitor. in this:segment is Commonwealth Brands, Inc. {a' wholly owned subsidiary of Imperial
Tobacco PLC). . ‘ . , .

Recent Developments -

775% Senior Secured Notes due. 2021. In February 2013, we sold $450 000 of our 7.75% senior
secured notes due 2021 in a prrvate offenng to ‘qualified institutional investors in accordance with Rule 144A
of the Securities Act of 1933, We agreed to consummate a registered exchange offer for the 7.75% senior
secured notes within 360 days after the date of the initial i issuance of the 7.75% senior secured notes. The new
7.75% senior secured notes to. be issued in the exchange offer will have substantlally the same_terms as the
original notes, except that the new 7. 75% senior secured notes will have been registered under the Securities
Act. We will be required to pay additional interest on the 7.75% senior secured notes if we fail to . timely
comply with our obligations under the Regrstrat:ron Rights Agreement until such time as we comply

The 7.75% semor secured notes pay interest on a Semi- ‘annual -basis at a rate of 7. 75% per year and
mature on February 15, 2021 ‘We may redeem some or all of the 7.75% senior secured notes at - any time prror
to February 15, 2016 at' a make-whole redemptlon pr1ce On or after February 15, 2016 we may redeem some
or all of the 7.75% senior secured notes at a premium that ‘will decrease over tlme plus accrued and unpard
1nterest and 11qu1dated damages, if any, to the’ redemptron date.

The 7 75% senior -secured notes are guaranteed sub_]ect to certain customary automatlc release prov1s1ons
on a joint and several basis by all of our 100% owned domestic subsidiaries that-are. engaged in the-conduct
of our cigarette businesses. In addition, some of the guarantees are- collateralized by-second priority or first
priority security interests in certain collateral of some of the subs1d1ary guarantors, including their common
stock, purSuant to security and pledge agreements. The indenture contains covenants that restrict the payment
of dividends if our consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, deprec1at1on and amortization, as -definéd in
the indenture, for thé ‘most recently ended:four full quarters is less than $75,000. The indenture also restricts
the incurrence of debt if our Leverage Ratio and our Secured Leverage Ratio as deﬁned in the 1ndenture
exceed 3.0 and 1.5, respectively. : ‘ S S

~The- aggregate’ net proceeds from the sale of the 7.75% senior -secured notes were approximately
$438,250 after deducting. underwriting:discounts, commissions, fees and offering expenses. We:intend to use
the net proceeds of the issuance for, the cash: tender offer described below.and. the redemption price for any
existing 11% senior secured notes that are not tendered, plus accrued and unpaid interest plus any related fees
and expenses. ’

Tender Oﬁ’er On- January 29, 2013, we announced we were commencmg a cash tender offer with
respect to aily and all of the outstanding $415,000 of our 11% senior sectred notes due 2015. We ‘tetired
$336,315 of the 11% senior secured notes at a premium of '104.292%, plus “accruéd ' and unpald interest, on
February 12, 2013. The remaining $78,685 of the 11% senior secured notes have been called and will be
retired on March 12, 2013 at a redemption price of 103.667% plus accrued and unpaid interest.

'7.5% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Senior Notes ‘due 2019. In November 2012, we sold
$230,000 of our 7.5% variable interést senior convertible notes due 2019 (the #2019 Convertible Notes™) in a
public offering registered: under -the -Securities Act. The 2019 Convertible Notes' are our senior -unsecured
obligations and are effectively subordihated to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets
securing such indebtedness. The 2019 Convertible Notes are also structurally subordinated to-all liabilities and
commitments of our subsidiaries. ‘The aggregate net proceeds' from the sale of the 2019 Convertible Notes
were = approximately $218 900 after deducting underwriting discounts, comnlissions, fees and
offering expenses. ’ ' ' S

The 2019. Convertible Notes pay interest (“Total Interest”) on a quarterly bas1s begmmng January 15
2013 -at-a:rate of 2.5% per annum' plus: additional interest, which is based. on: the amount of cash dividends
paid during the prior three-month period ending on the record date for such interest payment multiplied by the
total Aumber of shares -of its .common stock into which the debt will ' be convertible on such record date:
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the interest payable on each interest payment date shall be the higher
of (i) the Total Interest and (ii) 7.5% per-annum. The notes are .convertible into our common: stock -at the
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holder’s option. The conversion price at December 31, 2012 was $18.50 per share (approximately '54.0541
shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the note), is subject to adjustment for various events,
including the issuance of stock dividends. The notes will mature on January 15, 2019.

Share Lending Agreement. In connection with the offering of our 2019 Convertible Notes, we entered
into a share lending agreement with Jefferies & Company, the underwriter for the offering, under which we
lent Jefferies & Company 6,114,000 shares of our common stock to facilitate hedging transactions related to
the 2019 Convertible Notes. Jefferies & Company has since returned 3,057,000 of the borrowed shares and
3,057,000 shares remain outstanding at December 31, 2012. Subject to certain limitations, Jefferies &
Company may from time to time during the term of the share lending agreement borrow up to 1,000,000
additional shares of our common stock from us for certain additional offerings. We did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of the borrowed shares, other than a nominal loan fee from Jefferies & Company equal
to $0.10 per share lent to Jefferies & Company

The Share Lending Agreement requires that the shares borrowed be returned upon the maturity of the
related debt, January 2019, or earlier, including the redemption of the 2019 Convertible Notes or the
conversion of the notes to shares of common stock pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the notes.
Borrowed shares are issued and outstanding for corporate law purposes and, accordingly, the holders of the
borrowed shares will have all of the rights of a holder of our outstandmg shares. However, because the share
borrower must return to us all borrowed shares (or identical shares), the borrowed shares are not considered
outstanding for purposes of computing and reporting our eamings per share in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Jefferies -agreed to pay to: us an amount equal to-any dividends or other
distributions that we pay on the borrowed shares.

We determined the fair value of the Share Lending Agreement was $3,204 at the date of issuance based
on the value of the presence of the Share Lending Agreement related to the terms of the offering. The $3,204
fair value was recognized as a debt financing charge and is being amortized to interest expense over the term
of the notes. As of December 31, 2012, 3,057,000 shares were outstanding on the Share Lendmg Agreement
and $12 had been amortized to interest expense.

- Prudential Franchise Agreements. Douglas Elliman Realty is in discussions with Prudential related to
certain matters in connection with the franchise agreements, and Douglas Elliman Realty has elected to cease
operating as a Prudential franchisee. Douglas Elliman Realty is seeking a resolution of these matters. The
stated initial expiration date of the franchise agreements is March 13, 2013 unless Douglas Elliman Realty
chooses to renew the franchise agreements prior to March 13, 2013. As a result of the termination or
expiration of the franchise agreements, in accordance with the terms of the Limited Liability Company
Operating Agreement, Douglas Elliman Realty is required to redeem the approximate 20% equity interest
owned by a former affiliate of Prudential. The redemption price for such equity interest is to be determined
through an appraisal process in accordance with the terms of Douglas Elliman Realty’s Limited Liability
Company Operating Agreement.

Chelsea Eleven. In February and April 2012, Chelsea closed on the remaining utility and two residential
units of the 54 unit building and the project is concluded. New Valley received net distributions of $9,483 and
$7,638 from New Valley Oaktree Chelsea Eleven, LLC for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. New Valley accounted for its 40% interest in New Valley Oaktree Chelsea Eleven, LLC under
the equity method of accounting. New Valley recorded equity income of $3,137, $3,000 and $900 for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to New Valley Chelsea.

Fifty Third-Five Building. In Septeml;er 2010, New Valley, through its NV 955 LLC subsidiary,
contributed $2,500 to a joint venture, Fifty Third-Five Building LLC (“JV”), of which it owns 50%. The JV
was formed for the purposes of acquiring a defaulted real estate loan, collateralized by real estate located in
New York City. In October 2010, New Valley contributed an additional $15,500 to the JV and the JV acquired
the defaulted loan for approximately $35,500. In December 2012, all outstanding principal and interest on the
loan was repaid and the defaulted note was retired. New Valley received a liquidating distribution of $20,900
from the JV on December 28, 2012. This investment was accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company recorded equity income of $2,900 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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SOCAL Portfolio. In October 2011, a newly-formed joint venture, between affiliates of New Valley and
Winthrop Realty Trust, entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank to acquire a $117,900 C-Note. (the
“C-Note”) for a-purchase price of $96,700. The C-Note was: the ‘most junior tranche of a $796,000 first
mortgage loan originated in July 2007 which was collateralized by ‘a.31-property portfolio. of office properties
situated throughout southern California, consisting of approximately 4.5 million square feet. The C-Note bore
interest at a rate per annum of LIBOR plus 310 basis: points, required" payments of interest only prior to
maturity and matured on August 9, 2012. On November 3, 2011, New Valley invested $25,000 for an
approximate 26% interest in the joint venture. The.. mvestment is .a variable interest entity; however,
New Valley is not the primary beneficiary. :

On September 28, 2012, all outstandlng pnnc1pa1 and mterest Was repald and the C-Note was retired.
New Valley received a liquidating distribution of $32,275 from the Jomt venture on September 28, 2012.
New Valley accounted for this investment under the equity method of accountmg New Valley recorded equity
income of $7,180 and $95 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecuvely We had no
exposure to loss as a result of New Valley’s mvestment in NV SOCAL LLC at December 31, 2012 ‘

‘11 Beach Street. Tn June 2012, NV Beach LILC,a wholly -owned subsidiary of New Valley, invested
$9,642 with an additional $1,321 investment to be made in"the’ future for an apprommate 49.5% -interest in
11 Beach Street Investor LLC (the “Beach JV”). Beach JV plans to renovate and convert an existing office
building in Manhattan into a luxury residential condominium. Beach JV is a variable interest entity; however,
New Valley is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for its interest in Beach JV under the equity
method of accounting. Our maximum exposure to loss as a result of New Valley’s investment in Beach JV
was $9,642 at December 31, 2012. : :

Maryland Portfolio. In July 2012 New Valley invested $5 000 for an approxunate 30% interest in a
joint venture that owns a 25% interest in a portfolio of approximately 5, 500 apartment units primarily located
in Baltimore County, Maryland. The investment is a variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the
primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for. this investment under the equity method of accounting.
New Valley recorded equity loss of $269 and received distributions of $117 for the year ended December 31,
2012. Qur maximum exposure to loss as a result of New Valley s investment in NV Maryland ‘was $4 615 at
December 31, 2012. Do o

701 Seventh Avenue In August and September 2012 New Valley 1nvested a total of $7 800 for an
approximate 11% interest in a joint venture that acquired property located .at 701 . Seventh Avenue in Times
Square in Manhattan. The joint venture plans to redevelop the property. for retail space and signage, as well as
a site for a potential hotel. The investment closed .in October 2012 and New. Valley invested an additional
$1,507 at closing. New Valley may have additional future capital contributions of approximately $14,000. The
property, located on the northeast corner of Seventh Avenue and 47% Street, totals approx1mately 120,000
gross square feet and is a rectangular corner pareel currently occupied by two bulldlngs The investment is a
variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the primary Béneficiary. New - Valley accounts for this
investment under the equity method of accounting. Our maximum exposure to loss as a result of New Valley s
investment in 701 Seventh Avenue was $9,307 at December 31, 2012 ~

Queens Plaza. In December 2012 New . Valley invested $7,350 for an approx1mate 4537% interest in
QPS 23-10 Venture LL.C which through its affiliate owns a condominium convers1on project, 23-10 Queens
Plaza South, located in Queens, New York. The investment is a variable interest entity; however, New Valley
is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for this investment under the equity method of
accounting. Our maximum exposure to loss as a result of New Valley’s investment in Queens Plaza was
$7.350 at December 31, 2012. : ‘

Chrystie Street. In December 2012, New Valley invested $1,973 for an approximate 49% interest in
WG Chrystie LLC which owns a 37.5% ownership interest in 215 Chrystie Venture LLC which, through its
affiliate, owns a condominium conversion project located in-Manhattan. The investment is a variable interest
entity; however, New' Valley is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for this investment under the
equity method of accounting. Our maximum exposure to loss as a result of New Valley s -investment in
Chrystie Street was $1,973 at December 31, 2012.
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Gains or Losses on Long-term Investments. Two of our long-term :investments were Jliquidated in
January 2011 °'and April - 2011, -respectively.” We: .received - distributions of '$66,190 .for the:-year ended
December 31, 2011 primarily:from the liquidation of the two:long-term investments. We recognized ‘a gain of
$25,832 for the year ended December 31, 2011. : . : ;o ; o

Recent Developments in Tobacco-Relaﬁed Li_tigatidti’ .

The cigarette industry continués to ‘be challenged on numerous fronts. New cases -continue to be
commenced against Liggett and other ' cigarette ‘manufacturers. Liggett could be subjected to  substantial
liabilities and bonding requirements from litigation relating to cigarette products. Adverse litigation outcomes
could have a negative impact on our ability to operate due to their impact on cash flows. We and our Liggett
subsidiary, as well as the entire cigarette industry, continué to be challenged on numerous fronts, particularly
with respect to the Engle progeny cases in Florida. New caseés continue to be commenced against Liggett and
other cigarette manufacturers. It is likely that similar legal actions, proceedings and claims will continue to be
filed against Liggett. Punitive damages, often in amounts ranging into the billions of dollars, are specifically
pled in certain cases, in addition to compensatory and other damages. It is possible that there could be adverse
developments in pending cases including the certification of additional class actions. An unfavorable outcome
or settlement of pending tobacco-related. litigation could encourage the commencement of additional litigation.
In addition, an unfavorable outcome in any tobacco-related litigation could, have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Liggett could face difficulties in
obtaining a bond to stay execution of a judgment pending appeal. . .

As of December 31, 2012, there were approximately 5,037 Engle progeny' cases, 69 individual product
liability lawsuits, four purported class actions and one healthcare cost recovery action pending in the United
States in which Liggett or us, or both, were named as a defendant. To date, adverse verdicts have been
entered against Liggett in eight Engle progeny cases. .

Engle Progeny Cases. In 2000, a jury in Engle v. R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. rendered a $145,000,000
punitive damages. verdict in favor: of a “Florida Class” against certain cigarette manufacturers, including
Liggett. Pursuant to the Florida Supreme. Court’s July 2006 ruling in -Engle, which decertified the class on a
prospective basis, and affirmed the appellate court’s reversal of the punitive damages award, former class
members had one year from January 11, 2007 in which to file individual lawsuits. In -addition, -some
individuals who filed suit prior to January 11, 2007, and who claim they meet the conditions in Engle, are
attempting to avail themselves of the Engle ruling. Lawsuits by individuals requesting the benefit of the Engle
ruling, whether filed before or after the January 11, 2007 deadline, ‘are referred to as the “Engle progeny
cases.” Liggett and us are currently named in 5,037 Engle progeny cases in both federal (1,963 cases) and
state (3,074 cases) courts in Florida. Other cigarette madnufacturers have also been named as defendants in
these cases, although as a case proceeds, one or more defendants may ultimately be dismissed from the action.
These cases include approximately 6,215 plaintiffs. o

Liggett Only Cases. There are currently eight cases. pending wliere Liggett is the only remaining
tobacco company defendant. These cases consist of four.individual actions and four Engle progeny cases.
Cases where Liggett is the only defendant could increase substantially as a result of the Engle progeny cases.

In February 2009, in Ferlanti v. Liggett Group, a Florida state court jury awarded compensatory damages
to plaintiff and an $816 judgment was entered by the court. That judgment was affirmed on appeal and was
satisfied by Liggett in March 2011. In September 2010, the court awarded plaintiff legal fees of $996. Liggett
paid legal fees and accrued interest of $1,231 in January 2013. Liggett previously accrued $2,000 for the
Ferlanti case. ' ‘ '

Critical Accounting Policies

General. The preparation of financial statements in.conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure-of contingent.assets and liabilities and the reported
amounts. of revenues and expenses. Significant estimates subject to material-changes in the near term include
impairment charges, inventory valuation, deferred tax assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, promotional
- accruals, sales returns and allowances, actuarial assumptions of pension plans, the estimated fair value of
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embedded derivative liabilities, settlement accruals, long-term: investments and impairments, accounting for
investments -in equity securities, and litigation and defense costs. Actual results -could differ from
those estimates. : : ‘ ERNE : . o

Revenue ‘Recognition.: Revenues: from sales of cigarettes are recognized upon the shipment of finished
goods when title and risk of loss have passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement,
the sale price is determinable and collectibility is reasonably ‘assured. We provide an allowance for expected
sales returns, net:-of any related inventory cost recoveries. In accordance with authoritative guidance on how
taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities should be presented in the income
statement (that is, gross versus nét presentation), our accounting policy is to include federal excise taxes in
revenues and cost of goods sold. Such revenues ahd ‘cost of sales totaled $508,027, $552,965, and $538,328
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Since our primary line of business is
tobacco, our financial position ‘and our results of operations and cash flows have been and could continue to
be materially adversely affected by significant unit sales volume declines, - litigation and defensé’ costs,
increased tobacco costs or reductions in the selling price of cigarettes in the near term. ' _

Marketing Costs. We record marketing costs as an expense in the period' to which such costs relate, We
do not defer the recognition of any amounts on our consolidated balance sheets with respect to marketing
costs. We expense advertising costs as incurred, which is the.-period in which the related advertisement
initially appears. We record consumer incentive and trade promotion costs as a reduction in revenue in the
period in which these programs are offered, based on estimates of utilization and redemption rates that are
developed from historical information. = - ’

Contingencies. We record sLiggett’s product liability legal expenses and other litigation costs as
operating, selling; -administrative and general expenses as those costs are incurred. As -discussed in Note-12 to
our consolidated financial statements, legal proceedings regarding Liggett’s tobacco products are pending or
threatened in various jurisdictions against Liggett and us. S . : .

We record provisions in our consolidated financial statements for pending litigation when we determine
that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the @_rri,qunt of loss can be reasonably estimated. At the present
time, while it is reasonably possible that an unfavorable outcome in a case may occur, ‘except as disclosed in
Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements and discussed below related to the eight cases where an
adverse verdict was entered against Liggett: (i) ‘management has concluded that it is not probable. that a loss
has been incurred in any of the pending tobacco-related cases; or (ii) management is unable to estimate the
possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome of any of the pending
tobacco-related cases and, therefore, management has not provided any amounts in the consolidated financial
statements for unfavorable outcomes, if any. Legal defense costs are expensed as incurred. -

Although Liggett has geherally been success’ful in managing hﬁgation in the past, litigation is subject to
uncertainty and significant challenges remain, particularly with respect to the Engle progeny cases.

Adverse verdicts have been entered against Liggett in eight state court Ehgle progeny cases (exclusive of
the Lukacs case, discussed in Note 12 to our consolidated financial stateinents), and two of these verdicts have
been affirmed on appeal. At December 31, 2012, Liggett and us are defendants in 3,074 state court Engle
progeny cases. Through December 31, 2012, other than the Lukacs case, the verdicts against Liggett have
ranged from $1 to $3,008. In two of these cases, punitive damages were also awarded for $1,000 and $7,600.
We have not accrued for these cases as of December 31, 2012. Our potential range of loss in the six Engle
progeny cases currently on appeal is between $0 and $16,166 in the aggregate, plus accrued interest and
attorneys’ fees. In determining the range of loss, we consider potential settlements as well as future
appellate relief. . . S - : :

Except as discussed in Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements, management is unable to
estimate the possible loss or range of loss from remaining Engle progeny cases as there are currently multiple
defendants in each case and discovery has not occurred or is limited. As a result, we lack information about
whether plaintiffs are, in fact, Engle class members (non-class members’ claims are generally time-barred), the
relevant smoking history, the natare of the alleged injury and the. availability of various defenses, among other
things. Further; plaintiffs typically do.not specify their demand for damages. . :
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There is other tobacco-related litigation. pending against Liggett, which is discussed in Note 12 to our
consolidated financial statements. This litigation is also evaluated on a quarterly basis. Management is not able
to predict the outcome of any of the other tobacco-related litigation pending or threatened against Liggett.

. You should not infer from the absence of any reserve in. our consolidated financial statements that we
will not be subject to significant tobacco-related liabilities in the future. Litigation is subject to many
uncertainties, and it is possible that our consolidated financial position, results:of operations or cash flows
could be materially adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome in any such tobacco-related litigation.

- Settlement Agreements.. As discussed in Note 12 to our colnsolidated financial statements, Liggett and
Vector Tobacco are participants in the MSA. Liggett and Vector Tobacco have no payment obligations under
the MSA except to the extent their market shares exceed approximately 1.65% and 0.28%, respectively, of
total cigarettes sold in the United States. Their obligations, and the related expense charges under the MSA,
are subject to adjustments based upon, among other things, the volume of cigarettes sold by Liggett and
Vector Tobacco, their relative market shares and inflation. Since relative market shares are based on cigarette
shipments, the best estimate of the allocation of charges under the MSA is recorded in cost of goods sold as
the products are shipped. Settlement expenses under. the MSA recorded in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations were $137,609 for 2012, $155,707 for 2011 and $135,684 for 2010. Adjustments to
these estimates are recorded in the' period that the change becomes probable and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. ‘ :

Embedded Derivatives and Beneficial Conversion Feature. We measure all derivatives, including certain
derivatives embedded in other contracts, at fair value and recognize them in the consolidated balance sheet as
an asset or a liability, depending on our rights and obligations under the applicable derivative contract. We
have issued variable interest senior convertible debt in a series of private placements where a portion of the
total interest payable on the debt is computed by reference to the cash dividends paid on our common stock.
This portion of the interest payment is considered an embedded derivative within the convertible debt, which
we are required to separately value. As a result, we have bifurcated this embedded derivative and estimated
the fair value of the embedded derivative liability. The resulting discount created by allocating a portion of the
issuance proceeds to the embedded derivative is then amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt
using the effective interest method. ‘

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of derivative liabilities was estimated at $172,128 and
$133,500, respectively. The increase is due to the loss on the changes in fair value of convertible debt and the
addition of the 2019 Convertible Notes. : ‘ o

Changes to the fair value of these embedded derivatives are reflected on our consolidated statements of
operations as “Changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt.” The value of the
embedded derivative is contingent on changes in interest rates of debt instruments maturing over the duration
of the convertible debt as well as projections of future cash and stock dividends over the term of the debt. We
recognized a loss of $7,476 in 2012, a gain of $7,984 in 2011 and a gain of $11,524 in 2010 due to changes
in the fair value of the embedded derivatives.

" After giving effect to the recording of embedded derivative liabilities as a discount to the convertible
debf, our common stock had a fair value at the issuance date of the notes in excess of the conversion price,
resulting in a beneficial conversion feature. The 'intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature was
recorded as additional paid-in capital and as a further ‘discount on the debt. The discount is then amortized to
interest expense-over the term of the debt using thé effective interest rate method. -

We recognized non-cash interest expense of $10,684, $6,355 and $4,437 in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, due to the amortization of the debt discount attributable to the embedded derivatives and $7,332,
$4,086, and $2,530 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, due to the amortization of the debt discount
attributable to the beneficial conversion feature. ‘ : :

Inventories. Tobacco inventories are stated at lower of cost or market and are determined primarily by
the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method “at Liggett and Vector Tobacco. Although portions of leaf tobacco
inventories may not be used or sold within one year because of time required for aging, they are included in
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current assets, which is common practice in the industry. We estimate an inventory reserve for excess
quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification and historical write-offs, taking into account
future demand and market conditions.

Stock-Based Compensation. - Our- stock-based compensation uses a fair value-based method to recognize
non-cash compensation expense for share-based transactions. Under the fair value recognition provisions, we
recognize stock-based compensation net of an estimated forfeiture rate and only recognize compensation cost
for those shares expected to vest on a straight line basis over the requisite service period of the award. We
recognized stock-based compensation expense of $1,755, $1,715 and $1,218 in 2012, 2011 and 2010 related to
the amortization of stock option awards and $3,808, $1,468 and $1,452 related to the amortization of
restricted stock grants. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there was $2,103 and $3,860, respectively, of total
unrecognized cost related to employee stock options and $134 and $3,653, respectively, of total unrecognized
cost related to restricted stock grants. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements.

Employee Benefit Plans. The determination of our net pension and other postretirement benefit income
or expense is dependent on our selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts.
Those assumptions include, among others, the discount rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
and rates of increase in compensation and healthcare costs. We determine discount rates by using a
quantitative analysis that considers. the prevailing prices of investment grade bonds and the anticipated cash
flow from our two qualified defined benefit plans and our postretirement medical and life insurance plans.
These analyses. construct a hypothetical bond portfolio whose cash flow from coupons and maturities match
the annual projected cash flows from our pension and retiree health plans. As of December 31, 2012, our
benefit obligations were computed assuming a discount rate between 2.25% — 4.25%. As of December 31,
2012, our service cost was computed assuming a discount rate of 3.75% — 5.00%. In determining our expected
rate of return on plan assets we consider input from our external advisors and historical returns based on the
expected long-term rate of return is the weighted average of the target asset allocation of each individual asset
class. Our actual 10-year annual rate of return on our pension plan assets was 7.5%, 5.2% and 4.8% for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and our actual five-year annual rate of return on
our: pension plan assets was 2.9%, 2.9% and 5.7% for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. In computing expense for the year ended December 31, 2013, we will use an assumption of a
7% annual rate of return on our pension plan assets. In accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, actual results that differ from our assumptions are accumulated and
amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect our recognized income or expense in such future
periods. While we believe that our assumptions are appropriate, significant differences in our actual experience
or significant changes in our assumptions may materially affect our future net pension and other postretirement
benefit income or expense.

Net pension expense for defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefit expense was
$3,603, $3,300 and $5,001 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and we currently anticipate such expense
will be approximately $1,982 for 2013. In contrast, our funding obligations under the pension plans are
governed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”). To comply with ERISA’s minimum
funding requirements, we do not currently anticipate that we will be required to make any funding to the tax
qualified pension plans for the pension plan year beginning on January 1, 2013 and ending on
December 31, 2013.

Long-Term Investments and Impairments.” At December 31, 2012, we had long-term investments of
$22,799, which consisted primarily of investment partnerships investing in investment securities and real
estate. The investments in these investment partnerships are illiquid and the ultimate realization of these
investments is subject to the performance of the underlying partnership and its management by the general
partners. The estimated fair value of the investment partnerships is provided by the partnerships based on the
indicated market values of the underlying assets or investment portfolio. Gains are recognized when realized
in our consolidated statement of operations. Losses are recognized as realized or upon the determination of the
occurrence of an other-than-temporary decline in fair value. On a quarterly basis, we evaluate our investments
to .determine whether an impairment has occurred. If so, we also make a determination of whether such
impairment is considered temporary or other-than-temporary. We believe that the assessment of temporary or
other-than-temporary impairment is facts. and circumstances driven. However, among the matters that are
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considered in making such a determination are the period of time the investment has remained below its -cost
or carrying value, the severity of the decline, the likelihood of recovery given the reason for the decrease in
market value and our original expected holding period of the investment.

Income Taxes. The application of income tax law-is inherently complex. Laws and regulations in this
area are voluminous and are often ambiguous. As such, we are required to make many subjective assumptions
and judgments regarding our income tax exposures. Interpretations:of -and guidance surrounding income tax
laws and regulations change over time and, as a result, changes in our subjective assumptions and judgments
may materially affect amounts recognizéd -in our: consolidated financial statements. See Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements for additional 1nformat10n regardmg our awountmg for income taxes and
uncertain tax positions.

Results of Operations

The following discussion provides an assessment of our results of operations, capital resources and
liquidity and should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related ‘notes
included elsewhere in this report. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of VGR Holdmg,
Liggett, Vector Tobacco, Liggett Vector Brands, New Valley and other less significant sub31d1anes

Our significant business segments for the three years ended December 31,-2012 ‘were Tobacco and Rea.l
Estate. The Tobacco segment consists of ‘the manufacture iand sale: of cigarettes. The Real Estate segment
includes the Company’s investment in Escena, Aberdeen and investments in non-consolidated real estate
businesses. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accountmg policies and can be found in Note 1 to our consohdated ﬁnanc1a1 statements.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 . ) 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues: ‘ ;
TObaCCO . . . ot e e e -$1,084,546  $1,133,380 $1,063,289
Operating income (loss): . : ‘
TODACCO .+« v ve e e e e e T 176,017 164,581 130,157
Realestate. . . ... .. ... ..ot iinne et o 2,013) - (1,929) ~ (631)
Corporate and other .. ........... e e - (19,071) (19,331) (18,213)
Total operating income. . . ... ...............0 ... § 154933 $ 143,321 $ 111,313

(1) Operating income includes litigation judgment expense of $16,161 and a $3,000 settlement charge.

2012 Compared to 2011

Revenues. All of our revenues were from the Tobacco segment in 2012 and 2011. Liggett increased the
list price of PYRAMID by $1.30 per carton in January 2011; $1.10, per carton in August 2011, $1.00 per
carton in June 2012, and $0.60 per carton-in December 2012. The list . price of LIGGETT SELECT and EVE
also increased by $1.00 per carton in June 2011. The list price of GRAND PRIX also increased by $1.10 per
carton in June 2011. Liggett increased the list price of LIGGETT SELECT, EVE, and GRAND PRIX by
$0.80 per carton in October 2011, $1.00 per carton in 'June 2012, and $0.60 per carto'n in December 2()12

All of our sales were in the discount category in 2012 and 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012,
revenues were $1,084,546 compared to $1,133,380.for the year ended December 31, 2011. Revenues declined
by 4.3% ($48,834) due to an unfavorable sales volume of $101,669 (approximately 892.4 million units) offset
by a favorable price variance of $52,835 primarily related to increases in the price of PYRAMID.

Cost of goods sold. Our cost of goods sold declined from $892,883 for the year ended December 31,
2011 to $823,452 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The major components of our cost of goods sold are
federal excise taxes, expenses under the MSA, FDA legislation and tebacco buyout, which are variable costs
based on the number of units sold;, and tobacco and other manufacturing costs, which are fixed and variable
costs. Federal excise taxes declined from $552,965 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 to
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$508,027 for the year ended December 31, 2012 as a result of decreased unit sales volume of 8.1%: Tobacco
and other manufacturing costs were $129,634 and $133,559 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Expenses under the MSA were $137 609 and $155,707 for the year ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Tobacco gross profit.  Tobacco gross profit ‘was $261,094 for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to $240,497 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. The $20,597 (8.6%) increase was due
primarily to increases in the price of PYRAMID. As a percentage of revenues (excluding federal excise taxes),

Tobacco gross profit increased to 45.3% in the 2012 period compared to gross profit of 41.4% in the 2011
period due to price increases.

Expenses. Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses were $106,161 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to $97,176 for the same period last year, an increase of $8,985 (9.2%). Tobacco
expenses were $85,077 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $75,916 for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase of $9,161 was primarily the result of higher sales force expenses due to an
increase in sales force over the last twelve months, increases in legal expenses due to MSA arbitration and
Engle progeny cases and an increase in point of sales materials. Tobacco product liability legal expenses and
other litigation costs were $9,666 and $7,795 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Expenses at the corporate segment declined from $19,331 to $19,071 in 2012 due to lower professional fees.

Operating income. Operating income was $154,933 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to -
$143,321 for the same period last year, &n increase of $11,612 (8.1%). For the year ended December 31,
2012, Tobacco segment operating income increased from $164,581 'in 2011 to $176,017 in 2012 primarily due
to increases in the price of PYRAMID in 2012. The real estate segment’s operating loss was $2,013 and
$1,929 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, primarily related to Escena’s operations.
The operating loss at the corporate segment ‘was $19,071 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to
$19,331 for 2011, a decrease of $260.

Other income (expenses). Other expenses were $101,216 for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to other expenses of $20,164 for the same period last year. For the year ended December 31, 2012,
other expenses primarily consisted of interest expense of $110,102, a loss of $7,476 from changes in fair
value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt, accelerated interest expense related to the conversion
of debt of $14,960 and an equity loss on long-term investments of $1,261. This was offset by equity income
on non-consolidated real estate businesses of $29,764, gain on sale of investment securities available for sale
of $1,640, and interest and other income of $1,179. For the year ended December 31, 2011, other expenses
primarily consisted of interest expense of $100,706, an equity loss of $859 on long-term investments, and
accelerated interest expense related to the conversion of debt of $1,217. These expenses were offset by income
of $7,984 for changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt, net realized gains on
investments held for sale of $23,257, equity income on non-consolidated real estate businesses of $19,966,
gain on liquidation of long-term investments of $25,832, gain on sale of townhomes of $3,843 and other
income of $1,736.

The value of the embedded derivatives is contingent on changes in interest rates of debt instruments
maturing over the duration of the convertible debt, our stock price as well as projections of future cash and
stock dividends over the term of the debt. The interest rate component of the value of the embedded
derivative is computed by calculating an equivalent non-convertible, unsecured and subordinated borrowing
cost. This rate is determined by calculating the implied rate on our 7.5% Convertible Notes when removing
the embedded option value within the convertible security. This rate is based upon market observable inputs
and influenced by our stock price, convertible bond trading price, risk free interest rates and stock volatility.
We recognized charges of $7,476 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and income of $7,984 for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Income before income taxes. Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
$53,717 compared to' $123,157 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease is attributable to the
items discussed above.
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 Income tax expense. The income tax expense was $23,095 for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to $48,137. for the year ended December 31, 2011. Our income tax rates for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 do not bear a customary relationship to statutory income tax rates as a result of
the impact of nondeductible expenses, state income taxes and interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized
tax benefits offset by the impact of the domestic production activities deduction. In addition, we recorded a
tax .benefits of $0 and $870 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, resulting from the
reduction of a previously established valuation allowance of a deferred tax asset. The net deferred tax asset
has been recognized for state tax net operating losses at Vector Tobacco Inc. after evaluatmg the impact of the
negative and positive evidence that such asset would be realized.

2011 Compared to 2010

Revenues. All of our revenues were from the Tobacco segment in 2011 and 2010. Liggett increased the
list price of LIGGETT SELECT, EVE, and GRAND PRIX by $0.60 per carton in January 2010, an additional
$0.65 per carton in May 2010, an additional $0.75 per carton in October 2010 and an additional $0.80 per
carton in October -2011. The list. price of LIGGETT SELECT: and EVE.increased by $1.00 per carton in
June 2011. The list price of GRAND PRIX also increased by $1.10 per carton in June 2011. Liggett increased
the list price of PYRAMID by $1.30 per carton in January 2011 and $1.10 per carton in August 2011.

All of our sales were in the discount category for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Revenues were $1,133,380 for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $1,063,289 in
2010. Revenues increased by 6.6% ($70,091) due to a favorable price variance of $69,140 primarily related to
increases in price of PYRAMID and a favorable sales volume variance of $951 (approximately 292.9 million
units or a 2.7% increase in umt volume primarily related to PYRAMID)

Cost of goods sold.” Our cost of goods sold increased from $845,106 for the year ended December 31
2010 to $892,883 for the year ended December.31, 2011. The major. components of our cost.of goods sold are
federal excise taxes, which are variable costs based on the number of units sold, expenses under the MSA,
FDA legislation and tobacco buyout, which are variable costs based on the number of units sold, and tobacco
and other manufacturing costs, which are fixed and variable costs. Federal excise taxes increased from
$538.328 in 2010 to $552,965 in 2011 as a result of increased unit sales volume of 2.7%. Tobacco and-other
manufacturing costs increased from $128,119 in 2010 to $133,559 in 2011 primarily as a result of increased
sales volume. Expenses under the MSA increased from $135,684 in 2010 to $155,707 in 2011 primarily as a
result of increased unit sales volume above our allocated market share and higher MSA rates.

Tobacco gross profit. Tobacco gross profit was $240,497 for the year ended December 31, 2011
compared to $218,183 in 2010. The $22,314 (10.2%) increase was primarily due to higher prices. As a
percent of revenues (excluding federal excise taxes), Tobacco gross profit decreased to 41.4% for year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to gross profit of 41.'6% for the same period in 2010 due to sales mix and an
increase in MSA expense due to growth in market share offset by increased sales prices in 2011.

Expenses. Operating, selling, administrative and general expenses were $97,176 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to $90,709 for the same period in 2010, an increase of $6,467 (7.1%). Tobacco
expenses were $75,916 for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $68,865 for the same period in
2010, an increase of $7,051 (10.2%) which was primarily the result of higher sales force expenses due to an
increase in sales force over the last twelve months. Tobacco product liability legal expenses and other
litigation costs were $7,795 and $10,028 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In
addition, we recorded $16,161 of expense associated with litigation judgments in 2010. Expenses at the
corporate segment decreased from $21,213 to $19,331 for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the
same period to the same period in 2010 due to the timing of expenses.

Operating income. Operating income was $143,321 for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared 10
$111,313 for the same period last year, an increase of $32,008 (28.8%). Tobacco segment operating income
increased from $130,157 for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $164,581 for the same period in 2011
primarily the result of price increases taken in 2011 and the absence of the $16,161 litigation judgment
expense and a $3,000 non-recurring settlementcharge that occurred-in 2010 offset by higher sales force
expenses due to an increase in sales force over the last twelve months. The real estatessegment’s operating
loss of $1,929 and $631 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related primarily to
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Escena’s: operations. The operating loss at the corporate segment was $19,331 for the' year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to $18,213 for the same period last year, an increase of $1,118.

. Other méome (expenses). Other expenses were $20,164 for the yeaI ended December 31, 2011
compared to $25,743 for the past year. For the year ended December 31, 2011, other expenses primarily
consisted of interest expense of $100,706, an equlty loss of $859 on long-term investments and $1,217 of
accelerated interest expense related to the conversion of 10% of the principal ($11,000) of the 3.875%
Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debentures due 2026 on June 15, 2011. These expenses were offset by
income of $7,984 for changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt, net realized gains
on investments held for sale of $23,257, equity income on non-consolidated real estate businesses of $19,966,
gain on liquidation of long-term investments of $25,832, gain on sale of townhomes of  $3,843 and other
income of $1,736. Interest expense increased by $16,610 due to the issuance of debt that occurred at the end
of 2010 for which a full year of interest expense was incurred in 2011. For the year ended December 31,
2010, other expenses primarily consisted of interest expense of $84,096 offset by other income of $11,524 for
changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt, net realized gains on investments held
for sale of $19,869, equity income on non-consolidated real estate businesses of $23,963, equity income on a
long-term investment of $1,489 and interest and other income of $1,508. -

- We recorded equity income of $1,489 related to a limited partnership for the year ended December 31,
2010, included in this amount was the impact of an erfor we identified, which resulted in an out-of-period
adjustment of approximately $1,650 (approximately $980 after taxes) for the year ended December 31, 2010.
The error occurred because our ownership in the limited partnership increased from 4 nominal percentage to
more than 10% during the fourth quarter of 2008 (due to significant withdrawals from other partners); thus,
our investment should have been accounted for under the equity method for all previous periods in which the
investment was held. We assessed the matenahty of this error on all prev1ous1y issued financial statements in
accordance with the ASC 250-10-S99-1 and concluded that the error was immaterial to all previously issued
financial statements. The impact of correcting this error in the current year was not material to our 2010
consolidated financial statements. This adjustment was recognized within other income in the consohdated
statements of operations.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives is contingent on changes in interest rates of debt instruments
maturing over the duration of the convertible debt, our stock price as well as projections of future cash and
stock -dividends over the term of the debt. The income of $7,984 and $11,524 from the embedded derivative
for:the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, was primarily the result of increasing spreads
between corporate convertible debt and risk-free investments offset by interest payments during the period.

Income before income taxes. Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31; 2011 was
$123,157 compared to $85,570 for the same period in 2010.

Income tax expense. The income tax expense was $48,137 for the year ended December 31, 2011
compared to $31,486 for the same period in 2010. Qur income tax rates for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 do not bear a customary relauonshlp to statutory income tax rates as a result of the impact of
nondeductible expenses, state income taxes and interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits
offset by the impact of the domestic production activities deduction. In addition, we recorded a tax benefits of
$870 and $500 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, resulting from the reduction of
a previously established valuation allowance of a deferred tax asset. The net deferred tax asset has been
recognized for state tax net operating losses at Vector Tobacco Inc. after evaluating the impact of the negative
and positive evidence that such asset would be realized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash and cash equivalents increased by $164,932 and $90,371 in 2012 and 2010, respectlvely, and
decreased by $58,902 in 2011.

Net cash provided from operations was $84,086, $36,041 and $67,004 in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The change primarily related to increased operating income in the 2012 period, a reduction of
accounts receivable in 2012 compared to an increase in 2011 and a decrease in inventory in the 2012 period.
In 2011, Liggett extended terms on PYRAMID sales by five days and this program has continued in 2012.
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The. initiation of longer terms for PYRAMID increased trade accounts.receivable by $23,020 in the 2011
period. Trade accounts receivable declined by $13,622 for the year in 2012 due to the timing of receipts in
December 2012 compared to December 2011. The changes related to trade accounts receivable increased cash
flow from operations by $36,642 in the 2012 _period as compared to the 2011 penod The amount was offset
by higher payments under the Master Settlement Agreement in 2012 compared to, 2011 and lower accruals
under the Master Settlement Agreement due to lower umt sa'les in 2012 '

Cash used in investing activities was $4,139 and $45,132 in 21)12 and 2010, respectlvely, compared to
cash provided by investing activities of $41,285:in 2011. In 2012, cash used in investing activities was for
purchase of -real estate businesses of $33,375, capital expenditures of $11,265, purchase of long-term
investments of $5,000, the purchase of investment secuntles of $5,647, an increase in cash surrender value of
corporate-owned life insurance policies of $907, the issuance of notes teceivable of $383, and an increase in
non-current testricted assets of $1,130. This ‘was offset” by -the- proceeds from distributions from
non-consolidated real estate businesses of $49,221, the sale of investment securities of $3,831, the proceeds
from the sale of fixed assets of $444, and proceeds from the sale or liquidation of long-term investments of
$72. In 2011, cash provided by investing activities was primarily from the proceeds from the sale or maturity
of investment securities of $31,643, proceeds from the sale or liquidation of long-term investments of
$66,190, distributions from non-consolidated real estate businesses of $8,450 and proceeds from the sales
of townhomes of $19,629. This was offset by cash primarily ‘used for the purchase of investment securities of
$5,039, purchase of real estate businesses of $41,859, purchase. of long-term investments of $10,000, capital
expenditures of $11,838, an increase in cash surrender value of corporate-owned life insurance policies of
$744 and the issuance of notes receivable of $15,256.

Cash provided by financing activities was $84, 985 and $68 499 in 2012 and 2010, respectively. Cash
used in financing activities was $136,228 in 2011. In 2012, cash provided by financing activities was primarily
from proceeds froni debt issuance of $244,075, net borrowings of debt under the revolver of $7,958, proceeds
from the issuance of Vector stock of $611, proceeds from the exercise of Vector options of $140, and tax
benefit of options exercised of $52. This was offset by distributions on common stock of $137,114, repayment
of debt of $19,258, and deferred financing costs of $11,479. In 2011, cash was used for distributions on
common stock of $125,299, net repayments of debt under the revolver of $14,238 and repayment of debt of
$4,960 offset by proceeds from debt issuance of $6,419, proceeds from the exercise of Vector options of
$1,029, and tax benefit of options exercised of $821. In 2010; cash provided by financing activities' was
primarily from proceeds of debt issuance of $185,714, net borrowings under the revolver of $18,326, proceeds
from the exercise of Vector options of $1,265 and excess of tax benefit of options exercised of $269 offset by
cash used for distributions on common stock of $117, 459 repayments of debt of $14,539 and deferred finance
charges of $4,932. .

In June 2002, the jury in an individual case brought under the third phase of the Engle case awarded
$24,835 of compensatory damages against Liggett and two other defendants and found Liggett 50%
responsible for the damages. The verdict was affirmed on appeal and Liggett paid $14,361 in June 2010. To
date, eight other verdicts have been entered in Engle progeny cases against Liggett in the total amount of
approximately $17,671, three of which have been affirmed on appeal. It is possible that additional cases could
be decided unfavorably. Liggett may enter into discussions in an attempt to settle particular cases if it beheves
it is appropriate to do so.

Management cannot predict the cash requirements related to any future settlements or judgments,
including cash required to bond any appeals, and there is a risk that those requirements will not be able to be
met. Management is unable to make a reasonable estimate of the amount or range of loss that could result
from an unfavorable outcome of the cases pending against Liggett or the costs of defending such cases. It is
possible that our consolidated financial position, results. of operations or cash flows could be materially
adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome in any such tobacco-related litigation.

Vector. As described under “Recent Developments”, in November 2012, we sold $230,000 of our 7.5%
variable interest senior convertible notes due 2019 (the “2019 Convertible Notes”) in a public offering
registered under the Securities Act. The 2019 Convertible Notes are our senior unsecured obligations and are
effectively subordinated to any of our. secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing such
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indebtedness. The 2019 Convertible Notes are also structurally subordinated to all liabilities and commitments
of our subsidiaries.. The aggregate net: proceeds from the sale of .the 2019 Convertible: Notes were
approximately $218,900 after deducting underwriting discounts, commissions, fees and offering expenses

The notés pay interest (“Total Interest”) on a quarterly basis begmnmg January 15, 2013 at a rate of
2.5% per annum plus additional interest, which is based on the amount of cash dividends paid during thé prior
three-month - period ending on the record date for such interest payment multiplied by the total number of
shares of its common stock into which the debt will be convertlble on such record date. Notw1thstand1ng the
foregoing, however, the interest payable on each interest payment date shall be the higher of (1) the Total
Interest and (ii) 7.5% per annum. The notes are convertible into_our common stock at the holder’s opnon The
conversion price at December 31, 2012 was $18.50 per share (approximately 54.0541 shares of common stock
per $1,000 principal amount of the note), is subject to adjustment for various events, lncludmg the issuance of
stock dividends. The notes will mature on January 15, 2019., -

7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2012. In February 2013, we sold $450 000 of our 7.75% senior
secured notes due 2021 in a private offering to quahﬁed institutional investors in accordance with Rule 144A
of the Securities Act of 1933 The aggregate net proceeds from the sale of the 7.75% senior secured notes
were approximately $438,250 after deducting underwriting ‘dicoints, commissions, fees “and offermg
expenses. We intend to use the net proceeds of the issuance for the cash tender offer described below and the
redemption price for any existing 11% senior secured notes that are not tendered, plus accrued and unpaid
interest plus any related fees and expenses

We agreed to consummate ‘a registered exchange offer for the 7.75% senior secured notes w1thm
360 days after the date of the initial issuance of :the 7.75% senior secured notes. The new 7.75% -senior
secured notes to be issued in the exchange .offer will have substantially.the same terms as the original notes,
except that the new 7.75% senior secured notes will have been registered under the- Securities Act.- We will be
required to pay additional interest on the 7.75% senior secured notes if we fail to timely comply -with our
obligations under the Registration nghts Agreement until such time as we comply.

The 7.75% senior secured notes pay interest on a senu—annual basis at a rate of 775% per year and
mature: on February 15, 2021. We may redeem some or all of the 7:75% senior secured notes at any time prior
to February 15, 2016 at a make-whole redemption -price.-On. or after February 15, 2016 we may redeem some
or all of the:7.75% senior secured notes ‘at a premium that will decrease over time, plus accrued and unpaid
interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date, ~

" The 7.75% senior secured notes are guaranteed subject ta certain customary automatic release provisions
on a joint and. several basis by all of our 100% owned domestic subsidiaries that are engaged in the conduct
of our cigarette businesses. In addition, some of the guarantees are collateralized by second priority or first
priority security interests in certain collateral of some of the subs1d1ary guarantors, including their common
stock, pursuant to security and pledge agreements

*The ‘indenture contains covenants -that restrict the payment of d1v1dends if our consohdated earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and -amortization (‘‘Consolidated EBITDA”), as defined in the indenture,
for the most recently ended four full quarters is less than $75,000. The indenture also restricts the incurrence
of debt if our Leverage Ratio and our Secured Leverage Ratio, as' defined in the indenture, exceed 3.0 and
1.5, respectively. Our Leverage Ratio is defined in the indenture as the ratio of our guaranteeing subsidiaries’
total debt less the fair market value of our cash, investments in marketable securities and long-term
investments to Consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the indenture. Our Secured Leverage Ratio is defined in
the indenture in the same manner as the Leverage Ratio, except that secured indebtedness. is -substituted. for
indebtedness. The following table summarizes the requirements of these financial covenants and the results of
the calculation, as definéd by the indenture.

Indenture December 31, December 31,

Covenant ‘ o S Requirement 2012 2011

Consolidated EBITDA, as defined . . . v . .. o0 00t oL $75,000 $231,385 $226,554
Leveérage ratio, as defined . ... .. .. G o e e e - .<3.0to1 05to1 09to1
Secured leverage ratio, as defined . . . .. ... PN ce <l5to1 Negative 05to01
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Tender Offer.. On January 29, 2013, we announced we were commencing a cash tender offer  with
respect to any and all of the outstanding $415,000. of our 11% senior secured notes due 2015. We retired
$336,315 of the 11% senior secured notes at a premium. of 104.292%, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on
February 12, 2013. The remaining $78,685 of the 11% senior secured notes have been called and will be
retired on March 12, 2013 at a redemption price of 103.667% plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Liggett Financing. In 2010, Liggett entered into nine financing agreements for a total of $16,634 related
to the purchase of equipment. The weighted average interest rate of the outstanding debt i is'5.65% per annum
and the interest rate on the notes ranges between 5.47% and 6.13%. The debt is payable over 30 to 60 months
with an average term of 36 months. Total ‘monthly 1nstallments are $155

Liggett also refinanced $3,575 of debt related to previous equipment purchases. The refinanced debt has
an interest rate of 5.95% and is payable in 36 instaliments of $109.

In 2011, Liggett purchased equipment for $6, 342 and entered into three ﬁnancmg agreements for a total
of $6,342 related to the equipment purchase The welghted average interest rate of the outstandmg debt is
5.66% per annum and the interest rate on the vanous notes ranges between 5. 33% and 5. 82%. Total monthly
installments are $145.

In 2012, Liggett refinanced $4,452 of debt related to equipment purchased in 2010. The refinanced debt
had a weighted average interest rate of 5.89% and an average remainirig term of 43 months. The new debt
carries aninterest rate of 5.96% and a term of 36 months. Total monthly installments are $135. Liggett
purchased equipment for $5,040 and entered into four financing agreements for a total of $5,040 related to-the
equipment purchase. The weighted average interest rate of the outstanding debt is 5.2% per annum and the
interest rate on the various notes ranges between 4.72% and 5.56% and is payable in installments of 36 to
48 months. : ’

Each of these equipment loans is collaterahzed by the purchased equlpment

The majority of these equipment purchases are due to Liggett’s 1ncreased unit volume sales plus an
increasing proportion of sales in box style packaging versus soft pack. Liggett’s management expects capital
expenditures of approximately $10,000 in 2013, of which the maJonty will be ﬁnanced on terms: snmlar to the
previous 2012 financing arrangements. : sl :

~ Liggett Credit Facility. Liggett has a $50,000 credit facility (the “Credit Faeility”)' with Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo™). The Credit Facility is collateralized by all inventories and receivables of Liggett
and a mortgage on Liggett’s real property. The Credit Facility requlres nggett s compliance with certain
financial and other covenants including a restriction on Liggett’s ab111ty to pay cash dividends unless Liggett’s
borrowing availability, as defined, under the credit facility for the 30-day period prior to the payment of the
dividend, and after giving effect to the dividend, is at least $5,000 and no event of default has occurred under
the agreement, including Liggett’s compliance with the covenants in the credit facility. .

In February 2012, Liggett and Wells Fargo renewed the $50, 000 Cred1t Fac111ty The Credit Fac1hty is
collateralized by all inventories and receivables of Liggett and a mortgage on -its manufactunng facility. The
Credit Facility expires on March 8, 2015; provided that Liggett may terminate the Credit Facility prior to
March 8, 2015 at any time by giving at least 30 days prior written notice to.Wells Fargo, and Wells Fargo
may, at Well Fargo’s option, terminate the Credit Facility at any time upon the occurrence and during the
continuance of an Event of Default. Prime rate loans under the facility bear-interest at a rate equal to the
prime rate of Wells Fargo with Eurodollar rate loans bearing interest at a rate of 2:0% above Wells Fargo’s
adjusted Eurodollar rate. The credit facility contains covenants that provide that Liggett’s earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined under the credit facility, on a trailing twelve month
basis, shall not be less than $100,000 if Liggett’s excess availability, as defined; under the credit facility, is
less than $20,000. The covenants also require that annual Capital Expenditures, as defined under the. credit
facility (before a maximum carryover- amount of $2,500), shall not exceed $15,000 during any fiscal year
except for 2010, when Liggett was permitted to incur Capital Expenditures of up to $33,000.
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Liggett Term Loan Under Credit Facility. On February 21, 2012, Wells Fargo amended and restated the
existing $5,600 term loan (the “Term Loan”) made to 100 Maple LLC (“Maple™), a subsidiary of Liggett,
within the commitment under the Credit Facility. In connection with the amendment: and restatement the
maturity date of the Term Loan was extended to March 1, 2015 and the outstanding principal amount was
paid down to $4,425. The Term Loan bears an interest rate equal to 1.75% more than Wells Fargo’s adjusted
Eurodollar rate. Monthly payments of $25 are due under the Term Loan from March 1, 2012 to February 1,
2015 ($885 in total) with the balance of $3,540 due at maturity on March 1, 2015.

The Term'Loan is collateralized by the existing collateral securing the Credit Facility, including, without
limitation, certain real property owned by Maple. The Term Loan did not increase the $50,000 borrowing
. amount of the Credit Facility, but did increase the outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility by the
amount of the term loan and proportionately reduces the ‘maximum borrowing availability under the
Credit Facility. ’ g ' '

The Credit Facility permitsthe guaranty of our 7.75% senior secured notes due 2021 by each of Liggett
and 100 Maple LLC, a subsidiary of Liggett (“Maple”) and the pledging -of certain assets of Liggett and
Maple on a subordinated basis to secure their guarantees. The credit facility also grants to Wells Fargo a
blanket lien on all the assets of Liggett and Maple, excluding any equipment pledged to current or future
purchase money or other financiers of such equipment and excluding any real propetty, other than the Mebane
Property and other real property to the extent its value'is in excess of $5,000. Wells Fargo, Liggett, Maple and
the collateral agent for the holders of our 7.75% senior secured notes have entered into an intercreditor
agreement, pursuant t6 which the liens of ‘the collateral agent on the Liggett and Maple assets will be
subordinated to the liens of Wells Fargo on the Liggett and Maple assets. . ‘

As of December 31; 2012, a total of $33,609 was outstanding under the revolving and term loan portions
of the credit facility. Availability as determined under the facility was approximately $16,391 based on eligible
collateral at December 31, 2012: At December 31, 2012, management believed that Liggett was in compliance
with all covenants under the credit facility as amended. Liggett's EBITDA, as defined, were approximately
$160,197 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. i '

We and our subsidiaries have signiﬁcaht indebtedness and debt service obligations. ‘At December 31,
2012, we and our subsidiaries had total outstanding indebtedness of $897,454. Approximately $157,500 of our
6.75% convertible notes mature in 2014. We were required to mandatorily redeem on June 15, 2011 10% of
the total aggregate principal amount outstanding, or $11,000, of the Company’s 3.875% variable interest
senior convertible debentures due 2026. Other than the holders of $7 principal amount of the debentures, who
had 10% of their aggregate principal amount of debentures mandatorily redeemed, each holder of the notes
chose to convert its pro-rata portion of the $11,000 of principal into our common stock. We recorded
accelerated interest expense of $1,217 for the year ended December 31, 2011, on the conversion of - the
$11,000 of debentures into 719,255 shares of common stock. The debt conversion resulted in a non-cash
financing - transaction of $10,993. We were required to offer to purchase the remaining $99,000 of the
debentures on June 15, 2012. None of the debentures were surrendered for repurchase by us. Holders of the
debentures converted-an aggregate of $55,778 principal amount of the debentures into 3,650,486 shares of the
Company_"s) common  stock in 2012. We recorded nonicash accelerated interest e.g{pe,nse related to the
converted debt of $14,960 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The debt conversion resulted in a
reclassification from debt to equity in the amount -of $55,778. As of December 31, 2012, the principal amount
of the Debentures outstanding was $43,222. We are required to offer to repurchase the remaining $43,222 of

the debentures on June 15, 2016.

~ We incurred an additional $230,000 of indebtedness in connection with the November 2012 offering of
our variable interest convertible notes due 2019. We retired on February 12, 2013, $336,315 of the $415,000
of our outstanding 11% senior secured notes due 2015. The remaining $78,685 of our 11% ‘sénior secured
notes have been called and will be retired ‘'on March 12, 2013. We incurred an additional $450,000 of
indebtedness in connection with the Februdry 2013 offering of our 7.75% senior secured notes due 2021. In
addition, subject to the terms of any future agreements, we and our subsidiaries will be able to incur
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additional -indebtedness in the future. There is a risk that we will not be able to generate sufficient funds to
repay our debt. If we cannot service our fixed charges, it would have a material adverse effect on our business
and results of operations. =

We believe that our cigarette operations are positive cash ﬂow generating units and will continue to be
able to sustain our operations without any significant liquidity concerns. '

In order to meet the above liquidity requirements as well as other anticipated liquidity needs in the
normal course of business, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $405,900, investment securities
avallable for sale of approximately $70,000, long-term investments with an estimated value of approximately
$24,800 and avarlablhty under Lrggett s credit facility of approximately $16,400 at December 31, 2012.
Management currently anticipates that these amounts, as well as expected cash flows from our operations,
proceeds from public and/or private debt and equity financing, management fees and other payments from
subsidiaries should be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs over the next 12 months. We may acquire or seek
to acquire additional operating businesses through merger, purchase of assets; stock acquisition or other
means, or to make other investments, which may limit our liquidity otherwise available.

On a quarterly basis, we evaluate our investments to determine whether an unparrment has occurred. If
so, we also make a determination if such impairment is considered temporary or. other-than-temporary. We
believe that the assessment of temporary or other-than-temporary impairment is facts and circumstances
driven. However, among the matters that are considered in making such a determmatron are the period of time
the investment has remained below its cost or carrying value, the hkehhood of recovery given.the reason. for
the decrease in market value and our original expected holding period of the investment.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $6,597 at January 1, 2012 and decreased $328 during
the year ended December 31, 2012. The total amount of unrecogmzed tax beneﬁts was $6,768 at January 1,
2011 and decreased $171 durmg the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily from the expiration of various
state statute of limitations. , : .

Long-Term Fmanclal Obligations and Other Commercial Comm1tments

Our significant long-term contractual obligations as of December 31 2012 were as follows

Contractual Obligations 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter  Total
Long-term debt®® | . ... . $ 36,778 $164,262 $422240° $44,175 $ — $230,000 $ 897455
Operating leases® . . ... ....... 13,976 3,430 2,887 2264 2,226 3,958 18,741
Inventory purchase commitments® . . 11,914 —  — — — 11,914
Capital expenditure purchase Co ' ' S
commitments®. . .. ... ... ... 1,995 — — — — C— 1,995
Interest'payments®*® _ .. . .. o, 102,533 104,811 * 79,122 31,160 27,681 35,972 381,279

Total® ™. .. ... $157,196  $272,503 $504,249 - $77,599 - $29,907 $269,930 $1,311,384

(1) Long-term debt is shown before discount and assumes retirement in 2016 of $43,222 of our 3.875%
variable interest senior convertible debentures due 2026 which we may be required to repurchase on
June 15, 2016. For more information concerning our long-term debt, see’ “qumdlty and Caprtal
Resoutces” above and Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements. : :

(2) Operating lease obligations represent estimated lease payments for facilities and equipment. The amounts
presented do not include amounts scheduled to be received under non-cancelable operating subleases of
$402 in 2013 and zero thereafter. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements.

(3) Inventory purchase commitments represent purchase commitments under our leaf inventory management
program. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements.

¥

(4) Capital expenditure purchase commrtments represent purchase commrtments for machmery and
equipment at nggett and Vector Tobacco. See Note 5 to our consolrdated financial statements.

[
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(5) Interest: payments are basedon current interest rates..at December, 31, 2012 and the assumption our
current policy of a cash dividend of $0.40 per quarter and an annual 5%. stock dividend will continue. In
addition, interest payments have been computed assuming retirement in 2016 of $43,222 of our,3.875%

_variable interest senior convertible debentures due 2026 which we. may be required to repyrchase on
June 15, 2016 as discussed in Note (1) above. For more information concerning our long-term debt, seg
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” above and Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements. '

(6) Not included in the above table is approximately $51,080 of net deferred tax liabilities and $6,26§ of
unrecognized income tax benefits.. S . : . IR : : :

-plans unfunded leigationS'of 448,684 ‘at December 31, 2012.

(8) Long-term debt and interest payments are shown without consideration for the the tender offer for our

11% senior ‘secured notes due 2015 or ‘the issuance of our 775% senior secured notes ‘due 2021 ‘in
February 2013. S g « ~ B

(7) Because their futuré cash outflows are uncertain, the above table excludes our pension and post benefit

Payments under the MSA, discussed in Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements, and the federal
tobacco quota legislation, - discussed in “Legislation and Regulation” ‘below,. are- excluded from the table
above, as the payments are subject to. adjustment for several factors, including inflation, overall industry
volume, our market share and the market share of non-participating manufacturers, E g Y

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements -

We have various agreements in which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party with respect to
certain matters. Generally, these indemnification clauses are included in contracts arising in the normal course
of business under which we customarily agree to hold the other party harmless against losses arising from a
breach of representations related to such matters as title to assets sold and licensed or certain intellectual

" property rights. Payment by us under such indemnification clauses' is generally conditioned on the- other party
making a claim that is subject to challenge by us’ and dispute resolution’ procedures specified in the particular
contract. Further, our obligations under these arrangements may be limited in tefms of time and/or amount,
and in some instances, we may have recourse against third parties for certain payments made by us. It is'not
possible to predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under these indemnification agreements
due to the conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts of each particular agreement Historically,
payments made by us under these agreements have not been material. As of December 31, 2012, we were not
aware of any-indemnification agreements that would: or are reasonably expected to have a current or future
material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. : T

In February, 2004, Liggett-Vector Brands entered into a five year agreement with a subsidiary of the
American Wholesale Marketers Association to support a program to permit certain tobacco distributors to
secure, on reasonable terms, tax stamp bonds required by state and local governments for the distribution of
cigarettes. This agreement has been extended through February 2016. Under the agreement, Liggett Vector
Brands has agreed to pay a portion of losses incurred by the surety under the bond program, with a maximum
loss exposure of $500 for Liggett Vector Brands. To secure its potential obligations under the agreement,
Liggett Vector Brands has delivered to-the subsidiary of the association a $100 letter of credit and agreed to
fund up to an additional $400. The Company believes the fair value of Liggett Vector Brands’ obligation
under the agreement was immaterial at December 31, 2012. :

At December 31, 2012, we had outstanding approximately $342 of -letters -of credit, collateralized by
certificates of deposit. The letters of credit have been issued as security deposits for leases of office space, to
secure the performance of our subsidiaries under various insurance programs and to provide collateral for
various subsidiary borrowing and capital lease arrangements. ' ‘ :

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks principally from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates and equity prices. We seek to minimize these risks through our tegular operating and financing activities
and our long-term investment strategy. Our market risk management procedures cover all market risk sensitive
financial instruments. - - : ) i
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As of -December 31,2012, approximately $33,600 of our outstanding ‘debt at face value had variable
interest rates determined by various interest rate indices, which increases the risk of fluctuating- interest rates.
Our exposure to market risk includes interest rate flictuations in connection with our variable rate borrowings,
which could adversely affect our cash flows. As of December 31, 2012, we had no interest rate caps or swaps.
Based on a hypothetlcal 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates (1%), our annual interest
expense could increase or decrease by approximately $336.

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, $157,429 ($430 752 prmapal amount) of outstandmg debt had a
variable . interest rate determined by the amount of the dividends on our common stock. The difference
between the stated value of the debt and carrying value.is .due: pnn01pally to certain .embedded derivatives,
which were separately valued and recorded upon issuance. Changes to the estimated fair value of these
embedded derivatives are reflected within our statements of operations as “Changes in fair value of
derivatives embedded within convertible debt.” The value of the embedded derivative is contingent on
changes in interest rates of debt instruments maturing over the duration of the convertible debt as well as
projections of future cash and stock dividends over the term of the debt and changes in the closing stock price
at the end of each quarterly period. Based on a hypothetical 100 basis point increase -or decrease in interest
rates (1%), our annual “Changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt” could
increase or decrease by approximately $5,335: with approximately $115 resiilting from the embedded
derivative associated with our 6.75% note due 2014, $219 resulting from the embedded derivative associated
with our 6.75% exchange notes due 2014, $2,925 resulting from the embedded. derivative associated with the
7.5% variable interest senior convertible notes, and the remaining $2,076 resulting from the embedded
derivative associated with our 3.875% variable interest senior convertible debentures due 2026. An increase in
our quarterly dividend rate by $O 10 per share would increase interest expense by approximately $10,910
per year.

We have estimated the fair market value of the embedded derivatives based ‘principally on the results of a
valuation model. The value of the embedded derivatives is:contingeat on changes in interest rates of .debt
instruments maturing over the duration of the convertible debt, our stock price as well as projections of future
cash and stock dividends over.the term of the debt. The interest rate component of the value -of the embedded
derivative is computed by calculating an equivalent non-convertible, unsecured and-subordinated borrowing
cost. This rate is determined by calculating the implied rate on our 7.5% Convertible Notes when removing
the embedded option value within the convertible security. This rate is based upon market observable inputs
and: influenced by our stock price, convertible bond trading price, risk free interest rates and stock volatility,
The range of estimated fair market values of our embedded derivatives was between $174,909 and $169,424.
We recorded the fair market value of our embedded derivatives at the midpoint of the inputs at $172,128 as of
December 31, 2012. The estimated fair market value of our embedded derivatives could changc significantly
based on future market conditions. -

We held investment securities available for sale totaling $69,984 at December 31, 2012, which includes
13,891,205 common shares of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. carried at $19,448 and 1,000,000
warrants carried at $717.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements. Adverse market conditions could-have a significant
effect on the value of these investments. ~ ‘

We and New Valley also hold long-term investments in various investment partnerships. These
investments are illiquid, and their ultimate realization is subject to the performance of the underlying entities.
New Accounting Pronouncements . o ‘

Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our consolidated financial statements for
further information on New Accounting Pronouncements.

Legislation and Regulation

Reports with respect to the -alleged harmful physical effects of cigarette smoking have been publicized for
many ‘years -and, in the opinion of Liggett’s management, have had and may continue to have an adverse
effect on cigarette sales. Since 1964, the Surgeon General of the United States and the Secretary of Health and
Human Services have released a number of reports which state that cigarette smoking is a.causative factor

48



with respect to a variety of health hazards, including cancer, heart disease and lung disease, and have
recommended various government actions to reduce the incidence of smoking. In 1997, Liggett publicly
acknowledged that, as the Surgeon General and respected medical researchers have found, smoking causes
health problems, including lung cancer, heart and vascular disease, and emphysema. ,

On June 22, 2009, the President signed into law the *“Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control
Act” (Public Law 111-31) (the “Tobacco Control Act”). The law- grants the Food and Drug Administration
(“FDA”) broad authority over the manufacture, sale, marketing and packaging of tobacco products, although
FDA is prohibited from issuing regulations banning all cigarettes or all smokeless tobacco products, or
requiring the reduction of nicotine yields of a tobacco product to zero. Among other measures, the law (under
various deadlines):

increases the number of health warnings required on cigarette and smoke]ess tobacco products,

increases the size of warnings on packaging and in advertising, requires FDA to develop graphic

- warnings for cigarette packages, and grants FDA authority to require new warnings;

requires practically all tobacco product advertising to- eliminate color and imagery and instead
consist solely of black text on white background;

imposes new restrictions on the sale and distribution of tobacco products, including significant new
restrictions on tobacco product advertising and promotion, as well as-the use of brand and
trade names; :

bans the use of “light,” “mild,” “low” or similar descriptors on tobacco products;
bans the use of “characterizing flavors™ in cigarettes other than tobacco or menthol;

~ gives FDA the authority to impose tobacco product standards that are appropriate for the protection

of the public health (by, for example, requiring reduction or elimination of the ‘use of particular
constituents or components, requiring product testing, or addressmg oother aspects of tobacco product
construction, constituents, properties or labeling);

requires manufacturers to obtain FDA review and authorrzauon for the marke tmg of certain new or
modified tobacco products

requires pre-market approval by -FDA for tobacco products represented (through labels, labeling;
advertising, or other means) as presenting a lower risk of harm or tobacco-related disease;

requires manufacturers to report ingredients and harmful constltuents and requires FDA to disclose
certain constituent 1nformat10n to the public;

mandates that manufacturers test and report. on ingredients and constituents 1dent1ﬁed by FDA as

.requiring such testing to protect the public health, and allows FDA to require the disclosure of

testing results to the public;

requires manufacturers to submit to FDA certain information regarding the hea]th toxicological,
behav1ora1 or physiological effects of tobacco products; -

prohibits use of tobacco contarmng a pestrc1de chermcal res1due at a level greater than allowed under
federal law; » ‘

requrres FDA - to establish .- “good manufacturing -practices”  to be . followed at tobacco
manufacturing facilities; :

requires tobacco product manufacturers (and certain other entities) to register wrth FDA;

authorizes FDA to require the reduction of nicotine (although it may not require the reduction of
nicotine yields of a tobacco product to zero) and the potentlal reduction or elimination of other
constituents, including menthol;

imposes (and allows FDA to impose) various recordkeeprng and reportrng requirements on tobacco
product manufacturers and

grants FDA the regulatory autﬁority to impose broad additional restrictions.

49



. The law also required establishment, within FDA’s new Center for Tobacco Products, of a Tobacco
Products Scientific Advisory Committee (‘“TPSAC”) to provide advice, information and recommendations
with respect to the safety, dependence. or health issues related to tobacco products, including:

* arecommendation on modified risk applications;

* arecommendation on the effects of tobacco product nicotine yield alteration and whether there is a
threshold level below which nicotine yields do not produce dependence;

*  areport on the public health impact of the use of menthol in cigarettes; and

*  areport on the public health impacf of dissolvable tobacco products.

TPSAC completed its review of the use of menthol in cigarettes and issued a report with
recommendations to FDA .in March 2011. The report states that “removal of menthol cigarettes from the
marketplace would benefit public health in the United States,” but does not expressly recommend that FDA
ban menthol cigarettes. FDA is considering the report-and recommendations of TPSAC and will make a
determination about what future regulatory action(s), if any, it believes are warranted. A decision by FDA to
ban menthol in tobacco products could have a material adverse effect on us.

The law imposes user fees on certain tobacco product manufacturers in order to fund tobacco-related
FDA activities. User fees will be allocated among tobacco product classes according to a formula set out in
the legislation, and then among manufacturers and importers within each class based on market share. FDA
user fees for Liggett and Vector Tobacco for 2012 were $17,308 and we estimate that they will be
significantly higher in the future.

The law also imposes significant new restrictions on the advertising and promotion of tobacco products.
For example, as required under the law, FDA has finalized certain portions of regulations previously adopted
by FDA in 1996 (which were struck down by the Supreme Court in 2000 as beyond FDA’s authority).
Subject to limitations imposed by a federal injunction (discussed below), these regulations took effect on
June 22, 2010. As written, these regulations significantly limit the ability of manufacturers, distributors and
retailers to advertise and promote tobacco products, by, for example, restricting the use of color and graphics
in advertising, limiting the use of outdoor advertising, restricting the sale and distribution of non-tobacco
items and services, gifts, and sponsorship of events, and imposing restrictions on the use for cigarette or
smokeless tobacco products of trade or brand names that are used for nontobacco products.

In August 2009, several cigarette manufacturers filed a federal lawsuit against FDA challenging the
constitutionality of a number of the restrictions imposed by the Tobacco Control Act, including the ban on
color and graphics in advertising, the color graphic and non-graphic warning label requirement, limits on the
right to make truthful statements regarding modified risk tobacco products, ‘restrictions on the placement of
outdoor advertising, and a ban on the distribution of product samples. In January 2010, a federal judge in
Kentucky ruled that the regulations’ ban on the use of color -and graphics in certain tobacco product
advertising was unconstitutional and prohibited FDA from. enforcing that ban. The judge, however, let stand
numerous other advertising and promotion restrictions. In March 2010, both parties appealed this decision. In
May 2010, FDA issued a guidance document indicating that it intends to exercise its enforcement discretion
and not commence enforcement actions based upon these provisions during the pendency of the litigation. In
March 2012, a Federal appellate court reviewing the district court’s decision - also let stand numerous
advertising and promotion restrictions, but held that the ban on the use of color and graphics in advertising
was unconstitutional. In May 2012, the Federal appellate court denied the cigarette manufactures’ petition for
rehearing en banc. In October 2012, the cigarette manufacturers filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the
United States Supreme Court seeking further review of the appellate court’ s March 2012 decision. We cannot
predict the future course or outcome of this lawsuit.

- In April 2010, a number of cigarette manufacturers filed a federal lawsuit against FDA challenging the
restrictions on trade or brand names based upon First Amendment and other grounds. In May 2010, FDA
issued a guidance document indicating that FDA was aware of concerns regarding the trade and brand name
restrictions and is considering what changes, if any, would be appropriate to address those concerns. FDA also
indicated that while the agency was considering those issues, it intended to exercise its enforcement discretion
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and not commence trade or brand name enforcement actions. for the duration of its consideration where:

(1) The trade or brand name of the cigarettes or smokeless tobacco product was registered, or the product was
marketed, in the United States on or before June 22, 2009; or (2) The first marketing or registration in the
United States of the tobacco product occurs before the first marketing or registration in the United States .of
the non-tobacco product bearing the same name; provided, however, that the tobacco and non-tobacco product
are not owned, manufactured, or distributed by the same, related, or affiliated entities (1ncludmg as a licensee).

The lawsuit was subsequently stayed, at the request of the parties, pending FDA’s evaluation of these
concerns. In November 2011, FDA issued a proposal to amend its trade name restrictions. The proposal
remains under consideration by the FDA. We cannot pred1ct the future course of this proposed amendment or
its potentlal 1mpact on the htlgatron '

On. June 22, 2011, FDA 1ssued a ﬁnal rule that would modrfy the required warnings that appear on
cigarette packages and in cigarette advertisements, The rule was to become effective on September 22, 2012,
and would have required each cigarette. package and advertisement to bear one of nine new textual warning
statements . accompanied by graphic images. The warnings would ‘appear on at least the top 50% of the front
and rear panels of cigarette packages-and occupy at least 20% of cigarette advertisements. In August 2011, a
number of cigarette manufacturers, including Liggett, filed a federal lawsuit against FDA challenging the
constitutionality of these new graphic images on First Amendment and other grounds. The manufacturers
sought a preliminiary injunction staying implementation of the ‘graphic images, and other related labeling
requirements, pending the court’s ruling on the merits of the challenge. In November 2011, a Federal judge in
the District of Columbia granted the industry’s motion for a preliminary injunction, enjoining implementation
of the rules for graphic images on cigarette packaging and advertising until 15 months after the court issued a
final ruling in the case. FDA appealed the ruling, and on February 29, 2012, the court granted the industry’s
motion for summary judgment permanently enjoining implementation of FDA’s graphic warnings regulation
on First Amendment. grounds. Should: FDA -ultimately issue new graphic . warnings that are deemed
constitutionally valid, the decision provides that such warnings would go into effect 15 months after they are
issued. FDA also appealed this ruling. Both FDA appeals were consolidated and on August-24, 2012, the
D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed.the District Court and vacated the graphic warning requirements. FDA
filed a petition asking that the case be teheard en banc. The petition was denied. The time has not yet expired
for FDA to petition the U.S. Supreme Court to review the case. We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of
this htrgatlon or whether or how the inclusion of the new warnings, if ultimately required by FDA in new
rulemaking, will 1mpact product sales or Whether it will have a material adverse effect on us.

The Tobacco Control Act requires premarket review of “new ' tobacco products.” A “new tobacco
product” is one that was not commniercially marketed in the U.S. before February 15, 2007 or that was
modified after that date. In general, before a company may commercially market a “new tobacco product,” it
must either (a) submit an application and obtain an order from FDA permitting the product to be marketed; or
(b) submit a report and- receive an FDA order finding the product to be “substantially equivalent” to a

“predicate” tobacco product that was commercially marketed in' the. U.S. prior to February 15, 2007. A
“substantially -equivalent” tobacco product is one that has the “same characteristics” as the predicate or one
that has “different characteristics™ but does not raise “dlﬁerent questlons of public health.”

Manufacturers of products first 1ntroduced after February 15 2007 and before March 22, 2011 who
submitted a substantial equlvalence Teport to FDA prior to March 23, 2011° may continue to market the
tobacco product unless FDA issues an order that the product is not’ ‘substantially equrvalent Failure to submit
the report before March 23, 2011, or FDA’s conclusion that such a “new tobacco product” is not substantrally
equivalent, w111 cause the product to be deemed misbranded and/or adulterated. After March 22, 2011, a “new
tobacco product may not be marketed without an FDA substantial equivalence determination. Prior to the
deadline, Liggett and Vector Tobacco submitted substantial equivalence reports to FDA for numerous prodycts.
It is possible that FDA could determine some, or all, of these products are not “substantlally equivalent” to a
preexisting tobacco product Such a determination could prevent us from marketing these products in the
Umted States and could have a material adverse effect on us. '
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On July 5, 2011, FDA issued a final rule to establish the process and criteria for requesting an exemption
from substantial equivalence requirements. We cannot predict how FDA- will interpret and apply these.
requirements, or whether FDA will deem our products to be substantially equivalent to already marketed
tobacco products. Lo

~ Separately, the law also requires FDA to issue future regulations regarding the promotion and marketing
of tobacco products sold through non-face-to-face transactions. FDA has been acting to implement the law and
will continue to implement various provisions over time. Liggett and Vector Tobacco have been monitoring
FDA tobacco initiatives and have made various regulatory submissions to FDA in order to comply with new
requirements. ' '

It is likely that the new tobacco law could result in a decrease in cigarette sales in the United States,
including sales of Liggett's and Vector Tobacco’s brands. Total compliance and related costs are not possible to
predict and depend substantially on the future requirements imposed by FDA under the new tobacco law. Costs,
however, could be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on: the companies’ financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows. In addition, FDA has a number of investigatory and enforcement tools
available to it. We are aware, for example, that FDA has already requested company-specific information from
competitors. FDA has also initiated a program to award contracts-to states to assist with compliance and
enforcement activities. Failure to comply with the new tobacco law and with FDA regulatory requirements could
result in significant financial penalties and could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition
and results of operation of both Liggett and Vector Tobacco. At present, we are not able to predict whether the.
new tobacco law will impact Liggett and Vector Tobacco to a greater degree than other companies in the industry,
thus affecting its competitive position.

In October 2004, the Fair and Equitable Tobacco Reform Act of 2004 (“FETRA”) was signed into law.
FETRA provides for the elimination of the federal tobacco quota and price support program through ‘an
industry funded buyout of tobacco growers and quota holders. Pursuant to the legislation, manufacturers of
tobacco products have been assessed $10,140,000 over a ten year period, commencing in 2005, to compensate
tobacco growers and quota holders for the elimination of their quota rights. For 2012, cigarette manufacturers
were responsible for approximately 89% of the assessment based on relative unit volume of domestic cigarette
shipments. Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s assessment was $30,874 for 2012.. ;

Cigarettes are subject to substantial and increasing federal, state and local excise taxes. On April 1, 2009,
the federal cigarette excise tax increased from $0.39 to $1.01 per pack. State excise taxes vary considerably
and, when combined with sales taxes, local taxes and the federal excise tax, may exceed $4.00 per pack.
Many states are considering, or have pending, legislation proposing further state excise tax increases.
Management believes increases in excise and similar taxes have had, and will continue to have, an adverse
effect on sales of cigarettes. '

Over the last several years all 50 states and the District of Columbia have enacted virtually identical
legislation requiring cigarettes to meet a laboratory test standard for reduced ignition propensity. Cigarettes
that meet this standard are referred to as “fire standards compliant” or “FSC,” and are sometimes commonly
called “self-extinguishing.” All of the cigarettes that Liggett and Vector Tobacco manufacture are fire
standards compliant. Compliance with such legislation could be burdensome and costly and could harm the
business of Liggett and Vector Tobacco, particularly if there were to be varying standards from state to state.

In November 2008, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) rescinded guidance it issued in 1966 that
generally permitted statements concerning cigarette “tac” and nicotine yields if they were based on the Cambridge
Filter Method, sometimes called FTC method. In its rescission notice, FTC also indicated that advertisers should
no longer use terms suggesting FTC’s endorsement or approval of any specific test method, including terms such
as “per FTC Method” or other phrases that state or imply FTC endorsement or approval of the Cambridge Filter
Method or other machine-based methods for measuring cigarette “tar” or micotine yields. Also in its rescission
notice, FTC indicated that cigarette descriptors such as “light” and “ultra light” have not been defined by FTC,
nor has FTC provided any guidance or authorization for their use. FTC indicated that to the extent descriptors are
used in a manner that convey an overall impression that is false, misleading, or unsubstantiated, such use could be
actionable. FTC further indicated that companies must ensure that any continued use of descriptors does not
convey an erroneous or unsubstantiated message that a particular cigarette presents a reduced risk of harm or is
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otherwise likely to mislead consumers. In response to FTC’s action, we have femoved all reference to “tar” and
nicotine testing from our pomt, -of-sale advertising. In addition, the new tobacco law i Jimposes a ban — which took
effect in June 2010 — on_the use of “light”, “mild”, “low” or snmlar descnptors on ‘tobacco product labels and
in labeling or advertising. To the extent descrlptors are. no longer used to market or promote our c1garettes thls
may have a material adverse effect on us.

A wide variety of federal, state and local laws limiting the advertising, sale and use of cigarettes have
proliferated in recent years. For example, many local laws prohibit smoking in restaurants and other public
places, and many employers have initiated programs restricting or eliminating smoking in the workplace.
There are various other legislative efforts pending at the federal, state or local level which seek to, among
other things, eliminate smoking in public places, curtail affirmative defenses of tobacco companies in product
liability litigation, and further restrict the sale, marketing and advertising of cigarettes and other tobacco
products. This trend has had, and is likely to continue to have, an adverse effect on us. It is not possible to
predict what, if any, additional legislation, regulation or other governmental action will be enacted or
implemented, or to predict what the impact of the new FDA tobacco law will be on thése pending
legislative efforts. :

In addition to the foregoing, there have been a number of other restrictive regulatory actions, adverse
legislative and political decisions and other unfavorable developments concerning cigarette.smoking and the
tobacco industry. These developments may negatively affect the perceptlon of potential triers of fact with
respect to the tobacco industry, poss1b1y to the detriment of certam pendmg lmgatlon and may prompt the
commencement of additional similar litigation or legmlatlon
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-SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARDfLOOKING STATEMENTS

’ In addition to hlstoncal mfonnatlon ‘this report contams “forward lookmg statements” within the
meanmg of the federal securities law. Forward- 1ookmg statements include mformatron relatmg to our intent,
belief or cuirent expectations, pnmanly with respect to, but not limited to:

¢« economic outlook,

*  capital experldimr_es,;_‘

* ' cost reduction,

*  legislation and .regulatiorrs, o
e cash flows, |

*  operating performance,

. litigation, - |

«  impairment charges and cost saving associated with restructurings of our tobacco operations; and

»  related industry developments-(including trends affecting our business, financial condition and results
of operations). ,

We 1dent1fy forward-lookmg statements in th1s report by usmg words or phrases such as ant:lcrpate g
“believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may be”, “objective”, “plan”, “seek”, * predlct pro_]ect '
and “will be and similar words or phrases or their negatives.

The forward-looking information involves important risks and. uncertainties that could cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to differ materially from our anticipated results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements include, without limitation,
the following:

»  general economic and market conditions and any changes therein, due to acts of war and terrorism
or otherwise,

e governmental regulations and policies,
» effects of industry competition,

*  impact of business combinations, including acquisitions and divestitures, both internally. for us and
externally in the tobacco industry,

* impact of legislation on our competitors’ payment obligations, results of operations and product
costs, i.e., the impact of federal legislation eliminating the federal tobacco quota system and
providing for regulation of tobacco products by the FDA,

e  impact of substantial increases in federal, state and local excise taxes,

e  uncertainty related to product liability litigation including the Engle progeny cases pending in
Florida; and,

*  potential additional payment obligations for us under the MSA and other settlement agreements with
the states.

Further information on the risks and uncertainties that we face include the risks discussed above under
Item 1A. “Risk Factors™ and in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations”.

Although we believe the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are based on
reasonable assumptions, there is a risk that these expectations will not be attained and that any deviations will
be material. The forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operatmns — Market' Rlsk” is 1ncorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL S TATEMEN TS AND SUPPLEMEN TARY DATA

Our Consohdated Fmancml Statements and Notes thereto, together with the report thereon of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ,dated February 28, 2013, are set forth begmmng on page F-1 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

“None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer . and .principal financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end -of the :period covered by this report, and, based on their evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded. that these controls and procedures are effective..

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting;: as such term .is-defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our 1nternal control over ﬁnanmal reportmg was' eifecuve as of
December 31, 2012. R

The effectiveness of ‘our-internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered certified public accounting firm, as stated
in their report, which is included herein.

Material Changes in Internal Control

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter covered
by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materlally affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information contained under the following headings in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2013 Proxy Statement™), to be filed with the SEC not later than 120
days after the end of our fiscal year covered by this report pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, is incorporated herein by reference: “Board Proposal 1 — Nomination and Election of
Directors” and ““Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance.” See Item 5 of this report for information
regarding our executive officers.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under the headings “Executive Compensation” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in our 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein
by reference. * . R

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS - L

The information contained under the headings “Equity Compensation Plan’ Information” and “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in ‘our 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporated
herein by reference. T e . . _

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information contained under the headings “‘Certain Relationships - and Related Party Transactions”
and “Board of Directors and Committees” in our 2013 Proxy Statement is.incorporated herein by reference:

¥

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained-under the aheadihgs “Audit and Non-Audit Fees” and “Pré-Approval Policies
and Procedures” in our 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. :
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PART v
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STAT EMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) INDEX TO' 2012 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our consohdated ﬁnanc1al staterments and the notes thereto, together with the report thereon of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP dated February 28, 2013, appear beginning on page F-1 of this report.

(a)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT S‘CHEDULES'

Schedule n— Valuatron and Quahfymg Accounts Page . ...... | .: ....................... F-79
(c) OTHER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED BY REGULATION S-X ‘ \
.. Liggett Group LLC-

The consolidated financial statements of Lrggett Group LLC for the three years ended December 31,
2012 are filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this report and are 1ncorporated by reference.

Vector Tobacco Inc. -

The financial statements of Vector Tobacéo Ing. for the three years ended December 31 2012 are filed as
Exhibit 99.3 to this report and are incorporated by reference. -

Douglas Elliman Realty LLC

The consolidated financial statements of DouglaSv Elhman Realty LLC for the three years ended
December 31 2012 are filed as EXhlblt 99 4 to this report and are 1ncorporated by reference

@)(@3) EXHIBITS
(a) The following is a list of exh1b1ts filed herewrth as part of this' Annual Report on Form 10-K:

‘ » INDEX OF IT
NO. L . . . DESCRIPTION :
*3.1 Amended and Restated Certlﬁcate of Incorporation of Vector Group Ltd: (formerly known as
Brooke Group Ltd.) (“Vector”)  (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 in Vector’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999).
*3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Vector
; (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated May 24, 2000).
*3.3" Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Cettificate of Incorporation of Vector
Group Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 in Vector’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
‘ ended June 30, 2007). ‘ S . A
*34 ° - - Amerded and Restated By-Laws of Vector Group Ltd. (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4
* in Vector’s Form 8-K: dated October 19, 2007).
*4.1 Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 21, 2012,

between Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and- Liggétt Group LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 in Vector’s Form 8-K/A dated February 21, 2012).

*4.2 Amended and Restated Term Promissory Note dated as of February 21 2012, between Wells
© Fargo Bank, N.A. and 100 Maple LLC (1ncorporated by reference to Exhlblt 1()2 in Vector’s
Form 8-K/A’ dated ‘Febriary 21, 2012)

*4.3 Indenture, dated as of July 12, 2006, by and between Vector and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.,
relating to the 374% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debentures due 2026 (the “3%%
Debentures”),'including the form of the 374% Debenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated July 11, 2006).
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EXHIBIT
NO.

_ DESCRIPTION

*4.4

*45
*4.6
*4.7
*4.8
49

*4.10
*4.11
*4.12

*4.13

*4.14
*4.15

*4.16

4,17

*4.18

Indenture, dated as of August 16,. 2007 between Vector Group Ltd,, the subs1dlary guarantors
named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, relating to the 11% Senior
Secured ‘Notes due 2015, including the form- of Note (the ‘‘Senior Notes Indenture’)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit ‘4.1 in' Vector’s Form 8-K dated August 16, 2007).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July .15, 2008, to" the Senior Notes Indenture
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated July 15, 2008).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, '2009,, to the Senior Notes Indenture
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit'4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated September 1, 2009).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 20, 2010, to the Senior Notes Indenture
(mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 -of Vector’s Form 8- K dated April 20, 2010).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2010, to the Senior Notes Indenture
(incorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated December 3,.2010).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as, of December 16, 2010 to the Senior Notes, Indenture
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated December 16,-2010).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2007, between VGR. Holding: LLC, as Grantor,: and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Collateral Agent (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 in
Vector’ s Form 8-K'dated August 16, 2007)

Security Agreement dated as of August 16 2007 between Vector Tobacco Inc., as Grantor, and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Collateral Agent (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 in
Vector’s. Form. 8-K dated August 16, 2007)

Security Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2007, between Liggett Group LLC and 100 Maple
LLC, as Grantors, and U.S. Bank Natienal Association, as Collateral Agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated August 16, 2007).

Note, dated May 11, 2009, by Vector Group Ltd. to Frost Nevada Investments Trust
(incorporated by. reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated May 11, 20,09)

Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2009, between Vector Group Ltd. and Frost Nevada
Investments Trust (incorporated’ by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Vector’s Form 8-K dated
May 11, 2009).. o - .

Form of Issuance and Exchange Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2009, between Vector Group
Ltd. and holders of its 5% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Notes due 2011 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K: dated June 15, 2009).

Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2009, between Vector Group Ltd. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
as trustee, relating to the 6.75% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Exchange Notes Due 2014,
including the form of Note (incorporated by reference’ to Exhibit 4.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K
dated June 30, 2009).

Share Lending Agreement dated as of November 15, 2012, between- Vector Group Ltd. and
Jefferies & Company, Inc. (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Vector’s Form 8-K
dated November 15, 2012).

Indentu.re dated as of November 20, 2012, by and between Vector Group. Ltd and Wells Fargo
Bank, N. A., as trustee, relating to the. 7.5% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Notes due
2019 (incorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 4.1 of Vector s Form 8-K dated November 20
2012). '
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~ EXHIBIT
NO.

DESCRIPTION

ol
'{}tm
"
*10.2
femé
. 104
*10.5
%106
" #10.7
'*1o8'

" *10.9

" #10.10

*10.11

*10.12.

. 'Nabtsco Holdmgs Corp ).

Addendum to Initial States Settlement Agreement (mcorporated by reference to _Exhibit 10. 43 in -
. Vector s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 1997) o :

First. Supplemental Indenture .dated as of November 20,. 2012 to the: lndenture dated..
November 20, 2012, by and between. Vector Group Ltd.. and Wells. [Fargo Bank, N. A., as

trustee; relating to the 7. 5% ‘Variable Interest Senior Convertible Notes due 2019 (incorporated
by reference to Exhxbrt 4 2 of Vector s Form 8-K dated November 20, 2012) e

. Form of Global: Note relatmg to the 7.5% Vanable Interest Semor Converttble Notes due 2019
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Vector’ s Form 8-K dated November 20, 2012).

' Corporate Services Agreement, dated as of June 29, 1990, between Vector and .Liggett

-, (incorporated by reference to Exhrbrt 10.10 in nggett S Regrstratlon Statement on Form S-1,
"No: 33—47482) ; s

Services Agreement, dated as of February 26, 1991, between Brooke Management Inc.
(“BMI”) and Liggett. (the “Liggett Services Agreement”) (mcorporated by: reference to: Exhrbrt
10.5:in VGR Holding’s Regrstratton Statement on Form S- l No..33-93576). .

. First Amendment to Liggett Servrces Agreement dated a3 of November 30 1993, between

B 'Liggett and BMI (incorporated by reference to Exhlbrt 106 in VGR Holdmg s Registration

. Statement on Form S-1, No. 33-93576).

Second Amendment to nggett Servrces Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1995 between BMI,
““Vector and’ nggett (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) in Vector s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1995)

" Third’ Amendment to Lrggett Services Agreement dated as of March 31, 2001 by and between

" Vector and’ Liggett (1ncorporated by reference to Exhlbrt 105 in Vector s'Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003). Lrer A . -

Fourth Amendment to Servrce Agreement dated ‘as, of October 4, 2006, between Vector Group
Ltd. and Liggett Group LLC (mcorporated by reférence to Exhlblt 10. 1 in Vector s Form 10 Q
- dated June 30, 2012). e I A ; .

Flfth Amendment to Semce Agreement dated as of November 30, 2011, between Vector Group
Ltd. and Liggett Group LLC (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in Vector’s Form 10-Q
dated June 30, 2012). SR e LR : ,

Corporate Services Agreement ‘dated January 1 1992, between VGR Holdmg and Liggett
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 in Lrggett s Reglstratron Statement on Form S 1,
~No. 33-47482). - oo 5 \ RN :

'Service Agreement dated as’of October 1, 2006 between Vector Group Ltd. and Vector Tobacco
Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 in Vector’s Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2012).

Tax sharing agreement dated May 24, 1999 between Brooke Group Ltd BGLS Inc., Lrggett
Group Inc., Epic Holdings Inc., and Carolina Tobacco Express Company Inc. (mcorporated by

--.. reference to Exhibit10.4.in-Vector’s Form 10-Q-dated June 30; 2012)

Settlement Agreement dated March 15, 1996, by and among ‘the State of West Virginia, State

-of Florida, State -of Mississippi, Commonwealth- of Massachusetts; ;and State of Louisiana,
.~ Brooke: Group Holding and Liggett. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5 in the Schedule

13D filed by Vector on March 11, 1996 as amended w1th respect to the common stock of RIR

4
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EXHIBIT
NO.

DESCRIl’l'ION

-*10.13

*10.14

- #1015

*10.16

*10.17

*10.18

*10.19

*10.20
*10.21
*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

*10.27

’ Settlement Agreement dated March 12, 1998, by and among the- States listed“in Appendix A
-thereto, Brooke Group Holding and Liggett (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 35 in

Vector’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1997).
Master Settlement ‘Agreement made by the Settlmg States and Pamapatmg Manufacturers

- signatories thereto (incorporated by. reference to'Exhibit 10.1 in Philip Morris C'ompames Inc.’s

Form 8-K dated -November 25,1998, Commission File No. 1-8940).

-General Liggett Replacement Agreement, dated as'of November 23, 1998, entered into by ‘each

of the Settling States under the Master Settlement Agreement, and Brooke Group Holding and
Liggett (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 in Vector’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998).

~Stipulation and: Agreed Order regardmg Stay . of Executlon Pendmg Revrew and Related

Matters, dated'May 7, 2001, entered into by Philip Morris Incorporated; Lorillard Tobacco Co.,
Liggett and Brooke Group Holding Inc .and the class counsel in Engel et, al., v. R.J. Reynolds

"Tobacco Co., et. al. (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 in Phrhp Moms Companies

Inc.’s Form 8-K dated May 7, 2001). .
Amended and Restated. Emploympnt Agreement dated as of January 27 2006 between Vector

.

,,,,,,

January 27 2006)

. Employment Agreement, dated as of January 27 2006 between Vector and chhard J. Lampen
(mcorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10 3 in Vector s Form 8 K dated January 27, 2006).

Amendment to the Employment Agreement dated’ as of February ' 22;-2012 between Vector
Group Ltd. and Richard J. Lampen (mcorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 10. 3 in Vector’s Form
8-K/A dated February 21 2012) L . \

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 27, 2006 “between Vector
and Marc N. Bell (mcorporated by reference to Exhlblt 104 in Vector s Fonn 8-K dated

- ,January 27, 2006)

Employment Agreement dated as of November 11, 2005 between Lrggett Group Inc. and

Ronald J. Bernstein (1ncorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 101 in_Vector’ s, Form 8-K dated

November 11, 2005)

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of January 14, 2011, between Liggett and
Ronald J. Bernstein (mcorporated by reference to. Exhlbxt 10 17 i in Vector s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2010) -

‘Employment Agreement, dated as of Janua.ry 27 2006 between Vector and J. Bryant Kirkland
m (mcorporated by reference to EXhlblt 10 5 in ‘Vector” s Form 8 K dated January 27, 2006).

Vector Group: Ltd. Amended and Restated 1999 ‘Long-Term - Incentlve Plan : (incorporated by

. reference to Appendlx A in Vector’ s Proxy Statement dated April 21, 2004)

Stock Option'- Agreement, dated December 3, 2009;: between Vector -and chhard J. Lampen
(incorporated by reference to'Exhibit 10:19'in Vector’s: Form IO-K dated December 31, 2009).

Stock Optron Agreement dated December 3, 2009 between Vector and ‘Marc N. Bell

(incorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 10.20 in Vector s Form 10-K dated December 31, 2009).

Stock Opnon Agreement, dated December 3 2009 between Vector . and Howard M. Lorber
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 in Vector s Form 10-K dated December 31, 2009).



EXHIBIT
NO.

DESCRIPTION

*10.28

*10.29
*10.50
*10.31
*10.32
*10.33

*10.34
*10.35

*10.36
*10.37
*10.38
*10.39

10.40
12.1

21

23.1
232
233
234

Stock Option Agreement, dated December 3, 2009, between: Vector and J. Bryant Kirkland III

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 in Vector’s Form 10-K dated December 31, 2009).

Option Letter Agreement,” dated as- of November 11, 2005 between Vector and - Ronald
J. Bernstein (incorporated by reference: to:Exhibit 10.3 in -Vector’s- Form 8-K dated
November 11, 2005). ' i . . , .. .

Restricted Share Award-Agreement, dated ‘as of April 7, 2009, between Vector Group Ltd. and
Howard M. Lorber. (incorporated. by reference to Exhibit 10.1. of . Vector’s, Form 8—Kdated

April 10, 2009). DR . S
Amendment, effective as of December 11, 2012, to, the Restricted Share Award Agreement,

dated as of April 7, 2009, by and between Vector Group Ltd. and Howard M. Lorber
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated December 11, 2012).

~ Agreement, effective as of December 11, 2012, by and between VectorGrouthd and Howard

M. Lorber (incorporated by reference to Exhibit'10.1 in Vector’s Forrit'8-K dated December 11,
2012. , o |

Stock Option Agreement, dated January 14, 2011, between Vector and ‘Howard M. Lorber
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit S to Schedule 13D, as amended, dated January.21, 2011
filed by Howard M. Lorber). ‘ o Com e .

Vector Senior Executive - Incentive Compensation . Plan (incorporated . by ... referenge to
Exhibit 10.1 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated January 14, 2011). .. T

<.

Vector Supplemental Retirement Plan (as amended and restated April 24, 2008) (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in Vector’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2008).

Operating Agreement of Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC (formerly known as Montauk Battery
Realty LLC) dated December 17, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in
New Valley’s Form 8-K dated December 13, 2002). ‘

First Amendment to Operating Agreement of Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC (formerly known as
Montauk Battery Realty LLC), dated as of March 14, 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 in New Valley’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Second Amendment to Operating Agreement of Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC, dated as of
May 19, 2003 (incorporated by. reference to Exhibit 10.1 in New Valley’s Form 10-Q. for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003). ; ' '

Office Lease, dated as of September 10, 2012, between Vector Group Ltd. and Frost Real Estate
Holdings, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in Vector’s Form 8-K dated
September 10, 2012).

First Amendment, dated as of November 12, 2012, to Office Lease, dated as of September 10,
2012, between Vector Group Ltd. and Frost Real Estate Holdings, LLC.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for each of the five years within the period
ended December 31, 2012 ’

Subsidiaries of Vector.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
Consent of Pricewaterhouseropers LLP.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
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'EXHIBIT

: DESCRIPTION

NO. ) .
311 . Certification of Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant fo Exchange Act Ruje 13a-14(a) as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 - - Certification of Chief Financial Oﬂicer, Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as Adopted
- Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chref Executive Officer, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
..+ . Pursuant to-Section-906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of :2002.
322 Certification of Chief Financial Oﬂicer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. ‘
99.1 :Matenal Legal Proceedmgs
992 Liggett Group LLC’s Consohdated Fmaneral Statements for the three years ended
o December 31 2012 .
993 . Vector Tobacco Inc.’s F1nanc1al Statements for the- three years ended December 31, 2012.

9.4

Douglas Elliman Realty LLC’s Consohdated Financial Statements for the three years ended

December 31, 2012:...

* Incorporated by reference

ot

“Each management contract or Compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this

report pursuant to Item 14(c) is listed in exhibit fios. 10.13 through 10.29.

n
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.

VECTOR GROUP LTD.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ J. Bryant Kirkland Il

J. Bryant Kirkland III
Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 28, 2013

POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned directors and officers of Vector Group Ltd. hereby constitute and appoint
Richard J. Lampen, J. Bryant Kirkland IIT and Marc N. Bell, and each of them, with full power to act without
the other and with full power of substitution and resubstitutions, our true and lawful attorneys-in-fact with full
power to execute in our name and behalf in the capacities indicated below, this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and any and all amendments thereto and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in
~ connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and hereby ratify and confirm all that
such attorneys-in-fact, or any of them, or their substitutes shall lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 28, 2013.

SIGNATURE TITLE
/s/ Howard M. Lorber President and Chief Executive Officer
Howard M. Lorber (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ J. Bryant Kirkland I Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
J. Bryant Kirkland III (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Henry C. Beinstein Director

Henry C. Beinstein
/s/ Ronald J. Bernstein Director
Ronald J. Bernstein
/s/ Stanley S. Arkin Director
Stanley S. Arkin
/s/ Bennett S. LeBow Director
Bennett S. LeBow
/s/ Jeffrey S. Podell Director
Jeffery S. Podell
/s/ Jean E. Sharpe Director
Jean E. Sharpe
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- VECTOR GROUP LTD.
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
ITEMS 8, 15(a)(1) AND (2),15(c)

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

' Fmancral Statements -and Schedules of the Regrstrant and its subsrdlanes required to be mcluded in
Items 8 15(a) 1) and (2), 15(c) are listed below:

Page -

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' ‘
‘Vector Group Ltd.- Consolidated Financial Statements : -
Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm .. .. ... ........... : F-2
Vector Group Ltd. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 . . ... ... F-3
Vector Group Ltd. Consolidated' Statements of Operatrons for the years ended- e
- December 31,2012,2011and 2010 . .. .. .0 .. ... .l i SRR .‘ F4
" ‘Vector Group Ltd. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensrve Income for the years. ended -
=+ December 31, 2012, 2011and 2010 .« . .. v . o il e e e e e e “ F5
* Vector Group Ltd. Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity (Deﬁcrency) for the years
" -ended December 31, 2012,2011'and'2010 .\« . .. .ottt e e e "F-6
Vector Group Ltd. Consolidated Statetnents of Cash Flows for the years ended ‘
- December-31; 2012, 2011 and 2010 . . . .. ... .. it e e e et F-8
- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. .. ... .......co0.iteneeninnn. e F-10-+
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE: : o t
‘ Schedule Il — Valuation and Quahfymg Accounts B ST .- .‘Q e Ll F-79

. -Financial Statement Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not applicable or the
requrred information is contained in our consohdated financial statements or-accompanying notes: -

nggett Group LLC

- The consolidated financial statements of Liggett-Group LLC for the three years ended December 31,
2012 are filed as Exhrbrt 99.2 to this report ‘and are 1ncorporated by reference.

Vector Tobacco‘ Inc.
) The financial statements of Vector Tobacco Inc for the three years ended December 31, 2012 are ﬁled as
Exhrbrt 99.3 to this report and are. mcorporated by reference.

Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC. .

The consolidated financial stafements of Douglas Elliman’ Realty, LLC for the three years ended
December 31, 2012 are filed as Exhibit 99.4 to this report and are incorporated by reference.



Report of Independent Registered Cer't\i(ﬁedf,Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors andk Stockholders . -
of Vector Group Litd.:

In our opinion, the consolidated firiancial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Vector Group Ltd. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based- on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial - statements and financial statement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its.assessment of the effectiveness of .internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over: Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on: the financial
statement schedule, and on the. Company’s. internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards, require that we plan and perform the. audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and' whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal ‘control over.financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the-design and operating effectiveness' of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process ‘designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions ‘are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,:or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the. financial statements. ;

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over ' financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PacaanTid Contp o Lie

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida
February 28, 2013



VECTOR'GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

i

Current assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents . . . .......... .. L
Investment securities available for sale e e e e e e e e e e e e
Accounts receivable = trade. . . . ... .

Inventories . . . .v . .t il e i e et e ¢

Deferred income taxes. .. . . . . .. I IR
Income tax receivable, net . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e
ReESIACIEA @SSEES . « & & v o e e o e e o e et e s e e e e e e
Other current assets . . . . . . . . & i o .. T
Total CUITENt ASSELS « « « o o o v o v v v s v s s s v m o m oo oo s o e s e s e
Property, plant and equipment, met . . . . .. ... bae e L i il
Investment in Escena,met . . . . .00 v it S
Long-term investments accounted forat ¢ost . . .. . ... o viie L Ve Te e e
Long-term investments accounted for under the equity method . . . .. ... s e e s

Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses. . . . . . . . e e e e e L

Restricted @8Sets. . . J . v v oo vt i e e e LU R
Deferred income taxes .*.. . . ... Y e e e e e e e e

Intangible asset . . ,..cvv o e R T S S e e

Prepaid pension costs. . . . . ... .. e e [P .
Other assets . . . .o i v e v v v v e v et e s e aae e N
-Total assets. . . ........ R O N e e e e e

LIAB]LITIES AND STOCKI-IOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY:
Currént liabilities:
Current pomon of notes payable and long-term debt ............... e
Current portion of fair value-of derivatives embedded within convertible debt. . . . . .. ...
_Current payments due under the Master Settlement Agreement . . ... ......... ....
Current portion of employee benefits . . .. ... ... .. i

Accountspayable. B st PP A S R T

Accrued promotional eXPenses . . . . .. v u i . e i e e e e e e e
Incometaxes payable . . . . . ... ... e

Accrued excise and payroll taxes payable, met . . . . ... ... e e ey

Litigation accruals .. . .. o'. ... R R

Deferred income taxes. . . % . .. . . . ._.w-;? ................. e A

Accrued interest . . . . . ... ... ... e e e e e e i e e e e

Other current liabilities . . . ... ...y iy e

Total current liabilities S
Notes payable, long-term debt and other obligations, less curreiit portion i 'L i v
Fair value of derivatives embedded within convertibledebt. . . . ... ...............
Non-current employee benefits . . . . . . .. ..o i e
Deferred income taxes . . . . . ... ... i et et e e e e e e e
Payments due under the Master Settlement Agreement. . . . . . . ... ..o e
Litigation accruals . . . . ... u it e e e s
Other Habilties . . . . o v v v e ot e et v ottt bt e e e e s s sttt s

Total HabilIEES. . » « v v v v v e e e e e e e e et i n e e et e e e

Commitments and CONtNZENCIES . . - . .« v v v v v vttt oo et oo n st mm s et

Stockholders’ deficiency:

Preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized. . . . ... ......

Common stock, par value $0.10 per share, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 93,658, 273 and
83,022,812 shares issued and 89,898,411 and 79,441,991 shares outstandmg .........

Additional paid-incapital . . . . .. ... ... e e

Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . oot i e E e e eeeeeaee

Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss . . . . .. . oLl

Less: 3,759,862 and 3,580,821 shares of comnion stock in treasury, atcost . . .. ... .. ..
Total stockholders’ deficiency . . . . . . .« oo v vt it e e .
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency . . . . . . . . .. oo v it i e

The accompanying notes are an intégral pait of the consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2012 - 2011
(Dollars in thousands, '

except per share amounts)

- $ 240923

$ 405,855
69,984 76,486
- 11,247+ 24,869
, '100,392 Lo --109,228
36609 - 42951
6779 - 9553
2469 . 14747
5721 . . 4,257
639,056 509,741
57,153 56,556
13295 13;280
- ~16,367. 5,675
. 6432 16,499
119,219 Y 124,469
9,792 - 9,626
- 49,142 31,017
107,511 . . 107,511
12870 0 10,047
55,894 43,347
$1,086,731 $. 927,768
I 53
$ 36,778 $ 50,844 .
' - 84485
32, 970 _ 51,174
“5824 2,690
76,099 Y 9532
18,730 17,056
6,269 6,597
_ 20419 17,992
1,470° 1,551
© 27299 35,885
25,410 20,888
16,891 16,504
195,159° - 315198
586,946 - 493356
172,128 49,015
45,860 45,982
109,532 60,642
52,639 49,338
1,862 1,600
1,857 1,667
1,165,983 1,016,798
8,989 7,944
(65,116) (80,440)
(10,268) 3,677
(12,857) (12,857
(79,252) (89,030)
$1,086,731 $ 927,768



VECTOR GROUP LTD: AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2012

2011

2010

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

REVEMUES™ . . . . o o oo $1,084,546

$1,133,380  $1,063,289
Expenses: :
Costof goods sold* . . ............................. 823452 892,883 845,106
Operating, selling, administrative and general expehses e 10,6,16,1 L 97,176 - 90,709
Litigation judgment expense . .................. e . — S — 16,161
. Operating income. . . . .. ... [ [ .. 154,933 143,321 111,313
Other income (expenses): ’ . o . -
Interest EXPENSe. .. ... ... e (110,102) (100,706) (84,096)
Changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within v o ,
convertibledebt . . . ......................... PN (7,476) 7,984 11,524
Acceleration of interest expense related to debt conversion . . . . . . (14,960) - - (1,217) —
Gam on hquldauon of long-term investments. .. ... ... L = 25,832 o
Equlty (loss) income on long-term investments. .. ......... (1,261) (859) 1,489
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale . . . . . . . 1,640 23,257 - 19,869
Equxfy income from non-consolidated real estate busmesses cee 29,764 19,966 23,963 .
Gain on townhomes . . . . . . J S, e R R— 3,843 [
Other met....... e e, e 1,179 1,736 1,508
Income before prov1sxon for income taxes. . ... .. .oyt vi iy 53,717 123,157 85,570
Income tax expense . . . . ... e e e 23,095 48,137 . 31,486
Net mcome R T e L 8§ 30,622 $ 75,020 S 54,084
Per bas1c common share , o
Net income apphcable to common shares . ............... $ 035 $ 089 $ 0.65
Per diluted common-share: , .
Net income applicable to common shares . . . . . . .. e $ 035 $ 08 $ 064
Cash disuibuﬁons' declared pershare ..................... $ 154 $ 147 $ 140

Revenues and cost of goods sold include federal excise taxes of $508,027, $552,965 and $538,328 for the

yeaxs ended. December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. |

R

The accompanying notes are.an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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VECTOR GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
-+ CONSOLIDATED'STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

: e Year Ended December 31,
Yoo T T 2012 2011 2010
- (Dollars in thousands,
N . ) 0 ; : e . except per share amounts) -
Netincome. ............. e e e e $ 30,622 $ 75 ,020 $ 54 084
Net unrealized gains on investment securities available for sale:
Change in net unreahzed (OSSES) GAINS . .+« oo v v eennans (13,267) 23573 45, 908
Net unrealized gains reclassified into net income . ............. : (1;640) o (23,257) ) (19, 869)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on investment securities available B SRR P S
forsale. ....... e e (14907 316 ' 26039
Net unrealized gains (losses) on long-term investments accounted » o i . '
for under the eqmty method . ...... . ... L i o 1,353 - (3,596) 1,115
Net change in forward CONACtS. . . . oo vevvennn- cheee e e 65 T2
Net change in pensmn—related amounts . . .. ...... [P 2394 (10399) . 4,522
" Other comprehensive (10SS) INCOME . . . . .v oo vvrvveennneen. (11,096)  (13,614) - 31,748
- Income tax effect on: 4 ' R VA i e e
<. Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investment secunnes .. 5,387 .- (9,789). - . (18,301)
Net unrealized gains reclassified into net:income on‘investment - - S B
SECUMtES . v o v v v v vee e T IEREEE — 665 ¢ 9,442 7,948 . o
Change in unrealized long-term investments. . . . . .. ....: ... . (549) 1453 (@a46)
Forward CONtracts. . . . ..o v vvvvenn . e T ) (26) . (30)
Pension-related amounts . . .. ........ P “ (972) 4401 . (1,584)
Income tax benefit (provxsxon) on other comprehenswe ; . S
income (loss) . ...... O Ll 4,505 5,481 (12 413)
- .Other comprehensive (loss) income; netof tax. .. ......... e (6,591) (8,133) 19,335
Comprehensive mcome .................. e e $24,031° $66,887 * -$ 73419

The accompanying notes are an.integral part.of the;consolidated financial statements.:
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VECTOR GROUP ETD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive ;
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Stock Ti)tal
. . (Dollars in thousands)
Balance, January 1, 2010 S TR L 71,262,684 - $7,126 - $15,928 § - $(14,879) $(12 857) $ (4,682)
Netincome’ .. o viivniv.... B — — 54,084 — — 54,084 .
Change in net loss and prior service cost, . .
net of i income taxes . . — — — — 2,938 —_ 2,938
Forward contract adjustments, net of income
taxes. Ll e e : — — — — 42 — 42
Unrealized gain on long-term investment !
securities accounted for under the equity
method, net of income taxes. . . ....... _— — —_ — 669 — 669
Change in net unrealized gain on investment :
securities, net of income taxes . ....... — — —_— — 27,607 — 27,607
Net unrealized gains reclassified into net . ,
income, net of i income taxes . .. ... .. —_ — — — @ay9en — (11,921)
Unrealized.gain on investment securitiés, t
net of income taxes . ... ... ... .. : — — — — - — 15,686
Total other comprehensive income. . . . . . — — —_ —_ — —_ 19,335
Total comprehensive income .. .......... — — — — — " 73,419
Distributions and dividends o common stock. .. - — (19,081) * (99,054) —_ — (118,135)
Restricted stock grant. . .. ............. 50,000. -0 .- 5 - (5).: — — — —
Surrender .of shares in connection with .
. restricted stock vesting . . ............ (51,941) ) (1,035) —_ — — (1,040)
Effect of stock dividend . . ............. 3,567,023 357 =" (357) —_ —_ —
Exercise of stock options .. ............ 111,518 11 1,254 —_ —_ — 1,265
Tax benefit of options excrcised .......... _ - — 269 —_ — — 269
Stock based compensation. . . ........... — — - 2,670 — —_ — 2,670
Balance, December 31,2010 . . .. ........ 74,939,284 7,494 — (45,327) 4,456 (12,857) (46,234)
Net i income. ........ . a0 .., i — — — 75,020 — — 75,020
Change in: net loss and pnor service cost, :
net of iNCOme taxes . . v s s v v\ viiauis —_ —_ —_ — (5,998) — (5,998)
Forward contract ad_]ustments net of income )
taxes. ......... .. ...y — — — — 39 — 39
Unrealized gain on long-term investment '
securities accounted for under the equity
method, net of income taxes. . . ....... — —_ — — (2,143) — 2,143)
Change in net unrealized gain on investment
securities, net of income taxes . ....... — — — — 13,784 — 13,784
Net unrealized gains reclassified into net
income, net of income taxes. . . ....... — — —_ —_ (13,815) —_— (13,815)
Unrealized gain on investment securities,
netofincometaxes. . . ............ — —_ —_ — — — (31)
Total other comprehensive income. . . . . . - — — — —_ — (8,133)
Total comprehensive income . ........... — —_ — — —_ — 66,887
Distributions and dividends on common stock. . —_— — (15,215)  (109,755) — —  (124970)
Restricted stock grant. . . ... ........... 6,667 1 €)) — — — —
Restricted stock grant canceled . . . ... .. e (7,350) ) 1 — —_ — —
Surrender of shares in connection with
restricted stock vesting . .. ........... (112,429) (11) (1,950) — — — (1,961)
Effect of stock dividend . . . ............ 3,782,308 378 — (378) —_ — —
Note conversion, net of income taxes . . . ... . 652,386 65 12,150 — _ —_ 12,215
Exercise of options, net of 300,799 shares e :
delivered to pay exercise price. . . ... .... 181,125 18 1,011 — — — 1,029
Tax benefit of options exercised . ......... ' — —_— 821 — — —_ 821
Stock based compensation. . ............ — — 3,183 — — — 3,183
Balance, December 31,2011 . ........... 79,441,991 7,944 — (80,440) (3,677 (12,857)

(89,030)

The ‘accompanying notes are an integral part of the'consolidated financial statements.
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VECTOR GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) - (continued)

Additional Other

Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive  Treasury
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Stock Total
: ' (Dollars in thousands)
Netincome. . .. .......oueuieennnnn. — — = 30,622 — — 30,622
Change in net loss and prior service cost, ' ‘ ‘
net of income taxes. . . ... ... ... ..., — — — — 01,422 L= 1,422
Forward contract adjustments, net of income : } . . :
TAXES . . o vt e — —_ — — 38 - 38
Unrealized gain on long-term investment ' S
securities accounted for under the equity C :
method, net of income taxes. . .. ...... — — , — — .. 804 — 804
Change in net unrealized gain on investment : ) K . R
securities, net of income taxes .. ... ... — — — — (7,880) — (7,880)
Net unrealized gains reclassified into net - :
income, net of income taxes. . . ... .. .. —_ —_ — — 975) - (975)
Unrealized gain on investment securities, o . .
net of income taxes. . . ...... R — — — - — == (8,855)
Total other comprehensive loss . . . . . ... — _ e — — — (6,591)
Total comprehensive income . . . . . . PR - = — —_ C = L= 24,031
Distributions and dividends on common stock. . : — — (120,188) (14,884) — — (135,072)
Surrender of shares in connection with W . - . T : T :
restricted stock vesting--. . . . ... .. ... (234,926) - (23) (3,750) — —_ — (3,773)
Effect of stock dividend . . ....... a e 4,142,378 414 —_ 414) ‘ — — —
Note conversion, net of income taxes . . ... .. 3,476,654 347 . 76,540 L= —_ — 76,887
Beneficial conversion feature of notes payable, :
net of income taxes .. ... e — = 38,135 = — = 38,135
Issuance of common stock under share lending . . : .
facility . . ... ..ot e 6,114,000 611 3,204 — — — 3,815
Return of common stock under share lending ' ’ : ' _
facility . .. ....... e e e e (3,057,000) (306) 306 — = L= —_
Exercise of stock options . ............. 15,314 2 138 — — —_ - 140
Tax benefit of options exercised . ......... — o 52 — - — — 52
Stock based compensation. . . .. ... .. ... — — 5,563 — — - T 5,563
Balance, December 31,2012 . . ... ... ... 89898411 $8989 $ —  $(65,116) $(10,268) ~ $(12,857) $ (79,252)

P

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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VECTOR GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS :

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Cash flows from operating activities: » v
Net inCOME. . - . ..o v ettt e $30,622 $75020 $ 54,084
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by » :
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .. ....................... 10,608 .- 10,607 10,790
Non-cash stock-based expense . . . ............ ... 5,563 3,1 83 2,704
Acceleration of interest expense related to debt conversion. . . . .. 14,960 - 1,217 . _—
(Gain) losson sale of assets. . . ........................ L — (43 714
Deferred income taxes . .. ..........iiin ... (7,336) 9,366 1,225
Gain on sale of townhomes . . . ......... e — (3,843) =
Distributions from long-term investments accounted for at cost. . . 135 — —
Gain on liquidation of long-term investments accounted for ;

atcost.......... e e e e e e e e e e (135) . (25,832) —
Loss (income) on long-term investments accounted under the IR

equitymethod . ..................... A P 1,261 859 (2,604)
Gain on sale of marketable securities . . . .. ... P (1,640)  (23,257)  (19,869)
Equity income in non-consolidated real estate businesses e (29,764) (19,966) (23,963)
Distributions from non-consolidated real estate businesses . . . . . . ' 19,169 9,322 . 12,212
Premium on issuance of debt. . .. ... ................... —_ — 3,450
Non-cash interest expense . . . . ........... e 28,150 7,373 1,082
Loss (gain) on warrants. . . .. ........ it i . 1,193 (700) —

Changes in assets and liabilities: ' N o
ReCEiVADIES. . . .ottt e e 13,622 (23,0200 . 6,249
INVEDEOTIES .« . . o v v vt it e e 8,837 (2,149) (8,593)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . [ 4,497 (3,216) 2,575
Payments due under the Master Settlement Agreement. . . ... ... (14,903) 26,419 32,985
Cash payments on restructuring liabilities . ................ — — (179)
Other assets and liabilities, net. . ... .................... (753) (5,299) (5,218)
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . .................. 84,086 36,041 67,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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VECTOR GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (continued)

Year Ended December 31,

Cash flows from investing activities:

' Proceeds from sale or maturity of investment secuntles. Ll LV
Purchase of investment securities. . . .. ....... e I .
Proceeds from sale or 11qu1dat10n of long-term 1nvestments cie e
Purchaseoflongtermmvestments. e
Purchase of Aberdeen mortgages . . ... ... ... v i
Proceeds from sale of townhomes, net . . ... .c..ovv ...
Increase inrestricted assets. . . .. ... .. i i i i
Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses . .........

" Distributions from non-consolidated real estate businesses . . . . . . . B
Issuance of notes receivable . ... ....... .. .. .. .. o ...
Cash acquired in Aberdeen consolidation . ..................
Proceeds from sale of busmesses and asSets. . ...

» Cap1tal expend1tures ......... e e e e
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance pohcxes e

Net cash (used in) prov1ded by investing activities. . . . .. .. g ‘

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt . . .. .......... e o
Repaymentsofdebt.;....j...,.............; ......
Deférred financing charges . R P
Borrowings under revolver . . . ... .. ... ... PR
Repayments on revolver. . . ...t
Distributions on common stock . ... ... .. e .

Proceeds from the issuance of Vector stock . ... .. .. .. SR

Proceeds from exercise of Vector options . . ... ............ ..

TaxbeneﬁtofoptionsexexjciSed ..... R R
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. . . .. ..........
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash-equivalents.. ... ......... o

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . . ...............
Cash and cash equivalents,endof year . .....................

2012

2011

2010

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)

3,831 31,643 - 28,587
(5,647) < (5,039) - (9,394)
72 66,190 1,002
(5,000) " (10,000) (5,062)
— —  (13,462)

— 19,629 —
(1,130)  (96) (1,100)
(33375 (41, 859)  (24,645)
49221 -~ 8450 3,539
(383)  (15256)  (930)
R pp— 473
444 205 187
“(11,265) - (11,838)  (23,391)
C T (907) (744) (936)
(4,139) 41285  (45,132)
244,075 6,419 185,714
(19,258) (4,960)  (14,539)
(11,479) — (5,077
1,074,050 1,064,270 1,034,924
(1,066,092) (1,078,508) (1,016,598)
(137,114)  (125,299)  (117,459)
135 U —

140 1,029 1,265

52 821 269
84,985  (136,228) - 68,499
164,932 (58,902) 90,371
240,923 299,825 209,454

$ 405855 $ 240,923 $ 299,825

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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~ VECTOR GROUP LID.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Presentation:

The consolidated financial statements of Vector Group Ltd. (the “Company” or “Vector’) include the
accounts of VGR Holding LLC (“VGR Holding”), Liggett Group LLC (“Liggett”), Vector Tobacco Inc.
(“Vector Tobacco”), Liggett Vector Brands LLC (“Liggett Vector Brands”), New Valley LLC (“New Valley”)
and other less significant subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated.

Liggett and Vector Tobacco are engaged in the manufacture and sale of c1garettes in-the United States.
New Valley is engaged in the real estate business. :

Certain reclass1ﬁcat10ns have been rnade to the 2010 and 2011 financial mformatlon to conform to .the
2012 presentation.

(b) Estimates and Assumptions:

v The preparation of financial statements in conformity with aécounting principles generally accepted in-the
“United States of America requires management to make. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
"amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Significant estimates subject to material changes in the near term include restructuring
and impairment charges, inventory valuation, deferred tax assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, promotional
accruals, sales returns and allowances, actuarial assumptions of pension plans, the estimated fair value of
embedded derivative liabilities, settlement accruals, valuation of investments, including other than temporary
impairments to such investments, accounting for investments in equity securities, and litigation and defense
costs. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(¢) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, cash on deposit in banks and
cash equivalents, comprised of short-term investments which have an original maturity of 90 days or less.
Interest on short-term investments is recognized when earned. The Company places its cash and cash
equivalents with large commercial banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and Securities
Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) insure these balances, up to $250 and $500, respectively.
Substantially all of the Company’s cash balances at December 31, 2012 are uninsured.

(d) Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted assets and short-term loans approximate their
fair value.

The carrying amounts of short-term debt reported in the consolidated balance sheets approximate fair
value. The fair value of long-term debt for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was estimated based
on current market quotations.

As required by authoritative guidance, derivatives embedded within the Company’s convertible debt are
recognized on the Company’s balance sheet and are stated at estimated fair value at each reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of the embedded derivatives are reflected quarterly as “Changes in fair value of
derivatives embedded within convertible debt.”

The estimated fair values for financial instruments presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the
amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions
and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair values.
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'VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

(e) Investment Securities:

“.. The Company classifies investments. in debt and marketable equity securities ‘as available for sale.
Investments - classified as available for sale are carried at fair value, with net unrealized gains and losses -
included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity: The cost-of securities ‘'sold is determined based on
average COSt. Investments in marketable equity securities represent less than a 20 percent interest in the
investees and the Company does not exerq_ise significant influence over such entities. ’

" Gains are recognized when realized in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. Losses are
recognized as realized or upon the determination of the occurrence of an other-than-temporary decline in" fair
value. The Company’s policy is to review its. securities on a periodic basis to evaluate whether any security
has experienced an other-than-temporary decline in fair value. If it is determined that an other-than-temporary
decline exists in one of the- Company’s: marketable  securities, it is the Company’s policy to record an .
impairment charge. with respect to ‘such investment.in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
The Company recorded a loss related to other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of its marketable-
equity ‘securities. of $500 for the year ended December 31,:2010.

() Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Company places its temporary cash in
money market securities (investment grade or better) with what management believes are high credit quality
financial institutions. o ' o '

Liggett’s customers are primarily candy and tobacco distributors, the military and large grocery, drug and
convenience store chains. One customer accounted for 17% of Liggett’s revenues in each of 2012, 2011 and
2010. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are generally limited due to the large
number of customers, located primarily throughout the United States, comprising Liggett’s customer base.
Liggett’s. largest single customer rep;eSented approximately 10% and 52%. of net accounts . receivable at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Ongoing credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition are
performed and, generally, no collateral is'»)required. Liggett maintains reserves for pot'entiali‘c;redi,t losses and
such losses, in the aggregate, have generally not exceeded management’s expectations. '

(g) Accounts Receivable:
< Accounts receivable—ﬁade are rgcordqd at their net realizable value.

The allowance for doubtful accounts and cash discounts was $577 and $881 at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. o ’ : ' - e e , , .

(h) Inventories:

Tobacco inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and are determined primaﬁiy by‘- the lést—in;
first-out: (LIFO) method at Liggett and Vector Tobacco. Although portions of leaf tobacco inventories may not
be used or sold within one: year because of the time required for aging, they are included in current ‘assets,
which is common practice in the industry. It is not practicable to determine the amount that will not be used

or sold within one year.

» @) VRestrict’qd Assets:

Cuirrent  restricted ‘assets of $2,469 and $1,474 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, consist
primarily of certificates of deposits and supersedeas bonds. Long-term restricted -assets of $9,792 and $9,626
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, consist primarily of certificates: of deposit which collateralize
letters of credit; supersedeas bonds and deposits on long-term debt. The certificates of deposit mature - at
various dates from March 2013 to October 2013. o o : .
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.:

 NOTES/TO CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except:Per:Sharé¢ Amounts) -

G Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Property, plant and:equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which are 20 to 30 years for
burldmgs and 3 to 10 years for: machinery .and equipment.- : S

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to' expense as 1ncurred The costs of major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The cost and related accumulated- depre01at10n of property, plant and equipment
are removed from. the.aceounts upon retirement or other d1sp051t10n and any resulting gain or loss is reflected
in operations... : S

(k) Investment in Non-ConsoluIated Real Estate Busmesses

- Im:accounting for its “investrnent in non-consohdated real estate busmesses the. Company 1denuﬁed ‘its
participation in Variable Interest Entities (*“VIE”), which are defined. as entities in which the. equity -investors :
have:net provided ‘enough equity to finance its activities or-the equity investors (1) :cannot directly -or
indirectly make decisions about the entity’s activities through:their voting rights or-similar rights; (2) do not
have the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity; (3) do not have the right to receive the
expected residual returns of the entity; or (4) have voting rights that are not propottionate to-their economic
interests and the entity’s activities involve or are conducted. on, :behalf of an investor with a disproportionately
small voting interest. _ ‘ e L 4

" New Valley accounts ‘for its interest in Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC ofi‘the equity method because the
entity neither meets the definition of a VIE nor is New Valley the entity’s primary beneficiary, as defined in
authontatlve .guidance., : - . , - :

Chelsea EleVen Sesto, Frfty Third-Five Burldlng, 1107 Broadway, Lofts' 21, East 68" Street, SOCAL-
Portfolio, Hotel Taiwana, 11 Beach Streét, Maryland Portfolio, 701 Seventh ‘Avenue, Queens Plaza and
Chrystie Street ‘meet ‘the deﬁmtren of a 'VIE; however, New Valley is not the primary beneﬁc1ary of these
entities, as defined in authontatlve gmdance In August 2010, New 'Valley' becarne the primary beneficiary of
Aberdeen Townhomes LLC, and as a result, the consohdated financial statementsof the Company 1ncluded
the account balances of Aberdeen Townhomes LLC as of December 31 2011 and 2010 ’

() Intangible Assets:

The Company reviews intangible assets for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in
business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be fully recoverable.
Indefinite life intangible. assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, ere $107,511. This intangible asset
relates to the market share exemption of The Medallion Company Inc. (now known as Vector Tobacco Tnc. .
acquired in April 2002, under the Master Settlement Agreement (“MSA”), which states payments under the
MSA continue in perpetuity. As a result, the Company believes it will realize the benefit of the exemption for
the foreseeable future 3

Other mtangrhle assets 1ncluded in other assets cons1st1ng of trademarks and patent. nghts are. amortized
using the ‘straight-line: method over 10-12 years and:-had no ‘net book value at December 31, 2012 and
201%, respectively. - o - ., Lo S . .

(m) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or”?éhanges in business
circumstances :indicate ‘that the.carrying: amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. The Company
performs undiscounted - operating. cash flow analyses to determine if impairment exists. If impairment is
determined to exist, any related impairment loss. is calculated based on fair value of the asset on the basis of
discounted cash flow. Impairment losses on .assets.to be drsposed of, if any, arg” based on the- estimated
proceeds to be received, less costs of disposal. v : :
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

(n) Pension, Postretzrement and Postemployment Benefits Plans:

The cost of prov1d1ng retlree pens1on benefits, health care and life insurance benefits is actuarially
determined and accrued over the service period of the active employee group. The Company recognizes the
funded status of each defined benefit pension plan, retiree health care and other postretirement benefit plans
and postemployment benefit plans on the balance sheet.

(o) Stock Options: -

The Company accounts for employee stock compensation plans by measuring compensation cost for
share-based payments at fair value. In December 2012 and September 2012, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer delivered 162,397 and 76,155 shares of common stock, respectwely, in payment of income and payroll
taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted shares. In January 2011, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer delivered 384,946 shares of common stock in payment of the exercise price and income and. payroll
taxes in connection with the exercise of an employee stock option for 448,960 shares. In September 2011, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer delivered 67,275 shares of common stock in payment of income and
payroll taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted shares. In September 2010, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer delivered 57,265 shares of common stock in payment of income and payroll taxes in
connection with the vesting of restricted shares. The Company immediately canceled the shares delivered in
these transactions.

(r) Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method and records deferred taxes for the
impact of temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities recognized for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for tax purposes as well as tax credit carryforwards and loss
carryforwards. These deferred taxes are measured by applying currently .enacted tax rates. A valuation
allowance reduces deferred tax assets when it is deemed more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. A current tax provision is recorded for income taxes currently payable.

The Company follows authoritative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes which requires
an entity to recognize the financial statement impact of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination. If the tax position meets the more-hkely -than-not recognition
threshold, the tax .effect is recognized at the largest amount of the benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance requires that a liability created for unrecognized deferred tax
benefits shall be presented as a liability and not combined with deferred tax liabilities or assets.

(q) Distributions and Dividends on Co_mmon Stock:

The Company records distributions on its common stock as dividends in its consolidated statement of
stockholders’ equity to the extent of retained earnings. Any amounts exceeding retained earnings are recorded
as a reduction to additional -paid-in-capital to the extent paid-in-capital is available. The Company’s stock
dividends are recorded as stock splits and given retroactive effect to earnings per share for all years presented.

(r) Revenue Recognition:

‘Sales: Revenues from sales are recognized upon the shipment of finished goods when t1t1e and risk of loss
have passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the sale price is determinable and
collectibility is reasonably -assured. The Company provides an allowance for expected sales returns, net of any
related inventory cost recoveries. Certain sales incentives, including buydowns, are classified as reductions of net
sales. The Company’s accounting policy is to include federal excise taxes in revenues and cost of goods sold.
Since the Company’s primary line of business is tobacco, the Company’s financial position and its results of
operations and cash flows have been and could continue to be materially adversely affected by significant unit
sales volume declines, litigation and defense costs, increased tobacco costs or reductions in the selling price of
cigarettes in the near term. .

F-13



VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs: .. Shipping and handling fees related to sales. transactions are
neither billed to customers nor recorded as revenue Shipping and handling costs, which were $5,474 in 2012,
$5,684 in 2011 and $5,323 in 2010 are recorded as operating, selling, administrative and general expenses. ‘

(s) Advertising:

Advertising costs, which are expensed as incurred and included within operating, seﬂing, administration
and general expenses, were $4,266, $3,099 and $2,970 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

(t) Comprehensive Income:

The Company early adopted authontatlve guidance on Comprehensive Income. This guldance requires
entities to present components of net income and other comprehensive income in either a single continuous
~ statement of comprehensive income .or in two separate but consecutive statements. The Company elected to
present items of net income and other comprehensive income in two separate, but consecutive, statements.
The items are presented before related tax effects with detailed amounts shown for the income tax expense or
benefit related to each component of other comprehensive i income.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income taxes, were as follows:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 01 010

Net unrealized gains on investment securities available for sale,

net of income taxes of $8,886, $14,938, and $14,591,

respectively . . ... ... L - $ 13,001 $ 21,856 $ 21,887
Net unrealized (losses) gains on long-term investment accounted : '

for under the equity method, net of income tax benefits of $458

and $1,007 and expense of $446, respectively . .. .......... (670) (1,474) 669
Forward contracts adjustment; net of income taxes of $88, $114, '

and $140, respectively . . .. .......... . ... (129) 167) (206)
Pension-related amounts, net of i income taxes of $15, 358 $16, 330, L

and $11,929, respectively . . . ...ttt (22,470) (23,892) (17,894)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income. ............ $(10,268) $ 3,677)  $ 4456

(u) Fair Value of Derivatives Embedded within Convertible Debt:

The Company has estimated the fair market value of the embedded derivatives based prmmpally on the
results of a valuation model. The estimated fair value of the derivatives embedded within the convertible ‘debt is
based principally on the present value of future dividend payments expected to be received by the convertible debt
holders over the term of the debt. The discount rate applied to the future cash flows is estimated based on a
spread in the yield of the Company’s debt when compared to risk-free securities with the same duration; thus, a
readily determinable fair market value of the embedded derivatives is not available. The valuation model assumes
future dividend payments by the Company and utilizes interest rates and credit spreads for secured to unsecured
debt, unsecured to subordinated debt and subordinated debt to preferred stock to determine the fair value of the
derivatives embedded within the convertible debt. The valuation also considers other items, including current and
future dividends and the volatility of Vector’s stock price. At December 31, 2012, the range of estimated. fair
market -values of the Company’s embedded derivatives was between $169,424 and $174,909. The Company
recorded the fair market value of its embedded derivatives at the midpoint of the -inputs at $172,128 as of
December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2011, the range of estimated fair market values of the Company’s
embedded derivatives was between $130,917 and $136,182. The Company recorded the fair market value -of its
embedded derivatives at the midpoint of the inputs at $133,500 as of December 31, 2011. The estimated fair
market value. of the Company’s embedded. derivatives could change significantly based on future market
conditions. (See Note 7.) . .
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NOTES TO 'CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

(v) Capital and Credit Markets: .

The Company has performed additional assessments to determine the 1mpact, if any, of market
developments on the Company ] consohdated ﬁnanmal statements. The Company’s additional assessments
have included a review of access to lquidity in the cap1ta1 and credit markets, counterparty creditworthiness,
value of the Company’s investments (including long-term investments, mortgage receivable and employee
benefit plans) and macroeconomic conditions. The volatility in capital and credit markets may create
additional risks in the upcoming months and possibly years and the Company will continue to perform
additional assessments to determine the impact, if any, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Thus, future impairment charges may occur.

On a:quarterly. basis, the Company evaluates its investments to determine whether an impairment has
occurred. If so, the Company also makes a determination of whether such impairment is considered temporary
or. other-than-temporary.- The: Company believes that the assessment of temporary or other-than-temporary
impairment is facts-and circumstances driven. However, among the matters that are considered in making such
a determination are the period of time the investment has remained below its cost or carrying value, the
likelihood of recovery given the reason for the decrease in market value and the Company’s original expected
holdmg period of the mvestment

" (w) Contingencies:

‘The Company " records ‘Liggett’s product liability legal expenses and other litigation costs as operating,
selling, administrative and general expenses as those costs are incurred. As discussed in Note 12, legal
proceedings covering a w1de range of matters are pending or threatened in various Jlll‘lSdlCthIlS agamst nggett :
and the Company

The Company and 1ts subs1d1anes record provisions in their consolidated ﬁnancral statements for pending
litigation . when -they determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of loss can be
reasonably. estimated. At-the present time, while it is reasonably possible that an unfavorable outcome in a
case may occur, except as disclosed in Note 12: (i) management has concluded that it is not probable that a
loss has been incurred in any of the pending tobacco-related cases; or (ii) management is unable to estimate
the possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome of any of the pending
tobacco-related cases and, therefore, management has not provided any amounts in the consolidated financial
statements for unfavorable outcomes, if any. Legal defense costs are expensed as mcurred

Adverse' verdicts have been entered against Liggett in eight state court Engle progeny cases (exclus1ve of
the Lukacs case, discussed in Note 12) and two of these verdicts have been affirmed on appeal. At
December 31, 2012, Liggett and the Company are defendants in 3,074 state court Engle progeny . cases.
Through December 31, 2012, other than the Lukacs case, the verdicts against Liggett have ranged from $1 to
$3,008. In certain cases, the Judgments entered have been joint and several with the other defendants. In two
of these cases, pumtlve damages were also awarded for $1,000 and $7,600. Our potential range of loss in the
six Engle progeny cases currently on appeal is between $0 and $16,166 in the aggregate, plus accrued interest
and attorneys’ fees. In determining the range of loss, we consider potential settlements as well as future
appellate relief. Except as discussed in Note 12, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range
of loss from remaining Engle progeny cases as there are currently multiple defendants in each case and
discovery has not occurred or is limited. As a result, the Company lacks'information-about whether plaintiffs
are; in fact Engle, class members (non-class: members’ claims are generally- time-barred), the relevant smoking
history, the nature of the alleged ‘injury- and the availability of various defenses, among other things. Further,
plaintiffs typically donot specify their demand for damages. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and it
is possible that the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows' could be
materially adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome in any such tobacco-related litigation. '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

(x) New Accounting Pronouncements:

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued amendments to disclosure
requirements for common fair value measurement. These amendments, effective for the interim and annual
periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011 (early adoption is prohibited), result in a common definition
of fair value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure requirements between U.S. GAAP
and IFRS. Consequently, the amendments change some fair value measurement principles and disclosure
requirements. This accounting guidance only impacted presentation and disclosures and did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2012, the FASB issued amendments to the indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment guidance
which provides an option for companies to use a qualitative approach to test indefinite-lived intangible assets
for impairment if certain conditions are met. The amendments are effective for annual -and interim
indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15,
2012 (early adoption was permitted). The implementation of the amended accounting guidance is not expected
to‘have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued amendments to the accounting guidance for presentation of
comprehensive income to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive
income. The amendments do not change the current requirements for reporting net income or other
comprehensive income, but do require an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income by component. In addition, an entity is required to present, either on
the face of the statement where the net income is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified
out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income but only if the
amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net
income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under GAAP that provide
additional detail about these amounts. For public companies, these amendments are effective prospectively for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The implementation of the amended - accounting
guidance- should not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Information concerning the Company’s common stock -has been. adjusted to give effect to the 5% stock
dividends paid to Company stockholders on September 28, 2012, September 29, 2011 and September 29,
2010. The dividends were recorded at par value of $414 in 2012, $378 in 2011 and $357 in 2010 since the
Company did not have retained earnings in each of the aforementioned years. In connection with the 5% stock
dividends, the Company increased the number of shares subject to outstandmg stock options by 5% and
reduced the exercise prices accordingly.

For purposes of calculating basic EPS, earnings available to common stockholders for the period are
reduced by the contingent interest and the non-cash interest expense associated with the discounts created by
the beneficial conversion features and embedded derivatives related to the Company’s convertible debt issued.
The convertible debt issued by the Company are participating securities due to the contingent interest feature
and had no impact on EPS for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 as the dividends on the
common stock reduced earnings available to common stockholders so there were no unallocated earnings.

As discussed in Note 11, the Company has stock option awards which provide for- common stock
dividend equivalents at the same rate as paid on the commeon stock with respect to the shares underlying the
unexercised portion of the options. These outstanding options represent participating securities' under
authoritative guidance. The Company recognizes payments of the dividend equivalent rights ($2,709, net of
income taxes of $26, $2,580, net of income taxes of $25, and $2,480, net of income taxes of $0, for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively) on these options as reductions in additional paid-in
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capital on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. As & result, in its caleulation. of basic EPS for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, the Company has adJusted its net 1ncome for the
effect of these pamclpatmg securities as follows: )

P A } 2012 2011 2010

Netincome . . . oo oveennn.. . . $30,622  $75,020  $54,084
Income attributable to participating seeurities . .- ... ... . ... (608):  (1,552) (1,146)
Net income available to common stockholders . . . . . . $30,014  $73,468 $52,938

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net .income available to common . stockholders by the
welghted-average number of shares outstandmg, wh1ch includes vested restrlcted stock

Dlluted EPS mcludes the dilutive effect of stock optlons unvested restncted stock grants and convertible
securities. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income available to.common stockholders by. the diluted
weighted-average number of shares outstanding, which includes dilutive non-vested restricted stock grants,
stock options and convertible securities. e

Basic and diluted EPS were calculated using the followmg shares for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010:

- 2012 2011 2010
Weighted-average shares for basic EPS. . . . . L...... 84612613 82608027 81,949,878
Plus incremental shares related to stock optlons and -

TWAITANS . ..o e e e P 80,383 212,624 400,102
Welghted—average shares for diluted EPS. " .. ... .... 84,692,996 82,820, 651 82, 349 980

The - following stock optlons non-vested restricted stock and shares 1ssuab1e upon the conversion of
convertible -debt were. outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 but were not
included in the computatlon of diluted EPS because the exercise prices of the options and the per share
expense associated with the restricted stock were greater than the averdge market price of the common shares
during the respectlve penods and the" 1mpact of common shares 1ssuab1e under the convertlble debt were

antl—dllutlve toEPS. ¢ S < ' ey
... Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Number of stock options .- . . . . T T A L. ONJIA 3,408 174,649
Welghted—average ‘exercise price DS AP Ll 0 NIAS 1648 . $ 2226
Weighted-average shares of hion-vested restricted stock. R T 7000 T~
Weighted-average expense per share ... ........... S8 1712 s ety =
Weighted-average number of shares: issuable upon’ conversion: CE v v e mar ey e ’

of debt. . .. ... e 18,008,626 18,503,930 18,900,356
Weighted-average conversion price . . .. ............... $ 1435 $ 1413 $ 14.16

The Company’s convertible debt was anti-dilutive in 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The components of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Gross Gross
Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
2012 .
Marketable equity securities . . ....... $48.097 $23,621 $(1,734) $69,984
2011
Marketable équity securities .. ....... $39,692 $38,173 - $(1,379) - $76,486

Investment securities available for sale as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 include New Valley’s

13,891,205 shares of Ladenburg Thalmann F1nanc1al Services Inc. (“LTS”) common stock, which were

carried at $19,448 and $34,450, respectlvely

4. INV_ENTORIES

Inventories consist of:

December 31, December 31,
i : 2012 2011
Leaf tobacco. . . ....... ..o TP ee.. - $59,130 $ 65411
Other raw materials . . ... 3,151 3,831
Work-in-process - . . . . . e e e e 210 688
Finished goods . .. ........ L T 64,396 - 64,594
INVENtOries at CUITENEt COSE. - - - + v v v v v e e e e e v e e e e 126,887 134,524
LIFO adjustments . .. ..........c..0un.... S : (26,495) -.(25,296)
: - ’ 3100392  $109,228

The Company has a leaf 1nventory management program whereby, among other things, it is commltted to
purchase certain quantities. of leaf tobacco. The purchase commitments are for quantities not in excess of
anticipated requirements and are at prices, including carrying costs, established at the commitment date. At
December 31, 2012, Liggett had leaf tobacco purchase commitments of approximately $11,914. The Company

has a smgle source supply agreement for fire safe cigarette paper through 2015.

The Company capitalizes the mcremental prepaid cost of the MSA in ending inventory. Each year the
Company capitalizes in inventory that portion of its MSA liability that has been shipped to the public
warehouses but not sold. The amount of capitalized MSA cost in “Flmshed goods” inventory was $13,854

and $13,804 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

All of the Company s inventories at December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been reported under the LIFO

method.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of:

December 31, December 31,
2012

2011
Land and improvements . . . . .............. e $ 1418 $ 1418
Buildings........................ e e e 14,945 14,410
Machinery and equipment. . . .............. e 142,826 134,168
Leasehold improvements . ........c......c.cotn .. e 3,868 3,038.
I . . S 163,057 153,034
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. . . . . . e _(105,904) . (96478) . .

$ 57,153 $ 56,556

Depreciation and amortization expeﬁsebfor the:years"ended December: 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
$10,608, $10,607 and $10,790, respectively. Future machinery and equipment purchase commitments at
Liggett were $1,995 and $3,042 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS . . S
Long-term investments consist of the following investments accounted for at cost:

December 31,2012  December 31, 2011

Carrying Fair _ Carrying Fair
. Value Value : - - Value -~ ‘Value
Investment partnerships . ........... e $15,540 - $16,962 . $4,776. - $6,199
Real estate partnership. . . ........ e 827 1,391 899 1,293

$16,367 - $18,353 - "$5,675 $7,492

The principal business of these investment partnerships is investing in investment securities and real
estate. The estimated fair value of the investment partnerships was provided by the partnerships based on the
indicated market values. of the underlying assets or investment portfolio. The investments in these investment
partnerships are illiquid and the ultimate realization of these investments is subject to the performance of the
underlying partnership and its management by the general partners. In the future, the Company may invest in
other investments, including limited partnerships, real estate investments, equity securities, debt securities,
derivatives and certificates of deposit, depending on risk factors and potential rates of return.

If it is determined that an other-than-temporary decline in fair value exists in long-term investments, the
Company records an impairment charge with respect to ‘'such investment in its consolidated statements of
operations. The Company will continue to perform additional assessments to determine the impact, if any, on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Thus, future impairment charges may occur. A

The Company’s investments constituted greater than 5% of the invested funds of the partnershlps for one
partnership at December 31, 2012 and two partnerships at December 31, 2011. These partnerships were
accounted for on the equity method. In accordance with authoritative guidance for accountmg for limited
partnership investments, the Company has accounted for the remaining investments using the cost method
of accounting.

The Company had invested $50,000 in Icahn Partoers, LP,-a pnvately managed mvestment parmershlp, of
which Carl Icahn was the portfolio manager and the controlling person of the general partner and manager of
the partnership. In 2011, Icahn Partners, LP was liquidated. The Company received liquidating distributions of
$55,500 in 2011 and recognized a gain of $20,500 on this investment for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Based on information available in public filings, affiliates of Mr. Icahn were the beneficial owners of more
than 5% of Vector’s common stock prior to November 2011, but had no interest in Vector’s common stock as
of December 31, 2011.
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The Company received cash distributions of $207, $608 and ‘$1,002 from one limited partnership.in

' 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Another of the Company’s long-term investments was liquidated in 2011. The Company received liquidating

distributions of $10,082. in 2011 and recognized a gain of $5,332 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The long-term investments are carried on the consolidated balance sheet at cost. The fair value
determination disclosed above would be classified as Level 3 under fair value hieratchy disclosed in Note 15
if such assets were recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The fair values were determined
based on unobservable inputs and were based on company assumptions, and information obtained from the

partnerships based on the indicated market values of the underlying assets of the investment portfolio.

The changes in the fair value of these investments were as follows:

: . : ‘ N : 2012 2011
Balance as of January 1........... PP T S . $7492 $72,102
Distributions . . . ... ... e 07) (66,190)
Reduction in partnership mterest now accounted for under the cost .
method . ........ ... i ... ... e e e SO 15,541 —
Revision for partnership now accounted for as investment securities
available for sale . ...... e v e e e e e e (6,122) —
Realized gain on 11qu1dat10n of long-term investments . . . ........ 135 25,832
Unrealized gains reclassified into net income . . .. .. ........... (135)- (25,832)
Untealized gain-on long-term investments . . . ................ 1,649 1,580
Net change in long-term’ mvestments e 1,514 (24,252)
Balance as of December K PR $18,353 $ 7,492

.~ Long-term investments consist- of the:following investments accounted for under the equity method:

December 31, December 31,
S 2012 2011
Investment partnerships . ............ e TP e $6,432 $16,499
The changes in- the fair value of these investments were as follows:
o o L - ; . 2012 2011
Balance as of January 1 . .. ... .. PP e gy e s ~ $16,499 $10,954
Contributions. . . . . .ot e e e e e e 5,000 10,000
Reduction in partnershlp mterest now accounted for under the cost '
method . ... ......... ... .0 ... . . . o 0 (15,541) —
Equ1ty loss on long—term 1nvestments accounted for under the ‘
equity method ... .0 ... (1,261) (859)
Unrealized gains reclassified into netincome . . .............. — —
-Unrealized (loss) gain on long-term’ investments .". . . . . Foli e, 1,735 (3,596)
Net change in long-term investments. ......... e 1,735 (3,596)
Balance as of December 31. cee e L il 8 6432 - $16,499
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The principal business of these investment partnerships is investing in investment securities.. The
estimated fair value of the investment partnerships was provided by the partnerships based on the indicated
market values of the underlying assets or investment portfolio. The investments in these investment
partnerships are illiquid and the ultimate realization of these investments is subject to the performance of the
underlying partnership and its management by the general partners. In the future, the Company may invest in
other investments, including limited partnerships, real estate investments, equity securities, debt securities,
derivatives and certificates of deposit, depending on risk factors and potential rates of return.

7. NOTES PAYABLE, LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS

Notes payable, long-term debt and other obligations consist of:

- December 31, December 31,
o201

2012
Vector:
11% Senior Secured Notes due 2015, net of unamortlzed discount of $408 and o
3 O P $414,592 . $414,409
6.75% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Note due 2014, net of unamortized A ‘
discount of $30,383 and $35,704% . . . . ... ... e 19,617 14,296
6.75% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Exchange Notes due 2014, netof - . . o ’
unamortized discount of $45,038 and $57,036* . . ... ....... ... ... .. 62,492 50,494
3.875% Variable Interest Senior Convemble Debentures due 2026, net of ‘ A '
unamortized discount of $36,107 and $82,948* . . ... ................. 7115 - 16,052
7.5% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debentures due 2019 net of . -
unamortized dlscount of $161,795 and $0* . ... ... 68,205 —
Liggett: ' e '
Revolving credit facility. . . .. ... ...oouttii il 29,430 21,472
Term loan under credit facility . .. ....... L DI R 4179 5689
Equipment loans. . . . ................... P . 17,810 21255
10 13T O S e : 284 533
Total notes payable; long-term debt and other obligations . . . .. ... AP I E 623,724 -~ 544,200
Less: ) . , ‘ B o : , | | . :
Current maturities . . . . . e P e [ . (36,778) (50,844)

Amount due after one year. . ... ...... L S P <. $586,946 $493,356

*  The fair value of the derivatives embedded within the 6.75% Variablé Interest Senior Conveitible Note
($11,682 at December 31, 2012 and $16,929 at December 31, 2011, respectively), the 6.75% Variable
Interest Senior Convertible Exchange :Notes ($22,146 at December 31,- 2012 and $32,086 at
December. 31, 2011, respectively), the 3.875% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debentures ($39,714
at December 31, 2012 and $84,485-at. December 31,.2011, respectively),-and the 7.5% Variable Interest
Senior Convertible Debentures ($98,586 at December 31, 2012 and $0 at December 31, 2011,
respectively) is separately classified as a derivative liability in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.
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11% Senior Secured Notes due 2015 — Vector

At December 31, 2012, the Company had outstandlng $415 000 pnnc1pal amount of its 11% Senior
Secured Notes due 2015. The 11%. Senior Secured Notes were sold in August 2007 ($165,000),
September 2009 ($85,000), April 2010 ($75,000) and December 2010 ($90,000) -in private offerings to
qualified institutional investors in accordance with Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933.

The 11% Senior Secured Notes pay interest on a semi-annual basis at a rate of 11% per year and mature
on August 15, 2015. On or after August 15, 2011 the Company may redeem some or all of the 11% Senior
Secured Notes at a premium that will decrease over time, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated
damages, if any, to the redemption date.

The 11% Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed subject to certain customary automatic release provisions
on a joint and several basis by all of the 100% owned domestic subsidiaries of the Company that are engaged
in the conduct of the Company’s cigarette businesses. (See Note 19.) In addition, some of the guarantees are
collateralized by second priority or first priority security interests in certain collateral of some of the
subsidiary guarantors, “including their common stock, pursuant to security and pledge agreements. On
January 29, 2013, the Company announced a cash tender offer for the 11% Senior Secured Notes.

7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2021:

In February 2013, the Company sold $450,000 of its 7.75% Senjor Secured Notes due 2021 in a private
offering to qualified institutional investors in accordance with Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. The
aggregate net proceeds from the sale of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes were approx1mately $438,250 after
deducting underwriting discounts, commissions, fees and offermg expenses ' The Company 1ntends to use the
net proceeds of the issuance for a cash tender offer announced on January 29, 2013, with respect to any and
all of its outstanding 11% Senior Secured Notes due 2015. The Company retired $336,315 of the 11% Senior
Secured Notes at a premium of 104.292%, plus accrued and unpaid interest on February 12, 2013. The
remaining $78,685 of the 11% Senior Secured Notes have been called and will be retired on March 12, 2013
at a redemption price of 103.667% plus accrued and unpaid interest. '

The 7.75% Senior Secured Notes pay interest on a semi-annual basis at a rate of 7.75% per year and
mature ‘on February 15, 2021. The Company may redeem.some or all of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes at
any time prior to February 15, 2016 at a make-whole redemption price. On or after February 15, 2016 the
Company may redeem some or all of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes at a premium that will decrease over
time, plus accrued' and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. At any time
prior. to February 15, 2016, the Company may on any one or more occasions redeem up to-35% of the
aggregate pnnc1p31 amount of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes with the net proceeds of certain equity
offerings. at-107.75%.-of . the aggregate - principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest and
liguidated .damages, if any, to. the redemption date. In the event of -a change of -control, as defined in the
indentiiré governing the 7,75%:Senior Secured Notes, each holder of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes may
require the Company to repurchase some or all of its 7.75% Senior Secured Notes at a repurchase price equal
to 101% of their aggregate prm01pa1 amoumt plus accrued and unpald interest and liquidated damages, if any
to the date of purchase

The 7.75% Semor Secured Notes are guaranteed subject to certain customary automatic release
provisions on a joint and several basis by all of the 100% owned domestic subsidiaries of the Company that
are engaged in the conduct of the Company’s cigarette businesses. (See Note 19.) In addition, some of the
guarantees are collateralized by second priority or first priority security interests in certain collateral of some
of the subsidiary guarantors, including their common stock, pursuant to security and pledge agreements.
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In connection with the issuance. of the 7:75% .Senior. Secured Notes, the -Company  entered into a
Registration Rights Agreement. The Company agreed to consummate a registered exchange offer for the
7.75% Senior Secured Notes within 360 days after the date of the initial issuance of the 7.75% Senior Secured
Notes. The new 7. 75% Senior Secured Notes to be issued in the exchange offer will have substantially the
same terms as the original notes, except that the 'new 7.75% Senior Secured Notes w111 have been registered
under the Securities Act.” The Company will be required to pay additional interest on' the 7.75% Senior
Secured Notes if it fails to timely comply with its obligations under the Reglstratlon nghts Agreement until
such time as it comphes o e g v , -

The 1ndenture contams covenants that restnct the payment of d1v1dends by the Company if the
Company’s consohdated eammgs before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as. defined in ‘the
indenture, for the most recently ended four full quarters is less than $75,000. The indenture also restrrcts the
incurrence of debt if the. Company s Leverage Ratio and its Secured Leverage. Ratio, .as defined 1n the
indenture, exceed 3.0 and 1.5, respectrvely The Company’s Leverage Ratlo is deﬁned in the indenture as the
ratio of the Company S and the -guaranteeing, subsidiaries’ total. debt less . the fa11' market value of the
Company s cash, investments. in marketable securities and long- -term 1nvestments to Consohdated EBITDA as
defined in the mdenture The Company s Secured. Leverage. Ratio is defined.in the. 1ndenture in the same
manner. as the Leyerage Ratio, except that secured indebtedness is subst.ltuted for indebtedness.

’ ‘ Vanable Interest Semor Convemble Debt — Vector

"Vector has outstandmg four series of variable interest senior convertlble debt. All four series of debt pay
interest on a quarterly basis at a stated rate plus an additional amount of 1nterest on each payment date. The
additional amount is based on the amount of cash dividends paid during the prior three—month period ending
on the record date for such interest payment multlphed by, the total number, of shares. of its common stock into
which the debt would be convertlble on such record date (the “Addmonal Interest”)

6 75% Vanable Interest Semor Convemble Note due 2014

On May 11, 2009, the Company issued in a private placement the 6.75% Note in the pnnc1pa1 amount of
$50,000. The purchase price was paid in cash ($38,225) and by tendering $11,005 principal amount of the 5%
Notes, valued at 107% of principal amount. The note pays interest (‘“Total Interest”) on a quarterly basis at.a
rate of 3.75% per annum plus additional interest, which is based on'the amount ‘of cash:dividends paid during
the prior three-month period ending'on the record:- date- for such’ interest payment multiplied by the total
number ‘of shares' of its common stock into’ which the debt will be.convertible on such record date.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the interest ‘payable on éach interest payment date shall be the higher
of (i) the Total Interest and (ii) 6.75% per annum. The note is convertible:into the Company’s common stock
at the holder’s optlon The conversion price as of December.31, 2012:0f $12.37 per share (approxrmately
80.8182 shares of common stock per, $1 000 principal amount of the note) is subject to adJustment for various
events, including the issuance of stock dividends. The note will mature on November 15, 2014. The. Company
will redeem on May 11, 2014 and at the end of each interest accrual penod thereafter an addltlonal amount, if
any, of the note necessary to prevent the note from be1ng treated as .an: “Apphcable High Y1e1d Discount
Obligation” under the Internal Revenue Code. If a fundamental change (as defined in the note) occurs,
the: Company will. be requlred to oﬁer ‘to repurchase the note:at 100% of - its prmmpal amount, plus
accrued interest. - : o e

The purchaser of the 6. 75% Note is an entlty aﬁihated w1th Dr Phillip  Frost, who reported after the
consummation of -the sale, beneficial ownership of approximately 11.7% of the Company’s common stock. In
November 2011, Dr. Frost reported that entities affiliated with him“had beneficial ownership of approximately
18.5% of the Company’s common stock following the purchase of additional shares in a pnvately—negotlated
transaction with an existing stockholder. - . L :
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-6.75% Vanable Interest Senior Convertible Exchange Notes due 2014:

In June 2009, the Company entered into agreements w1th certam holders of the 5% Notes to exchange
their 5% Notes for the Company’s 6.75% Exchange Notes. In June 2009, certain holders of $99,944, principal
amount of the 5% Notes exchanged their 5% Notes for $106,940 of the 6.75% Exchange Notes. In
November 2009, certain holders of $555 of the 5% Notes exchanged their 5% Notes for $593 of the
Company’s 6. ’75% Exchange Notes.

The Company issued its 6.75% Exchange Notes to the holders in reliance on the exemption from the
registration reqmrements of the Securities Act afforded by Section 3(a)(9) thereof. The notes pay interest
(“Total Interest”) on a quarterly basis beginning August 15, 2009 at a rate’ of 3.75% per annum plus
additional interest, which is based on the amount of cash dividends paid during the prior three-month penod
ending on the record date for such interest payment multiplied by the total number of shares of its common
stock into which the debt will be convertible on such record date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the
interest payable on each interest payment date shall be the higher of (i) the Total Interest and (ii) 6.75% per
annum. The notes are convertible into the' Company’s common stock at the holder’s option. The conversion
price as of December 31, 2012 of $14.04 per share (approxunately 71.2364 shares of common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of notes) is subject to adjustment for various events, including the issuance of stock
dividends. The notes will matiure on November 15, 2014. The Company will redeem on June 30, 2014 and at
the end of each interest accrual period thereafter an additional amount, if any, of the notes necessary to
prevent the notes from being treated as an “Applicable ngh Yield Discount Obligation” under the Internal
Revenue Code. If a fundamental change (as defined in the indenture) occurs, the Company will be required to
offer to repurchase the notes at 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest and, under certain
cucumstances a ‘make whole” payment.

3. 875% Varmble Interest Semor Convertible Debentures due 2026:

In July 2006, the Company sold $110,000 of its 3 875% variable interest semior convertlble debentures
due 2026 in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the
Securities Act.

* The debentures pay interest on ‘a quarterly basis at a rate of 3.875% per annum plus Additional Interest (the
“Debenture Total Interest”).- Notwithstanding the foregoing; however, the interest payable on each interest
payment date shall be the higher of (i) the Debenture Total Interest and (i) 5.75% per annum. The debentures.are
convertible into the Company’s common stock at the holder’s option. The conversion price at December 31, 2012
was $15.28 per share (approximately 65.4465 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the note),
is subject to adjustment for various events, including the issuance of stock dividends. .

The debentures will mature on June 15, 2026. The holders of the debentures will have the option on
June 15, 2012, June 15, 2016 and June 15, 2021 to requ1re the. Company to repurchase some or all of their
remaining debentures. The redemption price for such redemptions will equal 100% of the principal amount of
the debentures - plus accrued interest. If a fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture) occurs, the
Company will be required to offer to repurchase the debentures at 100% of their principal amount, plus
accrued interest and, under certain circumstances, a ‘““make-whole prenuum '

The : Company  was required: to mandatorily redeem on June 15, 2011, 10% of the total aggregate
principal amount outstanding, or $11,000, of the Company’s 3.875% Variable Interest Senior Convertible
Debentures due 2026. Other than the holders of $7 principal amount of the debentures, who had 10% of their
aggregate principal -amount of débentures' mandatorily redeemed, each holder of the debentures chose to
convert its pro-rata portion of ‘the $11,000 of principal amount ‘of debentures into 755,218 shares of the
‘Company’s: common stock. The Company recorded a non-cash accelerated interest expense related to the
converted debt of $1,217 for the year ended December 31, 2011, on the conversion of the debentures. The
debt conversion resulted in a non-cash financing transaction of $10,993.-
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Holders of the Debentures converted $2 principal amount of the Debentures into 131 shares of the
Company’s common stock in February 2012, $31,370 principal amourit into 2,053,065 shares of common stock in
June 2012, and $24,406 principal amount into 1,597,290 shares of common stock ‘in September 2012. The
Company recorded non-cash accelerated interest expense related to the converted debt of $14,960 for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The debt conversion resulted in a reclassification from debt to equity in the amount of
$55,778: As of December 31, 2012, the principal amount of the Debentures outstanding was $43,222.

The holders of the Debentures had the option to put all of the remaining senior convertible notes on
June 15, 2012. None of the Debentures were surrendered for repurchase by the Company. The holders of the
Debentures next have the option-to put all or part of the remaining Debentures to the Company on June 15,
2016. Accordingly, the Company reclassified the Debentures and related fair value of denvatlves embedded
w1th1n convertible debt from current liabilities to long-term liabilities.

7.5% Variable Interest Senior Convertible Senior Notes due 2019:

In November 2012, the Company sold $230,000 of its 7.5% variable interest senior convertible notes due
2019 interest senior convertible notes due 2019 (the “2019 Convertible Notes™) in a public offering registered
under the Securities Act. The 2019 Convertible Notes are our senior unsecured obligations and are effectively
subordinated to any of its secured indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing such indebtedness The
subsidiaries. The aggregate net proceeds from the sale of the 2019 Convertible Notes were approximately
$218,900 after deducting underwriting discounts, commissions, fees and offering expenses.

The 2019 Convertible Notes pay interest (“Total Interest”) on a quarterly basis beginning January 15,
2013 at a rate. of 2.5% per-annum plus additional interest, which is based on the amount of cash.dividends
paid during the prior three-month period ending on the record date for such interest payment multiplied by the
total number of shares of its common stock into which the debt will be convertible on such tecord date.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the interest payable on each interest payment date shall be the higher
of (i) the Total Interest and (ii) 7.5% per annum. The notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock
at the holder’s option. The conversion price at December 31, 2012 was $18.50 per share (approx1mate1y 54.0541
shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the note), is subject to adjustment for various events,
including the issuance of stock dividends. The notes will mature on January 15, 2019. If a fundamental change (as
defined in. the indenture) occurs, the Company will be required. to offer to repurchase the notes at 100% of their
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the fundamental change repurchase date.

Share Lending Agreement:

In connection with the offering of its 2019 Convemble Notes in November 2012, the Company lent
Jefferies & Company (“Jefferies”), the underwriter for the offering, a total of 6,114,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock under the Share Lending Agreement. Jefferiés is entitled to offer and sell such
shares and use the sale to facilitate the establishment of a hedge position by investors in the notes and will
receive all proceeds from the common stock offerings and lending transactions under the Share Lending
Agreement. The Company received a nominal lending fee of $0.10 per share for each share of common stock
that the Company lent pursuant to the Share Lending Agreement. E

The Share Lending Agreement requires that the shares borrowed be returned upon the maturity of the
related debt, January 2019, or earlier, including the redemption of the notes or the conversion of the notes to
shares of common stock pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the-notes. ‘Bortowed shares are
issued and outstanding for corporate law purposes and, accordingly, the holders of the borrowed shares will
have all of the rights of a holder of the Company’s outstanding shares. However, because the share borrower
must return to the Company all borrowed shares (or identical shares), the borrowed shares are not considered
outstanding for purposes of computing and reperting the Company’s earnings per share in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Jefferies agreed to pay to the Company an amount equal to any
dividends or other distributions that the Company pays on the borrowed shares.
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The Company received a nominal fee for the loaned shares and. determined the fair value of the Share
Lending Agreement was $3,204 at the date of issuance based on the present value of the future cash. flows
attributed to an estimated reduction in stated interest due to the presence of the Share Lending. Agreement.
The $3,204 fair value was recognized as a debt financing charge and is being amortized to interest expense
over the term of the notes. In November 2012, 3,057,000 shares were returned but no cash was exchanged. As
of December 31, 2012, 3,057,000 shares were outstanding on the Share Lending Agreement and $12 had been
amortized to interest expense.

Embedded Dén'vatives on the Variablé Interest Senior Convertible Debt:

The portion of the interest on the Company’s convertible debt which is computed by reference to the
cash dividends paid on the Company’s common stock is considered an embedded derivative within the
convertible debt, which the Company is required to separately value. In accordance with authoritative
guidance on accounting for derivatives and hedging, the Company has bifurcated these embedded derivatives
and estimated the fair value of the embedded derivative liability including using a third party valuation. The
resulting discount created by allocating a portion of the issuance proceeds to the embedded derivative. is then
amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. Changes to the. fair
value of these embedded derivatives are reflected quarterly in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations as - ‘“‘Change in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt.” The value of the
embedded derivative is contingent on changes in interest rates of debt instruments maturing over the duration
of the convertible debt as well as projections of future cash and stock dividends over the term of the debt.

" A summary of non-cash interest expense associated with the amortization of the debt discount created by
the embedded derivative liability associated with the Company s variable interest senior converuble debt is
as follows

Year Ended December 31,
et 2012 2011 - 2010 -
675% NOte. . . vt v [P U $ 2,842 $1,415 $ 749
6.75% exchange notes . ......: e 7,416 4,745 3,113
3.875% convertible debentures . ........... PR 57 195 575
7.5% convertible NOtes . . . .. it " 369 — —
Interest expense associated with embedded derivatives . . . . . $10,684 $6,355 $4,437

A summary of non-cash changes in fair value of denvatlves embedded within convertlble debt is
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
: : 2012 2011 2010

6.75% note. . ... ... ... . e $ 5,247 $ 3,290 $ 3,671 -
6.75% eXChange NOLeS . . . . . ... ov e e 9,940 6,238 9,228
3.875% convertible debentures ... ... .. 00 0L (22,281) (1,544) (1,375)
7.5% convertible notes . . .. .. ...t (382) — —
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of denvatlves embedded ’

w1th1n convertibledebt . . .. ...... ... .. .. .., $ (7.476). $7,984- $11,524
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The following table reconciles the fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt:

Balance at January 1, 2010 .. ... .. e e
(Gain) loss from changes i in fair value of embedded

derivatives . . ............ ... 0 ... ... :

Balance at December 31, 2010 ....... e R
Conversion of $11,000 of 3.875% Variable Interest

Senior Convertible Debentures due June 15, 2011 . . .

(Gain) loss from changes in fair value of embedded
derivatives . ............. ...

Balance at December 31, 2011. ... .. .. .......
_Conversion of $55,778 of 3.875% Variable Interest

Senior Convertible Debentures due June 15, 2016 . . .

Issuance of 7.5% Note . ..................

(Gain) loss from changes in fair value of embedded
derivatives . . .............0. ..., PR

Balance at December 31,2012, ... ............

6.75%

6.75% 3.875%

7.5%

Exchange Convertible Ceonvertible
Note Notes Debentures Notes ~ Total
... $23,890 $47,552 $81,574 $ — $153,016
... (3,671) (9,228) 1,375 — (11,524)
... 20,219 38,324 | 82,949 — 141,492
— — ®) — ®)
R (3,290) (6,238) 1,544 — (7,984)
Lo 16,929 32,086 84,485 — 133,500
— — (67,052) — (67,052)
..... — — — 98,204 98,204
o (5,247) 0 (9,940) 22,281 382 7,476

$11,682 $22,146 . $ 39,714

$98,586  $172,128.

Béneﬁcial Conversion Feature on Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debt:

After giving effect to the recording of the embedded derivative liability as a discount to the convertible
debt, the Company’s common stock had a fair value at the issuance date of the debt in excess of the
conversion price resulting in a beneficial conversion feature. The accounting guidance on debt with conversion
and other options requires that the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature be recorded to additional
paid-in capital and as a discount on the debt. The discount is then amortized to interest expense over the term
of the-debt using the effective interest method. The b_eneﬁci'al conversion feature has been recorded, net of

income taxes, as an increase to stockholders’ equity

_ A summary of non-cash 1nterest expense ass001ated w1th the amomzatlon of the debt discount created by
the beneficial conversion feature on the Company’s variable interest senior convertible debt is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
. _ ) ~ 2012 2011 2010
Amortization of beneficial conversion feature:
6.75% note. . ............ e e e e e e . $2479 $1,234 $ 653
6.75% exchange notes . . .. .. ..o uvin e 4,582 2,932 1,923
3.875% convertible debentures . ................ i ' 30 - (80) (46)
7.5% convertible notes. . . . . e e ey e L. 241 — —
Interest expense associated with beneficial conversion fea‘ture ... $7332 $4,086 $2,530
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Unamortized Debt Discount on Variable Interest Senior Convertible Debt:

The following table reconciles unamortized debt discount within convertible debt:

6.75% 3.875% 7.5%

6.75% Exchange =~ Convertible - Convertible i

Note Notes Debentures Notes Total
Balance at January 1,2010.............. e $39,755 $69,749 $83589 $ — .- $193,093
Amortization of embedded derivatives. . . ........... (749)  (3,113) (575) — 4,437)
Amortization of beneficial conversion feature . ... ... .. (653) (1,923) 46 — (2,530)
Balance at December 31,2010. . .. ... ........... . 38353 64,713 83,060 — 186,126
Conversion of $11,000 of 3.875% Variable Interest Senior '

Convertible Debentures due June 15,2011 . .. ... ... —_ — 3 — 3
Amortization of embedded derivatives... . . . .. v e (1,415) - (4,745) (195) —_ (6,355)
Amortization of beneficial conversion feature . ... ... .. (1,234) (2,932) 80 - — (4,086)
Balance at December 31,2011, .. .. 0. ... ... ... .. 35,704‘ 57,036 82,948 - — 175,688
Conversion of $55,778 of 3.875% Variable Interest Senior ‘

Convertible Debentures due June 15, 2016 ......... = — (46,754) . — (46,754)
Issuance of convertible notes — embedded derivative. . . . . — — — 98,204 98,204
Issuance of convertlble notes — beneficial conversion - ‘

feature. . . . . v o e e e — — — 64,201 64,201
Amortization of embedded derivatives . . EERI I (2,842) (7,416) 57 (369) (10,684)
Amortization of beneficial conversion feature . . . . . . oL (2,479)  (4,582) (30) (241) (7,332)
Balance at December.31,2012. . . .. ... ........ .+ $30,383 $45,038 $36,107 . $161,795 $273,323

Revolvmg Credit Factltgy — Liggett

nggett has a $50 000 credit facility (the “Credit Fac111ty”) with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells
Fargo”). The Credit Facility is collateralized by all inventories and receivables of Liggett and a mortgage on
Liggett’s. manufacturmg facility. The Credit Facility requires Liggett’s compliance with certain financial and
other covenants including a restriction on Liggett’s ability to pay cash dividends unless Liggeit’s borrowing
availability, as defined, under the credit facility for the 30-day period prior to the payment of the dividend,
and after giving effect to the dividend, i$ at least $5,000 and no event of default has occurred under the
agreement, including Liggett’s compliance with the covenants in the credit facility.

~ The Credit Facility expires on March 8, 2015; provided that Liggett may terminate the Credit Facility
prior to March 8, 2015 at any time by giving at least 30 days prior written notice to Wells Fargo, and Wells
Fargo may, at Well Fargo’s option, terminate the Credit Facility at any time upon the occurrence and during
the continuance of an Event of Default. Prime rate loans under the facility bear interest at a rate equal to the
prime rate of Wells’ Fargo with Eurodollar rate loans bearing interest at a rate of 2.0% above Wells Fargo’s
adjusted Eurodollar rate. The credit facility contains covenants that provide that Liggett’s earnings before
interest, taxes, dépreciation and amortization, as defined under the credit facility, on a trailing twelve month
basis, shall not be’ less than $100, 000 if L1ggett s excess availability, as defined, under the credit facility, is
less than $20:000. The covenants also require that annual Capital Expenditures, as defined ‘under the credit
facility (before a maximum carryover amount of $2,500), shall not exceed $15,000 during any fiscal year
except for 2010, when Liggett was permitted to incur Capital Expenditures of up to $33,000.

Term Loan under Credit Facility — Liggett:

In February 2012, Wells Fargo amended and restated the existing $5,600 term loan (the “Term Loan™)
made to 100 Maple LLC (“Maple™), a subsidiary of Liggett, within the commitment under the Credit Facility.
In connection with the amendment and restatement the maturity date of the Term Loan was extended to
March 1, 2015 and the outstanding principal amount was paid down to $4,425. The Term Loan bears an
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interest rate equal to 1.75% more than Wells Fargo’s adjusted Eurodollar: rate. Monthly payments:of $25 are
due under the Term Loan from March 1, 2012 to February 1, 2015 ($885 i'(nv_tqtal)_ with the balance of $3,540
due at maturity on March 1, 2015. ‘ \ T ' s

The Term Loan is collateralized by the existing collateral securing'the Credit Facility, including)] without
limitation, certain real property owned by Maple. The T_cin’i‘Lbah"»did‘»ihot"increa‘sé‘the $50,000 borrowing
amount of the Credit Facility, but did increase the outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility by the amount
of the term loan and proportionately. reduces the maximum borrowing availability under the Credit Facility.

The Credit Facility permits the guaranty of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2021 by each of Liggett
and Maple and the pledging of certain assets of Liggett and Maple on a subordinated basis to secure ‘their
guarantees. The credit facility also grants to Wells Fargo a blanket lien on all the assets: of Liggett.and-Maple,
excluding any equipment pledged to current or future purchase money or other financiers of such equipment
and excluding any real property, other than the Mebane Property and other real property to the extent its value
is in excess of $5,000. Wells Fargo, Liggett, Maple and the collateral agent for the holders of our 7.75%
senior secured notes have entered into an intercreditor agreement, pursuant to which the liens of the collateral
agent on the Liggett and Maple assets will be subordinated to the liens of Wells Fargo on the Liggett and
Maple assets. v : o ' ‘

As of December 31, 2012, a total of $33,609 was outstanding under the revolving and term Joan boftions
of the credit facility. Availability as determined under the facility was approximately $16,391 based on 'éligible
collat¢ral 'at‘December 31, 2012. o

Equipment Loans — Liggett:

In 2010, Liggét't" entered into nine. financing agree}néﬁts fbt”a"fbtval of ,$16,634u're1;atei('l to the purchase of
equipment. The weighted average interest rate of the outstanding debt is 5.65%. per annum and the interest
rate on the notes ranges between 5.47% and 6.13%. The debt is. payable over 30 to 60 months with an
average term of 36 months. Total monthly installments are $155. In 2010, Liggett also refinanced $3,575 of

debt related to previous equipment purchases. The new debt carries an. intérest rate of 5.95% and is- payable in
36 installments of $109. .

In 2011, Liggett purchased equipment for $6,342 and entered into three financing agreements for a total
of $6,342 related to the equipment purchase. The weighted average interest rate of the .outstanding debt is
5.66% per annum and the interest rate on the various notes ranges between 5.33% and 5.82%. Total monthly
installments are $145. : : = S i - , ‘

In 2012, Liggett refinanced $4,452 of debt related to.equipment purchased in 2010. The refinanced debt had
a weighted average interest rate of 5.89% and an average remaining term of 43 months. The new debt carries an
interest rate of 5.96% and a term of 36 months. Total monthly installments are $135. Liggett purchased equipment -
for $5,040 and entered into four financing agreements for a total of $5,040 related to the equipment purchase. The
weighted average interest rate of the outstanding debt is 5.2% per annum and the interest rate on the various notes
ranges between 4.72% and 5.56% and is payable in installments of 36 to 48 months. o

Each of these equipment loans is collateralized by the purchased equipment.
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The estimated fair value of the Company’s notes payable and long-term debt has been determined by the
Company using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies including the evaluation
of the Company’s, credit risk as described in Note 1. However, considerable judgment is required to develop
the estimates of fair value and, accordingly, the estimate presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the
amoynt that could be realized in a current {markg't exchange. ‘

 December 31, 2012 . - December 31, 2011

i Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
o R ool o Value - Value .. . Value Value
Notes payable and long-term debt . . . . . . g e . $623,724  $963,672 $544,200  $801,353
* Scheduled Maturities: ' ‘
" ) Sélfiédu‘l;e_d"matuﬁiiésf Ao_/f' long-term debt are as follows:
) Unamertized
o - Principal Discount Net
“*'Yeaf Ending December 31: - ‘ ’ o
2013 ..... TR T T Lo ..., $367718 8 —  $36778
2014 .. ... PP 164,262 75,421 88,841
2015 422,240 . 408 421,832
2016 -+ v e e 44175 36,107 8,068
2017 .. e e . — — —
TRErEafter . . . o o v o ee et et e 230,000 161,795 68,205
Total . ....... O PP $897,455 = $273,731 $623,724

~ The scheduled maturities in 2016 reflect $43,222 (principal amount) which the Company may be required to
repurchase in 2016 in accordance with thie terms of the Company’s 3.875% Variable Interest Senior Convertible

Debentures due 2026 ;'Ihé’scheduled:métln*i'tie’s'ldo not ‘give effect to the tender offer for the 11% Senior Secured
Notes due 2015 nor the issuance of the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2021 in February 2013

Weig 'htek'd-Average Interesi Rate on Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt:

_ The weighted-average interest rate on the Company’s total indebtedness at December 31, 2012 was
approximately 11.18%. ‘

ot A

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries lease facilities and equipment used in operations under both
month-to-month and fixed-term agreements. The aggregate minimum rentals under operating leases with
non-cancelable:terms of one year or more as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

) Lease Sublease
S S Commitments Rentals Net
Year Ending December 31: : ‘

27 1) I NI L GRS el e e e L. $.3,976 -$402 $ 3,574
2014 ... ..o e e e .o 3,430 L : 3,430
2015 . e e e e e 2,887 — 2,887
2016 .. i i D0 aos. o 2,264 — - 2,264
2017 ...... e e e e 2,226 — 2,226
TBETCAFIET . « « + v e e v et e e e 3,958 = 3,958

TOWl . v e v e e e e e e e $18,741 $402 $18,339

The Company’s rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $4,100,
$4,313 and $3,670, respectively. .
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Déﬂried Benefit Plans and Postretirement Plans:

Defined Benefit Plans. The Company sponsors three defined benefit pension plans (two qualified and
one non-qualified) covering virtually all individuals who were employed by Liggett on a full-time basis prior
to 1994. Future accruals of benefits under these three defined benefit plans were frozen between 1993 and
1995. These benefit plans provide pension benefits for eligible employees based primarily on their
compensation and length of service. Contributions are made to the two qualified pension plans in amounts
necessary to meet the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 The plans’ assets and beneﬁt obligations were measured at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. °

The Company also sponsors a Supplemental Retirement Plan (“SERP”’) where the Company w1ll pay
supplemental retirement benefits to certain key employees, including certain executive officers of the
Company. In January 2006, the Company amended and restated its SERP (the “Amended SERP”), effective
January 1, 2005. The amendments to the plan were intended, among other things, to cause the plan to meet
the applicable requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. The Amended SERP is intended to
be unfunded for tax purposes, and payments under the Amended SERP will be made out of the general assets
of the Company. Under the Amended SERP, the benefit payable to a participant at his normal retirement date
is a lump sum amount which is the actuarial equivalent of a predetermined annual retirement benefit set by
the Company’s board of directors. Normal retirement date is defined as the January 1 followmg the attainment
by the participant of the latter of age 60 or the compleuon of eight years of employment followmg January 1,
2002 with the Company or a subs1d1ary

In April 2008, the SERP was amended to prov1de the Company s President and Chief Executlve Officer
with an additional benefit under the SERP equal to a $736 lifetime annuity begmmng January 1, 2013. This
additional benefit vests in full on January 1, 2013, subject to his remaining contmuously employed by the
Company- through -that date, subJect to part1al vesting for termination of - employment under certain
circumstances. In addition, in the évent of a termination of his employment under the circumstances where he
is entitled to severance payments under his employment agreement, he will be credited with an additional
36 months of service towards vesting under the SERP. As a result of the add1t1onal benefit granted to h1m the
President and Chief Executive Officer will be eligible to receive a total lump sum retirement benefit of
$20,546 in 2013, an increase of $7,122 over the benefit he would have been entitled to I'CCCIVC “under the
SERP prior to the amendment assuming a January 1, 2013 retirement date. The $7,122 mcrease was
recognized as an expense in each' of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. :

At December 31, 2012 the aggregate lump sum equivalents of the annual reurement beneﬁts payable
* under the Amended SERP at normal retirement dates occurring during the following years is as follows:

© 2013 — $1,819; 2014 — $29,428; 2015 — $0; 2016 — $0; 2017 — $0~and 2018 to 2022 — $2,100. In the
case of a participant who becomes. d1sab1ed prlor to his normal retirement date or whose' service-is terminated
without cause, the participant’s benefit consists of a pro-rata portion of the full projected retirement benefit to.
which he would have been entitled had he remained employed through his normal retirement date, as
actuanally discounted back to the date of payment. A participant who dies while working for the Company ‘or
a subsidiary (and before becoming disabled or attaining his normal retirement date) will be pald an actuarially
discounted equivalent of his projected retirement benefit; conversely, a. participant’ who retires’ beyond his
normal retlrement date will receive an actuanally mcreased equ1valent of his projecteéd retlrement beneﬁt '

 Postretirement Medzcal and Life Plans. “The Company provides certain postretirement medical and life
insurance benefits to certain employees. Substantially all of the Company’s manufacturing employees as of
December 31, 2012 are eligible for postretirement medical benefits if they reach retirement age while working
for Liggett or certain affiliates. Retirees are required to fund 100% of participant medical premiums and,
pursuant to union contracts, Liggett reimburses approximately 306 hourly retirees, who retired prior to 1991,
for Medicare Part B premiums. In addition, the Company provides life insurance benefits to approximately
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194 active employees and 446 retirees who reach retirement age and are eligible to receive benefits under one
of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans. The Company’s postretirement liabilities are comprised of
Medicare Part B and life insurance premiums

The following table provides a reconciliation of beneﬁt obligations, plan assets and the funded status of
the pension plans and other postreurement benefits:

Pension Benefits ) Other Postretirement Benefits

) . 2012 . 2011 2012 2011
Change in benefit obligation: - . » :
Benefit obligation at January 1 . ............ $(151,008)  $(148,968)  $ (9,635) $(9,850)
Service cost . . . . . B ‘ (1,275) (1,422) (14) 13)
Interest COSt . . . ..o viit i 6,513) (7,481) (465) (500)
Benefits paid. . . . .. .. e PO 12,813 11,448 512 534
- Expenses paid. . . ... ....eenni.. P , 308 430 — —
_Actuarial (gain) 10SS. o v e P (8,041) (5,015) (556) 194
Beneﬁt obligation at December 31........... - $(153,716) - $(151,008) $(10,158) $(9,635)
Change in ‘plan assets: : ‘
Fair value of plan.assets at January 1o, $122,012  $132993 $ — $ —
Actual return on plan ASSELS . .o 15,656 537 —_ —
Expenses pald ......................... (308) 430) — —_
Contributions . . ... .... ... ... R 3,513 360 512 534
Benefits paid. . . ............. ce e (12,813) (11,448) (512) (534)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 ...... - $128060 $122012 0§ @ — $ —
Funded status at December 31 0. e $ (25,656) $ (28,996) $(10,158) $(9,635)
Amounts recogmzed in the consohdated balance
shieéts: : 7 ,
Prepald PENSION COSES . ..\ o ovv ot et $ 12,870 $ 10,046 $  — $ —
Other accrued Liabilities. . ... ............ Lo @161 (2,057) (663) (656)
Non-current employee benefit liabilities . . .. ... .. (36,365) (36,985) (9,495) (8,979)
Net amounts recognized. . . . ... P $ (25,656) $ (28,996)  $(10,158) $(9,635)
: Other
Pension Benefits _ Postretirement Benefits
» 2012 S 2011 2010 2l)12 2011 2010
Service cost — benefits earned during the o
period . ... ieee e $1275 $1422° $1360 $ 14 $ 13 $ 13
Interest cost on projected benefit obhgatlon . 6,513 7,481 8,131 465 500 521
Expected return On assetS. . . v oo . .o ea . (8,145) (8,834) 8271y = — _ =
Arhortiza;im of net loss (gain) . .. ....... 3,602 2,807 3,376 (121) (88) (129)
Net expense. . . . ... .. JO $3245 $2876 $4,59 $358  $425  $405
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The following -table summarizes amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss that are expected to
be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost for the year ending 2013.

Defined Benefit Post-Reﬁrement
Pension Plans Plans ‘ Total

Actuanalloss(gam)..’..\...' ...... $1,466 $(64) - 81,402

. As of December 31, 2012, current year accumulated other comprehensive income, before income taxes,
consists of the followmg

" Defined Benefit Post-Retirement

- Pension Plans - Plans : Total |
Prior year accumulated other comprehens1ve income . . ... .. $(40,717) $ 495 - $(40,222)
Amortization of prior serv1ce COSS .. .. : 2,018 ’ — © 2,018
Amortization of gain (loss) ........ SO ..... . . 1,584 (121 1,463
Net loss arising during the year. . ... ........... e (531) _(556) _ (1,087)
Current year accumulated other comprehenswe 10SS. . ... ... $(37 646) - $(182) $@37, 828)

" As of December 31 2011, current year accumulated other comprehenswe mcome, before income taxes,
consisted of the following: :

" Defined Benefit Post-Refirement g
Pension Plans Plans Total

Prior year accimulated other comprehensrve income . ...... © $(30,210) $388 * $(29,822)
Amortization of prior serv1ce COSES + v vene e eenn - 2,018 e C 2,018
Amortization of gain (loss). . .......... R 789 @88 . 701
Net (loss) gain arising dunng theyear................. (13314 - 195 (13,119)
Current year accumulated ‘other comprehens1ve (loss) income . $(40,717) ' $495 o $(40,222) -

-As of December 31 2012 three of the Company s four deﬁned benefit plans expenenced accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of - plan assets, for which in the aggregate the projected benefit. obl,lganon,
‘accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets were $103,663, $103,663 and $65,137, respectlvely
As of December 31, 2011, three of the Company s four deﬁned benefit plans expenenced accumulated ‘benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets, for which in the aggregate the projected benefit obhgatlon accumulated
benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets ‘were $100 970, $100 970 and $6l 928 respechvely

Other Postretirement
" Pension Benefits - T =" Benefits
2012 2011 2010 2012 - .2011 2010
Weighted average assumptions: : ‘ ' » »
Discount rates — benefit obligation.. . . . . 2.25% - 400% 3.75% ~4.75% 525% 4.25% 5.00% 5.25%
Discount rates — service cost. .. . . . . . . 3.75% - 4.75% 525% - 5.75% 5.00% 5.25% 5.75%
Assumed rates of return on mvested ’ ' - , L

BSSELS. . ..t e i 7.00% 7.00% - 700% @ — @ — @ —

Salary increase assumptions . . . . . .... ~ NA N/A "N/A 3. 00% 3. 00% 3.00%

Discount rates were determined by a quantitative analys1s exammmg the prevalhng pnces of h1gh quality
bonds to determine an- appropriate discount rate for measuring obligations. The aforementioned analysis
analyzes the cash flow from each of the Company’s four benefit plans as well as a separate analysis. of the
cash flows from the postretirement medical and life insurance plans sponsored by Lrggett The. aforementioned
analyses then construct a hypothetical bond portfoho whose cash flow from coupons and maturities match the
year-by-year, projected benefit cash flow from the respective pension or retiree health plans The Company
uses the lower discount rate derived from the two independent analyses in the computation of the benefit
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obligation and service cost for each respective retirement lability. The Company-uses the discount rate
derived from the analysis in the computation” of the benefit obligation and service cost for all the plans
respective retirement liability.

The Company considers input from"its external advisors and historical returns in developing its expected
rate of return on plan assets. The expected long-term rate of return is the weighted average of the target asset
allocation of each individual asset class.:The Company’s actual 10-year annual rate of return on its pension
plan assets was 7.5%, 5.2% and 4.8% for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
and the Company’s actual five-year annual rate of return on its pension plan assets was 2.9%, 2.9% and 5.7%
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectrvely

‘Gains and losses resulting from changes in actuarial assumptlons and from dliferences between assumed
and actual experience, including, among other items, changes in discount rates and changes in actual returns
on plan assets as-compared to assumed returns. These gains and losses are only. amortized to the extent that
they exceed 10% of the greater of Pro;ected Benefit Obligation and the fair value of assets. For the year
ended December 31,2012, Liggett used a 15.63-year period for its Hourly Plan and a 16. 75-year period for its
Salaried Plan to :amortize pension fund gains and losses on a straight line basis. Such ‘amounts are reflected in
the pension expense calculation beginning the year after the gains or losses occur. The amortization of
deferred losses negatively impacts pension expense in the future.

Plan asséts are invested employing multlple investment management firms. Managers within each asset
class cover a range of investment styles and focus primarily on issue selectlon as a means to add value. R15k
is controlled through a diversification among asset classes, managers, styles and secuntles Risk is further
controlled both at the manager and asset class level by assigning excess return and tracking error targets
Investment managers are momtored 10 evaluate performance agamst these benchmark indices and targets.

Allowable 1nvestment types include equity, investment grade fixed income, high yield fixed income,
hedge funds and short term 1nvestments The equity fund is comprised of common stocks and mutual furids of
large, ‘mediumn and small companies, whrch are predommantly U.S. based. The investment grade fixed income
fund mcludes managed funds 1n\fest1ng 1n fixed income secuntles ‘issued or guaranteed by the
US. govemment or by its respective agencies, mortgage backed securities, including collateralized mortgage
obligations, and corporate debt obligations.” ‘The high yield fixed i income fund includes a fund which invests in
non-investment grade corporate debt securities. The hedge funds invest in both equity, including common and
preferred stock, and debt obligations, including convertible debentures, of private and public companies. The
Company generally utilizes its short term 1nvestments 1nc1ud1ng interest-bearing cash, to pay benefits and to
deploy in special situations. -

_ In 2008, the hggett Employee Beneﬁts Committee temporarily suspended its target asset allocation
percentages due to the volatility in the financial markets Even though such allocation percentages were
suspended, investment manager perfonnance versus their respectlve benchmarks was still monitored on a
regular basis. Effective January 1, 2011, the Liggett Employee Benefits’ Committee reinstated its target assets
allocation to equal 50.0% equity investments, 27.5% investment grade fixed income, 7.5% high yield fixed
income, 10.0% alternative investments (including hedge funds and private equity funds) and 5.0% short-term
investments, with a rebalancing range of approximately plus or minus 5% around the target asset allocations.
Effective November 29, 2012, the Liggett Employee Benefits Committee revised its target assets allocation to
equal 50.0% equity investménts, 30.0% investment grade fixed iricome, 10.0% high yield fixed income, 5.0%
alternative investments (including hedge funds and prfvate equity funds) and 5.0% short-term investments,
with a rebalancing range of approximately plus'or minus 5% around the target asset allocations.
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Vector’s defined benefit retirement plan allocations at December 31,2012 and 2011, by asset category,
were as follows: S ok : o
) . o g .Plgn Assets at

December 31,

_ 2012, 2011
Asset category: : et
Equity securities . ... ... ... ..ttt e e 47% 50%
Investment grade fixed income securities. . .. ............... e 30% 30%
High yield fixed income securities . ................ e ~ - 10% 9%
Alternative investments. . . . ... ... ...ttt - 8% 9%
Short-term inVeStMents . . . . . ..o v v vttt ee et e 5% 2%
TOtal. . o .v et L 100% 100%

The defined benefit plans’ recumng financial assets and liabilities sub]ect to falr value measurements and
the necessary disclosures are as follows:

Falr Value Measurements as of December 31 2012

: Significant
Quotgd Pricas in Other: Significan
" Active Markets = Observable Unobservable

for Identical = = Inputs - . Inputs
Description Total Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
oo Assets: EEIE LI L e v O ste
Insurance contracts: . v .. . .. o0 82079 o $ 2079 % T—=
Amounts in individually managed ‘
1nvestment accounts ‘ ~ :
Cash.. ... ool 6309 6309 o — -
U.S. equity securities . . . . . . ... 43246 43226 - U —
~ Common collective trusts ............ 65867 S — . san4 . 13153
Investment partnership - ., . . U, 10,559 ; — L L — 10 559 -

Total....... P SN e e < .. $128,060 $49,555 . $54,793 ,”$,23,712

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2011

" Significant )
Quoted Prices in Other Significant
Active Markets Observable  Unobservable
o for Identical Inputs Inputs
Description ) ‘ Total Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level k)]
Assets: ‘ » N
Insurance contracts. .. ............. $ 2,047 $ - — $2047 -8 —
Amounts in individually managed
investment accounts: : , . Lo
Cash, mutual funds and common stock . . 2,401 2,401 - =
U.S. equity securities . ............. 46,630 46,630 - T =
Common collective trusts . .......... 59,954 - . 48,350 11,604
Investment partnership . ............ 10,978 — = 10,978
Total ............... B $122,010 -$49,031 . - $50,397 $22,582:
F-35
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The deferred tax expense in 2011 results from temporary differences related primarily to bonus depreciation
for federal tax purposes at the Liggett segment. The deferred tax benefit in 2010 results from the recognition
of various temporary differences at the Liggett segment. -

The valuation allowance was reduced in 2012 and 2011, respectively, as a result of changes in estimates
in Vector Tobacco’s ability to utilize state tax net operating losses in future years because of changes in state
tax apportionment and projected taxable income.

Differences between the amounts provided for income taxes and amounts computed at the federal
statutory tax rate are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Income before iNCOME taXes . . . ... ovvvvensvnee s $53,717 $123,157 $85,570
Federal income tax expense at statutory rate . . .......... 18,801 43,105 29,950
Increases (decreases) resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits . ... 3,009 6,444 1,121

Non-deductible €XPenses. . .« v oo v v vveon o v oo s 3,311 ‘ 1,974 1,491

Impact of domestic production deduction. . .. ......... " (2,026) (4,256) (654)

Tax CTEAItS . . o v oo oo v e e e e e — — (25)

Changes in valuation allowance, net of equity and tax

audit adjustments . ... ....... [P — 870 (397)
INCOME {AX EXPEMSE « « « « « v v ovnveneeeeeenens $23,005  § 48,137  $31486

The following table summarizes the activity related to the unrecognized tax benefits:

Balance at January 1, 2010 . . . . .« v vue et $10,216
Additions based on tax positions related to current year ... ... 847
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years . ........... e 1,178
Reductions based on tax positions related to prior years . ..............on..n (2,303)
SettlementS. .« « « o v v e e e e e S (1,076)
Expirations of the statute of limitations. . e e (2,094)
Balance at December 31,2010 .. ... .ottt 6,768
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years .. .......... [ - 250
Expirations of the statute of limitations. . .. ... 421)
Balance at December 31, 2011 ... ..ottt et 6,597
.Additions based on tax positions related to prior years . . . .. e AP 588
Expirations of the statute of imitations. . . ... ... e e 916)
Balance at December 31,2012 . .. .. P O SN R $ 6,269

In the event the unrecognized tax benefits of $6,269 and $6,597 at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, were recognized, such recognition would impact the annual effective tax rates. During 2012, the
accrual for potential penalties and interest related to these unrecognized tax benefits was increased by $149,
and in total, as of December 31, 2012, a liability for potential penalties and interest of $1,653 has been
recorded. During 2011, the accrual for potential penalties and interest related to these unrecognized tax
benefits was increased by $413, and in total, as of December 31, 2011, a liability for potential penalties and
interest of $1,504 has been recorded. V
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It is reasonably possible the Company may recognizé up to- approximately '$3,562 of currently
unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months, pertaining primarily to expiration of statutes of limitations
of positions reported on stat¢ and local income tax returns. The Company files U.S. and state and local
income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations.

In 2012, the Internal: Revenue Service concluded an audit of the Company’s income tax return for the year
ended December 31, 2008. There was no material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
as a result of the audit. The Internal Revenue Service is auditing the Company’s 2009 tax year. The Company
believes it has adequately reserved for any potential adjustments that may arise as a result of the audit.

11. STOCK COMPENSATION

The Company grants equity compensatioh under its. Amended and Restated 1999 Long;Term, Incentive
Plan (the “1999 Plan). As of December 31, 2012, there were approximately 3,703,283 shares available for
issuance under the 1999 Plan

Stock Options. The Company accounts for stock compensation by valuing unvested stock optlons
granted prior to January 1, 2006 under the fair value method of accounting and expensing this amount. in the
statement of operations over the stock options’ remaining vesting period.

The Company recognized compensation expense of $1,755, $1,715 and $1,218 related to stock options in
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecnvely

The terms of certain stock options awarded under the 1999 Plan in December 2009 and January 2001
provide for common stock dividend equivalents (at the same rate as paid on the common stock) with respect
to the shares underlying the unexercised portion of the options. The Company recognizes payments of the
dividend equivalent rights on these options as reductions in additional paid-in capital on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet (82,709, $2,580 and $2,480 net of income taxes, for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively), which is included as “Distributions on common stock” ‘in the Company’s
consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity.

The fair value of option grants is- estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option- pricing
model. The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options ‘which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions including’ expected stock price characteristics which are
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate, the existing models do not necessanly provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of stock-based compensatlon awards.

The assumptions used under the Black—Scholes option pricing model in computing fair value of options
are based on the expected option life considering both the contractual term of the option and expected
employee exercise behavior, the interest rate associated with U.S. Treasury issues with a remaining term equal
to.the expected option life and the expected volatility of the Company’s common stock -over-the expected term
of the option. There were no new grants in the year ended December 31, 2012 The assumptlons used for
grants in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

: : : : : 2011 : 2010
Risk-free interest rate. . . . ... ..ovvvvenan e, .. i 1.4% - 1.9% 2.59%
Expected volatility. . ... ......... e, - 24.78% — 25.02% 24.43%
Dividend yield . ........... 0.0% — 10.08% - 9.8%
Expected holding period. . . .. L T 4004775 years  4.74 years
Weighted-average grant date fair value . . . ............... - ° $0.90-$3.81 $1.03
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A summary of employee:stock option transactions follows:

Welghted-Average
' Remaining
Number of Weighted-Average Contractual Term ggregate
. Shares Exercise Price (Years) Intrinsic Value®

Outstanding on January 1, 2010 .-. ... 2,550,048 $12.53 6.6 $ 1,947

Granted . . ... . ... - 115,763 $14:18

Exercised. .................. (128,189) $9.87

Cancelled. . ........... I . 21 $ —
Outstanding on December 31, 2010. .. 2,537,601 $12.74 6.0 $11,208

Granted . . . ..........vcu... 503,843 $15.58

Exercised. .. ... U e (531,321) $10.85

Cancelled. . ................. . (202,119) $ —
Outstanding on December 31, 2011. .. 2,308,004 $13.10 7.6 $11,187

Granted . .. ........00 . — $ —

Exercised. . ........covvuu... (16,079) $ 8.66

Cancelled................... (6,285) $15.07
Outstanding on December 31, 2012... ‘2,285,640 $13.12 6.6 $ 4,371
Options exercisable at: o v ‘

December 31, 2010 . . ... e 1,118,264

December 31,2011 .......... . 391,859

December 31,2012 .. ... ....... 398437

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value represents the amount by which the fair value of the underlymg common
stock ($14.87, $16:91 and $15.71 at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively) exceeds the option
exerc1se pnce o

- Additional mformatlon relatmg 1o optlons outstanding at December 31, 2012 follows:

- Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
: Weighted-Average
Outstanding ..  Remaining Exercisable
: as of Contractual Life Weighted-Average as of Weighted-Average

Range of Exercise Prices ©12/31/2012 (Years) Exercise Price 12/31/2012 Exercise Price
$0.00 - $12.73 - 1,602,731 6.3 $12.22 306,191 $12.41
$12.73 - $15.28 ‘ 206,.62'\9'\ ; 6.0 $14.33 92,246 $14.44
$1528-$17.82 476280 - 80 $15.65 - $ —
2,285, 640 _ 6.6 $13.12 398,437 $12.88

As of December 31,2012, therewas $2,103 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested
stock options. The cost is: expected to be recognized over a welghted-average period of approximately
1.42 years at December 31, 2012.,

The Company refiects the tax savings resulting from tax deductions in excess of expense reflected in its
financial statements as a component of “Cash Flows from Financing Activities.”

No non-qualified options for shares of common stock were issued during 2012.

Non-qualified options for 503,843 sharés of common stock wére iSsued during 2011. The exercise price
of the options granted ranged between $14.41 and $15.65 in 2011. The exercise prices of the options granted
in 2011 were at the fair value on the dates of the grants.
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Non-qualified options for 115,763 shares of common stock were issued during 2010. The: exercise price
of the options granted was $14.18 in 2010. The exercise prices of the options granted in 2010 were at the fair
value on the dates of the grants. ;

The Company has elected to use the long-form method under which each award grant.is tracked on an
employee-by-employee basis-and grant-by-grant basis to determine if there is a tax benefit or tax deficiency
for such award. The Company then compares the fair value expense to the tax deduction received for each
grant and aggregates the benefits and deficiencies to establish its hypothetical APIC Pool.

v The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options directly to
stockholders’ equity only when realized. A windfall tax benefit occurs when the actual tax benefit realized by
the Company upon an employee s d1spos1t10n of a share-based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, if any,
associated with the award that the Company had recorded. :

The total intrinsic value. of .options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $129, $2,051 and $673, respectively. Tax benefits related to option exercises of $52, $821 and $269 were
recorded as increases to stockholders’ deﬁc1ency for the years ended December 31 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awards. In June 2007 the Company granted 13,401 restncted shares of the Company’s
common stock pursuant to the 1999 Plan to each of its four outside directors. The shares vested over three
years. The Company recognized $792 of expense over the vesting period. The Company recognized expense
of $264 for the year ended December 31, 2010, in connection with this restricted stock award. - )

In June 2010, the Company granted 11,576 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock (the
“June 2010 Grant™) pursuant to the 1999 Plan to each of its five outside directors. In November 2011, one of
the outside directors resigned from the board and 7,718 of the restricted shares granted in June 2010 were
forfeited and canceled. The-remaining shares vest over. three years and the Company will recognize $749 of
expense over the vesting period of the June 2010 Grant. In November 2011, the Company also granted 7,000
restricted shares of the Company’s stock (the “November 2011 grant™) pursuant to the 1999 Plan to the
replacement director. The shares granted to the replacement director vest over approximately 19 months. The
Company will - recognize $120 of expense over the vesting period for the November 2011 Grant. The
Company recognized expense of $300 and $280 of expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

In April 2009, the Pres1dent of the Company was awarded a restricted stock grant (“Award Agreement’)
of 607 754 shares of Vector’s common stock pursuant to the 1999 Plan (“Award Shares’). Under the terms of
the Award Agreement, one-fifth of the shares vest on September 15, 2010, with an additional one-fifth vesting
on each of the four succeedmg one-year anniversaries of the first vesting date through September 15, 2014. In
the event that his employment with the Company is terminated for any reason other than his death, his
d1sab111ty or a change of control (as deﬁned in this Restricted Share Agreement) of the Company, any
remaining balance of the shares not previously vested will be forfeited by him. The fair market value of the
restricted shares on the date of grant was $6, 467 and was being amortized over the vesting period as a charge
to compensation expense

On December 11, 2012, the Compensatlon Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
approved an acceleration of the vesting to December 11, 2012 of an aggregate 243,101 shares of restricted
stock that were previously scheduled to vest in equal parts on September 15, 2013 and September 15 2014,

In connection with, and as a condition to, the acceleration of the vesting schedule; the Pres1dent of ‘the
Company entered into an Amendment to the Award Agreement and an Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the
Company, effective as of December 11, 2012. Pursuant to the Agreement, he agreed, in-the event his
employment with the Company terminates prior to September 15, 2014, to repay to the Company, in either
shares of the Company’s common stock or cash, the fair market value on the termination date of-that portion
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of the Award Shares' that he would have otherwise had to forfeit under the Award Agreement had the vesting
of the Award Shares not been accelerated, pluscash in the amount of any Accrued Dividends and any
additional dividends declared on such shares.

" “The Company recognized expense of $2,381 for the year ended December 31, 2012 that included
additional compensation expense of $288 related to the modified requisite service period of the accelerated
vesting and the recognition of the unamortized’ compensation costs related to the accelerated vesting of
$2,093. The Company recorded an expense of $1,188 and $872 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, there was $134 of total’ unreéognized compensation costs related to unvested
réstricted stock awards. The cost is expected to be recogmzed over a Welghted-average period of
approximately 0.44 years at December 31, 2012. :

As of December 31 2011, there was $3,653 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested
restricted stock awards. The cost is ‘expected to be recogmzed over a weighted-average period of
approx1mately 2.59 years at December 31, 2011.

The Company’s accounting policy is to treat dividends paid on unvested restricted stock as a reductlon to
additional pald-m cap1ta1 on the Company s consohdated balance sheet

12. CONTINGENCIES, .~
Tobacco-Related Litigation:
Overvzew h :

- Since 1954, Liggett and other United States mgarette manufacturers have been named -as defendants in
numerous direct, third-party and purported class actions predicated on the theory that cigarette manufacturers
should be liable for damages alleged to have been caused by cigarette: smoking or by exposure to secondary
smoke from ° cigarettes: New ' cases continue” to be commenced against Liggett and other cigarette
manufacturers. The cases have genérally fallen into the following categories: (i) smoking and health cases
alleging personal injury brought ofi behalf of individual plaintiffs (“Individual Actions”); (ii) lawsuits by
individuals requesting the benefit of the Engle ruling (“Engle progeny cases”); (iii) smoking and health cases
primarily alleging personal injury or seekmg court-superv1sed programs for ongoing medical monitoring, as
well as cases alleging the use of the terms “lights™ and/or “yultra lights” constitutes a deceptive and unfair
trade practice, common law fraud or violation of federal law, purporting to be brought on behalf of a class of
individual plamtlﬁs (“Class Act10ns”) and (iv) health care cost recovery actions brought by various foreign
and domestic. govemmental plamtlﬁs and non-governmental plamtlffs seeking reimbursement for health care
expenditures allegedly caused by Clgarette smoking and/or disgorgement of profits (“Health Care Cost
Recovery Actlons”) As'new cases are commenced, the costs ass001ated with defending these cases and the
risks relatmg to the 1nherent unpredlctablhty of 11t1gat10n contlnue to increase. The future financial impact of
the risks and expenses of litigation ‘are not quantlﬁable at this time. For the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, Liggett incurred legal expenses and other litigation costs totaling approximately $9,666 (which
includes $1,424 for the Clay judgment described below), $7,795 and $23,389 (which includes $16,161 for the
Lukacs and Ferlantz Judgments descnbed below), respecuvely :

L1t1gat10n is subJect to uncertamty and it is poss1ble that there could be adverse developments in pending
or future cases. Mandgement reviews on a quarterly -basis with counsel all pending litigation and evaluates
whether an estimate can be made of -the possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable
outcome. An unfavorable outcome or-settlement of pending tobacco-related or other litigation could encourage
the’ commencement ‘of additional 11t1gat10n Damages awarded in” some tobacco—re1ated litigation can
be significant. '
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Bonds..  Although Liggett has been -able to obtain required bonds or. relief from bonding: Tequirements in
order to prevent plaintiffs, from seeking to collect judgments while adverse verdicts-are on appeal, there remains a
risk that such relief may not be obtainable-in all cases. This risk has-been reduced ‘given, that a majority of states
now limit the dollar.amount of bonds or require no bond at all. To obtain stays.on _]udgments pending current
appeals, Liggett has secured approximately $6,306 in bonds as of December 31, 2012. .

In June 2009, Florida amended its ex1st1ng bond cap statate’ by adding a $200,000 bond cap that applies
to all Engle progeny cases (defined below) in the aggregate and establishes itidividual bond caps for individual
Engle progeny cases in amounts that’ vary depending on the number of Judgments in effect at a given time.
Plaintiffs, in several cases, have challenged the constitutionality of the bond cap statute, but to date, the courts
that have addressed the issue have' upheld the constitutlonahty of the: ‘statute. The plaintiffs have appealed
some of these rulmgs ‘and the Florida Supreme Court, after grantmg review of the ‘Hall ‘decision ‘denying
plainuff’s challenge to the bond ¢ cap statute, subsequently ‘dismissed the matter prior to the scheduled argument
as moot. No federal court has' yet addressed the issue. Although the Company ‘cannot predict the outcome of
such challenges, it is possible that the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows could be materially affected by an unfavorable outcome of such challenges.

Accounting Policy. The Company and its subsidiaries record provisions in their consolidated financial
statements for pending litigation when they determine that an unfavorable“outcome'is probable and the amount of
loss can be reasonably estimated. At the present time; while it is reasonably possible that- an unfavorable outcome
in a case may occur, except as disclosed in this Note 12: (i) management has concluded that it is not probable that
a loss has been incurred in any of the pending tobacco-related cases; or (i) anagement is unable to estimate the
possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable ‘outcome of any of the pending tobacco-related
cases and, therefore, managemént has not provided any amounts in the consolidated  financial statements for
unfavorable outcomes, if any. Legal defense costs are expensed as incurred.

Cautionary Statement- About- Engle Progeny Cases. - Judgments have been entered against Liggett and
other industry defendants in Engle progeny cases. Several of the judgments have been affirmed on appeal. To
date, the United States Supreme Court has declined to review these cases. At December 31, 2012, Liggett and
the Company were defendants in 3,074 state court and 1,963 federal court Engle progeny cases. In
January 2013, the federal court entered an order dismissing 521 federal cases. As of December 31, 2012,
11 Engle progeny cases involving Liggett resulted in verdicts, exclusive of the Lukacs case, discussed below.
Eight verdicts were returned in favor of the plaintiffs and three in favor of Liggett. Other cases have either
been voluntanly dismissed by plamtlffs dismissed by the court on summary judgment or a mistrial was
declared. Excluding the Lukacs case, the compensatory verdicts against Liggett have ranged from $1 to
$3,008.-In certain cases; the judgments eéntered have been joint and several with the other defendants. In two
of these cases, punitive: damag‘e‘s were also awarded for $1,000 and $7,600. Since February 2009, when Engle
progeny trials commenced, 79 cases have been tried to a ‘verdict. Based on the current rate of trials per year, it
would require decades to resolve the remaining cases. Except as discussed in this Note 12 with respect to the
six ‘cases where an‘ adverse verdict was entered againstLiggett,” and which are currently on appeal,
management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss 'from the remaining Engle ‘progeny cases
as there are curréntly multiple: defendants in eéach case and, in most cases, discovery has not occurred or is
limited. As a result, the Company lacks information about whether plaintiffs are in fact Engle class members
(non-class meémbers’ claims are generally time-batred), the relevant smoking history, the nature of the alleged
injury and the availability of: various defenses, among other things Further, plaintiffs typically do not specify
their demand for damages. The Company believes: that the process- -under wh1ch Engle progeny cases are tried
is unconstitutional and continues to pursue-its: appellate rights. : :

Although Liggett has generally been successful in managing litigation, litigation is subject to uncertainty
and significant challenges remain, particularly with respect to the Engle progeny cases. There. can be no
assurances that Liggett’s past litigation. experience will be representative-of future results. Judgments have
been entered against Liggett in the past, in-Individual Actions and Engle progeny cases, and several of those
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judgments were affirmed on appeal. Litigation is subject to many. uncertainties. It-is possible that the
consolidated financial position, results of -operations and cash flows of the Company could be materially
adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome or settlement of ceftain- pending smoking-related litigation.
Liggett believes, and has been so advised by counsel, that it has valid defenses to the. litigation pending
against it, as well as valid bases for appeal of adverse verdicts. All such cases are, and will continue to be,
vigorously defended. Liggett may, however, enter into settlement discussions in particular cases if it believes it
is in its best interest to do so. In connection with.the Engle progeny cases, Liggett has been receptive to
opportunities to settle these. cases, individually or on some, aggregated basis, on terms it believes are
economically favorable to Liggett and will continue to explore such opportunities. As of December 31, 2012,
Liggett (and in certain cases the Company), has seitled 112 Engle progeny cases for approximately $1,075, in
the aggregate. If Liggett were able to resolve the Engle progeny cases on an aggregated basis, Liggett believes
the range of loss could be between. $48,000 and .$85,000, but there can be no assurances that the Engle
progeny cases can be resolved.on an aggregated basis, nor. can there be any assurances that Liggett’s
settlement experience to date will be representative of future results or intentigns.

Individual Actions

As of December 31, 2012, there were 69 Individual Actions pending against Liggett and, in certain cases,
the Company, where one or more individual plaintiffs allege injury resulting from cigarette smoking, addiction
to cigarette smoking or exposure to secondary smoke and seek compensatory and, in some cases, punitive
damages. These cases do not include Engle pfqgeny cases or.the approximately 100 individual cases pending
in West Virginia state court as part of a consolidated action. The following table lists the number of Individual
Actions, by state, that are pending against Liggett or the Company as of December 31, 2012:

Number of
State ] . ) 7 Cases
50 14 I R 47
NEW YOTK. . o o vttt s i e e e et s e e e e e e 8
MATYIANA . . . .\ttt e e e e e e e e e 7
LOUISIANA . © o v v v i et e e e b e s sies se e e i e e e 3
West Virginia ... ..........0..0.0. e S P O 2
© Missouri & ... .. I T O N 1
Ohio........ S S N SR S 1

The plaintiffs’ allegations of liability in cases in which individuals seek recovery for injuries allegedly
caused by cigarette smoking are based-on various theories of recovery, including negligence, gross negligence,
breach of -special duty, strict liability, fraud, concealment, misrepresentation, design defect, failure to warn,
breach: of express and implied: warranties, conspiracy, aiding .and abetting, concert of action, unjust
enrichment, common law public nuisance, property damage, invasion of privacy, mental anguish, emotional
distress, disability, shock,. indemnity and violations of deceptive trade practice laws, the federal Racketeer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”), state RICO statutes and antitrust statutes. In many of
these cases, in addition to compensatory damages, plaintiffs also seek other forms of relief including
treble/multiple damages, medical monitoring, disgorgement of profits and punitive damages. Although alleged
damages often are not determinable from a complaint; and the law governing the pleading and calculation of
damages varies from state to state and jurisdiction to jurisdiction, compensatory and punitive damages have
been specifically pleaded in a number of cases, sometimes in amounts ranging into the hundreds of millions
and even billions of dollars.

Defenses raised in Individual Actions include lack of proximate cause, assumption of the risk,
comparative fault and/or contributory negligence, lack of design defect, statute of limitations, equitable
defenses such as “unclean hands” and lack of benefit, failure to state a claim and federal preemption.
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Engle Progeny Cases

 Engle Case. In May 1994, Engle was filed against Liggett and others in Miami-Dade County, Florida.
The class consisted of all Florida residents who, by November 21, 1996, “have suffered, presently suffer or
have died from diseases and medical conditions caused by their addiction to mgarette smoking.” In July 1999,
after the conclusion of Phase I of the trial, the jury returned a verdict against Liggeit and other crgarette
manufacturers on certain issues determined by the trial court to be “common” to the causes of action of the
plaintiff class. The jury made several findings adverse to the defendants including that defendants’ conduct
“rose to a level thaf would permit a potential award or entitlement to punitive damages.” Phase II of the trial
was a causation and damages trial for three of the class plaintiffs and a punitive damages trial on a class-wide
basis before the same jury that returned the verdict in Phase I. In April 2000, the jury awarded compensatory
damages of $12,704 to the three class plaintiffs, to be reduced in proportion to the respective plaintiff’s fault.
In July 2000, the jury awarded approximately $145,000,000 in punitive damages, including $790,000
against nggett .

In May 2003, Florida’s Third District Court of Appeal reversed the trial court and remanded the case
with instructions -to decertify the class. The judgment in favor of one of the: three class: plaintiffs, in the
amount of $5,831, was overturned as time barred and the court found that Liggett was not liable to the other
two class plaintiffs.

In July 2006, the: ‘Florida Supreme Court affirmed the decision vacating the punitive damages award and
held that the class should be decertified prospectively, but determined that the followrng Phase 1 ﬁndrngs are
entitled to res judicata effect in. Engle progeny cases: (i) that smoking causes lung cancer, among other
diseases; (ii) that nicotine in c1garettes is addictive; (iii) that defendants placed cigarettes on the market that
were defective and unreasonably dangerous; (iv) that defendants concealed material information knowing that
the information was false or misleading or failed to disclose a material fact concerning the health effects or
addictive nature of smokrng, (v) that defendants agreed to conceal or omit information regardlng the health
effects of cigarettes or their addictive nature with thé intention that smokers would rely on the information to
their detriment; (vi) that defendants sold or supplied cigarettes that were defective; and (vii) that defendants
were negligent. The Florida Supreme Court decision also allowed former class members to proceed to. trial on
individual 11ab1hty issues (using the above findings) ‘and compensatory and punitive damage issues, provrded
they filed their individual lawsuits by January 2008. In December 2006, the Florida Supreme Court added the
finding that defendants sold or supplied cigarettes that, at the time of sale or supply, did not conform to the
representations made by defendants. In October 2007, the United States Supreme Court denied defendants’
petition for writ of certloran : :

Pursuant to the Florida Supreme Court’s July 2006 ruling in Engle, which decertified the class on a
prospective basis, and affirmed the appellate court’s reversal of the punitive damages award, former class
members had until January 2008 in which to file individual lawsuits. As of December 31, 2012, Liggett and
the Company are named defendants in 5,037 Engle progeny cases in both federal (1,963 cases) and state
(3,074 cases) courts in Florida. Other cigarette manufacturers are also riamed ‘as defendants in these cases,
although as a case proceeds, one or more defendants may ultimately be dismissed from the action. These
cases include approximately 6,215 plaintiffs. The number of state court Engle progeny cases may increase as
multi-plaintiff cases continue to be‘severed into individual cases. The total number of plaintiffs may also
increase as a result of attempts by existing plaintiffs to-add additional parties. Although the Company was not
named as a defendant in the Engle case, it bas been named as a defendant in most of the Engte progeny cases
where Liggett is named as a defendant : :
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As of December 31, 2012, the following Engle progeny cases have resulted in judgments against Liggett:

Date Case Name' o County

Damages

Damages

' Net . L
Compensamry Pumtive

Status

June 2002 ) Lukacs i E.J. Reyrfolds ‘ Miami-Dade

August 2009 Campbell v. RJ. Reynolds ~ Escambia

March 2010 .. Douglas v. R.J. Reynolds  Hillsborough
April 2010 Clay v. RJ. Reynolds ~ Bscambia

April2010  Putneyv. RJ. Reynolds.  Broward

April 2011  Tullov. RJ. Reynolds  Palm Beach

Tanuiry 2012~ Wardv. RJ. Reynolds  Escambia

May 2012 Calloway v. R.J. Reynolds  Escambia

December 2012 B#éhanan_v. RJ Reynolds Leon

. $12,418

$156

$1,350.

$349

$3,008 . .

$225

$1

$1,947

$2,035

Nonc

None

None

$1,000

None .
None
None
$7,600

None

" Affirmed by the Third District Court of
Appeal. Judgment has been satisfied and the
case is-concluded.

> Affirmed by the First District Court of
Appeal. Defendants*filed a motion with the
District Court of Appeal for certification to
the Florida Supreme Court, which was
.- denied in May 2011. Defendants sought
review. by the US Supreme Court, which was
denied in March 2012. In April 2012, the
judgment was satisfied and, except for an .
appeal regarding calculation of interest, the

- case is concluded. Oral argument occurred

on February 13, 2013 on the interest rate
appeal. A decision is, pending.

Affirmed by the Second District Court of
Appeal. The court certified the question of
the constitutionality of the Engle findings as
a question of great public importance, The
Florida Supreme Court agreed to review the
case. Oral argument occurred on
September 6, 2012. A decision is pending.

Affirmed by ‘the First District Cout of

-~ Appeal. Motion for: rehearing was deniéd;

The US Supreme Court declined to review
the case. Liggett satisfied the judgment in
December 2012 and the case is concluded,
other than plaintiff’s claim for post-trial
. attomeys fees

On appeal to the Fourth Dlstnct Court of
Appeal. Oral argument oecurred on
September 27, 2012. A decision is pending.

On appeal to the Fourth District Court
- of Appeal.

A joint:and several judgment was entered for
$487 against Liggett and RJR. On appeal to
the First District Court of Appeal.

Post-trial motions were denied. A joint and
several judgment was entered for $16,100
against all defendants. On appeal to the
Fourth Dnstnct Court of Appea.l

Post- tnal motions were hea.rd on
January 16, 2013.

. The Company’s. potential . range of loss in the Douglas, Putney, Tullo, Ward, Calloway and Buchanan
cases is between $0 and $16,166 in the aggregate, plus accrued interest and legal fees. In determining the
range of loss, the Company. considers . potential settlements as well as future appellate relief. Except as
disclosed elsewhere in this Note 12, the Company is unable to determine a range of loss related to the
remaining Engle progeny cases. No amounts: have been. .expensed or accrued in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for these cases other than $1,424, plus $188 of accrued interest, for the Clay
case, which was paid in December 2012. However, as cases proceed -through the appellate process, the
Company will consider accruals on a case-by-case basis if an unfavorable outcome becomes probable and the

amount can be reasonably estimated.
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Lukacs Case. In June 2002, the jury in.a Florida state court action entitled Lukacs v. R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Co., awarded $37,500 in compensatory damages, jointly and severally, in a case involving Liggett
and two. other. cigarette manufacturers, ‘which amount ‘was subsequently reduced by the court. The jury found
Liggett 50% responsible for the damages incurred by the' plaintiff. The:Lukacs case was the first case to be
tried as an individual Engle progeny.case, but was tried almost five years prior to the Florida Supreme Court’s
final decision in :Engle. In November 2008, the:court entered final judgment in the amount of $24,835, plus
interest from June 2002. In March 2010, the Third District Court of Appeal affirmed the decision, per curiam.
Liggett satisfied its share of the judgment; including attorneys’ fees and accrued interest, for $14,361.

, Federal. Engle Progeny Cases. Three federal Judges (in the Merlob, B. Brown and Burr cases) ruled that
the findings in Phase I of the Engle proceedlngs could not be used to satisfy elements of plalntlﬁs claims,
and two of those rulings (B: Brown-and Burr) were certified by the trial court for interlocutory review. The
certlﬁcatlon was granted by the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit and the appeals were
consolidated (in February 2009, the appeal in Burr was dismissed for lack of prosecution). In July 2010, the
Eleventh Circuit ruled that plaintiffs do not have an unlimited right to use the findings from the original Engle
trial to meet their burden of establishing the elements of their claims at trial. Rather, plaintiffs may only use
the findings to establish specific facts that they demonstrate with a reasonable degree of certainty were
actually decided by the original Engle jury. The Eleventh Circuit remanded the case to the district court to
determine what specific factual findings the Engle jury actually made. All federal cases were stayed pending
review by the Eleventh Circuit. The stays were subsequently lifted in 34 cases. At present, Liggett is a
defendant in six of the cases.. .

Appeals of Engle Progeny Verdicts. Tn December 2010, in the Martin case, a State court case against
R.J. Reynolds; the First District Court of Appeal issued the first ruling by a Florida intérmediate appellate
court to address the B. Brown decision discussed above. The panel held that the trial court correctly construed
the Florida Supreme Court’s 2006 decision in Engle in instructing the jury on the- preclusive effect of the
Phase I Engle proceedlngs ‘expressly dlsagTeemg with certain aspects of the B:’ ‘Brown decision. In July 2011,
the Florida Supremé Court declined to review the First District Court of Appeal’s decision. In March 2012,
the United' States Supreme Court declined to review the Martin case, along with the Campbell case and two
other Engle progeny cases. This decision could lead to other adverse rulings by state appellate courts.

In the Waggoner case, the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida directed the
parties to brief, the applicability of the Engle findings to all"Middle District cases. Liggett and the Company
are not defendants in Waggoner, -but nonetheless, were. directed to submit motions. on the “issues.-In
December 2011, the district court ruled that it was bound by Martin and Jimmie Lee Brown (discussed below)
and that the application of the Phase- I-findings did not deprive defendants of any constitutional due process
rights.~ The  court . ruled, however, that plaintiffs must establish legal causation' to ‘establish liability. -With
respect to punitive damages, the district court held that the plaintiffs could rely on'the findings in support of
their punitive damages claims but that, in addition, plaintiffs must demonstrate specific conduct by specific
defendants, independent of the Engle findings, that satisfies the standards for awards of punitive damages The
Waggoner ruling will apply to all of the cases pending in the Middle District of Florida. The ‘defendants are
seeking review of the due process ruling by thé United States Court of Appéals for the Eleventh Circuit. The
Waggoner court declined to reach certain issues ralsed by nggett and the’ Company and directed that their
motion be re-ﬁled in a case in Wthh they are named as defendants. As a result, Liggett filed a motion in the
Young-McCray case ra1s1ng 1ssues spe01ﬁc to nggett The court demed the. motion and adopted the Waggoner
ruhng as to Liggett. '

In Jimmie Lee Brown,-a state court case agamst R.J Reynolds the tr1a1 court tr1ed the case: in two
phases. In the first phase, the jury determined that the ‘smoker was:addicted to cigarettes that contained
nicotine and that his addiction was.a legal cause of his death, thereby establishing he was an Engle class
member. In the second phase, the jury determined* whether the plaintiff established legal cause and damages
with regard to each of the underlying claims. The jury found in favor of plaintiff in- both phases. In
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September 2011, the Fourth District Court-of Appeal affirmed the judgment entered in plaintiff’s favor and
approved the trial court’s procedure of bifurcating the trial. The Fourth District Court of Appeal agreed with
Martin that individual post-Engle plaintiffs need not prove conduct elements as part of their-burden of proof,
but disagreed with Martin to the extent that the First District Court of Appeal only required a finding that the
smoker was a class member to establish legal ‘causation as to addiction and the underlying claims. The Fourth
District Court of Appeal held that in addition to.establishing class membership, Engle progeny plaintiffs must
also establish legal causation and damages as to .each claim asserted. In so finding, the Fourth District Court
of Appeal’s decision in Jimmie Lee Brown is in conflict with Martin. In dicta, the Fourth District Court of
Appeal further voiced concern that the preclusive effect of the Engle findings violates the tobacco company
defendants’ due process rights and, in the special concurring opinion, the court emphasrzed that until the
Florida Supreme Court gives trial courts gurdance as to what it intended by its Engle decision, trial courts will
continue to play “a form of legal poker.” In September 2011, R.J. Reynolds filed a motion asking the Fourth
District Court of Appeal to certify the case to the Florida Supreme Court for review. The motion was denied
in October 2011.

In the Rey case, a state court Engle progeny case, the trial court entered final summary judgment on all
claims in favor of the Company, Liggett and Lorillard based on what has been referred to in the Engle
progeny litigation as the “Liggett Rule.” The Liggett Rule stands for the proposition that a manufacturer
cannot have liability to a smoker under any asserted claim if the smoker did not use a product manufactured
by that particular defendant. The Liggett Rule is based on the entry of final judgment in favor of Liggett/
Brooke Group in Engle on all of the claims asserted against them by class representatives Mary Farnan and
Angie Della Vecchia, even though the Florida Supreme Court upheld, as res judicata,the generic finding that
Liggett/Brooke Group engaged in a conspiracy to commit fraud by concealment. In September 2011, the Third
District Court of Appeal affirmed in part and reversed in part holding that the defendants were entitled to
summary judgment on all claims asserted against them other than the claim for civil conspiracy. Defendants’
motions for rehearing were denied with regard to the Liggett Rule issues. Defendants sought further review by
the Florida Supreme Court and on August 20, 2012, the petition for review was denied. In March 2012, the
Fifth District Court of Appeal in other progeny cases, followed the Third Drstnct Court of Appeal and
reversed summary judgment on the conspiracy claims. Defendants have sought review by the Florida Supreme
Court of these decrsrons

In March 2012, in Douglas, the Second Dlstnct Court of Appeal issued a de01s1on afﬁnmng the judgment
of the trial court in favor of the-plaintiff and upholding the use of the Engle jury findings but certified to the
Florida Supreme Court the question of:whether granting res judicata effect to the Engle jury findings violates
defendants’ federal due process rights. In April 2012, the defendants in Douglas filed a Notice to Invoke
Discretionary Jurisdiction of -the Florida Supreme Court which was accepted Oral argument occurred on
September 6,2012. A decrsron is pendmg :

N nggett Only Cases There are currently elght cases pendmg where Liggett is the only remalmng
tobacco company - defendant ‘These cases consist of four Individual Actions and four Engle progeny cases.
Cases where Liggett is the only defendant could increase substantially as a result of the Engle progeny cases.

In February 2009 in Ferlanti v. Liggett’ Group, a Florida state court jury awarded compensatory damages
to plaintiff and an $816 judgment was entered by the court. That judgment was affirmed on appeal and was
satisfied by Liggett. In' September 2010, the court awarded plamtrff legal fees of $996. Plaintiff appealed the
amount of the attorneys’ fee award and in December 2012, the award was affirmed. Liggett paid legal fees
and accrued: interest of $1:,231 in January 2013. Liggett previously accrued $2,000 for the Ferlanti case. In
Dick.v. R.J. Reynolds, an Engle progeny case, trial is scheduled for May 5, 2013. There are currently three
other Engle progeny cases where Liggett is the only defendant. These cases do not currently have trial dates.
There has been no recent activity in Hausrath v. Philip Morris, an Individual Action pending in New York
state court. The other three Individual Actions-are pending in Florida and are inactive. :
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Class Actions

As of December 31, 2012, there were four actions pending for which either a class had been certified or
plaintiffs were seeking class certification, where Liggett is a named defendant, including one alleged price
fixing case. Other cigarette manufacturers are alsc named in these actions. :

Plaintiffs’ allegations of liability in class action cases are based on various theories of recovery, including
negligence, gross negligence, strict liability, fraud, misrepresentation, design defect, failure to warn, nuisance,
breach of express and implied warranties, breach of special duty, conspiracy, concert of action, violation of
deceptive trade practice laws and consumer protection statutes and. claims under the federal and state
anti-racketeering statutes. Plalntlffs in the class actions seek various forms of relief, including compensatory
and punitive damages, treble/multiple damages and other statutory damages and penalties, creation of medical
monitoring and smoking cessation funds, disgorgement of profits, and 1nJunct1ve and equltable relief.

Defenses raised in these cases include, among others, lack of prox1mate cause, mdwldual issues
predominate, assumption of the risk, comparative fault and/or contributory negligence, statute of limitations
and federal preemption. »

In Smith v. Philip Morris, a Kansas state court case filed in February 2000, plamtlffs allege that cigarette
manufacturers conspired to fix cigarette prices in violation of antitrust laws. Plaintiffs seek to recover’ an
unspecified amount in actual and punitive damages. Class" certification ‘Wwas granted in November 2001. In
January 2012, the trial court heard oral argument on defendants’ motions for summary judgment and in
March 2012, the court granted the motions and dismissed plaintiffs’ claims with’ prejudlce In July 2012,
pla:mtlﬁs noticed an appeal. The appeal is pending.

In November 1997, in Young v. American Tobacco Co., a purported personal injury class actlon was
commenced on behalf of plaintiff and all similarly situated residents in Louisiana who, though not themselves
cigarette smokers, are alleged to have been exposed to secondhand smoke from cigarettes which. were
manufactured by the defendants, and who suffered injury as a result of that exposure. The plaintiffs seek.to
recover an unspecified amount of compensatory and punitive damages In October 2004, the trial court stayed
this case pending the outcome of an appeal in another matter, which has been concluded. There has been no
further activity in this case.

In February 1998, in Parsons v. AC & S Inc., a case pending in West Virginia, a class was commenced
on behalf of all West Virginia residents who allegedly have personal injury claifs arising from exposure to
cigarette smoke and asbestos fibers. The complaint seeks to recover $1,000 in compensatory-and punitive
damages individually and unspecified compensatory and punitive damages for the class. The case is stayed as
a result of the December 2000 bankruptcy of three of the defendants.

Although not technically a class action, in In Re: Tobacco ngatton (Personal In]ury Cases) a West
Virginia state court consohdated approx1mate1y 750 individual smoker actions that were pending pr10r to 2001
for trial of certain common issues. In January 2002, the court severed Liggett from the trial of the
consolidated action, which commenced in June 2010 and ended in a mistrial. The rescheduled trial
commenced in October 2011 and it, too, ended in a mistrial. A new trial is scheduled for April 15, 2013. If
the case were to proceed against L1ggett it 1s estlmated that nggett could be a defendant in approx1mately
100 of the 1nd1v1dual cases.

Class action suits have been ﬁled in a number of states: agamst mgarette manufacturers alleging, among:
other things, that use of the terms “lights” and “‘ultra lights” constitutes unfair and deceptive trade practices.
In December 2008, the United States Supreme Court, in Altria Group v. Good, ruled that the: Federal Cigarette
Labeling and Advertising Act did not preempt the state law claims asserted by the plaintiffs and that they
could proceed with their claims under the Maine Unfair Trade Practices Act. The Good decision has resulted
in the filing of additional “lights™ class’ action cases in other states -against other cigarette manufacturers.
Although Liggett was not a defendant in the Good case, and is not currently-a defendant in any other “lights™
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class actions, an adverse ruling or commencement of additional “lights™ related class actions could have a
material adverse effect on the Company

In addition to the cases described. above numerous class actions remain certified against other cigarette
manufacturers. Adverse decisions in these cases could have a material adverse affect on Liggett’s sales
volume, operating income and cash flows.

Health-Care Cost Recovery Actions

As of December 31, 2012, there was one Health Care Cost Recovery Action pending against Liggett,
Crow Creek Sioux Tribe v. American Tobacco Company, a South Dakota case filed in 1997, where the
pla1ﬁt1ﬂ’ seeks to recover damages based on various theories of recovery as a result of alleged sales of tobacco
products to mmors The case is- 1nact1ve 'Other c1garette manufacturers are also named as defendants.

The claims asserted in health care cost recovery actions vary. Although, typ1ca11y, no specific damage
amounts are pled, it is possrble that requested damages might be in the billions of dollars. In these cases,
plaintiffs typically assert equitable claims that the tobacco industry' was “unjustly enriched”” by their payment
of health care costs allegedly attributable to smoking and seek reimbursement of those costs. Relief sought by
some, but not all; plaintiffs include punitive damages, multiple damages and other statutory damages and
penaltles, injunctions prohibiting alleged marketing and sales to minors, disclosure of research, disgorgement
of profits, funding of antl-smokmg programs, add1t10na1 dlsclosure of nicotine yields, and payment of attorney
and expert witness fees. . _

Other claims asserted ‘include the equitable -claim of -indemnity, common law claims of negligence, strict
liability, breach of express and implied warranty, breach of special duty, fraud, negligent misrepresentation,
conspiracy, public nuisance, claims under state and federal statutes governing consumer fraud, antitrust,
deceptlve trade practices and false advemsmg, and claims under RICO.

“ *Department of Justice Lawsuit.. In September 1999, the United States government commenced litigation
against Liggett-‘and other cigaretté manufacturers in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia. The action sought to recover an unspecified ‘amount of health care costs paid and to be paid by the
federal government for lung cancer, heart disease, emphysema and other smoking-related illnesses allegedly
caused by the fraudulent and tortious conduct of defendants, to restrain defendants and co-conspirators from
engaging in alleged fraud and other allegedly unlawful conduct in the future, and to compel defendants to
disgorge the proceeds of thel,r unlawful conduct Claims were asserted under RICO

In August 2006, the:trial court entered a Final Judgment -against each of the-cigarette manufacturing
defendants, except Liggett. In'May 2009, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
affirmed most of the district court’s decision. The United States Supreme Court denied review. As a result, the
cigarette manufacturing defendants, other than Liggett, are now subject to the trial court’s Final Judgment
which ordered the following rehef () an mJunctlon against “committing any act of racketeering” relating to
the manufacturmg, marketlng, promotlon health consequences or sale of cigarettes in the United States; (ii) an
1nJunct10n against part101pat1ng directly or indirectly in the management or control of the Council for Tobacco
Research, the Tobacco Instltute or the Center for Indoor Air Research, or any successor or affiliated entities of
each; (iii) an 1n]unct10n agalnst maklng, or causing to be made in any way, any materlal false mlsleadlng, or
deceptlve statement or representatlon or engaging in any public relations or marketing endeavor that is
disseminated to the United States’ public and that misrepresents or suppresses information concerning
cigarettes”; (iv) an injuriction against conveying any express or implied health message -through use of
descriptors on cigarette ‘packaging or in cigarette advertising: or promotional material,  including “lights,”
“ultra-lights,” and- “low tar,” which the court found could cause consumers to believe one cigarette brand is
less hazardous than another brand; (v) the issuance of ‘“‘corrective statements” in various media regarding the
adverse health effects of smoking, the addictiveness of smoking;and nicotine, the lack of any significant health
benefit from smoking “low. tar” or “lights” cigarettes, defendants’ manipulation of cigarette design to ensure
optimum nicotine delivery -and the adverse health effects of exposure to environmental tobacco smoke;
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(vi) the disclosure of defendants’ public document websites and the. production of all documents produced to
the government or produced in any future.court or administrative action concerning.smoking and health;
(vii) the disclosure of disaggregated marketing data.to the government in the same form and on the same
schedules as defendants now follow in disclosing such data to the Federal Trade Commission for a period of
ten years; (viii) certain restrictions on the sale or transfer by defendants of any cigarette brands, brand names,
formulas or cigarette business within the United States; and (ix) payment of the government’s costs in
bringing the action. : :

It is unclear what impact, if any, the Final Judgment will have on the cigarette industry as a whole. To
the extent that the Final Judgment leads to a decline in industry-wide shipments of cigarettes in the United
States or otherwise results in restrictions that adversely affect the mdustry Liggett’s sales volume, operating
1ncome and cash ﬂows could be matenally adversely affected.

Upcoming Trials

As of December 31, 2012, there were 27 Engle progeny cases scheduled for trial through ‘December 31,
2013. The Company and/or Liggett and other cigarette manufacturers are currently named as defendants in
each of these cases, although as a case proceeds, one or more defendants may ultimately be dismissed from an
action. In Whitney v. R.J. Reynolds, an Individual Act10n pending in Florida, trial is scheduled for June 6,
2013. There are additional cases ‘against other c1garette manufacturers that are also scheduled for trial through
December 31, 2013. Trial dates are, however, subJect to change. .

MSA and Other State Settlement Agreements

In March 1996, March 1997 and March 1998, Liggett entered into settlements of smoking-related
litigation with 45 states and territories. The settlements released Liggett from .all smoking-related claims made
by -those states and territories, mcludmg claims for: health care cost reimbursement and: claims . concemmg
sales of cigarettes to minors.

In November 1998, Philip Morris, Brown & Williamson, R.J. Reynolds and Lorillard (the “Original
Participating Manufacturers” or “OPMs”) and Liggett (together with any other tobacco product manufacturer
that becomes a signatory, the “Subsequent Participating Manufacturers” or “SPMs”) (the OPMs and SPMs
are hereinafter referred to jointly as the “Participating Manufacturers™) entered into the Master Settlement
Agreement (the “MSA”) with 46 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the United States
Virgin Islands, American Samoa and the Northern Mariana Islands. (collectively, the “Settling States”) to
settle the asserted and unasserted health care cost recovery and certain other claims of the Settling States. The
MSA received final judicial approval in each Settling State. .

As a result of the MSA, the Setthng States released L1ggett from:

« all claims of the Settling States and the1r respective polmcal subd1v1s1ons and other rec1p1ents of
state health care funds, relating to: (i) past conduct arising out of the use, sale, distribution,
- manufacture, development, advertising and marketing of tobacco products; (ii) the health effects of,
‘the exposure to, or research, statements or warnings about, tobacco products; and .

all monetary claims of the Settling States and their respective subdivisions and other recipients of
state health care funds relating to future conduct arising out of the use of, or exposure to, tobacco
products that have been manufactured in the ordinary course of busmess

The MSA restricts tobacco product adverttsmg and marketmg within the Settlmg States and otherw1se
restricts the activities of Participating Manufacturers. Among other things, the MSA prohibits- the targeting of
youth in the advertising, promotion or marketing of-tobacco products; bans the use of cartoon characters-in all
tobacco - advertising and promotion; limits each Participating Manufacturer to' one tobacco brand name
sponsorship during any 12-month period; bans all outdoor advertising, with. certain limited exceptions;
prohibits payments for tobacco product placement in various media; bans gift offers based on the purchase of
tobacco products without sufficient proof that the intended recipient is .an adult; prohibits Participating
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Manufacturers from licensing third parties to advertise tobacco brand names in any manner prohibited under
the MSA; and prohibits Participating Manufacturers from using as a tobacco product brand name any
nationally recognized non-tobacco brand or trade name or the names of sports teams, entertainment groups or
individual celebrities. ' ’

The MSA also requires Participating Manufacturers to affirm corporate principles to comply with the
MSA and to reduce underage use of tobacco products and imposes restrictions on lobbying activities
conducted on behalf of Participating Manufacturers. In addition, the MSA provides for the appointment of an
independent auditor to calculate and determine the amounts of payments owed pursuant to the MSA.

Under the payment provisions of the MSA, the Participating Manufacturers are required to make annual
payments of $9,000,000 (subject to applicable adjustments, offsets and reductions). These annual payments are
allocated based on unit volume of domestic cigarette shipments. The payment obligations under the MSA are
the several, and not joint, obligation: of each Participating Manufacturer and are not the responsibility of any
parent or affiliate of a Participating Manufacturer.

Liggett has no payment obligations under the MSA except to the extent its market share exceeds a
market share exemption of approximately 1.65% of total cigarettes sold in the United States. Vector Tobacco
has no payment obligations under the MSA except to the extent its market share exceeds a market share
exemption of approximately 0.28% of total cigarettes sold in the United States. Liggett and Vector Tobacco’s
domestic shipments accounted for 3.5% of the total cigarettes sold in the United States in 2012. If Liggett’s or
Vector Tobacco’s market share exceeds their respective market share exemption in a given year, then on
April 15 of the following year, Liggett and/or Vector Tobacco, as the case may be, must pay on each excess
unit an amount equal (on a per-unit basis) to that due from the OPMs for that year. On December 31, 2012,
Liggett paid $105,000 of its estimated $136,700 2012 MSA payment obligation. Vector Tobacco had an
approximate $1,300 MSA payment obligation at December 31, 2012.

Certain MSA Disputes

NPM Adjustment. Tn March 2006, an economic consulting firm selected pursuant to the MSA
determined that the MSA was a “significant factor contributing to” the loss of market share of Participating
Manufacturers, to non-participating manufacturers, for 2003. This is known as the “NPM Adjustment.” The
economic consulting firm subsequently ‘rendered the same decision with respect to 2004 and 2005. In
March 2009, a different economic consulting firm made the same determination for 2006. As a result, the
manufacturers are entitled to potential NPM Adjustments to each of their 2003 — 2006 MSA payments. The
Participating Manufacturers are also entitled to potential NPM Adjustments to their 2007 — 2012 payments
pursuant to agreements entered into between the OPMs and the Settling States under which the OPMs agreed
to make certain payments for the benefit of the Settling States, in exchange for which the Settling States
stipulated that the MSA was & “significant factor contributing to” the loss of market share of Participating
Manufacturers for each of those years. A Settling State that has diligently enforced its qualifying escrow
statute in the year in question may be able to avoid application of the NPM Adjustment to the payments made
by the manufacturers for the benefit of that Settling State. :

For 2003 — 2011, Liggett and Vector Tobacco, as applicable, disputed that they owed the Settling States
the NPM Adjustments as calculated by’ the Independent Auditor. As permitted by the MSA, Liggett and Vector
Tobacco withheld payment or paid into a disputed payment account the amounts associated with these NPM
Adjustments. For 2003, Liggett and Vector Tobacco paid the NPM adjustment amount of $9,345 to the
Settling States although both companies continue to dispute this amount is owed. The total amount withheld
(or paid into a disputed payment account) by Liggett and Vector Tobacco for 2004 — 2011 was $61,960. At
December 31, 2012, included in “Other assets” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was a
non-current receivable of $6,542 relating to the $9,345 payment. '
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The following amounts have not been expensed by the Company: as they relate. to Liggett-and Vector
Tobacco’s NPM Adjustment claims: $6,542 for 2003, $3,789 for 2004 and $800 for 2005. Liggett and Vector
Tobacco have expensed all disputed amounts related to the NPM Adjustment since 2005. ‘

Since April 2006, notwithstanding provrsrons in the MSA requlrrng arbitration, . htlgatron was ﬁled in
49 Settling States involving the issue of whether the apphcatlon of the NPM AdJustment for 2003 was to be
determined through litigation or arbitration. These actions related to the potential NPM Adjustment for 2003, s
which the independent auditor under the MSA prevrously determined to be as much as $1,200,000 for all
Participating Manufacturers. All but one of the 48 courts that have decided the i issue ruled that the 2003 NPM
Adjustment dispute is arbitrable. One court, the Montana Supreme Court, ruled that Montana s claim of
diligent enforcement must be litigated. The United States Supreme Court denied certloran with respect to. that
opinion. In June 2012, Montana and the Participating. Manufacturers reached an agreement that the
Participating Manufacturers will not contest Montana’s diligent enforcement for 2003.

In response to a proposal from the OPMs and many of the SPMs, 45 of the Setthng States, representmg
approximately 90% of the allocable share of the Settling States, entered into an agreement providing for a
nationwide arbitration of the dispute with respect to the NPM Adjustment for 2003. Because . states
representmg more than 80% of the allocable share signed the agreement, signing states will receive a 20%
reduction of any 2003 NPM adjustment awarded in the arbitration. In June 2010, the three person arbitration
panel was selected. In November 2011, the Participating Manufacturers advised the arbitration panel that they
were not contesting diligent enforcement of 16 Settling States and territories. Substantive hearings:commenced
in April 2012 and are ongoing. To date, evidentiary hearings have been held for 15 of the remaining
35 Settling States. There can be no assurance that Liggett or Vector Tobacco will receive: any adjustment asa
result of these proceedings. :

Effective December 17, 2012, the 'Participating' Manufacturers entered into a “‘term sheet” with 17 states,
the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico setting out terms for settlement of the NPM Adjustment for 2003
through 2012 and addressing the NPM Adjustment mechanism for those states for future years. The term sheet
is subject to approval by the panel in the pending NPM Adjustment arbitration, Non—srgnatory states have
objected to the term sheet and may otherwise attempt to block it from proceedmg No assurance can be given
as to ﬁnahzatlon of the settlement. '

“Gross” v. “Net” Calculations. - In-October 2004, the independent auditor notified Lig'gett and all 'other
Participating Manufacturers that their payment oblrgatrons under the MSA, dating from the agreement’s
execution-in late 1998, had been recalculated using “net” units, rather,than gross” units (which had been
used since 1999). ' o o o _ ‘

Liggett objected to this retroactive change and disputed the change in: methodology. Liiggett contends that'
the retroactive change from “gross” to “net” units is impermjssible for several reasons, including ot

e use of “net” units. is not required by the MSA (as reﬂected by, among other thmgs the use of'
“gross” units through 2005);

- such a change is not authorized without the consent of affected parties to the MSA;

s+ the MSA prov1des for four-year time limitation periods for revisiting calculations “and
. determinations, which precludes recalculating Liggett’s 1997 Market Share . (and thus, Lrggett s
market share exemption); and .

»  Liggett and others have relied upon the calculations based on, “gross” unitsv since 1998,

The change in the method of calculation could have resulted in Liggett owing as much as $38,800 of
additional MSA payments for prior years, including interest, because the proposed change from “gross” to
“net” units would have lowered  Liggett’s - grandfathered market share exemption under the MSA. The
Company estimated that Liggett’s future annual MSA payments would have been at least approximately.
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$2,500 higher if the method of calculation was :changed..In August 2011, Liggett received notice from several
states seeking to initiate arbitration. as to.this matter. In' December 2012, the . parties: arbitrated 'the dispute
before a panel of three arbitrators..On. February 14, 2013, the arbitrators issued -a decision granting the relief
sought by Lrggett The arbitrators ruled that the limitations provisions of the MSA precluded the independent
auditor from recalculatmg nggett s grandfathered market share exemptlon or Liggett’s payment obligations
beyond the last four years lThe arbltrators further ruled that, for purposes of calculatmg Liggett’s payment
obhgatmns for the apphcable years, Lrggett s market share’ should be ‘calculated on a net basis, increased by a
factor of 1 25% Liggett is in the process ‘'of seeking reconsideration of the part. of the arbrtrators decision that
would require ‘the 1.25% increase i’ nggett s market share. If the arbitrator’s ruling is not modified, Liggett
would be requrred to pay approx1mate1y $11,300 for the last four years and’ approx1mate1y $2,000 for 2012.
The Company cannot quantlfy future annual ob11gat10ns as a regult of the ruling. Liggett accrued $5, 000 in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for any potent1a1 liability relating to the ‘gross” v. “net”
dispute. There can be no assurance that Liggett will be successful in' seeking modification of the award or that
Liggett .will not be required to make additional payments, which could adversely affect the Company s
consolidated ﬁnanCIal position, results of operations and cash flows.

thzganon Challengmg the MSA. L1t1gat10n challeriging the validity of ‘the MSA, including claims that
the MSA violates antitrust laws, has not been successful to date, although several cases are pending.
Part1c1pat1ng Manufacturers are not typlcally named as defendants in these cases.

- . Other Smte Settlements. The MSA replaced Liggett’s prior - settlements with all states and territories
except for Florida, Mississippi,. Texas and Minnesota. Each:.of these four states, prior to the effective date of
the MSA, negotiated ‘and -executed settlement .agreements .with each of the other major tobacco companies,
separate from those settlements reached previously with Liggett. Except as described below, Liggett’s
agreements with these states remain in full force and effect. These states’ settlement agreements with Liggett
contained most favored nation provrsrons wh1ch could reduce Liggett's payment obligations based on
subsequent settlements or resolutions’ ‘by those states with certam other tobacco companies. Beginning in 1999,
Liggett determmed that, based on each of these four states settlements with United States Tobacco Company,
Ltggett s payment obhgatlons ‘to those states had ‘been eliminated. With respect to all non-économic
obhgatrons under the previous settlemerits, Liggett believes it'is entitled to the most favorable provisions as
between the MSA and each state’s respective settlement with the other major tobacco companies. Therefore,
Liggett’s non-economic- obligations o alkstates:and territories are now defined by the MSA. :

“In 2003 asa result of a dlspute w1th Mlnnesota regardrng 1ts séttlement agreement, Liggett agreed to pay
$100 a year, in any year cigrettes manufactured by Liggett aré sold in that state. In 2003 and 2004, the
Attorneys General for Florida, Mississippi and Texas advised Liggett that they believed that Liggett had failed
to. make -certain - required-.payments -under the : respective . settlement agreements with these states. In
December 2010, Liggett settled with-Florida and agreed to pay $1,200 and to make further annual payments
of $250 for a period of 21 years, startmg in March 2011. The payments in years 12 — 21 will be subject to an
inflation - ad_]ustment These’ payments are in lieu of any other payients allegedly due to Florida under the
original settlement agreement. The Company accrued approximately $3,200 for this matter in 2010. In
February 2012, Mississippi. provided Liggett with a 60-day.notice that the state intended to pursue its
remedies if Liggett did not cure the alleged defaults. Liggett responded to Mississippi’s letter but has heard
nothmg further on the matter. There can be no assurance that nggett will be able to resolve the matters with
Texas and Mrssrssrppl or that Ltggett will not be required to ‘make additional payments which could adversely
affect the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Cautionaiy”State'r'nent. Management is not able to predict the outcome of the litigation pending or
threatened against Liggett or the Company. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties. For example, the jury in
the Lukacs case, an Engle progeny case tried in 2002, awarded $24,835 in compensatory damages and found
Liggett 50% responsible for the damages. The-judgment was affirmed on' appeal and Liggett paid $14,361 in
June 2010. Through December 31, 2012, Liggett has been foundliable in eight other Engle progeny cases. In one
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of these cases, although plaintiff had minimal history of smoking Liggett products, Liggett was found ljable for
$1,947 in compensatory damages and $7,600 in punitive damages. Although Liggett has appealed the adverse
verd1cts appellate efforts to date’ have generally not been successful. Liggett has also had judgments entered
agamst 1t in Ind1v1dual Actions, which Judgments were affirmed on appeal and satisfied by Liggett. It is possible
that other cases could be dec1ded unfavorably against Liggett and that Liggett will be unsuccessful on appeal.
L1ggett may attempt to sétfle’ parucular cases if it beheves 1t is in its best mterest to do so.

«Management.-cannot predict the- cash.requirements: related to any - future defense costs, settlements or
judgments, including cash required to bond any appeals, and there is a risk that those requirements will not be
able to be met. An unfavorable outcome of a pending smoking-related case could encourage the
commencement of add1t1onal l1t1gat10n or could lead to adverse decisions in the Engle progeny cases. Except
as discussed in this, Note 12 management is unable to estimate the loss or range of loss that could result from
an unfavorable outcome of the cases pending against Liggett or the costs. of defending such cases and as a
result has not prov1ded any amounts in.its consohdated financial statements for unfavorable outcomes.

“The tobacco industry is- subject ‘to a wide range of laws and regulations regarding ‘the marketmg, sale,
taxation and use ‘of tobacco products imposed by local, state and federal governments. There have been a
number of restrictive regulatory actions, - adverse legislative and political decisions and other unfavorable
developments concerning cigarette smoking and the tobacco industry. These developments may negatively
affect the perception of potential triers of fact with respect to the tobacco industry, possibly to the detriment of
certain pending litigation, and may prompt the commencement of additional litigation or legxslanon

It is possible that the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operatlons and cash flows
could be materially adversely ‘affected by an unfavorable outcome in ‘any of the smoking-related litigation.

The activity in the company’s accruals for tobacco litigation for the three years eended December 31,
2012 were as follows: ‘

Current Liabilities Non-Current Liabilities
Payments due Payments due
under Master under Master. - .- .
Settlement Litigation Settlement Litigation
kE e : : Agreement Accruals Total Agreement = Accruals Total
Balance at January 1,2010. . ... e . $ 18803 § — $ 18,803 $22,305 . $ — - $22,305
EXpenses . .........couueeiuun. 135,684 19,882 155,566 — — —
Change in MSA obligations capltahzed as
B 1117501 170) o 2 2,736 —_ 2,736 — — —
Payments . . .........o0 . (105,435) (15,699) (121,134) — - L
Reclassification to non-current liabilities . . (7,900) — (7,900) 7,900 — 7,900
Interest on withholding . . . .. ........ _ — —_— — v — — —
Balance at December 31,2010.. . .. e 43,888 4,183 48,071 30,205 — 30,205
Epenses . ... ........ AP S RN (1) 885 156,592 - e =
"Change in' MSA obhgatmns cap1tahzed as . » E
Toodnvenatory . . ST LU DL (2,495) — 2,495) S — —
2o PAYMEntS ™ .i i ce s L S " (128;258). (1,917  (130,175) - . — S T A
~Reclassification to non—current hablhtles .. 7. (17,668) - (1,600) (19,268). - - 17,667 1,600 - 19,267
.- Interest on-withholding . . . . . .. . . e — S — : , 1,466 — . 1,466
Balance at December 31, 2011. - 51,174 21,551 - 52,725 ¢+ 49,338 1,600 50,938
- -Expenses . .i0.0 : 137,746 1,725 139,471 e — L
Change in MSA obhgatlons cap1tahzed as . - B
inventory . . . ................. 49 — 49 — — —
Payments . ..........ooueeeen.. (155,094) (2,170)  (157,264) — = —
Reclassification to non-current liabilities - . - (905) 224 (681) . 905 . (224) 681
. Interest on withholding - . . . . .o bee o - — 140 140 2,396, 486. 2,882
Balance at December 31,2012, .. oo 8 32970 $ 1,470 $..34440 .$52,639 81,862 $54,501.
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Other Matters:

Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s management are unaware of any material environmental conditions
affecting their existing facilities. Liggett’s and Vector Tobacco’s management believe that current operations
are conducted in material compliance with all environmental laws and regulations and other laws and
regulations governing cigarette manufacturers. Compliance with federal, state and local provisions regulating
the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has
not had a material effect on the capital expenditures, results of operations or competitive position of Liggett or
Vector Tobacco. =

In February 2004, Liggett Vector Brands entered into a five year agreement with a subsidiary of the
American Wholesale Marketers Association to support a program to permit certain tobacco distributors to
secure, on reasonable terms, tax stamp bonds required by state' and local governments for the distribution of
cigarettes. This agreement has been extended through February 2016. Under the agreement, Liggett Vector
Brands has agreed to pay a portion of lossés incurred by the surety under the bond program, with a maximum
. loss exposure of $500 for Liggett Vector Brands. To secure its potential obligations under the agreement,
Liggett Vector Brands has delivered to the subsidiary of the association a $100 letter of credit and agreed to
fund up to an- additional $400. The Company believes the fair value of Liggett Vector Brands’ obligation
under the agreement was immaterial at December 31, 2012.

~ There may be several other proceedings, lawsuits and claims pending against the Company and certain of
its consolidated subsidiaries unrelated to tobacco or tobacco product liability. Management is of the opinion
that the liabilities, if any, ultimately resulting from such other proceedings, lawsuits and claims should not
materially affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations.or cash flows.

13. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,
e 2012 - 2011 2010

I. Cash paid during the period for:

Interest. .. ... .. e e e $81,821  $83,677  $67.918

INCOmME taXES . . . . ot v e e e 27,693 53,074 41,523
II. Non-cash investing and financing activities: ,

Issuance of stock dividend. . . .. ....... ... ... . ... . ..., 414 378 357

Debt retired in debt conversion. . ... ................ ... .... 55,778 10,993 —

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In September 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Ladenburg Thalmann Financial
Services Inc. (“LTS”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to make available to LTS the services of the
Company’s Executive Vice President to serve as the President and Chief Executive Officer of LTS and to
provide certain other financial, accounting and tax services, including assistance with complying with Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. LTS paid the Company $750 for 2012 and $600 for 2011 and 2010,
respectively, under the agreement and pays the Company at a rate of $750 per year in 2013. These amounts
are recorded as a reduction to the Company’s operating, selling, administrative and general expenses. LTS
paid compensation of $600, $500 and $200 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to each of the President of
the Company, who serves as Vice Chairman of LTS, and to the Executive Vice President of the Company,
who serves as President and CEO of LTS.

On November 4, 2011, Vector was part of a consortium, which included -Dr. Phillip Frost, who is a
beneficial owner of approximately 18.5% of the Company’s common stock and the Company’s Executive Vice
President, that entered into a loan agreement with LTS. Vector’s portion of the loan was $15,000. Interest on
the loan is payable quarterly at 11% per annum and commenced on December 31, 2011. The Company
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recorded interest income of $1,650 and $261 in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Interest is payable in cash,
provided that (i) from December 31, 2011 until November 4, 2013, LTS may elect to satisfy interest
obligations by adding such amount to the outstanding principal balance of the note, in an amount of up to
approximately 36% of accrued and unpaid interest on each payment date during such period, and (ii) after
November 4, 2013 until maturity, LTS may also pay interest-in-kind with the. consent of certain lenders. This
payment-in-kind feature increases the principal sum outstanding on the note that is due at maturity by the
amount of such payment-in-kind. Ten percent (10%) of the principal amount of the note, together with
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, is due on each of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015, and the
balance of the November 2011 Loan, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, is due on
November 4, 2016. ' :

In addition, LTS paid a one-time funding fee to the consortium of lenders and issued warrants (“LTS
Warrants™) to purchase shares of LTS common stock. Vector received $75 as its portion of the funding fee
and 1,000,000 of the LTS Warrants. The LTS Warrants are exercisable at any time prior to their expiration on
November 4, 2016 at $1.68 per share, which was the closing price of the LTS common stock on November 4,
2011. The LTS Warrants may be exercised in cash, by net exercise or pursuant to the Company’s surrender of
all or a portion of the principal amount of its note. The LTS Warrants have been included in “Other assets”
on the balance sheet in the amount of $717 and $1,890 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company’s President, a firm he serves as a consultant to, and affiliates of that firm received ordinary
and customary insurance commissions aggregating approximately $200, $205 and $431 in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively, on various insurance policies issued for the Company and its subsidiaries and
equity investees.

In October 2008, the Company acquired for $4,000 an approximate '11% interest in Castle Brands Inc.
(“Castle”) (NYSE MKT: ROX), a publicly traded developer and importer: of premium branded spirits. The
Company’s Executive Vice President is serving as the President and Chief Executive Officer. In October 2008,
the Company entered into an agreement with Castle where the Company agreed to make available the services
of its Executive Vice President as well as other financial, accounting and tax services. The Company
recognized management fees of $100 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, under the agreement. Castle will
pay the Company at av'rate of $100 per year in 2013.

" In December 2009, Vector was part of a consortium, ‘which included Dr. Phillip Frost and the Company’s
Executive Vice President, that agreed to provide a line of credit to Castle. The three-year line was for a
maximum amount of $2,500, bore interest at a rate of 11% per annum on amounts borrowed, paid a 1%
annual commitment fee and was collateralized by Castle’s receivables and inventory. The Company’s
commitment under the line was $900; all of which was outstanding under the credit line as of December 31,
2010. The amount was repaid with interest on October 14, 2011. In December 2010, the Company participated
in a consortium, which included Dr. Frost and the Company’s Executive Vice President, that lent Castle
$1,000. The Company lent $200 of this amount and received a note ‘bearing interest at 11% per annum. On
October 14, 2011, $217 of principal and outstanding interest associated with this note was exchanged for
shares of Castle’s convertible preferred stock. As part of the debt exchange, Castle also issued 357,796
warrants (the “Castle Warrants”). The Castle Warrants entitle Vector to purchase 357,796 shares of Castle
common stock. The Castle Warrants are exercisable at any time prior to their expiration on October ‘14, 2016
at $0.38 per share. The Company recorded the Castle convertible preferred stock in the amount of $156 in
“Other assets” as of December 31, 2011. The Castle Warrants have been included in “Other assets” in the
amount of $52 and $72 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In addition to its investment in Castle, the Company has made investments in entities where Dr. Frost has
a relationship. These include the following: (i) three investments in 2006, 2008 and 2009 totaling
approximately $11,000 in common stock of OPKO Inc. (NYSE: OPK) and its predecessor eXegenics Inc. and
in January 2013, the Company purchased $5,000 of Opko’s 3.00% convertible senior notes due 2033; (ii) a
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$500 investment in 2008 in Cardo Medical Inc.; and (iii) a $250 investment in 2008 in Cocrystal Discovery
Inc. Dr. Frost is'a director, executive officer and/or more than 10% shareholder ‘in these entities as well as
LTS: Addmonal investments in entities where Dr Frost has a relatlonshlp may be made in the future.

‘In May 2009,:the Company issued in a private placement the 6.75% Note in the principal amount of
$50,000. The purchase price was paid in cash ($38,225) and by itendering $11,005 principal amount of the 5%
Notes, valued at 107% of principal amount. The puichaser of the 6.75% Note is an entity affiliated
with Dr. Frost.

The Company was an investor in investment partnersh1ps afﬁhated with a former stockholder of the
Company. (See Note 6.)

* In Séptember 2012, the Company entered ‘into- an ofﬁce lease - (the “Lease”) with Frost Real Estate
Holdings, LLC (“FREH”), an entity affiliated with Dr. Frost. The Lease is for 12,390 square feet of ‘space in
an office building in Miami, Florida. The initial term of the Lease is five years, subject to two optional
five-year term extensions. Payments under the lease commence in May 2013. The Lease provides for
payments of $31 per month in the first year increasing to $35 per month in the fifth year, plus applicable sales
tax. The rent is inclusive of operating expenses, property taxes and parking. A $220 tenant improvement
allowance will be credited to the rent pro-rata over the initial five-year term. In connection with the execution
of the Lease, the Company received the advice and opinion of a commercial real estate firm that the Lease
terms were fair-and that the Company received terms favorable in the market.

15. INVESTNIENTS AND FAIR VALUE l\/IEASUREMENTS

The Company s recumng financial - assets: and 11ab111t1es subject to fair value measurements are
as follows: i :

Falr Value Measurements as of December 31, 2012

."Quoted Prices in . ) Slgniﬁcant }
Active Markets for . Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs *
Description Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets: ' i - B o
" Money market funds . ... ... L. ... $372.718 $372,718° § — $ —
" Certificates of deposit . . . . . . . . PR 2,240 = 2,240 -
Bonds. .............. 6,306 6,306 - —
In_{lestrnent securities available for sale. . . . 69,984 69,107 - 877 ' —
 Warrants®. ... 769 - — 769
_Total. . ... e S $452,017 . $448,131 L. $3,117 $ 769 .
L1ab111t1es )
Falr value of denvatlves embedded w1th1n . ‘ . o
~convertible debt. . e $172,128 0§ — $ — $172,128

¢)) Warrants~ include 1,000,000 of LTS: Warrants received on November 4, 2011 ‘which were cafr-ied at
$717 as of December 31, 2012 and are included in “Other assets”. The Company recognized a loss of
‘ $1,1‘74 for the year ended December 31, 2012 related to the change in fair value of the Warrants.

t
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Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2011 *

Quoted Prices in Significant °
Active Markets for  Significant Other = Unobservable
; : : : G Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Description R Total (Level 1) ~ (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets: ' Lo
Money market fands . . . . ... ...... ... 7$194,259 $194259 0§ — $ _
Certificates of deposit . .. ............ T 2,206 = 2,206 —
Bonds............ P . 4,573 4,573 — —
Investment securities
available forsale. . . .............. 76,486 70,884 5,602 —
Warrants™®. .. ... .. 1,962 — — 1,962
Total. . ... .o iie i $279,486 $269,716 $7,808 $ 1,962
Liabilities:
Fair value of derivatives embedded within “ , =
convertible'debt. . . ........ Coaoo o $133,5000 $ — $ — $133,500

(1) Warrants include 1,000,000 of LTS Warrants received on November 4, 2011 which were carried at
$1,890 as of December 31, 2011 and are included in “Other assets”. The Company recognized income of
$690 for the year ended December 31, 2011 related to the change: in fair value from receipt. (See
Note 14.)

The fair value of the Level 2 certificates of deposit are based on prices posted by the financial
institutions. The fair value of investment securities available for sale included in Level 1 are based on quoted
market prices from various stock exchanges. The Level 2 investment securltles available for sale are based on
quoted market prices of securities that are thinly traded. '

The fair value of derivatives embedded w1th1n convertlble debt. was $172,128 and $133,500 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt
was derived using a valuation model and have been classified as Level 3. The valuation model assumes future
dividend payments by the Company and utilizes interest rates and credit spreads based upon the implied debt
rate of the 7.5% Convertible Notes to determine the fair value of the derivatives embedded within the
convertible debt. The changes in fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible debt are presented on
the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. :

The value of the embedded derivatives‘is contingent on changes in impliedb‘interest rates of the convertible
debt, the Company’s stock price, stock volatility as well as projections of future cash and stock dividends over
the term of the debt. The interest rate comiponent of the value of the embedded derivative is computed by
calculating an equivalent non-convertible, unsecured and subordinated borrowing cost. This rate is determined
by calculating the implied rate on the Company’s 2019 Convertible Notes when removing the embedded option
value within the convertible security. This rate is based. upon market observable inputs and influenced by the
Company’s stock price, convertible bond trading price, risk free interest rates and stock volatility.

The fair value of the warrants was derived using the Black-Scholes model and has been classified as
Level 3. The assumptions used under the Black Scholes model in computlng ‘the fair value of the warrants are
based on contractual term of the warrants, volatlhty of the underlying stock based on the historical quoted
prices of the underlying stock, assumed future d1v1dend payments and a risk-free rate of retum
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The unobservable inputs related to the valuations of the Level 3 assets and liabilities are as follows at
December 31, 2012:

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at
December 31, Valuation
2012 Technique Unobservable Input Range (Actual)
Warrants. . . ....... $ 769 Option model Stock price $ 140
Exercise price $ 1.68
Term (in years) 3.8
Volatility 76.87%
Dividend rate —
Risk-free return 0.50%
Fair value of derivatives
embedded within Discounted
convertible debt. . . . 172,128  cash flow Assumed annual stock dividend . . 5%
Assumed annual cash dividend $ 1.60
Stock price $14.87
. Convertible trading price 109.0%
Volatility 18.00%
Implied credit spread 10.00% - 11.00% (10.50%)

The unobservable inputs related to the valuatlons of the Level 3 assets and liabilities are as follows at
December 31, 2011

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at

December 31, Valuation
2011 Technique Unobservable Input Range (Actual)
Warrants. . . ... .. o. $ 1,962- Option model Stock price $ 248
- o Exercise price $ 1.68
Term (in years) 4.9
Volatility 94.12%
Dividend rate —
g ; Risk-free return 0.83%
Fair value of derivatives
embedded within Discounted
convertible debt. . . . 133,500  cash flow Assumed annual stock dividend 5%
Assumed annual cash dividend $ 1.60
. Yield to worst call on the
* Company’s senior secured notes 9.33%
Average spread of unsecured debt 1.49%
Average spread of subordinated
debt 1.89%
Discount rate 12% - 13% (12.5%)

In addition to assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company is
required to record assets and liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. Generally, assets and liabilities
are recorded at fair valué on a nonrecurring basis as a result of impairment charges. The Company had no
nonrecurring nonfinancial assets subject to fair value measurements as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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16. NEW VALLEY LLC

Investments in consolidated and ~non-consolidated real estate businesses. New ‘Valley LLC
(“New Valley”) owns a 50% interest in Douglas Elliman Realty, LLC which operates a residential brokerage
company in the New York City metropolitan area. New Valley ‘also holds an investment in a 450-acre
approved master planned community in Palm Springs, California (“Escena™). New Valley also holds equity
investments in various real estate projects domestically and internationally. (See Note 1(k).) '

The components of “Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses” were as follows:

December 3_1, December 31,

' ) 2012 2011

Douglas Elliman Realty LLC ................ e $ 65171  $ 53,970
ChelseaEleven. .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ............ — 6,320
Fifty Third-Five Building . . . ... ............. ... . ... . ... — 18,000
Sesto Holdings . . .......... ... ... . . ... . 5,037 5,037
1107 Broadway . . . .. ..................... e 5,566 : 5,489
Lofts 21. . ... o g 900 900
Hotel Taiwana. . . .......... ... ... ... . 2,658 2,658
SOCAL Portfolio. . .. .......v v — 25,095
East 68™ Street. ............... e A 7,000 7,000
I BeachStreet. . ............................. e 9,642 o
Maryland Portfolio . ............. ... o, . 4615 . —
701 Seventh Avenue . .................. i, 9307 . o —
QueensPlaza . ............. ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ... 7,350 =
Chrystie Street .. .. ..o 1,973 —

Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses. . . . . e $119,219 '$124,469
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Residential Brokerage Business. New Valley accounts for its 50% interest in Douglas Elliman Realty
LLC under the equity method of accounting. New Valley recorded income of $16,741, $16,571 and
$22,303 for the years cnded December. 31, 2012, 2011 and 1201‘0, fespectively, associated with Douglas
Elliman Realty. Summarized financial information as of December 31, 2012, and 2011 and for the three years
ended December 31, 2012 for Douglas Elliman Realty is preseﬁted‘below. New Valley’s equity income from
Douglas Elliman Realty includes $0, $0 and $158, respectively, of interest income earned by New Valley on a
subordinated loan to Douglas Elliman Realty, as well as increases to income resulting from amortization of
negative goodwill which resulted from purchase accounting . of  $0, $158 and $182 and management fees of
$2,300, $2,300 and $1,300 earned from Douglas Elliman for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. New Valley received cash distributions from Douglas Elliman Realty LLC of
$5,540, $9,022 and $8,517 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

December 31, December 31,
2011

2012
Lo T P $ 78,015 $ 57,450
Other current assets. . . . . ..o oo viv oo [ 8,543 3,293
Property, plant and equipment, DEL. . . . ... .o v et 15,796 14,595
Trademarks . .. .. ... e e e 21,663 21,663
GOOAWLL . & e e 38,523 38,742
Other intangible assets, net. . . . . . [ 897 827
Other NON-CUITENE SSELS. « « « « v v v v v e v v ene oo e [ 3,182 3,096
Notes payable —current . . . ... ...ttt e I 466 602
Other current liabilities . . . . . . O 22,065 18,734
Notes payable —1ONg teIM . . . .. oo vve e - 334 1,104
Other long-term liabilities .. .. ... ..ot 9,614 9,490
Members’ SqQUILY. « .« « v oo vve e JE 134,140 109,736
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
REVEIUES. « o o v o e e e ettt et e e e $378,175  $346,309 $348,136
CoSts and eXPENSES . . . v v v v v v v e 346,617 315,318 303,358
Depreciation. EXPEnSe. . . « .+« v« ov v n e 3,422 3,439 3,682
AMOTtiZAtion EXPENSE « « v v v v v v v e 242 253 329
Other INCOME . -+ & o et e ettt et et et et i 1,829 2,007 2,440
Interest EXPenSe, MEL . . . . o v v v v v o e v vnv e 62 136 552
INCOME tAX EXPEISE. .+« + v e v ov v os o e s e ssm s 780 946 1,329
NELINCOME « & o v v v e e e e e et e e e e e et e $ 28,881 $ 28,224 $ 41,326

Douglas Elliman Realty was negatively impacted in recent years by the downturn in the residential real
estate market. The residential real estate market is cyclical and is affected by changes in the general economic
conditions that are beyond Douglas Elliman Realty’s control. The U.S. residential real estate market, including
the market in the New York metropolitan area where Douglas Elliman operates has experienced a significant
downturn due to various factors including downward pressure on housing prices, the impact of the recent
contraction in the subprime and mortgage markets generally and an exceptionally large inventory of unsold
homes at the same time that sales volumes are decreasing. The depth and length of the current downturn in
the real estate industry has proved exceedingly difficult to predict. The Company cannot predict whether the
downturn will worsen or when the market and related economic forces will return the U.S. residential real
estate industry to a growth period.
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‘Al of Douglas Elliman Realty’s current operations are located in the New York metropolitan area. Local
and regional economic and general business conditions in this market could differ materially from prevailing
conditions in other parts of the country. S : : :

Douglas Elliman Realty is in drscussrons with Prudential related to certain matters in connectron with the
franchise agreements, and Douglas Elliman: Realty has elected to cease operating as a Prudential franchisee.
Douglas Elliman Realty is seeking a resolution of these matters. The stated initial explratron date of the
franchise agreements is March 13, 2013 unless Douglas Elliman Realty chooses to renew the franchise
agreements prior to March 13, 2013. As a result of the termination or expiration of the-franchise agreements,
in accordance with the terms of the Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement, Douglas Elliman Realty
is required to redeem the approximate 20% equity. interest. owned by a former affiliate of .Prudential. The
redemption price for such equity interest is to be determined through an appraisal process in accordance with
the terms of Douglas Elliman Realty’s Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement. Douglas Elliman
Realty expects to resolve this matter in 2013.

Chelsea Eleven. In September 2008, a subsidiary of New Valley, New Valley Chelsea LLC, purchased
for $12,000 a 40% interest in New Valley Oaktree Chelsea Eleven, LLC, which lent $29‘ 000 and contributed
$1,000 for 29% of the capital in Chelsea Eleven LLC (“Chelsea”) Chelsea is developing a condominium
project in Manhattan, New York, whrch consists of 54 luxury res1dent1al units and one commercial unit. New
Valley Chelsea is operating as an 1nvestment vehicle for the Chelsea real estate development project.

Chelsea retired its construction loan during the second quarter of 2010 from the proceeds of the sales of
units. In addition, on July 1, 2010, Chelsea borrowed $47,100 which ‘was used to retire Chelsea’s -then
outstanding mezzanine debt (approximately $37 200) and for other worklng capltal purposes. The loan was
repaid in 2011.

The loan from New Valley Oaktree was subordinate to the new loan. The New Valley Oaktree loan bore
interest at 60.25% per annum, compounded monthly, with $3, 750 berng held in an interest reserve, from
which $1,500 was paid to New Valley. ~ : :

New Valley Chelsea was a variable ‘interesvt' entity; however, the Company was not the pﬁmary
beneficiary. This investment is being accounted for under the equity method.

In February and Apr11 2012, Chelsea closed on the remaining utility . and two residential units of the
54 unit building and the project is concluded. The Company has received net distributions of $9,483 and
$7,638 from New :Valley Oaktree Chelsea Eleven LLC for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. New Valley accounts for its 40% interest in New Valley Oaktree Chelsea Eleven, LLC under the
equity method of accounting. New Valley recorded equity income of $3,137, $3,000 and $900 for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectrvely, related to New Valley Chelsea. New Valley had no
exposure to loss as a result of its investment in Chelsea as of December 31 2012.

Fifty Third-Five Building. In September 2010, New Valley, through its: NV: 955 LLC subsrdrary,
contributed $2,500 to a joint venture, Fifty Third-Five Building LLC (“JV”’), of which it owns 50%. The IV
- was formed for the purposes of acquiring a defaulted real estate loan, collateralized by real estate located in
New York City. In October 2010, New Valley LLC contributed an additional $15,500 to the JV and the JV
acquired the defaulted loan for approximately $35,500. In December 2012, all outstanding prrncrpal and
interest on the loan was repaid and the defaulted note was retired.

New Valley received a liquidating distribution of $20,900 from the JV on December 28, 2012. This
investment was accounted for under the equity method of accounting. New Valley recorded equity income of
$2,900 for the year ended December 31, 2012. New Valley had no exposure to loss as a result of its
investment in the JV as of December 31, 2012.
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Sesto Holdings. In October 2010, New Valley, through its NV Milan LLC subsidiary, acquired a 7.2%
interest in Sesto Holdings S.rl (“Sesto”) for $5,000. Sesto holds-a 42% interest in an entity that has
purchased a land plot of approximately 322 acres in Milan, Italy. Sesto intends to develop the land plot as a
multi-parcel, multi-building mixed use urban regeneration project. Sesto is a variable interest entity; however,
New Valley is not the primary beneﬁc1ary New Valley accounts for Sesto under the equity method of
accounting. New Valley’s maximum exposure to loss as a result of its investment in Sesto was $5,037 at
December 31, 2012.

Lofts 21. In February 2011, New Valley invested $900 for an approximate 12% interest in Lofts
21 LLC. Lofts 21 LLC acquired an existing property in Manhattan, N, which is scheduled to be developed
into condominiums. Lofts 21 LLC is a variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the primary
beneficiary. New Valley accounts for Lofts 21 LLC under the equity method of accounting. New Valley’s
maximum exposure to loss as a result of this investment in Lofts 21 LLC was $900 at December 31, 2012.

1107 Broadway. During 2011, New Valley invested $5,489 for an approximate indirect 5% interest in
MS/WG 1107 Broadway Holdings LLC. In September 2011, MS/WG 1107 Broadway Holdings LLC acquired
the 1107 Broadway property in Ma.nhattan NY. The joint venture plans to develop the property, which was
formerly part of the International "Toy Center, into luxury residential condominiums with ground floor retail
space. MS/WG 1107 Broadway Holdings LLC is a variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the
primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for MS/WG 1107 Broadway Holdings LLC under the equity method
of accounting. New, Valley s méaximum exposure to’ loss as a result of its investment in MS/WG 1107
Broadway Holdings LLC was $5,566 at December 31, 2012.

Hotel Taiwana. Tn October 2011, New Valley invested $2,658 for an approximate 17.39% interest in
Hill Street Partners LLP (“Hill”’). Hill purchased a 37% interest in Hill Street SEP (“Hotel Taiwana’’) which
owns a hotel located in St. Barts, French West Indies. The hotel consists of 30 suites, 6 pools, a restaurant,
lounge and. gym. The purpose of the investment is to renovate and. the sell the hotel in its entirety or as
hotel—condos The investment is a vanable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the primary beneficiary.
New Valley accounts for this investment under the equity method of accounting. New Valley’s maximum
exposure to loss as a result of its investment in Hotel Taiwana was $2,658 at December 31, 2012.

SOCAL Portfolio. On October 28, 2011, a newly-formed joint venture, between affiliates of New Valley
and Winthrop Realty Trust, entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank to acquire a $117,900 C-Note
(the “C-Note”) for a purchase price of $96,700. The C-Note was the most junior tranche of a $796,000 first
mortgage loan originated in July 2007 which was collateralized by a 31 property portfolio of office properties
situated thréughout southern California, consisting of approximately 4.5 million square feet. The C-Note bore
interest at a rate per annum of LIBOR plus 310 basis points, required payments of interest only prior to
maturity and matured on August 9, 2012. On November 3, 2011, New Valley invested $25,000 for an
approximate 26% interest in the joint venture. The investment is a variable interest entity; however,
New Valley is not the primary beneficiary.
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" The summarized financial information of the joint venture is as follows:

December 31, - December 31,

‘ 2012 2011
Cash. ..ot P L $11 $ 365
Other CUTent assets. . . . ..o v v tit e ittt it 2 —
Net loans receivable . . . ... . v P " — 96,970
Interest receivable. . . . .............. N — 254
Other assets. . . . ... O T D P e — 400
Accrued expenses. . ... ... ... R P Vi . — : 269
Members’ equity. . .......... P 13 97,720
o 4 ‘ Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011
Interest and dividend income . .. ........ .ottt $25,122 $635
Costs and expenses. . . ... ... N 424 269
Interest expense, net . ... . ...... .. i eirie e e e e e b e e e ee e e e e B e e e 7,794 ... Ce—
Income tax expense........... e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12 L
Net income . . . .. e e S S Ve ie. 816,892 <. <$366

On September 28, 2012, all outstanding principal and interest was repaid and the C-Note was retired.
New Valley received a liquidating distribution of $32,275 from the joint venture on September 28, 2012.
New Valley accounted for this investment under the equity method of accounting. New Valley recorded equity
income of $7,180 and $95 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. New Valley had no
exposure to loss as a result of its investment in NV.SOCAL LLC at December 31, 2012. —

East 68™ Street. " Tn: December 2011, New Valley invested $7,000 for an approxunate 18% interest in a
condominium conversion project. The building is a 12-story, 105,000 square foot residential rental building
located on 68" Street between Fifth Avenue and Madison Avenue in Manhattan, NY. The investmerit is a
variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley’s maximum exposure
to loss as a result of its investment in HFZ East 68" Street was $7,000 at December 31, 2012. New Valley
accounts for this investment under the equity method of, accountmg

11 Beach Street. NV Beach LLC,"a wholly-owned subsidiary of New Valley,  invested $9,642 in
June 2012 with an additional $1,321 investment to be made in the future for an approximate 49.5% interest in
11Beach Street Investor LLC (the “Beach JV’). Beach JV plans to renovate and convert an existing office
building in Manhattan into a luxury residential condomlmum Beach JV is a variable.interest entity; however,
New Valley is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for its interest in Beach JV under the equity
method of accounting. New Valley’s maximum exposure to loss on its investment in Beach JV was $9,642 at
December 31, 2012. :

Maryland Portfolio.  In July 2012, New Valley invested $5,000 for an approximate 30% interest in a
joint venture that owns a 25% interest in a portfolio of approximately 5,500 apartment units primarily located
in Baltimore County, Maryland. The investment-is a variable interest entity; however; New Valley is not the
primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts. for this investment under the. equity method of accounting. New
Valley recorded equity loss of $269 and received distributions of $117 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
New Valley’s maximum exposure to-loss as a result of its investment in:NV Maryland was $4,615 at
December 31, 2012.

701 Sevénth Avenue. In August and”September. 2012, New Valley invested a total of $7,800 for an
approximate 11.5% interest in a joint venture that acquired property located at 701 Seventh Avenue in Times
Square in Manhattan. The joint venture plans to redevelop the property for retail space and signage, as well as
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a site for a potential hotel. The investment closed in October 2012 and New Valley invested an additional
$1,507 at closing. New Valley may have additional future capital contributions of approximately $14,000. The
property, located on the northeast corner of Seventh Avenue and 47th Street, totals approximately 120,000
gross square feet and is a rectangular corner parcel currently oecupied by two buildings. The investment is a
variable interest entity; however, New Valley is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for this
investment under the equity method of accounting. New Valley’s maximum exposure to loss as a result of its
investment in NV 701 Seventh Avenue was $9,307 at December 31, 2012.

Queens Plaza.  In December 2012, New Valley invested $7,350 for an approximate 45.37% interest in
QPS 23-10 Venture LLC which through its affiliate owns a condominium conversion project, 23-10 Queens
Plaza South, located in Queens, New York. The investment is a variable interest entity; however, New Valley
is not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for this investment under the equity method of
accounting. ‘New Valley’s max1mum exposure to loss as a result of its investment in Queens Plaza was $7,350
at December 31 2012,

Chrystie Street. In December 2012, New Valley invested $1,973 for an approximate 49% interest in
WG Chrystie LLC (“Chrystie Street”’) which owns a 37.5% ownership 1nterest in 215 Chrystie Venture LLC
which, through its affiliate, owns a condominium convers1on project located in Manhattan. The investment is a
variable interest entity; however, New Valley is “not the primary beneficiary. New Valley accounts for this
investment under the equlty method of accounting. New Valley’s maximum exposure to loss as a result of its
investmént in Chrystie Street was $1,973 at December 31; 2012.

Consolidated real estate mvestments

Aberdeen Townhomes LLC. ' Tn June 2008, a sub51d1ary of New Valley purchased a preferred ‘equity
interest in Aberdeen Townhomes LLC (“Aberdeen”) for $10,000. Aberdeen acquired five townhome
residences located in Manhattan, New York, which it was in the process of rehabilitating and selling.

The Company had recorded an impairment loss of $3,500 related to Aberdeen for each of the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

In September 2009; one of the five townhoines was sold and the mortgage of approximately $8,700 was
retired. The Company received a preferred return dlstnbutlon of approximately $1,752. The Company did not
record a gain.-or loss on the. sale. : A :

JIn Janualy 2010 and August 2010, Aberdeen sold two of its four townhomes and the two respective
mortgages of apprommately $14, 350 were retlred The Company received a preferred return distribution of
apprommately $971 in eonnectlon with, the sales In addition, Aberdeen received $375 in August 2010 from
escrow on the January 2010 sale.

In August 2010, the Company acquired the mortgage loans from Wachovia Bank, N.A. on the two remaining
townhomes for - approximately $13,500. In accordance with the aecountmg guidance as to variable interest entities,
the Company ‘reassessed the primary beneﬁmary status of the Aberdeen variable interest entity (“VIE”) and
determined that, in August 2010, the Company became the primary beneficiary of this VIE because the Company
obtained the power to direct activities which significantly impact the economic performance of the VIE; and since
owned the mortgages, the Company would absorb losses'and:returns of the VIE. - '

New Valley LLC is the primary beneficiary of the VIE, and as a result, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company mcluded the account baiances of Aberdeen Townhomes LLC as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectlvely o , S

i
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The $16,275 investment in townhomes as of December 31, 2010 was based on' September 2010
third-party appraisals, net of estimated selling expenses. The Company recogmzed a gain of $760 primarily
resulting from the acquisition of mortgage loans and operating income of $352 for the year ‘ended
December 31, 2010. These amounts were reﬂected as a reduction of operatmg, selhng, admrmstratlve and
general expenses.

In February 2011 and June 2011, Aberdeen sold its two remaining townhomes for approximately $11,635
and $7,994, respectively, and recorded a gain on sale of townhomes of $3, 843 for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The project has concluded. ' :

Escena. In March 2008, a subsidiary of New Valley purchased a loan collateralized by a substantial
portion of a.450-acre 'approved master planned community in Palm Springs, California known as “Escena.”
The loan, which was in foreclosure was purchased for its $20,000 face value plus accrued interest and other
costs of $1,445. The collateral consists of 867 residential lots with site and public infrastructure, an 18-hole
golf course, a substantially completed clubhouse, and a seven-acre site approved for a 450-room hotel.

In April 2009 New Valley completed the foreclosure process and took title to the collateral. New Valley’s
subs1d1ary also entered into a settlement agreement with Lennar Corporation, a guarantor of the loan, which
required the guarantor to satisfy its obhganons under a completion guaranty by completing 1mprovements to
the project in settlement, among ‘other things, of its payment guarantees. The constriction of these
improvemeénts to the project is substantially complete. In June 2009, the Company received $500 from the
guarantor pursuant to the settlement agreement.

As a result of this settlement and changes in the values of real estate, the Company recorded: 1mpa1rment
charges of $5,000 and $4,000 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectlvely

The assets have been classified as an “Investment in Escena, net” on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet and the components are as follows: 1 R :

December 31, _Iiecexnber 31,

’ 2012 2011
Land and land improvements. . . . .. .......t it $11,430 $11,245
Building and building improvements . . . .0l il .. e 1,530 1,525
Other..... . ... ... ........ e e e P P ; - 1,374 1,208

N . 14,334 13,978
Less accumulated depreciation. . . .. ... ERRRERT e (1,039 ~ (698)

$13 295 $13,280

The Company recorded an operatmg loss of- $628 $503 and $631 for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, from Escena.

Real Estate Market Condttzons Because of the risks ‘and uncertainties of the real estate markets, the
Company will continue to ‘perform’ addmonal assessments to determine the unpact of the markets, 1f any, on
the Company’s consolidated ﬁnanc:1a1 statements Thus, future nnpamnent charges ‘may ‘occur.
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17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company s_significant busmess segments for the three years ended December 31, 2012 were Tobacco
and Real Estate. The Tobacco segment consists of the manufacture and sale of cigarettes. The Real Estate
segment includes the Company’s investment in “Escena, Aberdeen and investments in non-consolidated real
estate businesses. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. . :

Financial information for the Company’s operations before taxes and minority interests for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 follows: ‘

Real Corporate

- Tobacco Estate and Other Total
2012 : S ;
Revenues: .. ......... PRI S o ‘$1;()84‘,546 $ — $ —  $1,084,546
Operating income (loss) . ... .......... 176,017 (2,013) (19,071) 154,933
Equity income from non—consohdated real \ .

estate bUSINESSES . . . ...yl .n .. — 29,764 — 29,764
Identifiable assets . ............ Lol 426,027 1399409 520,764 1,086,731
Depreciation and amortization . . . ....... . 9759 = 4l4 435 10,608
Capital expenditures. . . . . . . .. R C 9339 406 1,520 11,265
2011 < o -
REVENUES . . . o« ovov v eeienenen s ' $1,133,380 $ —  $ —  $1,133,380
Operating i mcome (loss) ....... e }164,581_ (1,929 (19,331) 143,321
Equity income from non-consolidated real * ‘

‘estate businesses . ... ... il g o T .19,966 — 19,966
Identifiable assets .. ................ 440,564 .. 138,096 349,108 927,768
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . 9,118 326 1,163 10,607
Capital expendltures. CEll e 10,725 252 861 11,838
2010 :

REVENUES . « « o v v e tee e iteeee e . $1,063,289 $ — % - — $1,063,289
Operating income (10SS) . . . . ... ....... - 130,1579 (631)  (18,213) 111,313
Equity income from non-consolidated real

estate businesses . . ........ ..ol X —_ 23,963 _— 23,963
Identifiable assets . . . ................ T 434,842 110,532? 404,221 949,595
Depreciation and amortization . . . .. ... .. 8,179 298 2,313 10,790
Capital expenditures. .."." . . . . LA 23073 226 92 23,391

1 Operatmg income includes litigation judgment expense of $l6 161 and a $3,000 settlement charge.

(2) Includes mvestments accounted for under the equity method of accounting of $125,651, $140,968 and
$86,333 as of December 31 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecuvely .
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. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (UNAUDITED) = . -

_Unaudited quarterly data for the yeiifs ended December 31, 2012' and 2011 are as follows:

_-December 31 : September 30, June 30, - March 31, - =
' - B 2012 2012 2012 . . 2012 ;.
Revenues........ O , $2~77,563 .$272,783 $276,594 . - $257,606
 GrossProfit . ............. e 69,793 - 69,034 64,842 - - 57,425
Operating income . ....... AU 37,366 = .. 43,193 40928 33446
Net income (loss) applicable to . ' :
common shares . ............. . $ 16485 . $17,932 . § 3,895 $ (7,690)
Per basic common share”:
Net income (loss) applicable. to o , C
common shares . ............. $ 019 $ 021 $ 005 $ (0.09)
' Per diluted common share™:
" Net income (loss) apphcable to
common shares . ........ U $ 014 § 021 $ 005 $ (0.10)

(D

Per share computations include the impact of a 5% stock dividend paid on September 28, 2012. Quarterly
basic and diluted net income per common share were computed independently for each quarter and-do
not necessarily total to the year to date basic 'and diluted net income per common share. -

December 31, September 30, . - June 30, March 31,
» ‘ . 2011 , 2011 . 2011
Revenues. .. ... e e $292,827 .+, $288 995 : : $291,180 $260,378
.. GrossProfit .................. 4 64,057 - .. ..61,132 . 60,107 - - 55,201
- Operating income T L 36,023 . - 37,855 - - 37,967 - 31,476
Net income (loss) apphcablc to- ' i e o :
common shares .............. $ 7,797 $ 17,549 $ 30, 301 $ 19,373
Per basic common share‘”:
Net income applicable to common o o
~ shares................ coee. %8009 -8 021 $ 036 $ 023
~ Per diluted common share:
Net income apphcable to common ; »
shares. . ............. e $ 009 $ 020 $ 033 $ 023

)

Per share computations include the impact of a 5% stock dividend paid on September 29, 2011. Quarterly
basic and diluted net income per common share were computed independently for each: quarter and do
not necessarily total to the year to date basic and diluted net income per common share.

.
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19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The accompanying condensed consolidating financial information has been prepared and  presented
pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Regulation S-X, Rule 3-10, “Financial Statements
of Guarantors and Affiliates. Whose Securities Collateralize an Issue Registered or Being Registered”. Each of
the subsidiary guarantors is 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. The guarantees are subject
to certain automatic release provisions. Relief’ from the finlancial statement requirements under Rule 3-10 is
being provided because the Company’s guarantee release provisions are considered customary pursuant to
Section 2510.5 of the SEC Division of Corporation Finance Financial Reporting Manual. Such release
provisions are as follows: '

. the sale or other disposition of. all or substantlally all of the assets or all of the capital stock of any
subsidiary guarantor; and

o the satisfaction of the requirements for legal defeasance or the satlsfact:lon and discharge of
. the indenture.

The Company’s mvestments in its consohdated subsidiaries are presented-.under the equity method
of accounting.

The Company has outstanding $415,000 principal amount ‘of its 11% Senior Secured Notes due 2015 that
are guaranteed subject to certain customary automatic release provisions described above on a joint and
several basis by all of the 100% owned domestic subsidiaries of the Company. that are engaged in the conduct
of its cigarette businesses. (See Note 7.) The notes .are not guaranteed by any of the Company’s subsidiaries
engaged in the real estate businesses conducted through'its subsidiary New Valley LLC.

Presented herein are Condensed Consolidating Balance:Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the
related Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 of Vector Group Ltd. (Parent/Issuer), the guarantor subsidiaries (Subsidiary Guarantors)
and the subsidiaries that’ are not guarantors (Subsidiary Non-Guarantors). The Company does not believe that
the separate financial statements and related footnote disclosures concerning the Guarantors would provide any
additional 1nformat10n that would be matenal to investors making an investment decision. :

The mdenture contains covenants - that restrict the - payment of dividends by the Company if the
Company’s consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“Consolidated
EBITDA”), as defined in the indenture, for the most recently ended four full quarters is less than $50,000.
The indenture also restricts the incurrence of debt if the Company’s Leverage Ratio and its Secured Leverage
Ratio, as defined in the indenture, exceed 3:0 and 1.5, respectively. The Company’s Leverage Ratio is defined
in the indenture as the ratio of the Company’s and the guaranteeing subsidiaries’ total debt less the fair market
value of the Company’s cash, investments in marketable securities and long-term investments to Consolidated
EBITDA, as defined in the indenture. The Company’s Secured Leverage Ratio is defined in the indenture in
the same manner as the Leverage Ratio, except that secured indebtedness is substituted for indebtedness.

Subsequent to ‘year-end, the Company announced it was commencing a-cash tender ‘offer with respect to
any and all of the outstanding $415,000 of its 11% Senior Secured Notes due 2015. The Company retired
$336,315 of the 11% Senior Secured Notes on February 12, 2013. The remaining $78,685 of the 11% Senior
Secured Notes have been called and will be retired on March 12, 2013. In February 2013, the Company sold
$450,000 of its 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2021 in a private offering to qualified institutional investors
in accordance with Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. The indenture of the 7.75% Senior Secured
Notes contains similar guarantees and covenants to those of the 11% Senior Secured Notes. The indenture has
covenants that restrict the payment of dividends by the Company if the Company’s consolidated earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined in the indenture, for the most recently ended
four full quarters is less than $75,000. The indenture also restricts the incurrence of debt if the Company’s
Leverage Ratio and its Secured Leverage Ratio, as defined in the indenture, exceed 3.0 and 1.5, respectively.
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CONDENSED CONSQEHJATING“BALANCE:‘SHEETS

ber 31, 2012
: Parent/ Subsidiary s“Non- Consolidating \(r::e"ﬁ:l:;dm
T .. Issuer_ Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.

ASSETS:

Current assets: , k _

Cash and cash equivalents . .. ....... AU $401344 $ 3776 $ 735 $  — $ 405855

‘Investment securities available for sale . ..%..:... ' 35330 34,654 ' — - © 69,984
Accounts receivable-trade, net . . . . . . . . . PRI — 11,183 64 = 11,247

Intercompany receivables . . . . ....... e e 354 — C— B €7 B —

"Inventories ................... P — 100,392 — o— 100392

L 33,238 3,371 — .= . 36,609

33,302 - — (26,523) 6,779

— 2,469 — —_ -, 2,469

the : ; e e Fue e T 665 4,848 208 —. 5,721

y; Total current assets . . . . ..........i..... 504,233 160,693 1,007 - (26,877) -.639,056

Property, plant and equipment, net . . . .. ......... - 2,104 54,810 239 §oo— . 57,153

Investment in Escena, net . . . ... ...... PN — —_ ;13,295 e 13,295 ¢

Long-term investments accounted for at cost . . .. . . : . 15,540 i — 827 — 16,367

Long-term investments accounted for under the - equlty RS : v :
method . .. ... .. Lol el 6,432 — S — 6432 °

Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses. ... ‘<. ,— —_ 119219 " b — 119,219

Investments in consolidated subsndlanes : . 210,525 — (210,525) S =

Restricted assets. . .. .. .... ... T 41,898 . 7,863 31 - 9,792

Deferred income taxes . . . . .......... L . 38,077 5,669 5,396 — 49,142

Intdngible asset . . ... ... .. e e VL. - 107,511 C — 107,511

Prepaid pension costs el 12,870 — — 12,870

Otherassets . . .. . .iv .o b iy . . 39,534 16,144 216 — 55,894

Total @SSEtS. . . . . . i ov vt $818,343 - $365,560.. - $140,230.- .$(237,402) . $1,086,731

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY ,

Current liabilities: : . e it e T
Current portion of notes payable and long-term debt .. $. - — $"36 617 $ 161 s — $ 36718
Current portion of employee beneﬁts e gl e L — 2824 .~ — 2,824
Accounts payable. . . .. .. .00 .. ... .. T - | 5173 265 — . 6,099
Intercompany payables . .. ......... e e e — .64 290 -(354) o e
:Accrued promotional expenses-. . . ... .. e . — 18,730 e —_ 18,730 .
Income taxes payable, net. . .. :e L. oo VLl e 1,445 - 31,347 (26,523) 6,269
Accrued excise and payroll taxes payable, nei L - — 20 419. — —_ 20,419
Litigation accruals and current payments due under the ' B T ik

Master Settlement Agreement . . S — 34440 - — 34,440
Deferred income taxes. . . . . e e ' e e $23,304 3,995 — — 27,299
“Accrued interest . . . . .. .. S T : 25,410 _ : — — " 25410
’Other' current Habilities . .. ... ... ... 000 . -5,545 9,658 - 1,688 = 16,891

Total current liabilifies . . . % .. .. ... .. ... 54,920 133,365 33,751 “(26,877): " 195,159

Notes payable, long-term debt and other obhgatlons, less ST e o
‘éurrentportion . ... .ol oL L. oL, “ 572,023 14,860 63 — -~ 586,946 .

Fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible S R . o
debt . ..., e o 172,128 — — - 172,128,

' Non-current employee benefits ... ... ... oL L0 25599 - 20,261 = — - 45,860

Deferted income taxes . . . . . . e L 74,777 33793 U 3962 - ’109 532

Other liabilities, primarily litigation accruals and . : o T '
payments due under the Master Settlement Agreement L 1,148 - - 54,506 704 - . 56,358 :

Total Tiabilities. . . . .. ... .. ..... .00 ... . 897,595 256,785 38,480, - (26,877).  1,165983" .
Coinmitments and contingencies . BT T T
Stockhiolders’ deficiency .. . . . Ll Vedi.. [ (79:252) ©108,775 . 101,750 (210,525), . (19,252)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deﬁaency. S0 0w $9818,343 ¢ $365,560 $140,230 $(237,402) . $1,086,731
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YECTOR GROUP-LTD.

NOTES: TO: EONSQLIDA’FE EINANCIAL STAFEMENTS
" (Dollaxs in Thousaxids; Except Per Share. Amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2011
Treer o Subsidiary Consolidated
) Y P Parent/ Subsidiary Non- Consolidating  Vector Group
. at TR Jssper Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
ASSETS: R
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... . - ... e e s $238 262 $ 2,488 $ 1713 $.. —...$ 240923
Investment securities available for sale ..... e 50 401 26,085 - — 76,486
.Accounts receivable-trade, net . . . . ... ... Yy e — 24,869 — — - 24,869
Intercompany recelvables. U L - 64 ’ — — (64) ST -
INVENMOTES . . . oo v vve e e e e PN — 109,228 — — 109,228
‘Deferred income taxes. . . . ... ... ... S 39,883 " 3,068 —_ — 42,951
Income taxes receivable, net . e PRSI 47,484 4,984 — (42,915) 9,553
Restricted assets . . . . ot o — 1,474 — — 1,474
Other CUTENt assets . . . . . . o ..o K 3,498 194 — 4,257
“Total current assets . . . . . . e 175,694 - 367 42,979) 509,741
Property, plant and equ1pment net”. 55,211 — — 56,556
Investment in Escena, net . . . .5 oo oo v i e - — . — 13,280 - 13,280 -
Lohg-term investments accounted for-at cost . .. .. ... 4,777 —_ 898 — 5,675
Long-term investments accounted for under the-equity v : L
method . .. .o vttt e 16,499 Sy — — 16,499
Investments in non-consolidated real estate businesses. . . . .= — — 124,469 — 124,469
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries . . .. .. ... .. 211,219 B — (211,219) L—
Restricted asSets: "8 o v v v v v v e v v v e e e e o 24161 7,465 S = . 9,626
Deferred income taxes .. . . .. .: S U A e 18,564 . 6,412 6,041 — 31,017
Intangible asset . . ... ... .. N R S 107,511 — — - 107,511
Prepaid pension costs. . . . ... ... ... o . — 10,047 — — 10,047
Otherassets . . . . o« v v oo v e n e v onenn e ee... _ 28,108 15,239 — — . 43,347 -
Total assets. e we ... $659332  $377,579 $145,055 $(254,198) $..927,768 -
LIAB]LITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY SR
Current liabilities: e oy -
Current portion of notes payable and long-term debt . $34651 "% 141 8 — $ 50844
Current portion of fair value of denvatrves embedded , o
*within convertible debt . 84,485 ek L sl — 84,485
Current portion of employee beneﬁts 3 . - -2,690 - " — 2,690
Accounts payable. . . . ... v ... S .. 71,040 8,321 - 171 — © 9,532
Intercompany payables . . . . ;"'. ....... P — 64 —_ “(64) e
Aécrued promotional expenses— . . . . . . . e — 17,056 — i 17,056
Income taxes payable, net. . ... . . ... e - 6,597 .= 42915 i :(42915) 6,597
.Ascrued excise and payroll taxes payable, net CE e e — 17,992 - : — 17,992
Litigation accruals and current payments due under the R S
s Madster Settlement Agreement. . . . . ... hodE L L — 52,725 — e — 52,725
‘Deferred income taxes. . . . v vv v .. a .. ;_:.~ ..... -+32;558 3,327 — — 35,885
:Accrued interest. . . . ... .. e e 20,888 — — — 20,888
Other current liabilities . . . ;o 2 o oo v oo v - .y 6,683 9,079 742 — 16,504
- Total current liabilitles . . ...°. W . . Ly .. .. 168,303 145,905 43,969 .(42,979). 315 198
Notes payable, long-term debt a.nd other obhgatrons, less T e e ) C e
CUITENE POTHON . & o v v v v v w e e e v v oo v i oo o S479,199 13941 216 L 493,356
Fair value of derivatives embedded within convertible ' o - L
1= 1 P 49,015 - — — 49,015
Non-current employee benefits . . .. ... ... e .. 23023 22,959 — — 45,982
Deferted income taxes . . . . . . ... e 21970 30,135 2,537 — 60,642 .
Other liabilities, primarily litigation accruals and - ‘ o ‘ T
payments due under the Master Settlement Agreement ... .85 51,010 7437 = 52,605
- Total Habilities, . .~ . . - - ST e .. 148,362 7263950 ‘47,465 (42,979) 1,016,798
Commltments and contingencies ‘ B ' : ) o
Stockholders’ deﬁcrency ................ .. (89,030 113,629 97,590" (211,219 '(89,030)
'Total habllmes and stockholders deﬁmency. J.... $659,332  $377,579 $145055 = $(254,198) $ 927,768
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Exéépt Per Share Amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Subsidiary Consolidated
Parent/ Subsidiary Non- Consolidating  Vector Group
Co Issuer " Guarantors: ' Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
Revenues . ................... $ — $1,084546 $ — $ — $1,084,546
Expenses: vl
Costof goodssold. . . .......... i 823,452 — S~ 7 823,452
Operating, selling, administrative and G T adn <o
general expenses . . ......... T 26,039 78,054 - 2,068 . = = 106,161
Management fee expense . . ...... — 9,163 — 9,063y e —
Operating (loss) income . . . . .. .. (26,039 173,877 (2,068) - 9,163 -~ 154,933
Other income (expenses): A A
Interestexpense .. ............ (105,465) 4.614) (23) D= (110,102)
Change in fair value of derivatives o P
embedded within convertible debt . (1,476) — —_ o e (1,476)
Acceleration of interest expense - : T S TP
related to debt conversion . ... .. (14,960) —_ — — - {14,960)
Equity income from non-consolidated : v v
real estate businesses . ........ - — 29,764 — - 29,764
Equity loss on long-term investments. (1,261) —_ — S —_ (1,261)
Gain on investment securities , : ER
“available forsale . . .......... i 1,640 — — 21,640
Equity income in consolidated . ' o /
“subsidiaries. . .............. 120,036 —_— — (120,036) - - e —
Management fee income. . . .. e 9,163 — —_ - (9,163)- - o —
Other,net ............... SR 1,022 - 21 136 - = ~1,179
(Loss) income before provision for S
income taxes .. ...........%.. (24,980) 170,924 27,809 (120,036) -~ - 53,717
Income tax benefit(expense) . . . . .. 55,602 (67,294) (11,403) im0 (23,095)
Net income. . . . . e e 30,622 103,630 16,406 (120,036) 30,622
Comprehensive income . . ......... $ 24031 $ 104,520 $16,406  $(120,926) $§ 24,031
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VECTOR':GROUPLTD.

NOTES . TO CONSOLIDATED: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in-Thousands, Except:Per Share Amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS ‘OF OPERATIONS

ReVENUES . v v v v vv e oo i oo enmann :

Expenses:
Costof goodssold. . . ..........
Operating, selling, administrative an

. general expenses . . ...... ST
Litigation judgment expense . . ... .
Management fee expense . . . . . e
Operating (loss) income . . .......

Other income (expenses):
Interest expense . . ............

- Change in fair value of derivatives
embedded within convertible debt .

“Acceleration: of interest expense
related to debt conversion . .. ...

Equity income from non-consolidated
real estate businesses

Gain on investment securities
.- available forsale . . .. ........

Gain on liquidation of long-term
L AINVeStmMentS. . v v L a e e e e e e
Gain on sales of townhomes . .. ...
Equity loss on long-term investments.
Equity income in consolidated
subsidiaries. . i ... v

5ot Year Ended December 31, 2011
" Subsidiary Consolidated
Parent/ . .. . Subsidiary.. ;- : Non- Consolidating  Vector Group

. Issuer o Guarantors - Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.

$  — " $1,133380 .$ — $ —  $1,133,380
_ 892,883 — - 892,883
25,318 69,827 2031 = 97,176
S 8,834 — (8,834) —
(25,318) 161,836 (2,031) 883 143321
(97,888) (2,786) (32) : — - (100,706)
7,084 — —_ - 17,984
(1,217) — o — (1,217
— — 19,966 — 19,966
— 23,257 — —_ . 23257
25,832 e — — 25,832
— — 3,843 — 3,843
(859) — — — (859)
127,103 - — (127,103 —
8,834 —_ — . (8834) R
1,675 61 — — - 1736
46,146 182368 21,746 (127,103) 123,157
28,874 (68,182) (8,829) — (48,137)
75,020 114,186 12,917 (127,103) 75,020
$ 66887 $ 103,495 $12,917 $(116,412) $ 66,887
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(Dollars in Thousands, Except:Per.Share Ameounts)

VECTOR GROUP LTD.:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONDENSEP CONSOLIDATING STAFEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues . ......... e e

Expenses:

Costof goodssold. . . ..........
Operating, selling, administrative and

general expenses . ...........
Litigation judgment expense . . . ...
Management fee expense ........
Operating (loss) income . . . . . . -

Other income (expenses):

Interestexpense . ............
Changes in fair value of derivatives

embedded within convertible debt .
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . .
Provision for loss on investments . . .

Equity income from non-consolidated
real estate businesses . ........

Gain on investment securities
available forsale .. . . ........
Equity income on long-term
investments. . . .............
Equity income in consolidated
subsidiaries. . . .............
Management fee income. .. ... ...
Other,pet . .................

Income before provision for income

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Subsidiary ) Consolidated
Parent/ Subsidiary . Non- Consolidating  Vector Group

Issuer Guarantors . -; Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
$ — $1,063289 $ — $ —  $1,063,289
— 845,106 — _— - 845,106
21,842 67,939 928  — 90,709
- 16,161 — — 16,161
— 8,521 — (8,521) -
(21,842) 125,562 (928) © 8,521 111,313
(82,828) (1,227) 41) — (84,096)
11,524, — = — 11,524
_ — 23963 — . 23963
10,612 9,257 — — 19,869
1,489 — —_ = 1,489
91,715 — — (91,715) —
8,521 — — 8521) ... —
1,469 39 — — 1,508
20,660 133,631 22,994 91,715 . 85,570
33,424 (55,713) (9,197) C— ~ (31,486)
54,084 77918 13,797 (91,715) . 54,084

$73419 $ 92708  $13,797 $(106,505)
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS' OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. . . ..........

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of investment securities . ... ..
Purchase of investment securities . :

Proceeds from sale or liquidation of
long-term investments . . . ......

Purchase of long-term investments. . .

Investments in non-consolidated real
estate businesses. .. ..........

Distributions from non-consolidated
real estate businesses. .. .......

Increase in cash surrender value of
life insurance policies . ........

Decrease (increase) in non-current
restricted assets . ... .. ... 0

Issuance of notes receivable. . . . . . .
Investments in subsidiaries. . . . . . ..
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets . . .
Capital expenditures. . . . ... .....

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities . . ............ . ...

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt issuance. . . . . . .
Deferred financing costs . . . . . . ce

Repayments of debt . . .. ........ A

Borrowings under revolver. . . . . .

Repayments on revolver . . . . . Jia.

Capital contributions received. . . . . .

Intercompany dividends paid . . . " ...

Dividends and distributions on
commonstock . . ............

Proceeds from the issuance of Vector
SEOCK « & v v i e

Proceeds from exercise of Vector
OptONS. . . v . v v i

Tax benefit of options exercised . . . .
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities. . .. .........

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents. . . ...............

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period. . ..... ... ... i

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period. . ... .. i

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Subsidiary Consolidated
- Parent/ . Subsidiary. Non- Consolidating  Vector Group

.. Issuer. - . Guarantors - Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
$118399 § 133308 § (2772)  $(164849) §$ 84,086
— 3,831 — — 3,831
— (5,647) — - (5,647)
— = n = on
— —  (33375) — . (33375)
— - 49221 —_ 49,221
(425) (482) — — (907)
263 (1,393) — — (1,130)
(383) — = ot (383)
(31,209) —_ — 31,209 _
432 12 — T 444
(1,520) (9,339) (406) — (11,265)
(37,842) (13,018) 15,512 31,209 ' (4,139)
230,000 14,033 42 —_ 244,075
(11,164) (315) — B (11,479)
—_— (19,125)‘ 133 - o= (19,258)
—_ 1,074,050 — —_ 1,074,050
— (1,066,092) — G e— (1,066,092)
— 6,9191 24,218 (31,209) —
= (128544 = (36,305) 164,849 —
(137,114) — — — (137,114)
611 — — — 611
140 — — — 140
52 — — —_ 52
82,525 (119,0602) (12,178) 133,640 84,985
163,082 1,288 562 —_ 164,932
238,262 2,488 173 — 240,923
$401,344 $ 3,776 735 $ — $ 405855
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in: Thousands, Except:Per:Share Amounts)

CONDENSED . CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS: OF. CASH FLOWS

Net cash prbvided by ‘(uséd in)' i )
- operating activities. :...c. ... 0.0

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of investment securities
Puichase of investment securities . . .
Proceeds from sale of or liquidation

of long-term investments »
. Purchase of long-term investments. . .

Investments in non-consolidated real
- estate businesses. . . . ... ......

5

-Distributions from non-consolidated
real estate businesses. . ........

Increase in cash surrender value of . .

- life insurance policies
“Decrease in non-current restricted - .
-..assets
Issuance of notes receivable. . ... ..
Proceeds from sale of townhomes.. . .
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets . . .
Investments in subsidiaries. . . . . . ..

_ Capital expenditures. . . . . . . . e
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities

.........

Cash flows from ﬁxiancing activities:

" Proceeds from debt issuance. . . . ...

Repayments of debt . . ... .......
Borrowings under revolver. . . .. ...
Repayments on revolver . ..., ...
‘Capital contributions received. . . . ..
Intercompany dividends paid

" Dividends and distributions on
common Stock ., ... ...

Proceeds from exerciseé of Vector: . .«
options and warrants.. . . . ......

Tax benefits from exercise of Vector
options and warrants . . . .......

Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities. . . . .........

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents 7 .
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period. .. .............. S
Cash _and cash equivalents, end of

e e e e

, pe_nod .....................

foay

Year Ended December 31, 2011

$ 238,262

$ 173"

: Subsidiary Consolidated
Parent/' .-~ Subsidiary-: Non- Consolidating  Vector Group
+* Jssuer .. Guarantors::  Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
'$ 67,588 $ 101,223 - $ 7352 $(140,122)  $ 36,041
— 31,643 — . 31,643
= (5,039) — — (5,039)
66,190 — — — " 66,190
(10,000) —_ - — (10,000)
_ — (41,859) — (41,859)
- - 8450 | — 8450
(315) (429) | — - (744)
512 (608) — — T (96)
(15,256) — — — (15,256)
— - 19,629 — 19,629
— 196 19 S 205
(29,565) - — 29,565 R
(852) (10,725) (261) e (11,838)
10,714 15,038 (14,032) 29,565 41,285
— 6,419 " — — - 6419
— (4,838) (122) — . (4,960)
— 1,064,270 — — 1,064,270
—  (1,078,508) — - (1,078,508)
— 3,720 25845 . (29,565) . -
e (121,050)  (19,072) 140,122 —_
(125;299) — — — (125,299)
1,029 — — — 1,029
821 — — — 821
(123,449) (129,987) 6,651 110,557 (136,228)
(45,147) (13,726) (29) — (58,902)
283,409 16,214 202 — 299,825
'$ 2488 $ — $ 240923
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amotints)

CONDENSED: CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS-OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2010
Subsidiary Consolidated
Parent/ ... - . Subsidiary - Non- Consolidating  Vector Group
et g Issuer Guarantors . © Guarantors Adjustments Ltd.
Net cash provided by (used in) ‘ o ' R .
operating-activities.”. . . . . .. co.o. $ 058329 8 165095 8 (2,164 $(154,256) $. 67,004
Cash flows from investing activities: S
Proceeds from sale or maturity of ,
investment securities . . . ....... 15, 433 13,154 —_ — 28,587
Purchase of investment securities . . . (7, 414) (1,980) —_ — (9,394)
Proceeds from sale or liquidation of . T '
long-term investments . . . ... ... 1,002 - — — 1,002
Purchase of long-term investments. . . (5,000) — (62) — (5,062)
Decrease in non-current restnctcd s
ASSELS. . ..t . it 363 (1,112) (351 — (1,100)
Purchase of mortgage receivable . . , . (13,462) — —_ f— o (13,462)
Investment in non-consolidated real .
estate businesses. . ... ........ —_ —_ (24,645) — (24,645)
Distributions from non-consolidated ’
real estate businesses. . .. ...... — — 3,539 — 3,539
Issuance of notes receivable. . .. ... (930) | — — (930)
. Cash acquired in Aberdeen o Co :
consolidation - . .. ........ ... — — 473 — 473
-Proceeds from sale of businesses and B :
assets. .. ... e e —_ 187 — L - 187
Investments in subsidiaries. . . ... .. (12,530) — — 12,530 . —
Capital expenditures. . . ......... - (23,073) (318) — (23,391)
Increase in cash surrender value of - : ; v
life- insurance policies . ........ (513) : (423) - — — (936)
" Net cash (used in) provided by investing Co - :
activities . ... ............... (23,051) (13,247) (21,364 . 12,530 (45,132)
Cash flows from financing act1v1tles ' : '
Proceeds from debt . ........... 165,000 20,714 — — 185,714
Repayments of debt . . . ......... — (14,424) (115) — ¢ (14,539)
Deferred financing charges. . . .. ... (5,077) — — —_ 5,077
Borrowings under revolver. . ... . . .. C— 1,034,924 — —_ 1,034,924
Repayments on revolver . ........ —_ (1,016,598) —_ — (1,016,598)
Capital contributions received. . . . . . — 12,530 —_ (12,530) —
Intercompany dividends paid . ... .. — (177,784) 23,528 154,256 —
Dividends and distributions on ° ! :
commonstock.............. (117,459) — - —_ (117,459)
Proceeds from exercise of Vector , S
options ............cc0.... 1,265 —_ — — 1,265
Excess tax benefit of options ,
exercised .. ....... . 269 — — — 269
Net:-cash provided by (used in)
financing activities . . . ... ....... 43,998 (140,638) 23,413 . 141,726 68,499
Net increase (decrease) m cash and cash S B ,
equivalents. . ................ 79,276 11,210 (115) — 90,371
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ‘ .
period......... ... 204,133 5,004 317 — 209,454
Cash and cash equivalents, end of _
period. ......... ... ... $283,409 $ 16,214 $ 202 $ — $ 299,825
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VECTOR GROUP LTD.

SCHEDULE IT — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Dollars in Thousands)
Additions :
Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning of Costs and . at End
Description ) Period Expenses Deductions of Period
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Allowances for: .
Doubtful accounts . ................... $ 308 $ 10 $ — $ 318
Cashdiscounts . ...................... 573 26,620 26,934 - 259
Deferred tax valuation allowance .......... 9,752 — 3,442 6,3'10
Salesreturns .............. .0, 4,055 3,228 3,216 4,067
Total ......... ... .. . . $14,688 $29,858 $33,592 $10,954
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Allowances for:
Doubtful accounts . ................... $ 198 $ 115 $ S5 ~$ 308
Cash discounts . ......... N 40 27,671 27,138 573
Deferred tax valuation allowance .......... 10,290 332 870 9,752
Salesreturns . .................. e 4,235 . 2,508 2,688 4,055
Total . ..ot s $14,763 $30,626 $30,701 $14,688.
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Allowances for: )
Doubtful accounts . ................... $ 154 $ 78 $ 34 $ 198
Cashdiscounts . ...................... 201 25,820 25,981 ’ 40
Deferred tax valuation allowance .......... 9,509 1,432 651 10,290
Salesreturns . .............. ... .... 4,337 3,363 3465 . 4,235
Total .......... ... ... ..... . . . . ... $14,201 $30,693 -~ $14,763

$30,131
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Independent Accountants:

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1441 Brickell Avenue

Suite 1100

Miami, FL 33131

Corporate Headquarters:

Vector Group Ltd.
100 S.E. Second Street
Miami, FL 33131

Website:

www.vectorgroupltd.com

'Additional Information:

Requests for general information
should be directed to corporate
headquarters.

Attn: Investor Relations

(305) 579-8000

Requests for exhibits not attached
to the Annual Report, including
Exhibit 99.1, Material Legal
Proceedings, must be in writing,
and should be sent to corporate
headquarters.

Attn: Investor Relations Please
specify the exhibits requested.

Company Stock:

Vector Group Ltd. common stock
is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (ticker symbol VGR).

Transfer Agent and Registrar:

American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company, LLC

6201 15™ Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219
Telephone: (800) 937-5449

Board of Directors:
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Group LLC

Henry C. Beinstein® * *
Partner,
Gagnon Securities LLC

Jeffrey S. Podell> 3
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Jean E. Sharpe® > #
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Corporate Officers:

Howard M. Lorber
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Richard J. Lampen
Executive Vice President

J. Bryant Kirkland IIT
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Chief Financial Officer

Marc N. Bell
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General Counsel )

Ronald J. Bernstein
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Liggett Group LLC and

. Liggett Vector Brands LLC

Corporate Governance:

The Company timely submitted to
the New York Stock Exchange a
Section 303A(12)(a) CEO
Certification without qualification
in 2012. In 2013, the Company
filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission the
CEO/CFO cettifications required
by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act as Exhibits to
its Form 10-K.



